Indiana Election Commission
Minutes

June 24, 2021

Members Present: Paul Okeson, Chairman of the Indiana Election Commission
(“Commission™); S. Anthony Long, Vice Chairman of the Commission; Suzannah Wilson
Overholt, member; Stephanie Beckley, Proxy for Zachary E. Klutz; Annette Craycraft, Proxy for
S. Anthony Long; Adam Dickey, Proxy for S. Anthony Long.

Members Absent: Zachary E. Klutz, Member.

Staff Attending: J. Bradley King, Co-Director, Indiana Election Division of the Office of the
Secretary of State (Election Division); Angela M. Nussmeyer, Co-Director of the Election
Division; Matthew Kochevar, Co-General Counsel of the Election Division; Valerie Warycha,
Co-General Counsel of the Election Division; Abbey Taylor, Indiana Election Division campaign
finance staff; Michelle Thompson, Indiana Election Division campaign finance staff.

Others Attending: The Honorable Holli Sullivan, Secretary of State of Indiana; Mr. Ferdinand
Alvarez; Ms. Roxanna Hanford; Mr. Andy Harlow; Mr. John Schroeder; Mr. Dennis Tedrow: Mr.
Bruce Ungetheim; Ms. Diane Yenerall.

1. Call to Order:

The Chair called the June 24, 2021 meeting of the Commission to order at 1:00 p.m. EDT
in a virtual Zoom meeting.

2. Transaction of Commission Business:

The Commission proceeded to transact the business set forth in the Transcript of
Proceedings for this meeting prepared by Maria W. Collier, RPR, CRR of Stewart
Richardson and Associates, which is incorporated by reference into these minutes. The
Commission corrects the following scrivener’s error in this document: Page 119, line 6,
replace “?”” with “.”.

The Commission adjourned its meeting at 3:36 p.m. EDT.

Respectfully submitted,
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Paul Okeson - Chairman
S. Anthony Long - Vice Chairman

Annette Craycraft and Adam D ckey

Proxies for S. Anthony Long - Vice Chairman
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St ephani e Beckl ey
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Angela M Nussneyer - Co-D rector
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Val eri e Warycha - Co- Counsel

ALSO PRESENT: Holli Sullivan - Secretary of

St at e
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CHAl RVAN OKESON: Do we have everybody?

MR. KING Yes, we do. W have actually three
proxi es avail able. Stephani e Beckl ey, of course,
iIs proxy for Zach Klutz. And then Annette
Craycraft is proxy for Vice Chairman Long, who is
al so able to join us on the call. And then we have
Adam Di ckey, who will be substituting for Annette
since she has a hard stop at 2:45 this afternoon.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

MR. KING And the other nenbers are all here.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: W th you doing the
I ntroductions, I'lIl forego that and call the
neeting to order.

| would Iike to note for the record that | see
nmy good friend Vice Chairman Long on, and | regret
to see himin a setting that |I'd rather he not be
in, but I hope he's doing well nonethel ess.

VICE CHAIRMAN LONG | amdoing well, and it's
good to see you again, Paul. | wanted to sign on
to tell everybody to have a good day and get things
going and let's get this business of the State
taken care of.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Absol utely. | was hoping
t hat maybe we coul d get together in person, nmaybe

soon.
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VI CE CHAIRMAN LONG | hope so.
CHAI RMVAN OKESON:. W th that, the neeting is
called to order. The nenbers have been not ed. I

woul d al so acknowl edge Co-Director Brad King and

Co-Director Nussneyer. |Is she on?
MR KING  Yes.
MS. NUSSMEYER: Yes, M. Chairman, | am | am

at work and | don't have video with nmy nonitors at
wor K.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: | under st and.

M5. NUSSMEYER: So | haven't figured out
technology to plug in a picture, so here we are,
bl ank screen.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: 1'd also like to obviously
acknow edge our Secretary of State, M. Sullivan.
Good to see you, ma' am

SECRETARY OF STATE SULLI VAN: Thank you. Good
to see you.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And do | understand, Brad,
that the secretary wll have sone coments?

MR. KING Yes, M. Chairman. There is an
opportunity for the secretary to nake comments.

SECRETARY OF STATE SULLI VAN. Thank you, bot h.
| appreciate that. Thank you for letting ne join

you this afternoon.
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And | especially just wanted to say thank you
to Anthony Long. | know you're not in the setting
that you wanted to be for this particul ar neeting,
but | wanted to take a chance today to say thank
you for your 24 years of dedication and public
service. It actually rem nds ne of ny predecessor,
Conni e Lawson, 32 years serving this great state.
But yours is extra special because the comm ssion
actually has only been in place for 26 years and
you have served diligently for 24 of those, so |
just wanted to say thank you.

| also wanted to share ny appreciation for
havi ng anot her voice from sout hwest |ndiana so
prevalent in the process. | think that's extrenely
I nportant and very proud to have you from our part
of the state. | can't even imgine the nunber of
mles that you' ve | ogged from41l to 70 up to Indy
and now, in the nost recent years, along |-69 that
we're all so thankful to have in place.

But | just wanted to say thank you for your
st eadf ast work and everything that you' ve poured
into the comm ssion. You will be m ssed, but I
know t hat you have nmuch to | ook forward to after
your July 1st retirenent. So thank you very nuch.

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  Thank you, Madam
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Secretary. | saw you sitting there and was
rem ni scent of your career, following it, being
from sout hern Indiana and how successful you've
been and been a bright spot for southern |Indiana.
And | was so heartened when you were appointed to
take the position that you're in now. | |ook
forward to seeing your good service there.

| appreciate very nmuch your thanking ne and
recogni zing ne for ny years of service. |It's been
a real treat, and | think the comm ssion has, on
the whol e, been very successful over the years. |
think that two Denbcrats and two Republicans
wor ki ng side by side has been generally a
successful mx for Indiana, naybe sonething they
coul d send sone of the people in Washi ngton down to
see how we' ve done things.

SECRETARY OF STATE SULLI VAN.  Anmen, yes.

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  Yeah, we can di sagree,
but we've rarely, rarely ever been disagreeable in
the 24 years that |'ve been there, and it's been a
real pleasure. And thank you for being here today.
And | appreciate your kind words.

SECRETARY OF STATE SULLI VAN: Absolutely. And
| hope you're feeling better soon. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Thank you, Madam Secretary.

Page 7



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Ironically, Anthony, | just got out of the car from
Evansville nyself. 1've spent the better part of
this week down there wth sonme nutual friends of
yours who both work in G bson County, and your nane
was i nvoked with highest regard a nunber of
occasions during those discussions. And | hope
during ny next visit down there | m ght get a
chance to stop by and see you.

VICE CHAIRMAN LONG | |look forward to that.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And it's been an honor to
serve al ongside you and to work very cooperatively
t hrough a very challenging year for ne, for all of
us really, but in ny early tenure as chairnman of
the commssion. And, quite frankly, | couldn't
I magi ne going through any of that with anyone el se
on the other side of the aisle other than you, and
| really appreciate that. And | appreciate your
friendshi p and our nmutual respect for one another
and will certainly m ss seeing you at these
meet i ngs novi ng forward.

| know your friends here on the conmm ssion
woul d al so maybe |like to offer sone personal
remarks. |'ll turn the m crophone over to
Comm ssioner WIlson Overholt, who I know would |ike

to say sone things as well.
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M5. OVERHOLT: Thank you, M. Chairman. And,
sorry, | got alittle teary hearing that. | wasn't
expecting that, so | apologize. I1'musually pretty
wel | conposed.

But, Anthony, it's just been an honor. |
mean, serving this conm ssion has been an honor,
but it's been an honor to serve al ongside of you on
the comm ssion. You've been a great teacher, great
| eader in terns of ny indoctrination to the
comm ssion and the workings of the conm ssion.
|'ve already been on longer -- | guess it's been
quite a while, nine years, | guess, already for ne,
which is kind of surprising. But |I've enjoyed it,
and I wsh you well, and hopefully we'll be able to
live up to your expectations as we proceed into the
future.

So thanks and | hope you enjoy your
comm ssion-free time, the newfound free tine that
you' I | have.

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  Suzannah, you have done a
superb job on the comm ssion. | have always really
sort of envied your | evel headed, steadfast
dedi cation to research and thinking through the
I ssues. You're as thorough as anybody that 1've

ever served with on the comm ssion and on know ng
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the issues and articulating your position on them
You' ve done a superb job, and |'ve been really
honored to serve with you.

M5. OVERHOLT: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN OKESON: Vi ce Chai rnman, woul d you
care to make any further remarks or comrents?

VICE CHAIRMAN LONG Only to say that, Paul,
we've had really -- | agree wth what you said
earlier -- a close working relationship, and |'ve
al ways believed that we could get al ong and get
nmore done by tal king and working together, find the
common grounds that we could work on, accentuate
that, and just do the work to be done.

| thought maybe one of the nobst outstandi ng
things we did was during the primary in 2020 when
we were facing the pandem c and no one, not one of
us, had faced anything like it in our lives in this
country or anywhere, to nmy know edge. And |
t hought the accommobdati ons that we nade, while it
took a long tinme and it took |ots of discussions
and conprom ses and agreenents and tal ks and j ust
W I lingness to work together, that we -- | think
the primary of 2020 was one of the npbst outstanding
achi evenents that | think that as a conmm ssion

we've done in the years that |'ve been there, and |
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was proud to be a part of that with you. And

you' ve been a good chairman, a great chairnmn, and
| wish you well in the future and do | ook forward
to seeing you when you get down here.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Yeah. No. | appreciate
that and your |leadership. And | think it goes for
the entire comm ssion as a whole, we regrettably
wat ch the news at night and see the coverage of the
political |andscape around us. | find working with
all of us on this comm ssion to be hopefully
i nspirational to how people ought to conport
t hensel ves.

And certainly your presence and your
| eadershi p on the comm ssion has been exceptional.
And | hope, to the extent we get viewers, | know we
got alittle bit of notoriety spring of |ast year
t hat naybe we got sone additional viewers out of
it, got to see that firsthand and w tness your
| eadership. And | really appreciate having you on
t he comm ssi on.

VI CE CHAI RMAN LONG  Thank you, Paul. By the
way, | just want to say that there may cone a point
"Il drop off here at sonme point, but it's not
because of lack of interest. There are limts to

my stamna as we are sitting here today, and so if
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| do drop off, don't think anything of it. It's
just | probably decided I need to take a nap, not
that you all put ne to sleep.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Well, | try nmy best. But
understand. Thank you. |[It's good to see you.

Ckay. We'll get into the business here. |
did intend to note that -- to recognize the court
reporter from Stewart Ri chardson, Maria Collier.

And as we get into the neeting, actually,
Valerie, if you wouldn't m nd nmaybe goi ng over the
hand-rai se notion on the Zoomfor fol ks as we get
into this so that we nake sure we're getting the
record right.

M5. WARYCHA: Yes, sure. M nane is Valerie
Warycha. |'mthe co-general counsel for the
| ndi ana El ection Divi sion.

And as everyone has just discussed, we had
sone issues |last year, so we're going to try to
control this neeting and who can speak and who can
show a screen and that sort of thing. And so what
we are going to do is, as we go through, there's
going to be a utilization of the hand-raise
feature. And so when the chairman gives the option
to take a settlenent agreenent or take the deal, so

to speak, you will have the opportunity to raise
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your hand if that is of interest to you.

And then, after we get through that, there
will be a portion where, if you would like to state
your case to the comm ssion and provide testinony,
we W |l once again ask you to raise your hand. |
wi Il go through and identify in both of those
I nstances when soneone has a hand raised so we can
docunent for the record who would |like to take the
deal and then who would Iike to make a
present ati on.

And in order to kind of give people sone tine,
whenever we rai se our hand that you would like to
make a presentation, | wll say, for exanple, "Joe
Smith wll give his presentation now, and then Bob

Smith is on deck," to try to give everyone a little
time to find the docunents. And | understand that
this mght be alittle clunky, so, comm ssion
menbers, if you get |ost finding docunents, please
| et us know. The canpaign finance staff is on and
avai |l able to help you identify where that docunent
IS you need to see.

And then for those of you on the line, if for
sone reason you cannot raise your hand and you are
not recogni zed and you feel that we've m ssed you

in sone way, at the very, very end, we wll open
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the phone lines. And there is phone call-in

information in the Zoomlink that we've got posted

online. And so we'll give one last, final call for
you to say that "I wasn't able to raise ny hand to
take the deal" or "I'd |like to nmake ny case."

W wi |l nmake every accommopdati on possible to

try to make sure that everyone has a chance to be
heard. And I will put ny email out there as well.
In the instance that you are really struggling, |
will be nonitoring ny emails. Feel free to email
me, and | will try to help you along as nuch as |
can. My email is vawarycha@ec.in.gov. And
realize ny last nane is a nouthful, so I'malso
under the Contacts in in.gov/sos, and under

El ection Division, Contact Us, you can find ny
emai| address there and I1'I|l be happy to hel p you.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Valerie.

Wth that, | recognized we needed to confirm
conpliance with the Open Door Law, so |'ll back up
real quick and request that Co-Directors King and
Nussneyer do so confirmthat we have done that.

MR KING M. Chairman, Brad King. On behalf
of myself and Co-Director Nussneyer, | confirmthat
this conm ssion neeting has been properly noticed

as required under the Open Door Law.
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CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Okay. Thank you.

Let's go ahead and nove to the approval of
our -- is it February 25th -- is that right? --
2021 neeting mnutes. | recognize the co-directors
to present the m nutes.

MR KING M. Chairman, Brad King. On behalf
of myself and Co-Director Nussneyer, nenbers have
recei ved copies of the mnutes of the February 25,
2021, Election Comm ssion neeting, and we present
themto you with our recommendati on for your
approval .

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Thank you.

|s there a notion to approve?

M5. BECKLEY: So noved.

M5. CRAYCRAFT: So noved.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Second?

M5. BECKLEY: [|'ll second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

Hearing none, all those in favor say
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: The "ayes" have it and the

aye.

notion i s approved.

Can | get consent fromthe comm ssion nenbers
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for the Election Division to sign the mnutes with
our stanps?

M5. OVERHOLT: Consent.

MS. BECKLEY: Consent.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

Moving on, we'll go to the adm nistration of
the oath. Any person who plans to testify during
the neeting today on any nmatter, including
candi date chal | enges and canpai gn fi nance matters,
pl ease respond with an "I do" upon the reading of
the oath. Wen you are unnuted for your
presentation, we wll ask that you confirm at that
time that you have taken the oath.

And | recogni ze Co- Counsel Kochevar to
adm ni ster the oath.

MR. KOCHEVAR: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

Those who plan to testify today before the
| ndi ana El ecti on Comm ssion, please say "I do"
after the recitation of the oath. Do you solemly
swear or affirmunder the penalties of perjury that
the testinony you are about to give to the Indiana
El ection Commi ssion is the truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth. Please say "I do."

M5. WARYCHA: M. Chairman, we won't be able

to hear themsay "I do." Before everyone would
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give testinony, we'll have them confirmthat they
di d say the oath.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Okay. All right. That's
good to know.

Let's go to the ratification of canpaign
finance agreenents. | recognize the staff,

Ms. Taylor, Ms. Thonpson, to present the

i nformati on concerni ng several canpaign finance
settl enent agreenents entered into on behalf of the
comm ssi on.

M5. THOWSON. M. Chairman -- Mchelle
Thonpson here -- and nenbers of the conm ssion, you
have a sheet of paper that says "Settl enent
Agreenents” at the top. It's an attachnent to an
emai |l that you received, and this is a list of
committees to ratify that have agreed to pay the
settl enment agreenent and wai ve a heari ng.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Is there a notion to ratify
t he canpai gn finance settlenent agreenents as
present ed?

M5. BECKLEY: So noved.

M5. CRAYCRAFT: |'ll second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by

aye.
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M5. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.

M5. BECKLEY: Aye.

M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Heari ng none opposed, the
"ayes" have it, and the notion to ratify the
agreenents i s adopt ed.

Movi ng on, so we do have people present today?

M5. WARYCHA:  Yes.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  So we'll go over the
opportunity to accept a reduced penalty before
proceeding with the enforcenent actions. W have
customarily given any commttee present a final
opportunity to pay a reduced civil penalty by
wai ving the right to present evidence and argunents
to the comm ssi on.

O course, any commttee is welcone to present
any evidence or argunents for the proposed penalty
to be waived or reduced, but this has been an
opportunity for those who want to waive any
presentation and accept the reduced penalty w thout
maki ng any argunent or presentation.

So therefore, | nove the adoption of the
followi ng arrangenents: |If this is the commttee's
first violation, the arrangenent is for the

commttee to agree to pay 25 percent of the
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proposed fine, plus mailing costs. |If this is the
commttee's second violation, the arrangenent is
for the coonmttee to agree to pay 50 percent of the
proposed fine, plus mailing costs. |If this is the
commttee's third violation, the coonmttee woul d
agree to pay 75 percent of the proposed violation,
plus mailing costs. For purposes of this
arrangenent, a previous settlenent agreenent
entered into by the conmttee will be counted as
one violation. Likewse, if nore than one all eged
viol ation occurred on the sane cal endar day, that
group of violations shall be also counted as one
vi ol ati on.

|s there a second to this proposed notion?

M5. CRAYCRAFT: |'ll second it.

M5. BECKLEY: Second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

Hearing none, all those in favor of the notion

signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
CHAl RVAN OKESON: The "ayes" have it.

aye.

Before this neeting, canpaign finance staff at

the Election Division sent a letter to each
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commttee which would be eligible to accept this
proposed reduced penalty offering the commttee the
opportunity to indicate the commttee's willingness
to accept such an agreenent to do so, subject to an
approval of this procedure by the comm ssion, and
return that signed agreenent to the Election
Division so that if the comm ssion did choose to
adopt this procedure at today's neeting, the
agreenent could be ratified by the conm ssion and a
reduced penalty inposed w thout further
presentation of evidence by the conmttee.

Now t hat the conm ssion has adopted the
procedures, | wll recognize Ms. Taylor and
Ms. Thonpson of the Election D vision to provide
the commssion with a list of conmttees that have
executed and filed these docunents and enter the
si gned docunents submtted by each commttee into
t he record.

|f there are any commttees present that woul d
like to take this deal that have not already
submtted the paperwork, please wite your nane and
cause nunber in the chat box -- well, | guess we're
not doing that, are we, Valerie?

M5. WARYCHA: Yeah. Once we got here, we

realized that wasn't going to work.
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So if you would like to take this plea deal,
pl ease rai se your hand now. \While canpaign finance
staff lists who they have, you'll have an
opportunity to raise your hand, and then |"'1]
recogni ze who | see as raising their hands.

So, Abbey, Mchelle, I'lIl turn it over to you
for anyone you' ve already had accept a deal.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  So we'll | et Abbey and
M chel l e get going, and then people can raise their
hands and kind of get in the queue.

M5. WARYCHA: Yes, pl ease.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Okay. Go ahead.

M5. TAYLOR  Okay. Well, that was not what
our -- this is Abbey Taylor. Yes, | took the oath.
That was not what our letter said at all. W had a
di fferent agreenment on what we sent.

We did receive 13 letters. Do you want us to
go through those commttees that sent letters
pl eadi ng their case?

M5. WARYCHA: Abbey, are those letters people
who want to take the deal ?

M5. TAYLOR  There was no deal offered to
anyone, so |'mnot sure what that -- the letter did
not offer a deal.

M5. NUSSMEYER: Valerie, if you recall, the
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|l etter was nodi fi ed because we, as co-directors,
don't have the authority to offer a plea agreenent
to commttees, and instead we asked commttees to
offer witten testinony to ask for a reduction or
wai ver so that the comm ssion thensel ves coul d nake
t he determ nati on about how they wanted to nanage
those letters. That was ny understandi ng of the
letter.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Brad, | thought we dealt
With this via sone email comrunication. D d that
not happen?

MR, KING M. Chairman, yes, we did discuss
this in a series of emails that Co-Director
Nussneyer has alluded to as well. At this point, |
understand that the comm ssion has received 13
responses to a letter that nay have a different
content than what we just described. And so |
think it mght be nost efficient if we could get
canpai gn finance staff to indicate what, in fact,
the letter sent to the commttees did indicate and
what the individuals who returned -- signed the
docunent and returned it did agree to.

So if either Mchelle or Abbey coul d address
what was in the actual letter that was sent and

what was received, that m ght be hel pful.
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CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Ckay.

M5. THOWPSON: M. Chairman, Mchelle
Thonpson. You al so have a packet of the letters.

What was it |listed as?

M5. TAYLOR It was letters -- it was a PDF
| abel ed "Hearing Letters."

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Did | get that from Joe or
Brad? Who sent it?

M5. TAYLOR One of them should have sent it
to you yesterday afternoon. |'mnot sure --

M5. WARYCHA: | believe it was Brad you would
have received that from M. Chairnman.

MR KING Right. It would have been part of
an emai|l that contai ned several attachnents from

canpai gn finance staff.

M5. WARYCHA: 1'Il resend it to you now to get
it at the top of your in-box, if that is hel pful.
CHAI RMAN OKESON: | think 1"ve got it here.
| "' musing ny conputer for the Zoom --
M5. WARYCHA: | know.
CHAl RMAN OKESON:  -- so |'m | ooking at these

on ny phone. PDF letters?
M5. THOWPSON:  Yes.
CHAI RVAN CKESON: 47 pages.
M5. THOWPSON:  Yes.

Page 23



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Okay. | see it.

kay. So where do we go from here?

M5. TAYLOR | was going to say, what's the
best way to handl e these?

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Brad or Val, you want to --

M5. WARYCHA: Yeah. |I'mopulling up the letter
ri ght now.

MR, KOCHEVAR:. M. Chairman, if | may.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Sur e.

MR, KOCHEVAR: My suggestion would be is that
we treat this as close to as if we were neeting in
person. That would be that the canpaign finance
commttee staff bring up the conmttee nane; go
t hrough the standard information that they give
you, why they're here before the conm ssion, what
cause nunbers that we're dealing with today; and
then go through basically the contents of the
letter, especially indicating if they have
requested either a reduced penalty or a waiver.

After that information is presented, | then
think it would be in order for any one of the
comm ssion nenbers to make a recomrendation on if
they want to provide a reduced penalty or waive
t hat penalty, whatever notion they want upon the

floor, or suggestion.
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That's what | would suggest to all of you. O
course, | defer to Co-Director Nussneyer, the
canpai gn finance staff, Brad, and Valerie as well.

M5. OVERHOLT: If | mght, M. Chairmn, |

feel that in reading what's been provided to us in

this packet, | feel like it would be hel pful if we
knew -- |I'massum ng there was a cover |etter that
went out with this. |I'mlooking at -- |ooks |like

It was a formthat was sent to these conmttees.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

M5. OVERHOLT: And |'m assum ng there was a
cover letter. So if we could have a little nore
context to know what was represented to these
comm ttees and --

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  \What they responded to.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah, exactly.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. Can we read that into
the record or have it sent to us while we're
sitting here? What nakes the npbst sense.

M5. WARYCHA: M chell e, Abbey, do either of
you have a copy right there in front of you that
you coul d read?

M5. TAYLOR Ckay. |1've got it.

“"To (Commttee Nane), From The I ndi ana

El ecti on Division, Re: | ndi ana El ecti on Conm ssi on
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Canpai gn Fi nance Hearing and Request for Wiver or
Reducti on of Proposed Penalty.

"The I ndiana Election Conm ssion is neeting on
Thur sday, June 24, 2021, at 1:00 p.m |Indianapolis
time, to review alleged canpai gn finance
violations. You are receiving this letter because
your committee may have a canpai gn finance
vi ol ati on.

"Due to COVID-19, the neeting wll be virtual
using Zoom Information to access the Zoom neeti ng
wi Il be published on this web page:

Wwv. i n. gov/ sos/ el ecti ons/ el ecti on-comm ssion the

day prior to the neeting. The link to attend the
neeting wll not be published until the day prior
due to security concerns.

"You may virtually attend"” -- oh, no, | |ost
the place. "You nmay virtually attend the online
nmeeting on Thursday, June 24, 2021. During this
neeting, you will be given the opportunity to
present evidence and argunents to the comm ssion
regardi ng your alleged violation. Any commttee is
wel come to present evidence and argunents for the
proposed penalty to be waived. |If you are unable
to attend, you may ask for a continuance in witing

with the Election Division by Mnday, June 21,
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2021.

"Due to the virtual nature of this neeting,
the commssion is giving commttees a one-tine
opportunity to file witten testinony to request
for a waiver or reduction of the proposed civil
penalty instead of attending the Thursday June 24,
2021, neeting to state your case in person
virtually. The Indiana Election Conm ssion w ||
review the witten or oral testinony provided by
the commttee and consider pertinent information to
determne if a waiver or reduction of the proposed
fine is warranted.

"The bipartisan comm ssion nust unani nously
agree to wai ve or reduce any canpai gn finance fine
pursuant to state |law. The conmm ssion nust neet
again to have heard the final orders generated by
this hearing. The commttee nmay enmail the canpaign
finance staff to inquire about any proposed wai ver
or reduction of the fine. The Election Division
staff cannot advi se you about your particul ar case
bef ore the comm ssion."

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Is that the entirety of the
letter?

M5. TAYLOR  "If your commttee would prefer

tofile witten testinony to request a waiver or
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reduction of the proposed penalty rather than
attend the neeting, please submt the follow ng not
| ater than noon Monday, June 21st: The conmttee
name, cause nunber, treasurer's name, request for a
full waiver or reduction, and an expl anation for
filing a delinquent report."

That's it.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. WARYCHA: So, Abbey and Mchelle, could
you ki nd of handhold the comm ssion through the
| etter and what each canpaign is alleged, their
vi ol ation, and what they're asking for to cl ose out
the matter.

M5. THOMPSON:. Sure. You want us to do it by
each --

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. | think Co-Counsel
Kochevar's direction there seens sufficient to ne
and a good idea. The first one | see that's
listed, what | see is the Ungethi em canpai gn, but I
don't -- whatever order you want to start inis
fine with ne.

M5. TAYLOR  The first one on the -- well, the
| etter should be H ggs for State Representative
Commi ttee.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Ch, yeah. Sorry. You're
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right. | was down a page.

M5. TAYLOR It's on the front of the
spreadsheet at the bottom This is H ggs for State
Representative Conmttee, Cause No. 2021-7405-2.
This is his first delinquency, and it's a proposed
civil penalty of $350 and a mail cost of 55 cents.
Hs letter just says he didn't know that there were
any filings required.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  So | guess this goes to
co-directors and co-counsel. | guess where |'ma
little bit lost or confused, so we've read through
t he procedures here where you can take a reduced
penalty. | nean, are these fol ks here to provide
any comments or responses or are we just making a
presunption that we're giving thema first-tine
violation reduction in penalty? [I'mnot really
sure where we're going here.

MR KING M. Chairman, this is Brad King. |
think there are several different paths the
conm ssion can take. |If | understand from staff,
there are approximately 30 to 40 indi vidual
commttees that submtted letters that were
i ncluded in the packet that you're referring to
that starts with the H ggs commttee. And | think,

under the circunstances, the best way to nove
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forward is not as a group, but wal king down the
list, seeing if a representative fromthe commttee
rai ses their hand and w shes to speak, and then
have the comm ssion consi der the argunents nade and
t hen make any deci sion regardi ng that enforcenent
action and proceed down the list of letters in the
order that they are in your packet.

And |'I|l defer to ny counterpart if she has
addi tional or other ideas.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Co- Di rector Nussneyer ?

M5. NUSSMEYER | woul d agree with that
assessnment, M. Chairman. | think that's an
appropriate path to take here. And it would be up
to you to decide whether or not you think the plea
agreenent is warranted, the 25, 50, 75 percent
stair-step, or if you want to fully waive the fine
or if you want to reduce it in a manner that's not
the 25, 50, 75 stair-step.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Wl I, so, for exanple --
and, Suzannah, junp in at any tine. Wat | read on
this Hggs letter at the bottomin handwiting --

M5. WARYCHA: Let ne take a nonent. |Is
M. Higgs on the call? If he is, would you raise
your hand.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Because it says "I'm
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requesting a waiver or reduction.”

M5. WARYCHA: Yeah. He's not on the call. |
just wanted to give himthe opportunity to chine in
if he was. | don't see him

M5. OVERHOLT: Wwell, M. Chairman, if | could
interject, it seens to ne that so the letter these
fol ks received -- | guess the process that Brad
just recited confuses ne a little bit, and Angie
agreed with it. But this letter that they received
| thought was inviting themto fill out these forns
and submt themin |lieu of appearing at the
hearing. So | think -- | nean, | guess we can
check to see if any of these people are here, but
if I were them | would be under the belief that,
if I submtted this form that | don't need to
appear at the hearing; |'ve already said what |I'm
going to say with respect to ny case.

So whether -- | nean, | guess, again, we can
doubl e check because sone people m ght, out of an
abundance of caution, send in the form and appear
at the hearing. But it doesn't seemto ne that it
shoul d nake any difference of -- well, let nme put
it this way: | guess if they're here, then, yes, |
guess, that would nmake a difference in terns of how

we treat this form but | don't think we somehow
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kind of hold it against themthat they're not
participating in the hearing today.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Because they've gotten the
letter, yeah.

M5. OVERHOLT: Right, because they sent in the
form

MR KING M. Chairman?

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Yeah. Go ahead, Brad.

MR KING If | could interject, | think
canpai gn finance staff would al so be helpful if
they would identify whether this and the other
comm ttees have had any previous violations.

M5. OVERHOLT: R ght. | nean, yes, | think we
need to go through that, but I think it's -- |
mean, | think we look at the letter. W see that
Higgs for State Representative Conmttee subnmtted
a form W look themup in the binder -- well, the
so-cal l ed binder -- see how many violations they've
had. And, you know, in this case he's asking for a
wai ver or a reduction.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Ri ght .

M5. OVERHOLT: So | think that's giving us the
| atitude to do --

CHAI RMAN CKESON: | npose what ever we want to

I npose, yeah. So we will probably, then, need to
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go one by one; correct?

M5. OVERHOLT: | would think so.

M5. WARYCHA: And just to get people off the
room who want to take the deal, would you -- | see
Dennis Tedrow for Local |ndiana has already raised
his hand, wants to take the deal. Just with
respect to those, as we figure this out, as | said,
it is kind of clunky, but do you want to go ahead
and rai se your hand, anyone who is here who would
like to take the deal, so we can clear you out and
you don't have to stay.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Yeah. That's a great point.
So we'll give a mnute here or so for people to
make sone sort of digital acknow edgnent.

M5. WARYCHA: Sure. So the first person | see
I's Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana, and | et ne nmake
sure. W' ve identified your PAC.

Abbey, M chelle, do you see which one that
goes to?

M5. THOMPSON: Yes. That's on page -- yes,
page 44.

M5. WARYCHA: The next person | see raising
their hand is Niki Goves. Haley, could you unnute
Ni ki for a nonment so we can see who Ni ki is

representi ng.
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Ni ki --

M5. OVERHOLT: Wait, shouldn't we take these
one at atine the sane way -- if we were in the
heari ng room sonmeone would cone up to the front of
the room we'd say do you want to take the deal,
the staff would recite the facts, we woul d deci de
what they're eligible for, we'd nake the
determ nation, and nove on to the next person. It
seens |ike we should do that instead of -- having a
l aundry list of people who are waiting is going to
slowit down too, so can we just take themin the
order that you're seeing, take themone at a tine
in the order that they're being seen?

M5. WARYCHA: Yes, yes. That would be fine.
Thank you. This is actually ny first canpaign
fi nance hearing, so bear with ne.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl |, and to Suzannah's
point, | think you' ve got to back up and start over
because we don't know -- Dennis Tedrow, we don't
know if this is a first or a second. | think we
need to go through that and understand what the
reduction is; correct?

M5. OVERHOLT: Right.

M5. WARYCHA: Ckay. Haley, can you unnute

Dennis for ne, please.
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And, Dennis, you wll be unnmuted here in just
a second. You are. Go ahead.

MR. TEDROWN Can you guys hear ne?

M5. WARYCHA:  Yes.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Yes.

MR. TEDROW Yeah. This is Dennis Tedrow from
Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana. | would like to
plead guilty. This is ny second offense. | am
under the inpression that it is a $500 fine, and |
am okay wi th paying that.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Ckay. So what | hear from
that is we're still in the procedural rules where
he can take the second violation reduction;
correct? That's what we're | ooking at; right,
Brad?

MR. KING Yes, M. Chairman, that's correct.
You can do this a couple of different ways, but one
way is to sinply nake a notion to inpose the $500
fine against the commttee in this case.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Is that what it woul d be
with the reduction?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: And what's the canpai gn
again? It's Tedrow?

MR. TEDROW Dennis Tedrow for Local |ndiana.
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M5. OVERHOLT: |It's on page 44 of the
spr eadsheet.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Thank you.

Ckay. So is there -- | guess we're going to
take a notion and vote on this; correct, Brad?

MR KING Yes, M. Chairman, you certainly
can do that.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Are we going to do that for
each one?

MR KING | would suggest, for efficiency,
that it probably is the best way.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Okay. So is there a notion
to accept the penalty for Tedrow?

M5. BECKLEY: So noved.

CHAI RVMAN OKESON: So noved.

|s there a second?

M5. OVERHOLT: Second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

MR. TEDROW | have a questi on.

CHAI RVMAN OKESON: Sure. Go ahead, M. Tedrow.

MR. TEDROWN After this, so | have to wait
until the end of the Zoom neeting or can | just go
ahead and | eave the call?

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  No. You'll be able to

depart after we finish.
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MR. TEDROWN Ckay. Sorry. | have to work is
all.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  No, no. | understand.

| mean, there is nothing else for himto do;
correct, Valerie?

M5. WARYCHA: |'m not aware of anything el se.

Canpai gn finance staff, do you need anyt hi ng
el se?

M5. TAYLOR  Nope. As soon as we're done, you
can hang up.

M5. WARYCHA: Perfect. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All right. So we have a

notion and a second. Hearing no further

di scussion, all those in favor signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Heari ng none opposed, the

aye.

notion is adopted.

Next ?

M5. WARYCHA: The next one we have is NiKi
Groves. Haley, if you could unnute N Kki.

And then Ni ki, please state your nane and what
commttee you're with

THE MODERATOR:  And, Ni ki, you'll want to hit
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the unnmute button on your devi ce.

MR HARLON Did it work?

MR KING Yes.

MR HARLON Good. |'mnot very
technol ogically sound, nor amI| N ki. [|'m Andy
Harl ow, the treasurer of the El khart Builders
Association, and I will be the first one to adm t
that we have had violations in the past. In fact,
| have been down in Indianapolis four or five years
ago swearing that I would never be on one of these
calls ever again, and I guess I'ma liar.

We had the form dated January 21st that we
sent in, and for whatever reason, it wasn't
processed, which I'mwlling to accept the blane
for. |I'mjust wondering if we can have sone sort
of dispensation as far as a smaller fine. W are
al so pl eading sone formof guilty.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Wi ch - -

M5. TAYLOR M. Chairman, nenbers of the
comm ssion, this is on page 12. This is the
Bui | ders Associ ation of El khart County, Cause
No. 2021-5251-20. They have been before the board
two other tinmes and paid two settl enent agreenents.
The proposed civil penalty is $1,000 with the nail

cost of 55 cents. They also submtted a letter,
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which will be in your letter packet, and it was the
fifth letter in there.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Who is the letter fronf

MR HARLOWN  Me.

M5. THOWSON. At the top it's Indiana -- or
Bui | ders Associ ation of El khart County.

MR. HARLOWN And that's ny signature at the

bottom sir.
CHAl RMAN CKESON:  |I'mnot -- what page is the
letter on? |I'mnot seeing it.

MR. HARLOWN | do have a copy | could send
you.

M5. THOWSON. At the top, would it help, we
have the cause nunber witten at the top,
2021- 5251- 20.

M5. OVERHOLT: Well, it's hard to search a
PDF. We've got a 47-page PDF.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

M5. TAYLOR It should be around page 33.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  That' s hel pful .

M5. TAYLOR  Page 33, go after that. [|I'm
sorry.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: There we go. Ckay.

M5. TAYLOR Next tinme |'ll do separate

attachnents. Lesson | ear ned.
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CHAl RMAN OKESON: That's okay. Just need to
know how to get to it. Thank you.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah

M5. TAYLOR Did we find it?

M5. OVERHOLT: Yes.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. OVERHOLT: So the other thing is, right
now we' re just supposed to be considering fol ks who
want to take the deal; right? And what |'m hearing
is that this canpaign -- this conmttee doesn't
want to take the deal. They want to try to have
further discussions.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  No.

MR. HARLON The letter really didn't offer us
a deal, so | don't know exactly what we're asking
for.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yeah. Hi s opening sentence
does say to request a waiver or reduction of
proposed penalty. How many violations is this?

M5. TAYLOR This is their fifth time before
t he conm ssi on.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Fi ve?

M5. TAYLOR Two other tinmes they were at a
hearing, and they paid two settl enent agreenents,

so this is the fifth, yes.
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MR. HARLOWN | believe the |ast settlenent was
t he agreenent when | promsed to M. Long | would
never be in front of you again. W' ve had issues.
|"mnot going to go into them Qur treasurer did
spend nost of the year in the hospital in Chicago
on COVID, but that's inmaterial.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl |, so | need sone counsel
here. Are we falling into a gray area? Are we
still into the proposed reduced in penalty or are
now we noving i nto hearings?

MR KING WwWll, M. Chairmn?

M5. WARYCHA: Go ahead.

MR. KING M. Chairman, Brad King. Fromthe
facts in this particular case, it does not appear
that the conmttee qualifies for any of the
reductions that are part of the standard deal that
the comm ssion would offer at past hearings, and so
It becones the determ nation of the conmm ssion
whet her or not to grant any waiver or reduction
what soever or whether to inpose the full fine.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  What's the anmount of the
penal ty?

M5. OVERHOLT: 1,000 plus 55 cents in nmailing
cost .

MR HARLOW [|'Ill pay the stanp.
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CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl |, can we have sone
di scussion before there's a notion to figure out
what we're doing or are we just --

MR KING M. Chairman, procedurally, you
shoul d have a notion before you to discuss.

Whet her you anend it or adopt it is, of course, up

to the will of the conmm ssion --

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Yeah. Ckay.

MR KING -- but you can start with the
not i on.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. So is there a notion
to inpose the penalty as presented on the Builders
Associ ation of El khart County?

M5. CRAYCRAFT: So noved.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  |Is there a second?

M5. BECKLEY: For clarification, that would be
the full $1,000 fine?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Correct.

M5. BECKLEY: And this is their fifth tine
before, not their third?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Correct.

MS. BECKLEY: Then, yes, | would second that.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  So now that we have a
second, can we have sone di scussion?

Suzannah, do you have any thoughts?
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M5. OVERHOLT: Well, | guess if -- well,
since -- | guess ny thought would be since we're
now ki nd of outside the paraneters of the kind of
stair-step situation, I would want to nake sure
that -- and I"'msorry. |Is this M. Harlow who is
on the |ine?

MR. HARLON Yes. N ki is here behind ne, but
|'"'m M. Harlow, the secretary -- or the treasurer.
Andrew Harl ow i s ny nane.

M5. OVERHOLT: | guess | think this is nore
akin to a hearing, and | would want to nmake sure
that he has fully presented what he wants to
present in terns of his request that the fine be
reduced. So | guess that's ny comment. | know
that's comng after the notion, but we were told we
had to have a notion. So nmy comrent is that |
would |i ke to hear nore from M. Harl ow before we
vot e.

MR KING And, M. Chairman, if | may, that
IS an opportunity that the conmm ssion does
routinely afford to commttees, usually limted to
five mnutes, not counting responses to
comm ssi oner questions and di scussi on.

CHAl RMAN CKESON: Wl |, without going through

all those procedures for the hearing, can we just
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afford M. Harlow a chance to speak wth us now?

MR KING Yes. | see no |legal reason why you
cannot .

M5. WARYCHA: But can M. Harlow affirmthat
he took the oath first, please.

MR HARLOW | absolutely affirml took the
oat h.

M5. WARYCHA: Thank you.

M5. NUSSMEYER. M. Chairman, if | may, the
conm ssion nenbers usually wll ask the conmttee,
if thisis a full hearing, if they're asking for a
full waiver or a reduction and what that reduction
to them m ght be, and then you use that as part of
your assessnent to nmake the final notion. At |east
that's howit's traditionally occurred.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  So say that again, the first
part.

M5. NUSSMEYER  Sure. Generally a nenber of
the commssion will pronpt the commttee to ask if
they want a full waiver or a reduction and what
that reduction to them woul d be.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Right. So, M. Harlow, in
your |etter you sinply request a waiver or
reduction. Can you articul ate what your actual

request is?
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MR. HARLOW | woul d appreciate any wai ver
what soever or reduction that you could give, but
let's start with 50 percent, and you're going to
negoti at e backwards on ne.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  And woul d you |ike to offer
sone explanation in the formof testinony?

MR. HARLOW A couple of things I'd like --
and this is not -- again, I"'mjust |like the first
gentleman. | amgoing to tell you that we are
guilty, or I think we are. W did conplete the
formon January 21st. W did mail it. W did
receive a letter in March it had never been
recei ved.

But be that as it may, sone of the things that
transpired in this last 12 nonths, we renoved our
executive director for cause and had to find a new
executive director. Qur accountant left the public
field and went to be the private accountant for the
Boys and Grls Clubs, so we had to find a new
accountant at this sanme tine. As | shared a little
bit ago, our treasurer, who had been the treasurer
for two or three years, was diagnosed wth COVID,
and if he hadn't gone to the Rush Hospital up in
Chi cago, he probably woul d have passed away earlier

this year. W had to reduce our admnistrative
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staff because of COVID.

So we dealt with a few things that were out of
the ordinary. W inplenented a few things to nake
sure that we're always on tine. W are now
presenting the information to our accountant before
it's due rather than wait for themto send us the
response, because we don't get our accounting
information, on a nonthly basis, until about the
20th, which makes it a little difficult to get it
to you guys ontine. So if we give it to thema
month earlier, hopefully we'll have it at the
begi nni ng of January as opposed to the end of
January. And | can tell you with absol ute
certainty you will never hear ny name or voice ever
again. | prom se you that.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Didn't you prom se that the
| ast tine?

MR HARLOWN | know and I'ma liar. Sorry.
But it was years ago. It was about five years ago
when | was down there, only to find out | had been
there for the third or fourth tinme and didn't know
it. So | defer the last tinme. | didn't know that
we were a frequent flier.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Wel |, and for the record, ny

coments were made with levity.
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MR. HARLOWN | know they were. | appreciate
the levity.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Ckay. So, Brad, Valerie,
Angi e, does your staff have anything further to
offer on this matter?

MR KING Nothing substantive, M. Chairmn,
but just to say that if the comm ssion is inclined
to i npose an anount other than the one in the
pendi ng notion --

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  We' Il have to anend the
not i on?

MR KING -- you will have to anmend the

moti on and then take a vote on the notion as

amended.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Ri ght .

M5. OVERHOLT: | thought Angie started to say
sonet hi ng.

M5. NUSSMEYER | don't have anything further

unl ess, Abbey, you have sonething in the file that
you think is pertinent for the comm ssion to
consi der.

M5. TAYLOR | do not. The last tine they
were before the comm ssion was June of 2012.

MR. HARLOW That sounds accurate. |'msure

it Is accurate.

Page 47



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Wel |, taking your testinony
at face value, as | do, it sounds |like you' ve been
on a bit of a rollercoaster ride here.

Do any ot her conm ssion nenbers have any
t houghts or comments as it relates to the testinony
provi ded and the notion at hand?

M5. OVERHOLT: And rem nd ne, what was the
proposed penalty in the current notion?

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  $1, 000, | believe.

MS. BECKLEY: Yeah, the full penalty.

M5. NUSSMEYER  And 55 cents.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  And 55 cents.

MR HARLOW |'Ill pay the 55 cents.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Whi ch nmay be increased by
the tinme we finish this nmeeting. It could go up to
57 cents.

MR. HARLOWN | have a forever stanp. We'Ill be
okay.

M5. OVERHOLT: | would say, M. Chairman, in
light of the circunstances and that there has been
a period of tinme since the last violation, that I
woul d nove to anend the notion to reduce the
penalty to the 75 percent |evel.

CHAIl RMAN CKESON: I'mgoing to take that as a

notion to anend the previous notion and i npose a
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penalty of 75 percent plus nmailing costs.

|s there a second?

M5. CRAYCRAFT: | would second that.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
"aye."

M5, OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Heari ng none opposed, the
nmotion carri es.

Thank you M. Harl ow.

MR. HARLOW Thank you very nmuch. W
appreci ate your consideration. Do | still have to
put nmy hand up to say that | said it's okay or
verbal is okay?

M5. WARYCHA: W' re good.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. [It's okay now.

MR. HARLOWN Ckay. | appreciate it.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Sure thing. Thank you.

M5. WARYCHA: Okay. So the next person that
see with their hand raised is Ferdi nand Al varez.
And if you could go ahead and unnute him Hal ey.

And, M. Alvarez, are you wanting to take the

deal or make -- if you're wanting to take the deal
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as a percentage based on how many viol ati ons, we
can do that now, or if you' re wanting to hear a
case, we'll wait until after we're done with those
deals. M. Ferdinand, are you wanting to take the
deal ?

MR ALVAREZ: Can you hear ne? Hello.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Yes. (o ahead.

MR. ALVAREZ: kay. Thank you, nenbers of the
comm ssion, for allowing ne to speak this
afternoon. M nane is Ferdi nand Al varez, chairnman
of the Lake and Porter County Young Denocrats.

The reason | did raise ny hand is | do request
a wai ver of the fees. The only dilemma is that |'m
a deputy prosecuting attorney, and I'mon ny |unch
break, and | amon ny way back to court to work for
the State of Indiana. And so | was just hoping
there was sone type of way | can be heard
bef orehand. But | am-- unfortunately, ny |lunch
break is comng to a close, and I will no | onger be
able to be on the neeting due to the fact that [|'I|
be in crimnal court.

MR KING M. Chairman, M. Alvarez needs to
confirmthat he took the oath.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: M. Al varez?

MR. ALVAREZ: Yes, sir, | did take the oath.
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| do so confirm

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  And what |'m hearing you
say, M. Alvarez, is that you want to proceed with
sort of a hearing on the matter as opposed to
accepting a reduction in penalty, which is what is
on the table.

MR. ALVAREZ: Correct. | amaware that |I'm
out of the order as far as the procedure on the
agenda, but due to tinme constraints, | just wanted
to bring it to this commssion's attention
bef orehand rat her than afterwards.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: And you do recogni ze --

M5. CRAYCRAFT: M. Chairman, can he call for
a continuance if there's not tine today?

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Wl |, | suppose he can
request one. |Is that correct, Brad?

MR. KING Yes, he can. M. Chairman, you've
actually started consideration here, and if
canpai gn finance staff can provide information
about violations, we may be able to have the
comm ssi on accomodate M. Alvarez so it's not
necessary. But, yes, if it is necessary, the
comm ssion can grant a conti nuance.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Wl l, and | just want to

remnd M. Alvarez that, by entering into this part
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of the procedure, you nay be foregoing your
opportunity to accept a reduced penalty and may be
I nposed the entire fine. Are you confortable with
t hat ?

MR ALVAREZ: | am Your Honor -- or Your
Honor. |I'msorry. | am M. Chairnman.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  No one's ever called ne
that, so don't start.

MR, ALVAREZ: Force of habit, sir.

M5. THOWSON. M. Chairman, this is page 28.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Okay. So in the PDF, what
page is the letter on?

M5. THOWSON. No, not the letter. It's the
spr eadsheet.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Al'l right.

M5. OVERHOLT: So does this count as their
second violation? |Is that how |I'mreading this?

M5. THOWPSON: This is their third.

MR. ALVAREZ: The reason for that, if | may,
menbers of the conmm ssion, our organi zation has
undergone three separate restructuring elections in
the last three years. | have recently been
appoi nted chairman as of May of this year al ong
with all new board nenbers.

| can't speak for the three violations in the
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past. Al | can speak of is -- or speak on is that
in the future our board is commtted to being
diligent on our paperwork. Qur financial
statenents are getting in order. W are

coordi nati ng our bank accounts with Peopl e's Bank
here in Miunster, Indiana, and we are taking this
seriously.

Qur previous treasurer was a 16-year-old high
school student who perhaps did not grasp the
seriousness of the accountability as far as
paperwor k and docunentation, but we do throw
ourselves at the nercy of this comm ssion, and we
prom se that in the future all accountability and
paperwork will be in order. W are an organization
of five individuals, and all of us are under the
age of 31, so...

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  There was a tinme when |
wi shed nmy age was an excuse for ny delinquency.
|"msorry. Back up a step. Wuat's the commttee
name agai n?

MR ALVAREZ: Lake and Porter County Young
Denocrats, sir.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  (Okay. And so what's the
proposed penal ty?

M5. THOMPSON:. The proposed penalty --
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MR ALVAREZ: W -- |'msorry.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: M. Alvarez, hold on a
second.

MR ALVAREZ: M apol ogi es.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  No. You're fine.

M5. THOWSON: M. Chairman, this is -- the
Lake and Porter County Young Denocrats has a
proposed civil penalty of $50.55. They have been
before the board one tine and they've paid the
settl enent agreenent, so this would be their third
of f ense.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  So the penalty as proposed
i s $50.55?

M5. THOMPSON: Correct.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Wl |, after hearing
M. Alvarez's testinony, does anyone have a notion?

M5. OVERHOLT: | woul d nove that we use the
stair-step approach and approve the 75 percent
penalty for the third violation.

M5. BECKLEY: | second that.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. | nmean, M. Alvarez,
"' mkind of there too, and you coul d have di spensed
with this a little bit quickly to get off your
| unch hour here.

So hearing a notion for a 75 percent -- or a
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reduction of 25 percent on the fine as proposed,

havi ng a second, all those in favor signify by

aye.
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Aye.
MR, ALVAREZ: | thank you, nenbers of the
comm ssion, for your decision. It definitely beats
a $1,000 fine, which is what I was unfortunately
anticipating. This fine is a bit nore nmanageabl e,
and I wll ask nmy nenbers to gather their
babysitting noney and we will pay this fine.
So thank you very much. | thank you for your
time. | hope you all have a wonderful day.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you.
M5. NUSSMEYER: M. Chairman, | believe the
spreadsheet shows the fine as bei ng $50.
CHAI RVAN OKESON:  That's ri ght.
M5. NUSSMEYER  Ckay. So | think he may have
m sunder st ood what his fine was.
CHAI RVAN OKESON: | think so too.
M5. NUSSMEYER Ckay. Well, he'll get even
better news, | suppose, with a 35 or $40 -- math is

hard -- settlenent agreenent. So thank you. |
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just wanted to clarify that.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. It's probably nore
i ke I awn now ng noney and not babysitting noney.

M5. WARYCHA: So | just want to bring this up.
| can see the hands that are raised, and | think
there i s confusion between the deal and maki ng
t esti nony.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Ri ght .

M5. WARYCHA: So | just want to open that up
to you, M. Chairman, and see how would you like to
proceed. Wuld you like to continue giving people
the opportunity to nmake their case or go back to
the deals? | just wanted to put that out there.

And, Brad, feel free to weigh in.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Let ne do this: For all who
are in attendance, if you can pl ease take your hand
down. Let's start again with those who are
interested in taking the proposed reduction in
penal ties w thout any testinony, now raise your
hand.

M5. WARYCHA: Okay. | see one, Roxanna
Hanford. And if you could please unnute her. And
Roxanna if you could say that you have taken the
oat h before you make renarks.

M5. HANFORD: Hi. | did agree to the oath,
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and apparently my conputer is not show ng the sane.
M ne shows that ny hand is | owered.

MR KING W can see you.

M5. WARYCHA: W see you. You're okay.

M5. HANFORD: Well, | would prefer to present
ny case.

M5. WARYCHA: Onh, okay.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: | understand. | see what

you' re saying. Okay. Thank you.

M5. WARYCHA: | don't see anybody else with a
hand rai sed, then, M. Chairman.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  |I'mgoing to give one nore
m nut e.

No one?

M5. WARYCHA: | do not see any hands.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All right. So presunption,
then, is that everybody else would |ike to be
heard. W' ve already kind of dived in, but for the
sake of the record, I'll go through the finance
heari ng procedures.

The remaining commttees will be called to
make presentation of evidence in these matters.
Before doing so, | want to note that in the past we
have foll owed certain procedures, and | nove that

t he comm ssion use the foll ow ng procedures today:

Page 57



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

When each canpaign finance matter is call ed,
the hearing will begin by recognizing our staff to
provi de i nformation about the docunents in this
matter provided to the comm ssion nenbers,
including letters fromthe commttees, and the
notice given to the canpaign commttee.

Unl ess there's any objection, the docunents
provided to the conm ssion by the El ection Division
wi Il be entered into the record of this neeting.

After the canpaign finance staff conpletes
presentation, a representative of the commttee
wi |l be recognized and nay present their case for
no nore than five m nutes.

Comm ssi on nenbers may ask questions during
the presentation, but the tinme spent answeri ng
t hese questions wll not be counted against that
presenter's tinme. And the Election D vision nmay
signal the chair when the presenter's tine is up.

| f the presenter offers additional docunents
or ot her physical evidence not previously received
by the comm ssion, then the original nust be
provided to the Election Division.

And, Valerie, we'll figure that out for the
preservation of the record.

MS5. WARYCHA: Yes.
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CHAI RVAN OKESON: I f the commi ssion finds that
a conmttee has violated the canpai gn finance
statutes, state |aw requires the unani nous vote of
all four comm ssioners to waive or reduce the
anount of penalty set by state | aw

| f the comm ssion makes a decision at this
neeting to either fine a conmttee or dismss the
case against the conmttee, then the Election
Division wll prepare a final order for the
conm ssion to approve at a later neeting. |If a
commttee is fined today, the commttee wll
receive a notice fromthe Election Division to pay
the fine after the comm ssion adopts the final
order. So it may be sone tine after today before a
commttee will be required to pay said fine.

Candi dates and comm ttee representatives who
woul d |li ke to present today, please identify by
usi ng the hand notion that we've been using thus
far, and the staff wll identify you in the order
that they see you.

The comm ssion wll recognize the commttees
to present in chronological order of -- | just said
that. Al right. So please speak clearly and wait
for -- and confirmthat you' ve taken the oath.

Wth that in mnd, is there a second to the
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notion on these procedures?

M5. BECKLEY: | will second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
"aye."

MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAI RMAN OKESON: Mbtion's approved.

Let's proceed.

M5. WARYCHA: Okay. The first person | see
IS -- I"'mgoing to say who | see and then who woul d
be on deck. So the first person | see is
Ungethiem and then | think -- if you could go
ahead and unmute him Haley. And then the next
person will be a Diane -- I'"msorry, |'mnot going
to say your last name correctly -- Yenerall.

MR. UNGETHIEM Can you hear ne?

M5. WARYCHA: Yes, we can. Can you confirm
you took the oath.

MR, UNGETHIEM |'m Bruce Ungethiem |'m
representing the Conmttee to El ect Bruce
Ungethiem This is the first time |I've done this,
Zoom or otherwi se, so bear with ne.

| did submt witten information on this, and
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| amrequesting a waiver of any fines that m ght be
potentially inposed. And the reason is that,
according to how | understood the rules, the
commttee followed all rules and submtted all the
fornms on tine.

Ch, by the way, | did say "I do" and |'m under

oath, so --

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Okay. Thank you.

MR UNGETHIEM -- we've got that out of the
way.

Basical ly, nmy understanding is that there were
two issues around the conmttee. One was a late
filing of CFA-11 back in April of 2018 and a | ate
filing of CFA-4 in 2021. And in April of 2018, |
filed the forns electronically, including the
CFA-11. Then at the end -- and | lost the
el ection, so | did not have to file until the end
of the year. | filed again on the 15th of January
of the follow ng year, and everything was fine.
There was nothing in the conputer queue that
I ndi cated that there was any issue.

In 2019, | didn't collect any noney and |
didn't spend any noney because | wasn't running for
el ecti on.

I n January of 2020, | nmade the decision that |
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was never going to run for elected office again, so
| filed the CFA-4 report on January 6 of 2020 and
di ssolved the conmttee. The noney that was
remaining in the commttee was donated to several

| ocal charities, and |I thought | was done with that
situation.

I n January of 2021, | got a note fromthe
Election Division. | got a letter sent out by the
El ection Division indicating the commttee was
delinquent in filing its forns. | imedi ately
called the office, talked with Mchell e Thonpson,
asked her what the situation was. W got onto the
conputer, and she did find that the CFA-11 was
sitting inafile -- or in a holding area
sonewhere. |t was on the conputer but for sone
reason now was not considered subnmtted even though
in the previous two years it didn't indicate that.

So she worked with ne. W got the CFA-11
filed. In addition, the notation about the CFA-4
not being filed in 2021, since | closed the
commttee or thought | closed the commttee in
2020, ny understandi ng was there was no reason to
file a 2021 CFA-4. W worked through that
situation as well, got that situation resolved, and

when | got off the phone wth Ms. Thonpson, ny
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under st andi ng was everything was okay and no ot her
action was needed. Then |I started to get
information that said that there m ght be fines and
penal ties associated wth that.

The reason that |'m confused about this is in
my previous life, when I worked for a Fortune 500
conpany, | was the director of conmputer operations
and know quite a bit about conputers and
programm ng and that kind of thing and know t hat
t hey have a tendency to sonetines not be as
accurate as we would i ke themto be.

But in summary, | followed all the information
that | had. | filed all of the proper forms on
time. There was no intent to deceive, and there
was no one harnmed by any of the actions that
occurred. So ny request is to have the -- any
fines that m ght be inposed waived, and I will go
on wwth ny life and never run for office again.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you, M. Unget hi em

Staff, Mchelle, does this all, this recount
of events, sound accurate?

M5. THOWSON. Yes. He also sent the letter
explaining that all. |It's on page 2. Let ne tell
you what pages these are on on your spreadsheet,

page 2 and page 84. And, yes, | did help himwalk
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through it and get it closed.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  And was this -- this notion
of the application being in sone holding area, can
you speak to that for ne.

M5. TAYLOR He entered the large contribution
into the systemon January 10th of 2019. At that
tinme it notified himthat a |large contribution
report needed to be filed and he either had to hit
“Continue" or "Update" to change it. He did not
file that report. It was in the "Reports Due"
section until he filed the report on February 2nd
of 2021.

MR. KING M. Chairman, canpaign finance, for
the record, should identify whether the commttee
has any previous violations.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. Thank you, Brad.

M5. THOWPSON: M. Chairman, no, he has not
been before the conmm ssion before.

M5. OVERHOLT: So do | understand, is the
comm ttee now cl osed?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: And | think -- | don't know if
staff would know this, but | heard M. Ungethiem
just say that all the noney in the account has been

donat ed.
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M5. TAYLOR He closed the commttee, so
there's no noney in the account.

MR. UNGETHIEM That is correct. All
remai ni ng funds were disbursed to charitable

or gani zati ons.

M5. OVERHOLT: And | -- well, M. Chairnan,
consistent with, | think, how we've handl ed
situations like this in the past, | would actually

nove to waive the entire --

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Penal ty.

M5. OVERHOLT: -- fine and mailing costs due
to the fact that the commttee is closed and
there's no noney in the account anynore.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. So there's a notion
on the Ungethiemmmatter to waive the penalty. |Is
there a second?

M5. BECKLEY: | woul d second.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by

aye.
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Seei ng none opposed, the

notion carries and the penalty is waived.
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Thank you, M. Ungethiem

MR. UNGETHI EM  Thank you very nuch. Have a
good day.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

M5. WARYCHA: The next person on deck is D ane
Yeneral |, and then Roxanna Hanford is next. And do
not forget to say if you' ve taken the oath.

MS. YENERALL: Ckay. Thank you. M nane is
D ane Yenerall.

M5. WARYCHA: Hold on just a second. And then
canpaign finance, | think, will go first.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. Thank you.

Go ahead, M chelle.

M5. THOWMPSON. W're trying to figure out what
page it's on. Hang on. Page 63.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: WAs there any letters or
anything sent on this case?

M5. TAYLOR  No.

M5. THOWSON: No letters. This is Indiana
Speech Language Heari ng Associ ation PAC, has a
proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55. They have
been before the board tw ce, and they have paid two
settl ement agreenents, so this would be their fifth
vi ol ati on.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: How is it their fifth if
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t hey' ve been before us tw ce?
M5. THOWSON:. They've al so paid two

settl enent agr eenents.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: | see what you're saying.
Ckay. Thank you. Sorry.

M5. OVERHOLT: |'ve caught on. You have to
add both of those columms, | figured out.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. TAYLOR  Right.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  So |I'm scrol ling through
here. What's the proposed fine?

M5. THOWPSON:  $1, 000. 55.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: And, Diane, will you
pronounce your |ast nanme for nme, please.

M5. YENERALL: It's Yenerall.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Yenerall. GCkay. Thank you.
kay. Ms. Yenerall, would you like to provide any

testi nony?

M5. YENERALL: Yes. Thank you. | do
acknow edge that --

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  And before you start -- |I'm
sorry -- what is it that you' re seeking? Wat's

your request?
MS. YENERALL: We're seeking a waiver of the
penalty of $1, 000.
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CHAl RVAN OKESON: (Ckay. Proceed wth your
testinony. | apol ogi ze.

M5. YENERALL: That's okay. Thank you. And |
do acknow edge that | took the oath.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

MS. YENERALL: | amrepresenting the |Indiana
Speech- Language- Heari ng Association PAC. | am
t heir new managenent conpany. | entered into a

contract wth the association, the state
associ ation, in Septenber after they had unresol ved
I ssues with their previous nmanagenent conpany.

| was not aware -- when | was contracted,
was not contracted to take care of a PAC account
for them But when | received the letter in
March 16th that the filing had not taken place,
that a volunteer of the organi zation was to nake,
that is when | started discussing wwth themthat |
woul d take over the nmanagenent of the PAC account
for themsince | amfamliar wth PAC accounts. |
manage associations with PACs in the state of
Pennsyl vani a, Virginia, and New York, so |
understand the severity of the penalties and
reporting on tine.

So considering the fact that they were having

I ssues that they needed to change nmanagenent
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conpani es, they had also at the sane tine, the
person who was filing the PAC was brand-new, was a
brand- new vol unteer, and | don't think she
under st ood everything that she was supposed to do.

So | do acknow edge that they did have five
previous violations, but 1'd just like the
consi deration since we are a new nmanagenent conpany
and we do have experience managi ng PACs in other
st at es.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  |I'm not sure that | have any
guestions. Does any nenber of the conm ssion have
any questions for Ms. Yenerall?

M5. OVERHOLT: | don't, M. Chairman.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  |I's there any proposed
nmotions on this matter? | nean, consistent with
sort of your comments on the previous fifth-tiner,
|"minclined to i npose 75 percent, unless there's
ot her discussion or an alternate notion.

M5. OVERHOLT: | guess | don't feel -- | feel
like the situation described here was a little
bit -- or described in the other case was a little

bit different, but we mght get into splitting

hairs if we do that. | don't know. | don't have a
strong feeling one way or the other, so I'll say
t hat .
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Well, | guess if no one else is naking a
notion, | guess |I'll nove that we proceed with
the -- that we grant a reduction of 25 percent or
I npose and nove that we inpose 75 percent of the
proposed fi ne.

M5. CRAYCRAFT: Second it.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: W have a notion and a
second. Any further discussion?

Heari ng none, all those -- go ahead.

M5. BECKLEY: Is there a reason -- what would
be your thought on the difference? |Is it because
they hired the new managenent conpany?

M5. OVERHOLT: Well, ny thought, | nean, the
ot her situation where he was tal ki ng about how, |
forget, one of the staff people was hospitalized
with COVID, | nean, they also had kind of a change
I n personnel but then al so sone ot her
ci rcunstances, so | guess that's what | thought
made it a little different. But as | acknow edged,
that could get into splitting hairs a bit or being
alittle bit overly subjective.

MS. BECKLEY: |[|'mgood to vote on the
75 percent.

MR. KING M. Chairman, staff understands the

nmotion to include nmailing costs as wel | .
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CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yes. Thank you.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yes, of course.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  We' Il stipulate that from
now on.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yes. Sorry. Yes.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion? Any
guestions?

Heari ng none, we have a notion to inpose

75 percent and a second. All those in favor

signify by
MS. CRAYCRAFT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.
CHAl RMAN CKESON: Hearing it's unani nous, the

aye.

notion carries. Thank you.

M5. YENERALL: Thank you for your tine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Who is next?

M5. WARYCHA: Next is Roxanna Hanford, and
t hen John Schroeder will be on deck next. So
pl ease unnmute Roxanna, and then, canpaign finance
staff, you're on.

M5. THOWSON: M. Chairman, this is on
page 26 and page 73 of the spreadsheet, Vote
Roxanna Hanford. The first one has a proposed

civil penalty of $1,000.55, and the second one has
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a proposed civil penalty of $1,000. 55.

No. I'msorry. Has not been before the
conm ssi on before.

CHAI RMAN CKESON: What page is the spreadsheet
on?

M5. THOWPSON: 26 and 73.

M5. BECKLEY: So there's two accounts here?
There's two viol ations?

M5. THOWPSON: There's two.

MS. BECKLEY: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: And t he second one is $1, 000
and the first one is how nuch?

M5, THOMPSON: 1, 000.

CHAl RMAN CKESON: Each. Ckay.

Ms. Hanford, can you please confirmthat you
swore to the oath.

M5. HANFORD: Yes. (Good afternoon, everyone.
| affirmthat, yes, | did agree to the oath, and |
was not aware that there were two penalties.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. HANFORD: So now |"'mten tinmes nore
confused than | was before. The only violation
that | understood that was agai nst ne was not
filing a final report as | made ny run for U S.

Senate, District 6, and ny paperwork has all been
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sent in.

Now, can you guys see us when we're tal king or
j ust hear us?

CHAl RMAN CKESON: | can see your face on a
screenshot, but you're not live. | can just hear
you.

M5. HANFORD: Okay. So, like I said, | was
only aware of the one violation. And ny
explanation for this is | had already been in
office. | was county conmm ssioner. | had opened
my canpai gn account in 1999, and ny canpai gn
account was entitled "Vote Roxanna Hanford." That
was it. It wasn't Vote Roxanna Hanford for
Comm ssi oner or Vote Roxanna Hanford for Senate.
You know, the title of ny canpai gn was Vote Roxanna

Hanf or d.

So when | decided to run for Senate, | already
had nmy account. | was out of office as
comm ssioner. | kept the account open. | filed ny

annual reports, you know, and | sent bank
statenents with themto verify them show ng that

t he endi ng bal ances had not changed. And so | sent
nmy annual reports, but | never sent a final report
because | knew that | was going to be running for

office in the future yet.
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So then starts nmy Senate canpaign. | pick up
nmy canpai gn finances where | had left themoff and
started ny fund-raising and ny canpai gni ng and
whatnot, and it still is Vote Roxanna Hanford and
that was it. It was an unsuccessful race. |
concl uded the race with a bal ance of $244.76.

In filling out ny CF-4 -- CF-4s, | marked them
year-end, but | never marked it final because | had
a debt. When | opened ny canpai gn, | opened ny
canpaign with $5,000 and put it in as a | oan from
nmyself to a canpaign. It was ny understandi ng that
you cannot close an account if there is a debt owed

or a balance; it has to be zero bal ance. Wen I

was no | onger conmm ssioner, | didn't have a zero
bal ance, so | never marked it final. Wen ny
unsuccessful race for Senate ended, | did not have

a zero balance, so | didn't mark it as final.

| continued to send in ny year-end reports,
and then | was notified that | needed to send in a
final report to the Senate race -- oh, | ran for
council after that, so | continued ny canpaign. So
that's why it wasn't closed and finalized at that
time. Then | was notified after that that | had to
cl ose out ny Senate account with a zero bal ance,

and | didn't know how to do that. | don't know how
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to close an account w thout a zero bal ance.

So after my run for council, | did close out
my account. | did repay nyself the remaining
bal ance fromthe $5,000, nmarked the rest of it off
as a donation, zeroed out the account, closed the
account, and sent that paperwork in as well as ny
bank statenent show ng that this account was zeroed
out and cl osed.

So | just -- bottomline, | don't know how to
cl ose out an account w thout a zero bal ance.

M5. OVERHOLT: Well, so could I ask a
guestion?

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: So, Ms. Hanford, what | think
| m hearing you say is that your intent -- | nean,
sois it your intent to close your canpaign finance
comm ttees?

M5. HANFORD: Yes, it's closed. Not out of
bitterness or anything like that, but |I'munable to
run. | wll not be running for any future offices,
and so, yes, the account is closed. Checks were
shredded and t he bal ance was zer oed.

M5. OVERHOLT: And | keep hearing you --

M5. TAYLOR  Your account nay be cl osed, but

your canpaign conmttee is still open.
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M5. HANFORD: Canpaign committee?

M5. OVERHOLT: Right. So you would have
created, when you started this whole process -- and
| appreciate your having been so interested in
running and sorry you ended up not having such
great experiences.

M5. HANFORD: Well, | was a two-term
comm ssioner. | felt good about that.

M5. OVERHOLT: So you did good. Ckay.
Anyway, so you woul d have opened -- under state
| aw, you woul d have opened the commttee's -- the
canpai gn finance conmttee that you have to open
under state |aw, and then there are bank accounts
that you had, | think, that you' re tal ki ng about
where the noney actually was housed. And the
commttee that is created under state lawis one
where you -- it's the recordkeeping that kind of
reflects what's going on in that bank account.

It sounds |ike you have cl osed your bank
accounts, but the actual commttees -- and forgive
me if I"'mwong -- it sounds |ike you m ght have
had two canpaign finance conmttees created under
state law. It sounds |like those conmttees are
still open but the bank accounts are cl osed.

M5. HANFORD: Okay. So we're talKking
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commttee and cash, commttee and finances.

M5. OVERHOLT: Right.

M5. HANFORD: Two separate issues. See, | was
| ooki ng at one single issue.

M5. OVERHOLT: Right.

M5. HANFORD: |f there's noney, there's a
commttee, a canpaign. |If there's no noney, if
there's no race, then, you know, you just do your
year-end report and that would be the end of it.

M5. OVERHOLT: To cut to the chase on this,
can | just ask the question, is it your intent to
cl ose your -- well, you said you' re not planning to
run again, so if staff were to help you with the
process to help you figure out how to actually
cl ose those commttees that you've created at the
state and | ocal |evel, would you be -- are you
intending to do that?

M5. HANFORD: Absolutely. [|'mnot neking
excuses. |I'mnot |ooking for synpathy. But | have
been di agnosed with nultiple brain tunors. This is
very difficult for me to maneuver through. | have
stacks of papers that, while we're sitting here,
|"mreading them |'mnaking notes to nyself so |
don't forget it because it's just too hard for ne.

| physically cannot do this anynore. But | wll
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remai n Denocrat chairman. | should say chair. |'m
sorry.

M5. NUSSMEYER M. Chairman, if | mght, in
order to close her conmttee, we do need sonething
inwiting fromM. Hanford that says that she
forgives the debts owed to her commttee, because
once that is received, then staff can hel p her
online to close out the commttee to be reflective
of the fact that she transferred her Senate dollars
maybe not to a different bank account, but from one
commttee to the other, to the local commttee, and
do the final disbands to address the issues raised
here today.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Ms. Hanford, can you hel p us
with that?

M5. HANFORD: Yes. If | understand this, is
there a formthat I'Il fill out that says that | am
di sbanding ny conmttee? But then where do | put
t hat noney? When |'mtalking about noney in there,
| don't have to put a noney anount in there? |'m
j ust di sbandi ng that Vote Roxanna Hanford, and then
put Senate seat -- or Senate race in there, that
comm ttee has been disbanded? So that's it, |
don't have to worry about putting a noney anount in

there, and then go through and fill out another
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formthat says Vote Roxanna Hanford not for county
council, but Vote Roxanna Hanford that at the tine
was running for county council has di sbanded t hat
commttee. |Is that what they're | ooking to do?
Ch, but you do need a zero dollar in there.

M5. NUSSMEYER: R ght. So what we need to do
is go back and anend a report that shows that you
transferred the dollars fromthe Senate canpaign to
your |ocal commttee. So we're not actually noving
noney; we're just show ng the fact that one
commttee transferred funds to the other commttee,
even though the bank account was the sane, which
will result in a zero dollar bal ance.

But then we al so need an enail from you that
says that you forgive your |loans. And we can take
this offline, if you like. | know Abbey and | have
your contact information and we can work through
this with you.

M5. HANFORD: And ny 3-inch pile of trying to

figure this out. I|I'mreally not trying to be hard
to deal with. | just don't understand it. You
know, like | said, | always knew that you coul d not

cl ose an account w thout a zero bal ance, and so |
just really don't know howto do it.

MR KING M. Chairman, if | can add just
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briefly a couple of points. It sounds |ike the
candi date has conmttees at both the county and the
state level, and so to be clear, what the

comm ssion is hearing today is strictly with regard
to the state Senate conm tt ee.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

MR. KING And the candidate will have to work
with her county clerk, county election board to
cl ose out the local commttee.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

MR KING But in ternms of dealing with the
state Senate comm ttee, what Angi e Nussneyer said
earlier is applicable in that we at the Election
Di vision need to receive a final report that
i ndicates that the state Senate commttee is being
di sbanded. There's a box, Box No. 12, that the
candi date checks to say this is a final disbands
report that would account for any transactions that
have not been previously reported. And El ection
Division staff is always happy to help a candi date
do that. So thank you.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you, Brad.

M5. HANFORD: | did that with the county in
2020, and it says final disbands commttee. So

with the county | did do that. | see that as -- on
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my formit's Box 11. But | never did that with
Senat e because at Senate |I still had noney in the
bank. So that's why it wasn't done then. Wth
council | zeroed the account, so that's why | did
mark it as final.

MR KING M. Chairman, if | could add one
pi ece of information about past comm ssion
practice. In situations simlar to this one in the
past, the conmm ssion has continued the matter to
gi ve the candi date an opportunity to close out the
commttee and, if the candi date does so, then
typically proceeds to dismss the action. Again,
|"mjust reciting history, not nmaking a
recommendat i on.

M5. OVERHOLT: Brad, read ny mnd. | was
going to suggest that we do that.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl |, make a noti on.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah. | would nove that we
continue this to the next hearing with the
understanding that, if Ms. Hanford has indeed
cl osed her account by the next hearing, that we
woul d consi der waiving these fines and mailing
costs.

M5. HANFORD: And the nmailing costs?

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah
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CHAl RMAN OKESON: That all make sense to you,
Ms. Hanford?

MS. HANFORD: Yes, it does. But | would |ike

to make a statenent.
CHAl RMAN OCKESON: G ve ne just a second
procedurally.
M5. HANFORD: The staff has been great.
CHAl RMAN OKESON: Yeah. Hang on just a

second.
So we have a noti on. |s there a second?
V5. BECKLEY: "1l second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

And, Ms. Hanford, if you' d like to say
anything el se, you're wel cone to.

M5. HANFORD: The staff has been great.
They' ve been wonderful. Through the years, from
running for Senate forward have been sone of ny
roughest years, and they have hel ped ne
tremendously. So | conplinent the election board
as well as the staff and whatnot. They've been
wonderful to work with, and | appreciate your
deci si on t oday.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Thank you.

MR KING M. Chairman, if | maght for the

record.

Page 82



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Sur e.

MR. KING Just to note that Annette
Craycraft, as she indicated earlier, had to | eave
the neeting, and so M. Dickey is nowfilling in as
proxy and therefore will be voting on this
particul ar notion.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Okay. Thank you.

MR. DI CKEY: Thank you, Brad. That was ny
next point before we voted.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. Thank you, Brad.
Thanks, M. Dickey, for joining us.

So we have a notion and a second. Any further
di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by

aye.

M5, OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Aye.

Hearing the "ayes" have it, the notion
carries.

M5. HANFORD: Thank you.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  You're wel cone. Have a good
day.

MS5. HANFORD: You t 0o.

Page 83



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Do we have anot her one up?

M5. WARYCHA: Yes. | see one |last hand
rai sed, and that is John Schroeder. I'll turn it
over to the canpaign finance staff.

M5. THOWSON: M. Chairman, this is on
page 93. This is Builders Association of Dubois
County PAC Fund. It has a proposed civil penalty
of $900.55, and they've never been before the
conmmi ssi on before.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Okay. And |'m pronounci ng
it M. Schroe-der. |Is that correct?

MR. SCHRCEDER: Qut of town, Schroe-der is
appropriate. Schrae-der here in Dubois County.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  For gi ve ne.

MR. SCHRCEDER: And | have taken the oath.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you, M. Schroeder.
Wul d you like to provide sone testinony and tell
us what you're expecting out of this hearing?

MR, SCHRCEDER: Well, |I'm hoping for a total
wai ver. The reporting question CFA-4 | mailed on
January 4 of '21, well before the due date of
January 20th of '21. | was first notified by
M chel | e Thonpson on February 11th that | was

delinquent, and | immedi ately email ed her a copy of

the report that | had mailed in. As a rule -- you
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can review our records -- we have tinely filings.
W' ve never been delinquent.

So back in April, when | got ny notice of the
fine, I imediately called Mchelle, and she did
get back to ne imedi ately and said she woul d put
me on the agenda for this neeting to dispute the
fine and also basically filled me in, in 2021, it's
only an annual filing since there's no el ection.
So that's ny case.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  What's the proposed fine?

M5. TAYLOR  $900. 55.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you. Any questions
for M. Schroeder?

M5. OVERHOLT: | have one of the staff. So
just, Mchelle, Abbey, do you have -- | nean, with
what he email ed you, do you have anything that
shows the date the report was actually mail ed?

M5. TAYLOR We never received the mailed
copy.

M5. THOMPSON: So | don't have the envel ope or
anyt hi ng.

MS. BECKLEY: So the mailed copy never cane
In?

MS. THOVPSON:  No.

MS. BECKLEY: And what did he email to you?
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M5. THOWSON. The report. He enmiled it to
me, and | stanped it the day | received it, which
was the February 11th date.

M5. OVERHOLT: WM. Schroeder, do you have
sonet hi ng that shows when you mailed it?

MR SCHRCEDER: Well, | have ny own notes,
what | keep. And | knew | mailed it on January 4th
because | was going on vacation the next week, and
that's why | knew | nmailed it then. But, again,
|'ve al ways been tinely on every one |'ve ever
filed. | guess if | |learned anything is to start
mai | ing everything certified.

M chell e's al ways been excellent to work wth,
and | do want to applaud her for that and al ways

respondi ng back tinely.

M5. BECKLEY: | think at the very |east |
would be willing to bring back the stepped approach
of 25 percent. | would also be open to argunents
bel ow.

M5. OVERHOLT: | was just going to say that,

to the extent we take judicial notice of anything,
t he postal service, the slowness and issues with
delivery and nmail over the past year and the fact
that M. Schroeder is under oath, you know, | find

it quite believable that he mailed sonething and it
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was that |late or never received. So |I'd be willing
to actually entertain a conplete waiver, the

25 percent -- reduction down to 25 percent or a
conpl ete wai ver.

MR DICKEY: | would agree.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  So, Stephanie, was yours a
noti on and/ or, Suzannah, was yours a notion? |Is
there a notion?

M5. BECKLEY: | guess | will notion for a
25 percent and open to hearing anything el se. But
"1l notion for 25.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I's there a second?

"Il second the notion to entertain further
di scussi on.

MR. SCHRCEDER: Can | interject? That fine of
25 percent is actually nore than we took in |ast
year in the PAC fund due to COVID, so it really
hurts a little fund |Iike ours.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: | under st and.

MR SCHRCEDER: And we filed it. That's ny
argunent. |t would have been different if | had
filed it, like, January 19th, a day before, but |
filed it on January 4th, which should have been
anple tine,

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Yeah, | know. You've given
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us your testinony. W hear you. And | want to
remnd you that it does take a 4-0 vote to nmake
this notion carry, so it looks like it may not be
qui te headed that way.

MR, SCHRCEDER: Thank you.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  So any ot her questions or
di scussi on?

And we'll do a roll vote on this one. So all

those in favor signify by "aye.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Chairman signifies with an

aye.

Suzannah?

M5, OVERHOLT: No.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: St ephani e?

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: M. Dickey?

MR. DI CKEY: No.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: The notion fails. Wuld
anyone |ike to propose an additional notion -- or
an al ternate notion?

M5. OVERHOLT: | would nove that we reduce the
fine to zero.
CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I's there a second?
MR, DICKEY: 1|'ll second that.
CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?
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Al'l those in favor signify by
MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. The "ayes" have it.

aye.

The notion carries. The penalty is waived.

Thank you, M. Schroeder.

MR. SCHRCEDER: Thank you.

M5. WARYCHA: That concl udes the peopl e that
have rai sed their hand. Now, Chairnman Okeson, | ust
so you know, we still have the letters that people
sent in, and | m ght suggest having the canpai gn
finance staff go through those and tell you what
the canpaign's alleged violation is, how many tines
they've had a violation, and what they're asking
for as a settlenent.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Ckay.

MR KING And, M. Chairman, if | could add
to what Valerie has said, it's inportant to note
for the record that | don't believe any of these
docunents were submtted under the penalties of
perjury. So these are not sworn statenents. They
are letters explaining the facts that the commttee
wanted to present to you.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Okay. Thank you. |
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appreci ate that.

Turn it over to Mchelle.

M5. THOWSON. Ckay. M. Chairman, the first
one is Higgs for State Representative on page 1.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. TAYLOR And it's the first letter in your
|l etter attachnent, and he just basically pl eads
i gnorance. He didn't know anything was late. The
proposed civil penalty of $350.55.

M5. OVERHOLT: \What page is that on?

M5. TAYLOR  Page 1, the bottom of page 1.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: We're basically, then, sort
of, in a very circuitous way, comng back to the
stair-stepped proposed reductions; correct? And
t hese are people that have responded to the letter
with their own information. W're presum ng that
they are seeking this reduction. |Is that kind of a
fair summary of where we are?

M5. BECKLEY: A reduction or waiver; right?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

MR. KING Yes, | believe that's correct,
M. Chai r man.

M5. NUSSMEYER M. Chairman, | would say that
as a conm ssion, you need to decide if you think

the stair-step approach -- you just need to nake a
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noti on about what you think is the appropriate
penalty here. If you think a waiver, a full

wai ver, is appropriate, make that notion or if you
think the stair-step, very simlar to what you just
did with oral testinony.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl |, so the letter that |
see requests either a waiver or reduction. "Really
didn't knowit was |late."

So are we going to go through these one by
one? This is their first penalty; right?

M5. TAYLOR This is their first, yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: | would nove that we -- because
it's their first penalty, | would nove that we do
the 25 percent of the proposed fine plus nailing
costs.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Okay. W have a noti on.

M5. BECKLEY: | woul d second.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: There's a second. Any
di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
"aye."

MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR. DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. The "ayes" have it.
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The notion carries.

Next .

M5. THOWPSON: The next one is Tallian for
Attorney Ceneral. There are several of these.
They're on page 3, page 4, page 5, and page 52. In
your PDF, it's letter No. 8.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  \What do those fines total up
to?

M5. TAYLOR  $6,000 plus mail costs. There
were six late 11s.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  And is this the first tinme?

M5. TAYLOR Yes. And this commttee is
cl osed.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  So they're being taken all
as one?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: And you said the commttee is
cl osed?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

M5. OVERHOLT: And where did you say the
letter is? I'mnot finding the letter.

M5. TAYLOR Page 8 in the letter PDF.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  It's bel ow the CFA-4 forns.

M5. OVERHOLT: That's right. | sawit earlier

and just mssed it. kay.
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CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Says "Pri or
treasurer/ canpai gn manager m ssed deadlines. He
was not aware that noney transferred from Tallian
for Senate to Attorney Ceneral canpaign were
reportabl e donations.™

And you said this is the first tine?

M5. TAYLOR  Correct.

M5. OVERHOLT: And the commttee is closed.
Based on that, M. Chairman, | would -- due to the
fact the conmttee is closed, | would nove that we

wai ve the fines.

MR. DICKEY: [|'ll second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I'msorry. D d you second
that, M. D ckey?

MR. DI CKEY: | did.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: |Is there any di scussion?
Heari ng none, | have a notion to waive all

penalties for Tallian for Attorney Ceneral. All

those in favor signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Aye. It's unaninous. The

aye.

“ayes" have it. The notion carries. The penalties

are di sm ssed.
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Next .

M5. THOWPSON: The next one is Irw n Financial
Corporation. This was three of them page 11,
page 104, and page 114. M. Souza was on the |ine
and had to |leave for a neeting or had to get off
the call. This is Irwn. He did send a letter.

In your PDF, it's page 10.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

M5. TAYLOR It's 20 pages | ong.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Whoa.

M5. TAYLOR It was a whole darn thing. Ilrwin
Financial filed for bankruptcy in, | believe, 20009.

M5. THOWSON: | worked wth M. Souza, and we
did close this commttee.

M5. OVERHOLT: So this is closed too?

M5. THOWPSON:  Correct.

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: He says there's been no
action fromthe PAC since Septenber 18, 2009. He
says before that --

M5. TAYLOR  That's probable.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Say that again.

M5. TAYLOR  That's probabl e.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. Is this their only

vi ol ati on?
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M5. THOWSON. No. They've got three of them
on the spreadsheet.

M5. OVERHOLT: And it says they've got 12
priors?

M5. THOWSON: Correct. They've never filed
anyt hi ng, once the conpany went into bankruptcy,
until | was able to get ahold of this M. Souza,
and we wor ked together and closed it.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: | get it.

M5. NUSSMEYER: And if | mght, M. Chairmn,
his |letter also states that he was summarily
di sm ssed fromenploynent fromlrwin Financial in
2009 and therefore had no ownership of the PAC, and
then the bank went into bankruptcy, as | understood
the letter.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yeah.

M5. OVERHOLT: Consistent with our prior
actions in this neeting, I would -- since the
comm ttee has been closed, | would nove that we

wai ve all fines.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON: Yeah. I'minclined to do
the sane. [I'Il take that as a notion. |Is there a
second?

M5. BECKLEY: 1'Ill second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?
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Hearing none, all those in favor to waive the
penalties for Irwin Financial PAC signify by "aye."

MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAI RMAN CKESON: The "ayes" have it. The
notion carries.

Next .

M5. THOMPSON: Next is page 18. Friends of
Doug Eckerty has been before the conm ssion one
other tinme, has a proposed civil penalty of
$855.55. He does have a letter. | just can't find
It right this second.

M5. TAYLOR It's in the packet.
MS. THOVPSON: It's after Irwin, but | don't

M5. NUSSMEYER It's page 34 of the PDF.

M5. TAYLOR  Thanks, Angie.

M5. NUSSMEYER: And, M. Chairman, do we need
to read all or part of the letter into the record
or will it suffice just to have it as an exhibit?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  We haven't done it for any
ot hers; right?

M. NUSSMEYER  Ri ght.

MR KING M. Chairman, there is no |egal
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requirenment for you to read it into the record. It
will be part of the mnutes that you wll
eventual | y approve.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Yeah. Thank you.

M5. OVERHOLT: So the way | read this, he's
actually -- wait a m nute.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: He's given us sone x-rays.

M5. OVERHOLT: His wife broke her neck. |
nmean, it sounds nore like he's requesting a
conti nuance.

M5. TAYLOR And his committee is closed.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. He says "I request ny
fine be set aside.”

M5. OVERHOLT: | missed that. Sorry. That's
what | get for reading too quickly.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  "...l was the sole and
primary caregiver during this time of ny filing
violation | amrequesting ny fine be set aside.
Thank you for your tinme and consideration.”

MR DICKEY: You did say the conmttee is
cl osed?

M5. TAYLOR  Correct.

MR. DI CKEY: Consistent wth our other votes,
"Il make a notion to waive the fine.

M5. BECKLEY: And | wll second.
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CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

It's a good day to be before the conm ssion,
isn"t 1t?

M5. OVERHOLT: For a closed conmttee, yeah

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  Heari ng not hing further,
there's a notion and a second. All those in favor
signify by "aye."

M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. The "ayes" have it.
The notion carries. The fines are di sm ssed.

M5. THOWSON. Ckay. M. Chairman, the next
one, page 38, bottomof 38, top of 39, this is
Ctizens for Dave R ng.

M5. TAYLOR The letter is on page 39 in that
PDF.

M5. THOWSON:. They' ve never been before the
conmm ssion before, has a civil penalty of $850. 55.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  "...maintai ned | ess than $5
bal ance in our account."”

M5. OVERHOLT: So is this commttee still
open?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes, because he's got a bal ance

and he needs to file anmendnents to figure out where
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sonet hing went wong. W've been trying to figure
that out. W just haven't gotten there yet.
M5. OVERHOLT: Wen you say "sonet hi ng went

wrong, " what do you nean?

M5. TAYLOR He has a negative bal ance on one
report and a $5 bal ance on the other, so |I'm not
sure. You know, |ike, the canpaign was -- oh, boy.
| don't even know what year he ran. 2018, | nean,
|l ost the primary. W've just got to find where the
nmoney is to cone up wwth a zero bal ance and cl ose
it out.

M5. OVERHOLT: | would nove to continue

consi deration of this pending the account being

cl osed.
CHAI RVAN OKESON: |s there a second?
MS. BECKLEY: "Il second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Motion to continue has been
seconded. All those in favor -- any discussion?
Any questions?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
"aye."

MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR. DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. Unani nous, the "ayes"
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have it. Mdtion is continued.

Next .

M5. THOWSON:. Page 42, Friends of Sarah
Stivers has a proposed civil penalty of $1, 000. 55,
and her letter was received --

M5. TAYLOR Letter is on page 40 in that PDF.

M5. THOWPSON: Has not been before the
comm ssi on before.

|s her commttee closed? Let nme check and see
if it's closed.

The commttee is still open.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: She's had a fairly
unfortunate coupl e years here.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah.

MR. DI CKEY: \What's the proposed fine again?

M5. OVERHOLT: A t housand.

M5. THOWPSON:.  Yeah.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: M chel Il e, have you guys
spoken with her?

M5. THOWPSON: | have.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  And is she intending to
cl ose the comm ttee?

M5. THOWSON. She never really said whether
she was going to close it or not.

CHAI RMAN OKESON: And the fineis for alate
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filing?

M5. THOWPSON: Correct. It was for her 2019
annual report.

M5. OVERHOLT: | have two ideas. | nean, one
woul d be to continue and give her the opportunity
to discuss closing the commttee with staff, but
that's being kind of presunptuous on our part. The
other thing would be to reduce it to the
25 percent. But |'mopen to other suggestions.

MR DICKEY: | would be open to continuing to
allow her to close the conmttee given the
ci rcunst ances she's outlined here.

M5. BECKLEY: Yeah. | think I would be on the
side of continuing until the next neeting, chance
to close the coonmttee, and then she could plead
25 percent if she were to keep it open.

CHAI RMAN OKESON: I n your discussions with
her, Mchelle, she's not indicated any intention of
cl osing the commttee?

M5. THOVPSON: No, none.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Ckay. Does sonebody want to
make a notion?

M5. OVERHOLT: Sure. | would nove that we
continue this to the next hearing to see if the

commttee is closed by that date.
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MR. DICKEY: 1'll second.
CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussion? W have a

notion and a second to continue to the next hearing

date. All those in favor signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR. DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON: The "ayes" have it. The

aye.

notion carries. The matter is continued.

Next .

MS. THOMPSON:. Page 51, For Better
Infrastructure Political Action Commttee has a
proposed civil penalty of $650, has not been before
t he conm ssi on.

M5. TAYLOR W're on page 41 in the letters
PDF.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  So they're seeking a
conpl ete wai ver just basically based on inactivity.
| s that what |'mreading?

M5. THOWPSON:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  This is a first offense?

M5. THOWPSON: Yes, it is.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Anyone have any thoughts?

M5. BECKLEY: | would nove to reduce it to the

25 percent penalty. Open to hearing anyone else's
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t hought s.
CHAl RMAN OKESON: So there's a notion to

reduce to 25 percent. |s there a second?
M5. OVERHOLT: Second.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON: | have a second. Is there

further discussion?

Heari ng none --

MR DICKEY: M. Chair, real quick.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Yeah. Go ahead.

MR, DI CKEY: Just a question to the staff.
Have they said anything, if it's been inactive,
about closing the commttee?

M5. TAYLOR No. And they've got way too nuch
noney to think about cl osing.

M5. OVERHOLT: Ckay.

MR. DI CKEY: Point taken. | recall the
guesti on.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  So we' ve got a notion and a
second to reduce to 25 percent for a first-tine
offense. Al those in favor signify by "aye."

M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR. DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. It's unaninous the

"ayes" have it. The notion carries.
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Next .

M5. THOWSON. Page 52, Build Indiana. This
one was actually a continuance from our neeting
back in February of 2020. There is a letter.

What page are we on in the PDF? 42. Has a
proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55, has not been
bef ore the comm ssi on.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: They say the commttee was
closed; is that correct?

M5. THOWSON: It is.

M5. OVERHOLT: | would nove, consistent with
our previous notions, that since the commttee is

cl osed, that we wai ve the fine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: | have a noti on. s there a
second?
MS. BECKLEY: "Il second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: W have a notion and a
second to waive fines. All those in favor -- any

di scussi on?

Al those in favor signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR. DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Aye. The "ayes" have it.

aye.

The notion carri es. Penalties are di sm ssed.
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Next .

M5. THOWPSON:. Page 58, Vending Industries
PAC, has a proposed civil penalty of $500.55, has
been before the conmm ssion one other tine, also has
a letter, page 43.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  This is their first tine?

M5. THOWSON. No. They've been before the
comm ssi on one other tine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And they paid a full fine?

M5. TAYLOR They paid a settlenent agreenent.

M5. THOWPSON: Sorry. Yeah.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  So this is the second?

M5. THOWPSON: Correct.

CHAl RMAN CKESON: Does anyone want to nake a
noti on?

M5. OVERHOLT: |'d nove that we reduce the
fine by 50 percent plus mailing costs.

MR. DI CKEY: Second.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: | have a notion, a second.
Any di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
"aye."

M5, OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.
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CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Aye. It's unani nous.

Next .

M5. THOWPSON:. Finch for State Representative,
proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55. This
commttee is closed and has not been before the
conm ssion before, with a letter on page 45.

M5. OVERHOLT: And what page of the
spr eadsheet ?

M5. TAYLOR  85.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Is this cl osed?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

M5. BECKLEY: Pursuant to our previous
di scussions, | would nove to reduce the penalty to
zero, as the commttee is closed.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  |Is there a second?

MR. DI CKEY: Second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

Hearing none, all those in favor of a notion

to waive penalties signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAl RVAN OKESON: Aye. The "ayes" have it.

aye.

The notion carri es.

Next .
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M5. THOWPSON. Page 92, Citizens for
Responsi bl e Governnent, they have three, page 92,
page 111, and 122.

M5. TAYLOR And the letter is on 46. This is
the last letter, so it's the |ast couple of pages.
And the commttee is closed.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  It's a great letter

MR. DICKEY: Yeah. | can't, | can't. It just
Is --

M5. OVERHOLT: Oh, ny gosh

M5. TAYLOR  Yep.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  It's entertaining. It is
cl osed?

MS. TAYLOR  Yes.
MR. DI CKEY: Consistent wth our other
di scussion --
CHAl RMVAN OKESON: And since they were duped.
MR. DICKEY: -- notion to waive and di spense.
CHAl RMAN OKESON:  |'s there a second?
M5. OVERHOLT: Second.
CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?
Al those in favor signify by "aye."
M5, OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
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CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Aye. The "ayes" have it.
The notion carries.

| s there nore?

M5. THOWSON. Ckay. That's the end of our
letters. Now we're to Abbey's stuff.

M5. TAYLOR We've got a few requests for
cont i nuance.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.

M5. TAYLOR  The I ndi ana Osteopathic
Associ ation Political Action Commttee, Cause
No. 2021-4431-16. It's on page 9 of the
spr eadsheet.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  First tinme?

M5. TAYLOR  They're asking for a continuance.
| don't know if this is their first time or not.

M5. BECKLEY: It's the eighth tine.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Di d soneone say ei ght?

MS. BECKLEY: Page 9.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: On, page 9.

M5. TAYLOR This is their ninth delinquency.
That's probably why they've asked for a
conti nuance.

M5. OVERHOLT: \What's the basis for the
conti nuance?

M5. THOMPSON: Hold on. W didn't pull those
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letters.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Just because they can and
want to ask for one.

M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah, | guess so.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  And | heard correctly, was
it Abbey, you said this is their ninth delinquency?

M5. TAYLOR That's correct.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Over the course of how nany
year s?

M5. TAYLOR  They've got a low file nunber, so
t hey' ve been around a whil e.

M5. THOWSON: Yeah, we don't put themall on
here. The |ast one we have is 2006, but | bet it's
been | onger than that.

MS. BECKLEY: It says "Current and Forner
Del i nquenci es, 2019 Annual, 2016 PreElect.” Am|
reading this right?

M5. TAYLOR Yes, but their first one was in
t he 1990s.

M5. BECKLEY: Okay. So 2016 to 2019, so three
years.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And is this the first
conti nuance on this matter?

M5. TAYLOR  Yes.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay.
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M5. TAYLOR She is at the Grand Canyon today.

M5. OVERHOLT: Ckay. | nove that we grant the
conti nuance until next hearing.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Yeah. Second, anyone?

MR. DICKEY: |'ll second.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Any di scussi on?

| think it mght be worth, though, for the
record maki ng sure that we're not -- we're rem nded
of this and not punting on the next go-round.

M5. TAYLOR  You bet.

The second one is the Conmttee to Elect --

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Hold on. W have to vote on

t he noti on.

M5. TAYLOR |I'msorry. | got so excited.
CHAI RVAN OKESON: | think we all are. |I'm
wi th you.

W have a notion to grant the continuance and

a second. Hearing no further discussion, all those

in favor signify by
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Aye. It's unaninous. The

aye.

“ayes" have it. The notion carries for

cont i nuance.
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Ckay. Go ahead.

M5. TAYLOR  The next one is the Conmttee to
El ect Corinne Westerfield. She's got two causes,
2021-7188-82 and 2021-7188-157. It's on pages 47
and 90. She's asking for a continuance.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  First, is this her first?

M5. TAYLOR This is her first penalty, and
she's asking for a continuance because she's with
her son at his chenot herapy.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Yeah. Sonebody want to nake

t he notion?

MR DI CKEY: 'l make that notion.
CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  Second?
V5. BECKLEY: "1l second.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  We have a notion to grant
conti nuance and a second. Any discussion?

Hearing none, all those in favor signify by

aye.
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR. DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Aye. The "ayes" have it.
Motion carries to continue. Thank you.
Next .
M5. TAYLOR The last one is -- I'msorry.
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There are two nore. Indiana Industrial Political
Comm ttee, Cause No. 2021-6397-122, Cause

No. 2021-6397-189, and Cause No. 2021-6397-207.
They are asking for a continuance because it's new
peopl e and they didn't know anythi ng about anyt hing
that's happening, so they're trying to dig to

figure out what -- they |earned about it a couple
days ago.
M5. THOMPSON. Yes. | actually talked to this

treasurer, but it's a new managenent conpany taking
over and they didn't even realize this PAC existed
and that they were in this kind of trouble. So
they wanted to figure out what the heck was going
on before they presented it before the conmm ssion.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All right. | nean, they're
not asking for a waiver. They're just asking for
sone tinme to get together, so l'mfine with that.

M5. TAYLOR Right.

MR. DI CKEY: Agreed.

M5. BECKLEY: | would nake a notion to
wai ver -- or to continue.

M5. OVERHOLT: Second.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Second. Any furt her
di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by
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aye.
M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
M5. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAl RMAN CKESON:  The notion to grant a
conti nuance i s approved.
Next. You said there was one nore?
M5. THOMPSON: Yes. This is a separate
attachnent you had called the "2019 Excess

Corporation,"” Justus Rental Properties. He is out
of the state today, and he (audio interruption).

MS. OVERHOLT: You cut out.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON: Did we | ose you?

M5. THOWPSON. Are you there?

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. You cut out for a
m nut e.

M5. THOWSON:. The 2019 Excess Corporation
separate attachnment, it's Justus Rental Properties,
Cause 2021-229. He's out of state today, and he
wanted to be able to appear before the conm ssion
to explain what happened with this excess corporate
donati on.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  (Okay. Thank you. Anyone

want to nake a notion?

MR. DI CKEY: So noved.
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M5. BECKLEY: [|'ll second.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON: A notion and a second. Any
di scussi on?

Hearing none, all those in favor of granting a
conti nuance signify by "aye."

MS. OVERHOLT: Aye.

MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  It's unani nous. The notion
carri es.

That's it?

M5. THOWPSON: That's it for our continuances.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: So noving on, we go to
adm ni strative dissolution of commttees.

M5. THOWMPSON. Yes. M. Chairman, you have
anot her attachnment there with the dissol ved
commttees. These conmttees can be
adm ni stratively dissolved. They have not filed a
report in three years, they have a bal ance of |ess
than 1,000, and both chairman and treasurer have
been notified of this neeting.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Ckay. | nove the comm ssion
do the follow ng: Mke a finding that there's no
evi dence that any of these conmttees continues to

receive contributions, nake expenditures, or

Page 114



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

ot herwi se function as a commttee; make a finding
that, according to the best evidence available to
t he conm ssion, the dissolution of these commttees
will not inpair any contract or inpede the
coll ection of any debt or judgnment by a person;
make a finding that the prudent use of public
resources nmakes further efforts to collect any
outstanding civil penalty inposed agai nst these
comm ttees wasteful or unjust, therefore that any
such penalties be waived;, and adm nistratively
di ssol ve each of these conmttees.

|s there a second to that notion?

M5. BECKLEY: | will second.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Any di scussi on? Any
guestions?

We have a notion and a second. All those in

favor signify by
MB. OVERHOLT: Aye.
MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Aye. Hearing none opposed,

aye.

the notion carries.
Ckay. Before we finish canpaign finance
busi ness, | would |ike to address an issue brought

to ny attention by staff. W have had two
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candi dates fail to enter their canpaign finance
reports electronically, as required by Indiana

Code 3-9-4-4. Indiana Code 3-9-4-16(j) allows the
conm ssion to assess penalties for this violation
equal to the cost incurred by the Election Division
for the manual entry of the data contained in the
report or statenent, plus any investigative costs

i ncurred and docunented by the El ection D vision
for this violation.

W will not be hearing these two cases today.
However, since this is the first time this issue
has conme before the comm ssion, | would nove that
the comm ssion adopt a policy to set a proposed
m ni mum penal ty of $100 to accommpdate staff tine
and resources used to input the report. As | said,
we will not hear any of the cases at this neeting,
but | think it is inportant to have a proposed fine
in place to order prior to the hearing for any
commttee to enter into a settlenent agreenent.

|s there a second for this notion?

MR, KING M. Chairman?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yes.

MR KING I'msorry to interrupt here. There
was a conmuni cation earlier fromVice Chair Long

that | believe you were provided a copy of.
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CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  You're correct. You're
correct. Thank you for rem nding ne of that.

MR. KING And -- yeah.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Can | just sinply w thdraw
this notion?

MR, KING Yes.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  |1'd like to wi thdraw that
notion in consideration of Vice Chairman Long's
request .

MR KING And, M. Chairman, if | could.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yes. Yeah.

MR KI NG | think if the comm ssion wi shes to

di scuss this topic in general, you certainly have
the opportunity to do so. And before you finish
your canpai gn finance business, you woul d
ordinarily nove to default those individuals who
di d not appear.

M5. WARYCHA: But before we do that, can we
have just a nonent?

Hal ey, could you open up the line so that if
there's anyone who, for sone reason, was not able
to use the hand notion feature, we give them an
opportunity, as we discussed at the begi nning.

THE MODERATOR:  Absolutely. Attendees, | am

going to give you perm ssions briefly to allow you
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to speak if you did not get an opportunity to do
so, and then after a few seconds we will renove
that if you do not have anything to say.

M5. WARYCHA: Well, everybody just nuted
thenselves, so | wll go ahead and say that | think
that we're good. Please proceed, M. Chairnman.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you.

Brad, you brought up defaults.

MR KING Yes, sir. Odinarily you would ask
if there's anyone present to testify on renmaining
canpai gn finance hearing scheduled for today. You
have done that, and we have checked to nmake certain
that no one w shes to do so.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: So we' re good?

MR. KING Well, alnost, and that is the next
step would be for you as chair to declare the
hearings on all renmaining canpaign finance matters
schedul ed for today to be closed --

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: O osed, yeah.

MR KING -- and then to ask for a notion to
I npose the entire anpbunt of the proposed penalty,
including mailing costs, in all remaining canpaign
finance enforcenent actions.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  So is there a notion to

I npose -- so basically they're not here so they're
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just going to get the penalty that was inposed?
MR. KING They have --
CHAl RVAN OKESON:  They' ve not sought a waiver?
They' ve not asked to be heard?
MR KING This would be the equivalent of a
default judgnent entered in a court proceedi ng?
CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  So do we have a notion to
I npose the penalty on the remaining cases?
M5. BECKLEY: So noved.
CHAl RVAN OKESON: We have a second. Any
di scussi on?

Heari ng none, all those in favor signify by

aye.
M5, OVERHOLT: Aye.
CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Aye.
MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
MR DI CKEY: Aye.
CHAI RVAN OKESON: The notion carries. The
"ayes" have it.

Brad, back to ny notion that | wthdrew,
shoul d we have sone di scussi on about that or sinply
push the matter to the next neeting?

MR KING M. Chairman, that is your decision
and that of the nenbers of the comm ssion. Since

we W |l have nenbers continuing to serve on the
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comm ssion, | would suggest it m ght be benefici al
to take five mnutes to at | east get the issue on
menbers' radar screens so that they can think about
it and discuss with staff or other interested
parties sone of the details involved.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. So, | nean, | read
t hrough a notion here and withdrew it, but if you
want to take a couple seconds and kind of give a
reintroduction or overview of the issue and why we
m ght want to consider it.

MR. KING Thank you, M. Chairman. Then |"'l]|
be happy to defer to ny counterpart, Co-Director
Nussneyer, for anything she mght wsh to add.

The canpai gn finance enforcenent statute sets
forth a nunber of different penalties based on
types of violations that commttees conmt, nost
comonly delinquencies. There are others for
excess contributions. But the |egislature, a
coupl e of sessions ago, required all |egislative
candi dates to file their reports electronically,
and except in two particular cases, which | won't
mention by nane, |egislative candi dates have done
so.

The | aw provi ded that the conm ssion can

assess a penalty for a violation, that is, for
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failing to file electronically, "equal to the costs
i ncurred by the Election Division for the nmanual
entry of data contained in the report or statenent,
pl us any investigative costs incurred and
docunented by the" comm ssion -- or excuse ne --
"and docunented by the Election Dvision for the
viol ation."

I n discussions at the staff level, at |east
wth the reports that we are currently | ooking at,
they will require a mniml anount of effort, but
they will require staff tinme. And we are concerned
that we don't want to set a policy that would
encour age people to not file electronically and
I nstead have the conm ssion give clear guidance to
candi dates about their potential -- or commttees
for their potential liability for failing to conply
with this state statute.

And so we had di scussed a m ni num penalty of
$100 to acconmodate the staff tinme and resources
because both Abbey and M chelle would do data
entry, but it involves consultation wth | egal
counsel and the co-directors to a |limted degree.
And so we're seeking guidance as to, when we cone
before the comm ssion to present a proposed

penal ty, what that m ninum penalty should be in a
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situation |ike the one |'ve descri bed.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Yeah. And | think it's fair
to explain for the record that Vice Chairnman Long
requested that we not do anything that woul d be
binding to a future comm ssioner that would take
his place at today's neeting, and | agreed to that,
which is why I withdrew ny notion.

So we've got the matter out there and
expl ai ned, and we'll be happy to tackle it at the
next neeting. | don't think there's any reason you
can't ask questions or have sone di scussion,

t hough, even though we don't have a notion on it,
just for the sake of sort of unpacking what Brad
shared with us. So if anybody has anything, please
feel free.

M5. OVERHOLT: Well, | guess, | don't -- the
thing that I would suggest would be that if we want
this -- so if we proceeded with sonething |like
this, it seens that doing it in the formof an
actual conmm ssion order as opposed to just, you
know, a notion that gets reflected in the m nutes
woul d be good because, as we know, our orders are
easier to find. Well, | guess |I don't know |
don't look for them But | would hope that our

orders would be easier to find rather than, you
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know, a notion and a second in the text sonmewhere
buried in however nmany pages of mnutes there would

be for whatever neeting it's approved in.

So, | mean, conceptually I think it's
sonet hing worth discussing. | don't necessarily --
| nmean, | have to think about it sone nore. |'m

not sure of any objections overall to the concept
of doing sonething like this, but | do think that
it should be in the formof a formal order. So
that woul d be ny suggestion, to the extent that's
hel pful, for when we do actually contenplate it.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yes, that nakes sense to ne.

Brad, does that nmake sense to tackle it that
way at the next neeting?

MR. KING Yes. Once again in this neeting,
Comm ssioner Wl son Overholt has read ny mnd in
t hat, when we publish our canpai gn finance manual,
we have included as an appendi x two or three
ongoi ng conm ssion orders that deal wth matters of
policy like the one we're describing here. And so
havi ng an order woul d be especially appropriate,
consi dering those precedents, and it would be
readily avail able to anyone who accesses our
canpai gn finance manual .

M5. NUSSMEYER: M. Chairman, if | mght add
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on to Brad's coments.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah, pl ease.

M5. NUSSMEYER: And | believe this was sort of
inferred in how he described the issue and the
problem | would encourage the comm ssion to
consider a floor, so a not less than $100. But ny
concern would be if there may be sonme conm ttees
who would walk in with a 500-page handwitten
report and leave it with staff to file and enter
because it's cheaper to pay the $100 penalty than
to hire staff to do the data entry into the system

So as we craft the order internally to share
Wi th you to consider, | would encourage you to
consi der setting $100 as the m ni nrum because, as
the statute says, you may assess a fine if the
individuals fail to file their reports
el ectronically. And much |like we do for canpaign
fi nance, you can consider each individual instance
of failure to file a report individually on its own
and assess at |east a $100 penalty for failure to
file online.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  And again, Brad, there were
only two instances of this occurring?

MR. KING Yes, M. Chairman, that's correct.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Ckay. | nean, | take your
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comrent s under advi senent, Co-Director Nussneyer.
| think that nmakes sense too. | get what we're
trying to avoid here.

M5. NUSSMEYER | would add, M. Chairman, the
requirenment to file electronically is not going
away, and if you're passing an order to set a
m nimum | evel of a potential fine, then it still
gi ves you, the comm ssion, the ability to increase
the amount if you think that's warranted. If we
find that it, in fact, took staff 12 hours to enter
a report instead of zero hours, it gives you the
flexibility to inpose a greater fine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: R ght, and if you have

repeat offenders and the like as well. GCkay. So
we'll tackle that in that manner at the next
nmeet i ng.

|s there anything else? | think that's it.

Correct, Brad?
MR. KING Yes, M. Chairman. That is all
that is on the agenda other than the notion to
adj our n.
CHAl RVAN OKESON: Yeah. And we'll need to
have anot her neeting; correct?
MR KING Yes. M. Chairman, there will need

to be a subsequent neeting in the reasonably near
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future because we did not bring all the canpaign
finance nmatters before you today to try to keep
this to a manageable length of tine and
participants. And we wll --

CHAl RMAN CKESON: How humane of you. W
appreci ate that.

MR KING W are glad to make this task a
confortable one. W also anticipate other matters

comng up in the normal course of the election

cycle, and so, yes, a neeting will probably be
necessary for you to call in the reasonably near
future.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Okay. Well, we'll prepare
to do that.

And, Suzannah, normally Vice Chairnman Long
woul d make a notion to adjourn. Wuld you like to
do that today?

M5. OVERHOLT: Sure, yes. M. Chairman, |
woul d nove that we adjourn today's |ovely neeting.
CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Thank you. |Is there a

second?

M5. BECKLEY: |'ll second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All right. Geat. Al

those in favor say "aye.

M5. OVERHOLT: Aye.
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MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

MR DI CKEY: Aye.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: W' re adjourned. Enjoy the
rest of your week.

MR. KING Thank you. Likew se.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

(The I ndiana El ecti on Conm ssion Public

Session was adjourned at 3:36 p.m)
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STATE OF | NDI ANA
COUNTY OF HAM LTON

I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
f oregoi ng public session was taken at the tinme and
pl ace heretofore nenti oned between 1: 03 p.m and
3:36 p.m;

That said public session was taken down in
st enograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
under ny direction; and that the typewitten
transcript is a true record of the public session.

I N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny

hand and affixed nmy notarial seal this 12th day of

3 [
Lmba_/ -
Maria W. Collier
NOTARY PUBLIC SEAL

STATE OF INDIANA
Commizzion No. HPOES3533
by Commission Expires Dec. 5, 2024

July, 2021.

My Comm ssi on expires:
Decenber 5, 2024

Job No. 162010
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do we have everybody?



      2          MR. KING:  Yes, we do.  We have actually three



      3     proxies available.  Stephanie Beckley, of course,



      4     is proxy for Zach Klutz.  And then Annette



      5     Craycraft is proxy for Vice Chairman Long, who is



      6     also able to join us on the call.  And then we have



      7     Adam Dickey, who will be substituting for Annette



      8     since she has a hard stop at 2:45 this afternoon.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     10          MR. KING:  And the other members are all here.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With you doing the



     12     introductions, I'll forego that and call the



     13     meeting to order.



     14          I would like to note for the record that I see



     15     my good friend Vice Chairman Long on, and I regret



     16     to see him in a setting that I'd rather he not be



     17     in, but I hope he's doing well nonetheless.



     18          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I am doing well, and it's



     19     good to see you again, Paul.  I wanted to sign on



     20     to tell everybody to have a good day and get things



     21     going and let's get this business of the State



     22     taken care of.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Absolutely.  I was hoping



     24     that maybe we could get together in person, maybe



     25     soon.
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      1          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I hope so.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With that, the meeting is



      3     called to order.  The members have been noted.  I



      4     would also acknowledge Co-Director Brad King and



      5     Co-Director Nussmeyer.  Is she on?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes.



      7          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am.  I am



      8     at work and I don't have video with my monitors at



      9     work.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So I haven't figured out



     12     technology to plug in a picture, so here we are,



     13     blank screen.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'd also like to obviously



     15     acknowledge our Secretary of State, Ms. Sullivan.



     16     Good to see you, ma'am.



     17          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Thank you.  Good



     18     to see you.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And do I understand, Brad,



     20     that the secretary will have some comments?



     21          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  There is an



     22     opportunity for the secretary to make comments.



     23          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Thank you, both.



     24     I appreciate that.  Thank you for letting me join



     25     you this afternoon.
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      1          And I especially just wanted to say thank you



      2     to Anthony Long.  I know you're not in the setting



      3     that you wanted to be for this particular meeting,



      4     but I wanted to take a chance today to say thank



      5     you for your 24 years of dedication and public



      6     service.  It actually reminds me of my predecessor,



      7     Connie Lawson, 32 years serving this great state.



      8     But yours is extra special because the commission



      9     actually has only been in place for 26 years and



     10     you have served diligently for 24 of those, so I



     11     just wanted to say thank you.



     12          I also wanted to share my appreciation for



     13     having another voice from southwest Indiana so



     14     prevalent in the process.  I think that's extremely



     15     important and very proud to have you from our part



     16     of the state.  I can't even imagine the number of



     17     miles that you've logged from 41 to 70 up to Indy



     18     and now, in the most recent years, along I-69 that



     19     we're all so thankful to have in place.



     20          But I just wanted to say thank you for your



     21     steadfast work and everything that you've poured



     22     into the commission.  You will be missed, but I



     23     know that you have much to look forward to after



     24     your July 1st retirement.  So thank you very much.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Thank you, Madam
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      1     Secretary.  I saw you sitting there and was



      2     reminiscent of your career, following it, being



      3     from southern Indiana and how successful you've



      4     been and been a bright spot for southern Indiana.



      5     And I was so heartened when you were appointed to



      6     take the position that you're in now.  I look



      7     forward to seeing your good service there.



      8          I appreciate very much your thanking me and



      9     recognizing me for my years of service.  It's been



     10     a real treat, and I think the commission has, on



     11     the whole, been very successful over the years.  I



     12     think that two Democrats and two Republicans



     13     working side by side has been generally a



     14     successful mix for Indiana, maybe something they



     15     could send some of the people in Washington down to



     16     see how we've done things.



     17          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Amen, yes.



     18          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Yeah, we can disagree,



     19     but we've rarely, rarely ever been disagreeable in



     20     the 24 years that I've been there, and it's been a



     21     real pleasure.  And thank you for being here today.



     22     And I appreciate your kind words.



     23          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Absolutely.  And



     24     I hope you're feeling better soon.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Madam Secretary.
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      1     Ironically, Anthony, I just got out of the car from



      2     Evansville myself.  I've spent the better part of



      3     this week down there with some mutual friends of



      4     yours who both work in Gibson County, and your name



      5     was invoked with highest regard a number of



      6     occasions during those discussions.  And I hope



      7     during my next visit down there I might get a



      8     chance to stop by and see you.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I look forward to that.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And it's been an honor to



     11     serve alongside you and to work very cooperatively



     12     through a very challenging year for me, for all of



     13     us really, but in my early tenure as chairman of



     14     the commission.  And, quite frankly, I couldn't



     15     imagine going through any of that with anyone else



     16     on the other side of the aisle other than you, and



     17     I really appreciate that.  And I appreciate your



     18     friendship and our mutual respect for one another



     19     and will certainly miss seeing you at these



     20     meetings moving forward.



     21          I know your friends here on the commission



     22     would also maybe like to offer some personal



     23     remarks.  I'll turn the microphone over to



     24     Commissioner Wilson Overholt, who I know would like



     25     to say some things as well.
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And,



      2     sorry, I got a little teary hearing that.  I wasn't



      3     expecting that, so I apologize.  I'm usually pretty



      4     well composed.



      5          But, Anthony, it's just been an honor.  I



      6     mean, serving this commission has been an honor,



      7     but it's been an honor to serve alongside of you on



      8     the commission.  You've been a great teacher, great



      9     leader in terms of my indoctrination to the



     10     commission and the workings of the commission.



     11     I've already been on longer -- I guess it's been



     12     quite a while, nine years, I guess, already for me,



     13     which is kind of surprising.  But I've enjoyed it,



     14     and I wish you well, and hopefully we'll be able to



     15     live up to your expectations as we proceed into the



     16     future.



     17          So thanks and I hope you enjoy your



     18     commission-free time, the new-found free time that



     19     you'll have.



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Suzannah, you have done a



     21     superb job on the commission.  I have always really



     22     sort of envied your levelheaded, steadfast



     23     dedication to research and thinking through the



     24     issues.  You're as thorough as anybody that I've



     25     ever served with on the commission and on knowing
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      1     the issues and articulating your position on them.



      2     You've done a superb job, and I've been really



      3     honored to serve with you.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Thank you.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Vice Chairman, would you



      6     care to make any further remarks or comments?



      7          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Only to say that, Paul,



      8     we've had really -- I agree with what you said



      9     earlier -- a close working relationship, and I've



     10     always believed that we could get along and get



     11     more done by talking and working together, find the



     12     common grounds that we could work on, accentuate



     13     that, and just do the work to be done.



     14          I thought maybe one of the most outstanding



     15     things we did was during the primary in 2020 when



     16     we were facing the pandemic and no one, not one of



     17     us, had faced anything like it in our lives in this



     18     country or anywhere, to my knowledge.  And I



     19     thought the accommodations that we made, while it



     20     took a long time and it took lots of discussions



     21     and compromises and agreements and talks and just



     22     willingness to work together, that we -- I think



     23     the primary of 2020 was one of the most outstanding



     24     achievements that I think that as a commission



     25     we've done in the years that I've been there, and I
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      1     was proud to be a part of that with you.  And



      2     you've been a good chairman, a great chairman, and



      3     I wish you well in the future and do look forward



      4     to seeing you when you get down here.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  No.  I appreciate



      6     that and your leadership.  And I think it goes for



      7     the entire commission as a whole, we regrettably



      8     watch the news at night and see the coverage of the



      9     political landscape around us.  I find working with



     10     all of us on this commission to be hopefully



     11     inspirational to how people ought to comport



     12     themselves.



     13          And certainly your presence and your



     14     leadership on the commission has been exceptional.



     15     And I hope, to the extent we get viewers, I know we



     16     got a little bit of notoriety spring of last year



     17     that maybe we got some additional viewers out of



     18     it, got to see that firsthand and witness your



     19     leadership.  And I really appreciate having you on



     20     the commission.



     21          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Thank you, Paul.  By the



     22     way, I just want to say that there may come a point



     23     I'll drop off here at some point, but it's not



     24     because of lack of interest.  There are limits to



     25     my stamina as we are sitting here today, and so if
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      1     I do drop off, don't think anything of it.  It's



      2     just I probably decided I need to take a nap, not



      3     that you all put me to sleep.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I try my best.  But



      5     understand.  Thank you.  It's good to see you.



      6          Okay.  We'll get into the business here.  I



      7     did intend to note that -- to recognize the court



      8     reporter from Stewart Richardson, Maria Collier.



      9          And as we get into the meeting, actually,



     10     Valerie, if you wouldn't mind maybe going over the



     11     hand-raise motion on the Zoom for folks as we get



     12     into this so that we make sure we're getting the



     13     record right.



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, sure.  My name is Valerie



     15     Warycha.  I'm the co-general counsel for the



     16     Indiana Election Division.



     17          And as everyone has just discussed, we had



     18     some issues last year, so we're going to try to



     19     control this meeting and who can speak and who can



     20     show a screen and that sort of thing.  And so what



     21     we are going to do is, as we go through, there's



     22     going to be a utilization of the hand-raise



     23     feature.  And so when the chairman gives the option



     24     to take a settlement agreement or take the deal, so



     25     to speak, you will have the opportunity to raise
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      1     your hand if that is of interest to you.



      2          And then, after we get through that, there



      3     will be a portion where, if you would like to state



      4     your case to the commission and provide testimony,



      5     we will once again ask you to raise your hand.  I



      6     will go through and identify in both of those



      7     instances when someone has a hand raised so we can



      8     document for the record who would like to take the



      9     deal and then who would like to make a



     10     presentation.



     11          And in order to kind of give people some time,



     12     whenever we raise our hand that you would like to



     13     make a presentation, I will say, for example, "Joe



     14     Smith will give his presentation now, and then Bob



     15     Smith is on deck," to try to give everyone a little



     16     time to find the documents.  And I understand that



     17     this might be a little clunky, so, commission



     18     members, if you get lost finding documents, please



     19     let us know.  The campaign finance staff is on and



     20     available to help you identify where that document



     21     is you need to see.



     22          And then for those of you on the line, if for



     23     some reason you cannot raise your hand and you are



     24     not recognized and you feel that we've missed you



     25     in some way, at the very, very end, we will open
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      1     the phone lines.  And there is phone call-in



      2     information in the Zoom link that we've got posted



      3     online.  And so we'll give one last, final call for



      4     you to say that "I wasn't able to raise my hand to



      5     take the deal" or "I'd like to make my case."



      6          We will make every accommodation possible to



      7     try to make sure that everyone has a chance to be



      8     heard.  And I will put my email out there as well.



      9     In the instance that you are really struggling, I



     10     will be monitoring my emails.  Feel free to email



     11     me, and I will try to help you along as much as I



     12     can.  My email is vawarycha@iec.in.gov.  And I



     13     realize my last name is a mouthful, so I'm also



     14     under the Contacts in in.gov/sos, and under



     15     Election Division, Contact Us, you can find my



     16     email address there and I'll be happy to help you.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Valerie.



     18          With that, I recognized we needed to confirm



     19     compliance with the Open Door Law, so I'll back up



     20     real quick and request that Co-Directors King and



     21     Nussmeyer do so confirm that we have done that.



     22          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  On behalf



     23     of myself and Co-Director Nussmeyer, I confirm that



     24     this commission meeting has been properly noticed



     25     as required under the Open Door Law.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      2          Let's go ahead and move to the approval of



      3     our -- is it February 25th -- is that right? --



      4     2021 meeting minutes.  I recognize the co-directors



      5     to present the minutes.



      6          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  On behalf



      7     of myself and Co-Director Nussmeyer, members have



      8     received copies of the minutes of the February 25,



      9     2021, Election Commission meeting, and we present



     10     them to you with our recommendation for your



     11     approval.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     13          Is there a motion to approve?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     15          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  So moved.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     19          Hearing none, all those in favor say "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it and the



     24     motion is approved.



     25          Can I get consent from the commission members
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      1     for the Election Division to sign the minutes with



      2     our stamps?



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Consent.



      4          MS. BECKLEY:  Consent.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      6          Moving on, we'll go to the administration of



      7     the oath.  Any person who plans to testify during



      8     the meeting today on any matter, including



      9     candidate challenges and campaign finance matters,



     10     please respond with an "I do" upon the reading of



     11     the oath.  When you are unmuted for your



     12     presentation, we will ask that you confirm at that



     13     time that you have taken the oath.



     14          And I recognize Co-Counsel Kochevar to



     15     administer the oath.



     16          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     17          Those who plan to testify today before the



     18     Indiana Election Commission, please say "I do"



     19     after the recitation of the oath.  Do you solemnly



     20     swear or affirm under the penalties of perjury that



     21     the testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



     22     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



     23     and nothing but the truth.  Please say "I do."



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Mr. Chairman, we won't be able



     25     to hear them say "I do."  Before everyone would
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      1     give testimony, we'll have them confirm that they



      2     did say the oath.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  All right.  That's



      4     good to know.



      5          Let's go to the ratification of campaign



      6     finance agreements.  I recognize the staff,



      7     Ms. Taylor, Ms. Thompson, to present the



      8     information concerning several campaign finance



      9     settlement agreements entered into on behalf of the



     10     commission.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman -- Michelle



     12     Thompson here -- and members of the commission, you



     13     have a sheet of paper that says "Settlement



     14     Agreements" at the top.  It's an attachment to an



     15     email that you received, and this is a list of



     16     committees to ratify that have agreed to pay the



     17     settlement agreement and waive a hearing.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a motion to ratify



     19     the campaign finance settlement agreements as



     20     presented?



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     22          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I'll second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     24          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     25     "aye."
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      1          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



      5     "ayes" have it, and the motion to ratify the



      6     agreements is adopted.



      7          Moving on, so we do have people present today?



      8          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we'll go over the



     10     opportunity to accept a reduced penalty before



     11     proceeding with the enforcement actions.  We have



     12     customarily given any committee present a final



     13     opportunity to pay a reduced civil penalty by



     14     waiving the right to present evidence and arguments



     15     to the commission.



     16          Of course, any committee is welcome to present



     17     any evidence or arguments for the proposed penalty



     18     to be waived or reduced, but this has been an



     19     opportunity for those who want to waive any



     20     presentation and accept the reduced penalty without



     21     making any argument or presentation.



     22          So therefore, I move the adoption of the



     23     following arrangements:  If this is the committee's



     24     first violation, the arrangement is for the



     25     committee to agree to pay 25 percent of the
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      1     proposed fine, plus mailing costs.  If this is the



      2     committee's second violation, the arrangement is



      3     for the committee to agree to pay 50 percent of the



      4     proposed fine, plus mailing costs.  If this is the



      5     committee's third violation, the committee would



      6     agree to pay 75 percent of the proposed violation,



      7     plus mailing costs.  For purposes of this



      8     arrangement, a previous settlement agreement



      9     entered into by the committee will be counted as



     10     one violation.  Likewise, if more than one alleged



     11     violation occurred on the same calendar day, that



     12     group of violations shall be also counted as one



     13     violation.



     14          Is there a second to this proposed motion?



     15          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I'll second it.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     18          Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion



     19     signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.



     24          Before this meeting, campaign finance staff at



     25     the Election Division sent a letter to each
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      1     committee which would be eligible to accept this



      2     proposed reduced penalty offering the committee the



      3     opportunity to indicate the committee's willingness



      4     to accept such an agreement to do so, subject to an



      5     approval of this procedure by the commission, and



      6     return that signed agreement to the Election



      7     Division so that if the commission did choose to



      8     adopt this procedure at today's meeting, the



      9     agreement could be ratified by the commission and a



     10     reduced penalty imposed without further



     11     presentation of evidence by the committee.



     12          Now that the commission has adopted the



     13     procedures, I will recognize Ms. Taylor and



     14     Ms. Thompson of the Election Division to provide



     15     the commission with a list of committees that have



     16     executed and filed these documents and enter the



     17     signed documents submitted by each committee into



     18     the record.



     19          If there are any committees present that would



     20     like to take this deal that have not already



     21     submitted the paperwork, please write your name and



     22     cause number in the chat box -- well, I guess we're



     23     not doing that, are we, Valerie?



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  Once we got here, we



     25     realized that wasn't going to work.
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      1          So if you would like to take this plea deal,



      2     please raise your hand now.  While campaign finance



      3     staff lists who they have, you'll have an



      4     opportunity to raise your hand, and then I'll



      5     recognize who I see as raising their hands.



      6          So, Abbey, Michelle, I'll turn it over to you



      7     for anyone you've already had accept a deal.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we'll let Abbey and



      9     Michelle get going, and then people can raise their



     10     hands and kind of get in the queue.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, please.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Go ahead.



     13          MS. TAYLOR:  Okay.  Well, that was not what



     14     our -- this is Abbey Taylor.  Yes, I took the oath.



     15     That was not what our letter said at all.  We had a



     16     different agreement on what we sent.



     17          We did receive 13 letters.  Do you want us to



     18     go through those committees that sent letters



     19     pleading their case?



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  Abbey, are those letters people



     21     who want to take the deal?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  There was no deal offered to



     23     anyone, so I'm not sure what that -- the letter did



     24     not offer a deal.



     25          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Valerie, if you recall, the
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      1     letter was modified because we, as co-directors,



      2     don't have the authority to offer a plea agreement



      3     to committees, and instead we asked committees to



      4     offer written testimony to ask for a reduction or



      5     waiver so that the commission themselves could make



      6     the determination about how they wanted to manage



      7     those letters.  That was my understanding of the



      8     letter.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Brad, I thought we dealt



     10     with this via some email communication.  Did that



     11     not happen?



     12          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, yes, we did discuss



     13     this in a series of emails that Co-Director



     14     Nussmeyer has alluded to as well.  At this point, I



     15     understand that the commission has received 13



     16     responses to a letter that may have a different



     17     content than what we just described.  And so I



     18     think it might be most efficient if we could get



     19     campaign finance staff to indicate what, in fact,



     20     the letter sent to the committees did indicate and



     21     what the individuals who returned -- signed the



     22     document and returned it did agree to.



     23          So if either Michelle or Abbey could address



     24     what was in the actual letter that was sent and



     25     what was received, that might be helpful.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, Michelle



      3     Thompson.  You also have a packet of the letters.



      4          What was it listed as?



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  It was letters -- it was a PDF



      6     labeled "Hearing Letters."



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did I get that from Joe or



      8     Brad?  Who sent it?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  One of them should have sent it



     10     to you yesterday afternoon.  I'm not sure --



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  I believe it was Brad you would



     12     have received that from, Mr. Chairman.



     13          MR. KING:  Right.  It would have been part of



     14     an email that contained several attachments from



     15     campaign finance staff.



     16          MS. WARYCHA:  I'll resend it to you now to get



     17     it at the top of your in-box, if that is helpful.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think I've got it here.



     19     I'm using my computer for the Zoom --



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  I know.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  -- so I'm looking at these



     22     on my phone.  PDF letters?



     23          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  47 pages.



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I see it.



      2          Okay.  So where do we go from here?



      3          MS. TAYLOR:  I was going to say, what's the



      4     best way to handle these?



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Brad or Val, you want to --



      6          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  I'm pulling up the letter



      7     right now.



      8          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



     10          MR. KOCHEVAR:  My suggestion would be is that



     11     we treat this as close to as if we were meeting in



     12     person.  That would be that the campaign finance



     13     committee staff bring up the committee name; go



     14     through the standard information that they give



     15     you, why they're here before the commission, what



     16     cause numbers that we're dealing with today; and



     17     then go through basically the contents of the



     18     letter, especially indicating if they have



     19     requested either a reduced penalty or a waiver.



     20          After that information is presented, I then



     21     think it would be in order for any one of the



     22     commission members to make a recommendation on if



     23     they want to provide a reduced penalty or waive



     24     that penalty, whatever motion they want upon the



     25     floor, or suggestion.

�



                                                           25



      1          That's what I would suggest to all of you.  Of



      2     course, I defer to Co-Director Nussmeyer, the



      3     campaign finance staff, Brad, and Valerie as well.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  If I might, Mr. Chairman, I



      5     feel that in reading what's been provided to us in



      6     this packet, I feel like it would be helpful if we



      7     knew -- I'm assuming there was a cover letter that



      8     went out with this.  I'm looking at -- looks like



      9     it was a form that was sent to these committees.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I'm assuming there was a



     12     cover letter.  So if we could have a little more



     13     context to know what was represented to these



     14     committees and --



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What they responded to.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah, exactly.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Can we read that into



     18     the record or have it sent to us while we're



     19     sitting here?  What makes the most sense.



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  Michelle, Abbey, do either of



     21     you have a copy right there in front of you that



     22     you could read?



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  Okay.  I've got it.



     24          "To (Committee Name), From:  The Indiana



     25     Election Division, Re:  Indiana Election Commission
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      1     Campaign Finance Hearing and Request for Waiver or



      2     Reduction of Proposed Penalty.



      3          "The Indiana Election Commission is meeting on



      4     Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Indianapolis



      5     time, to review alleged campaign finance



      6     violations.  You are receiving this letter because



      7     your committee may have a campaign finance



      8     violation.



      9          "Due to COVID-19, the meeting will be virtual



     10     using Zoom.  Information to access the Zoom meeting



     11     will be published on this web page:



     12     Www.in.gov/sos/elections/election-commission the



     13     day prior to the meeting.  The link to attend the



     14     meeting will not be published until the day prior



     15     due to security concerns.



     16          "You may virtually attend" -- oh, no, I lost



     17     the place.  "You may virtually attend the online



     18     meeting on Thursday, June 24, 2021.  During this



     19     meeting, you will be given the opportunity to



     20     present evidence and arguments to the commission



     21     regarding your alleged violation.  Any committee is



     22     welcome to present evidence and arguments for the



     23     proposed penalty to be waived.  If you are unable



     24     to attend, you may ask for a continuance in writing



     25     with the Election Division by Monday, June 21,
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      1     2021.



      2          "Due to the virtual nature of this meeting,



      3     the commission is giving committees a one-time



      4     opportunity to file written testimony to request



      5     for a waiver or reduction of the proposed civil



      6     penalty instead of attending the Thursday June 24,



      7     2021, meeting to state your case in person



      8     virtually.  The Indiana Election Commission will



      9     review the written or oral testimony provided by



     10     the committee and consider pertinent information to



     11     determine if a waiver or reduction of the proposed



     12     fine is warranted.



     13          "The bipartisan commission must unanimously



     14     agree to waive or reduce any campaign finance fine



     15     pursuant to state law.  The commission must meet



     16     again to have heard the final orders generated by



     17     this hearing.  The committee may email the campaign



     18     finance staff to inquire about any proposed waiver



     19     or reduction of the fine.  The Election Division



     20     staff cannot advise you about your particular case



     21     before the commission."



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that the entirety of the



     23     letter?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  "If your committee would prefer



     25     to file written testimony to request a waiver or
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      1     reduction of the proposed penalty rather than



      2     attend the meeting, please submit the following not



      3     later than noon Monday, June 21st:  The committee



      4     name, cause number, treasurer's name, request for a



      5     full waiver or reduction, and an explanation for



      6     filing a delinquent report."



      7          That's it.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  So, Abbey and Michelle, could



     10     you kind of handhold the commission through the



     11     letter and what each campaign is alleged, their



     12     violation, and what they're asking for to close out



     13     the matter.



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Sure.  You want us to do it by



     15     each --



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I think Co-Counsel



     17     Kochevar's direction there seems sufficient to me



     18     and a good idea.  The first one I see that's



     19     listed, what I see is the Ungethiem campaign, but I



     20     don't -- whatever order you want to start in is



     21     fine with me.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  The first one on the -- well, the



     23     letter should be Higgs for State Representative



     24     Committee.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Oh, yeah.  Sorry.  You're
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      1     right.  I was down a page.



      2          MS. TAYLOR:  It's on the front of the



      3     spreadsheet at the bottom.  This is Higgs for State



      4     Representative Committee, Cause No. 2021-7405-2.



      5     This is his first delinquency, and it's a proposed



      6     civil penalty of $350 and a mail cost of 55 cents.



      7     His letter just says he didn't know that there were



      8     any filings required.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So I guess this goes to



     10     co-directors and co-counsel.  I guess where I'm a



     11     little bit lost or confused, so we've read through



     12     the procedures here where you can take a reduced



     13     penalty.  I mean, are these folks here to provide



     14     any comments or responses or are we just making a



     15     presumption that we're giving them a first-time



     16     violation reduction in penalty?  I'm not really



     17     sure where we're going here.



     18          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, this is Brad King.  I



     19     think there are several different paths the



     20     commission can take.  If I understand from staff,



     21     there are approximately 30 to 40 individual



     22     committees that submitted letters that were



     23     included in the packet that you're referring to



     24     that starts with the Higgs committee.  And I think,



     25     under the circumstances, the best way to move
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      1     forward is not as a group, but walking down the



      2     list, seeing if a representative from the committee



      3     raises their hand and wishes to speak, and then



      4     have the commission consider the arguments made and



      5     then make any decision regarding that enforcement



      6     action and proceed down the list of letters in the



      7     order that they are in your packet.



      8          And I'll defer to my counterpart if she has



      9     additional or other ideas.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Co-Director Nussmeyer?



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I would agree with that



     12     assessment, Mr. Chairman.  I think that's an



     13     appropriate path to take here.  And it would be up



     14     to you to decide whether or not you think the plea



     15     agreement is warranted, the 25, 50, 75 percent



     16     stair-step, or if you want to fully waive the fine



     17     or if you want to reduce it in a manner that's not



     18     the 25, 50, 75 stair-step.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so, for example --



     20     and, Suzannah, jump in at any time.  What I read on



     21     this Higgs letter at the bottom in handwriting --



     22          MS. WARYCHA:  Let me take a moment.  Is



     23     Mr. Higgs on the call?  If he is, would you raise



     24     your hand.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Because it says "I'm
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      1     requesting a waiver or reduction."



      2          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  He's not on the call.  I



      3     just wanted to give him the opportunity to chime in



      4     if he was.  I don't see him.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, Mr. Chairman, if I could



      6     interject, it seems to me that so the letter these



      7     folks received -- I guess the process that Brad



      8     just recited confuses me a little bit, and Angie



      9     agreed with it.  But this letter that they received



     10     I thought was inviting them to fill out these forms



     11     and submit them in lieu of appearing at the



     12     hearing.  So I think -- I mean, I guess we can



     13     check to see if any of these people are here, but



     14     if I were them, I would be under the belief that,



     15     if I submitted this form, that I don't need to



     16     appear at the hearing; I've already said what I'm



     17     going to say with respect to my case.



     18          So whether -- I mean, I guess, again, we can



     19     double check because some people might, out of an



     20     abundance of caution, send in the form and appear



     21     at the hearing.  But it doesn't seem to me that it



     22     should make any difference of -- well, let me put



     23     it this way:  I guess if they're here, then, yes, I



     24     guess, that would make a difference in terms of how



     25     we treat this form, but I don't think we somehow

�



                                                           32



      1     kind of hold it against them that they're not



      2     participating in the hearing today.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Because they've gotten the



      4     letter, yeah.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right, because they sent in the



      6     form.



      7          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman?



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Go ahead, Brad.



      9          MR. KING:  If I could interject, I think



     10     campaign finance staff would also be helpful if



     11     they would identify whether this and the other



     12     committees have had any previous violations.



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.  I mean, yes, I think we



     14     need to go through that, but I think it's -- I



     15     mean, I think we look at the letter.  We see that



     16     Higgs for State Representative Committee submitted



     17     a form.  We look them up in the binder -- well, the



     18     so-called binder -- see how many violations they've



     19     had.  And, you know, in this case he's asking for a



     20     waiver or a reduction.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  So I think that's giving us the



     23     latitude to do --



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Impose whatever we want to



     25     impose, yeah.  So we will probably, then, need to
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      1     go one by one; correct?



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would think so.



      3          MS. WARYCHA:  And just to get people off the



      4     room who want to take the deal, would you -- I see



      5     Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana has already raised



      6     his hand, wants to take the deal.  Just with



      7     respect to those, as we figure this out, as I said,



      8     it is kind of clunky, but do you want to go ahead



      9     and raise your hand, anyone who is here who would



     10     like to take the deal, so we can clear you out and



     11     you don't have to stay.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  That's a great point.



     13     So we'll give a minute here or so for people to



     14     make some sort of digital acknowledgment.



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  Sure.  So the first person I see



     16     is Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana, and let me make



     17     sure.  We've identified your PAC.



     18          Abbey, Michelle, do you see which one that



     19     goes to?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  That's on page -- yes,



     21     page 44.



     22          MS. WARYCHA:  The next person I see raising



     23     their hand is Niki Groves.  Haley, could you unmute



     24     Niki for a moment so we can see who Niki is



     25     representing.
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      1          Niki --



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Wait, shouldn't we take these



      3     one at a time the same way -- if we were in the



      4     hearing room, someone would come up to the front of



      5     the room, we'd say do you want to take the deal,



      6     the staff would recite the facts, we would decide



      7     what they're eligible for, we'd make the



      8     determination, and move on to the next person.  It



      9     seems like we should do that instead of -- having a



     10     laundry list of people who are waiting is going to



     11     slow it down too, so can we just take them in the



     12     order that you're seeing, take them one at a time



     13     in the order that they're being seen?



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, yes.  That would be fine.



     15     Thank you.  This is actually my first campaign



     16     finance hearing, so bear with me.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and to Suzannah's



     18     point, I think you've got to back up and start over



     19     because we don't know -- Dennis Tedrow, we don't



     20     know if this is a first or a second.  I think we



     21     need to go through that and understand what the



     22     reduction is; correct?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  Haley, can you unmute



     25     Dennis for me, please.
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      1          And, Dennis, you will be unmuted here in just



      2     a second.  You are.  Go ahead.



      3          MR. TEDROW:  Can you guys hear me?



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



      6          MR. TEDROW:  Yeah.  This is Dennis Tedrow from



      7     Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana.  I would like to



      8     plead guilty.  This is my second offense.  I am



      9     under the impression that it is a $500 fine, and I



     10     am okay with paying that.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So what I hear from



     12     that is we're still in the procedural rules where



     13     he can take the second violation reduction;



     14     correct?  That's what we're looking at; right,



     15     Brad?



     16          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.



     17     You can do this a couple of different ways, but one



     18     way is to simply make a motion to impose the $500



     19     fine against the committee in this case.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that what it would be



     21     with the reduction?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And what's the campaign



     24     again?  It's Tedrow?



     25          MR. TEDROW:  Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana.
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  It's on page 44 of the



      2     spreadsheet.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      4          Okay.  So is there -- I guess we're going to



      5     take a motion and vote on this; correct, Brad?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, you certainly



      7     can do that.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Are we going to do that for



      9     each one?



     10          MR. KING:  I would suggest, for efficiency,



     11     that it probably is the best way.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So is there a motion



     13     to accept the penalty for Tedrow?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So moved.



     16          Is there a second?



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     19          MR. TEDROW:  I have a question.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead, Mr. Tedrow.



     21          MR. TEDROW:  After this, so I have to wait



     22     until the end of the Zoom meeting or can I just go



     23     ahead and leave the call?



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.  You'll be able to



     25     depart after we finish.
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      1          MR. TEDROW:  Okay.  Sorry.  I have to work is



      2     all.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No, no.  I understand.



      4          I mean, there is nothing else for him to do;



      5     correct, Valerie?



      6          MS. WARYCHA:  I'm not aware of anything else.



      7          Campaign finance staff, do you need anything



      8     else?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  Nope.  As soon as we're done, you



     10     can hang up.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Perfect.  Thank you.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  So we have a



     13     motion and a second.  Hearing no further



     14     discussion, all those in favor signify by "aye."



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     16          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



     19     motion is adopted.



     20          Next?



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  The next one we have is Niki



     22     Groves.  Haley, if you could unmute Niki.



     23          And then Niki, please state your name and what



     24     committee you're with.



     25          THE MODERATOR:  And, Niki, you'll want to hit
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      1     the unmute button on your device.



      2          MR. HARLOW:  Did it work?



      3          MR. KING:  Yes.



      4          MR. HARLOW:  Good.  I'm not very



      5     technologically sound, nor am I Niki.  I'm Andy



      6     Harlow, the treasurer of the Elkhart Builders



      7     Association, and I will be the first one to admit



      8     that we have had violations in the past.  In fact,



      9     I have been down in Indianapolis four or five years



     10     ago swearing that I would never be on one of these



     11     calls ever again, and I guess I'm a liar.



     12          We had the form dated January 21st that we



     13     sent in, and for whatever reason, it wasn't



     14     processed, which I'm willing to accept the blame



     15     for.  I'm just wondering if we can have some sort



     16     of dispensation as far as a smaller fine.  We are



     17     also pleading some form of guilty.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Which --



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     20     commission, this is on page 12.  This is the



     21     Builders Association of Elkhart County, Cause



     22     No. 2021-5251-20.  They have been before the board



     23     two other times and paid two settlement agreements.



     24     The proposed civil penalty is $1,000 with the mail



     25     cost of 55 cents.  They also submitted a letter,
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      1     which will be in your letter packet, and it was the



      2     fifth letter in there.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Who is the letter from?



      4          MR. HARLOW:  Me.



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  At the top it's Indiana -- or



      6     Builders Association of Elkhart County.



      7          MR. HARLOW:  And that's my signature at the



      8     bottom, sir.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm not -- what page is the



     10     letter on?  I'm not seeing it.



     11          MR. HARLOW:  I do have a copy I could send



     12     you.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  At the top, would it help, we



     14     have the cause number written at the top,



     15     2021-5251-20.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, it's hard to search a



     17     PDF.  We've got a 47-page PDF.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  It should be around page 33.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's helpful.



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 33, go after that.  I'm



     22     sorry.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There we go.  Okay.



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Next time I'll do separate



     25     attachments.  Lesson learned.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's okay.  Just need to



      2     know how to get to it.  Thank you.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.



      4          MS. TAYLOR:  Did we find it?



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  So the other thing is, right



      8     now we're just supposed to be considering folks who



      9     want to take the deal; right?  And what I'm hearing



     10     is that this campaign -- this committee doesn't



     11     want to take the deal.  They want to try to have



     12     further discussions.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.



     14          MR. HARLOW:  The letter really didn't offer us



     15     a deal, so I don't know exactly what we're asking



     16     for.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  His opening sentence



     18     does say to request a waiver or reduction of



     19     proposed penalty.  How many violations is this?



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their fifth time before



     21     the commission.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Five?



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  Two other times they were at a



     24     hearing, and they paid two settlement agreements,



     25     so this is the fifth, yes.
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      1          MR. HARLOW:  I believe the last settlement was



      2     the agreement when I promised to Mr. Long I would



      3     never be in front of you again.  We've had issues.



      4     I'm not going to go into them.  Our treasurer did



      5     spend most of the year in the hospital in Chicago



      6     on COVID, but that's immaterial.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so I need some counsel



      8     here.  Are we falling into a gray area?  Are we



      9     still into the proposed reduced in penalty or are



     10     now we moving into hearings?



     11          MR. KING:  Well, Mr. Chairman?



     12          MS. WARYCHA:  Go ahead.



     13          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  From the



     14     facts in this particular case, it does not appear



     15     that the committee qualifies for any of the



     16     reductions that are part of the standard deal that



     17     the commission would offer at past hearings, and so



     18     it becomes the determination of the commission



     19     whether or not to grant any waiver or reduction



     20     whatsoever or whether to impose the full fine.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What's the amount of the



     22     penalty?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  1,000 plus 55 cents in mailing



     24     cost.



     25          MR. HARLOW:  I'll pay the stamp.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, can we have some



      2     discussion before there's a motion to figure out



      3     what we're doing or are we just --



      4          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, procedurally, you



      5     should have a motion before you to discuss.



      6     Whether you amend it or adopt it is, of course, up



      7     to the will of the commission --



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Okay.



      9          MR. KING:  -- but you can start with the



     10     motion.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So is there a motion



     12     to impose the penalty as presented on the Builders



     13     Association of Elkhart County?



     14          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  So moved.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  For clarification, that would be



     17     the full $1,000 fine?



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Correct.



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  And this is their fifth time



     20     before, not their third?



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Correct.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Then, yes, I would second that.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So now that we have a



     24     second, can we have some discussion?



     25          Suzannah, do you have any thoughts?
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, I guess if -- well,



      2     since -- I guess my thought would be since we're



      3     now kind of outside the parameters of the kind of



      4     stair-step situation, I would want to make sure



      5     that -- and I'm sorry.  Is this Mr. Harlow who is



      6     on the line?



      7          MR. HARLOW:  Yes.  Niki is here behind me, but



      8     I'm Mr. Harlow, the secretary -- or the treasurer.



      9     Andrew Harlow is my name.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  I guess I think this is more



     11     akin to a hearing, and I would want to make sure



     12     that he has fully presented what he wants to



     13     present in terms of his request that the fine be



     14     reduced.  So I guess that's my comment.  I know



     15     that's coming after the motion, but we were told we



     16     had to have a motion.  So my comment is that I



     17     would like to hear more from Mr. Harlow before we



     18     vote.



     19          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I may, that



     20     is an opportunity that the commission does



     21     routinely afford to committees, usually limited to



     22     five minutes, not counting responses to



     23     commissioner questions and discussion.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, without going through



     25     all those procedures for the hearing, can we just
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      1     afford Mr. Harlow a chance to speak with us now?



      2          MR. KING:  Yes.  I see no legal reason why you



      3     cannot.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  But can Mr. Harlow affirm that



      5     he took the oath first, please.



      6          MR. HARLOW:  I absolutely affirm I took the



      7     oath.



      8          MS. WARYCHA:  Thank you.



      9          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I may, the



     10     commission members usually will ask the committee,



     11     if this is a full hearing, if they're asking for a



     12     full waiver or a reduction and what that reduction



     13     to them might be, and then you use that as part of



     14     your assessment to make the final motion.  At least



     15     that's how it's traditionally occurred.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So say that again, the first



     17     part.



     18          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Sure.  Generally a member of



     19     the commission will prompt the committee to ask if



     20     they want a full waiver or a reduction and what



     21     that reduction to them would be.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.  So, Mr. Harlow, in



     23     your letter you simply request a waiver or



     24     reduction.  Can you articulate what your actual



     25     request is?
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      1          MR. HARLOW:  I would appreciate any waiver



      2     whatsoever or reduction that you could give, but



      3     let's start with 50 percent, and you're going to



      4     negotiate backwards on me.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And would you like to offer



      6     some explanation in the form of testimony?



      7          MR. HARLOW:  A couple of things I'd like --



      8     and this is not -- again, I'm just like the first



      9     gentleman.  I am going to tell you that we are



     10     guilty, or I think we are.  We did complete the



     11     form on January 21st.  We did mail it.  We did



     12     receive a letter in March it had never been



     13     received.



     14          But be that as it may, some of the things that



     15     transpired in this last 12 months, we removed our



     16     executive director for cause and had to find a new



     17     executive director.  Our accountant left the public



     18     field and went to be the private accountant for the



     19     Boys and Girls Clubs, so we had to find a new



     20     accountant at this same time.  As I shared a little



     21     bit ago, our treasurer, who had been the treasurer



     22     for two or three years, was diagnosed with COVID,



     23     and if he hadn't gone to the Rush Hospital up in



     24     Chicago, he probably would have passed away earlier



     25     this year.  We had to reduce our administrative
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      1     staff because of COVID.



      2          So we dealt with a few things that were out of



      3     the ordinary.  We implemented a few things to make



      4     sure that we're always on time.  We are now



      5     presenting the information to our accountant before



      6     it's due rather than wait for them to send us the



      7     response, because we don't get our accounting



      8     information, on a monthly basis, until about the



      9     20th, which makes it a little difficult to get it



     10     to you guys on time.  So if we give it to them a



     11     month earlier, hopefully we'll have it at the



     12     beginning of January as opposed to the end of



     13     January.  And I can tell you with absolute



     14     certainty you will never hear my name or voice ever



     15     again.  I promise you that.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Didn't you promise that the



     17     last time?



     18          MR. HARLOW:  I know and I'm a liar.  Sorry.



     19     But it was years ago.  It was about five years ago



     20     when I was down there, only to find out I had been



     21     there for the third or fourth time and didn't know



     22     it.  So I defer the last time.  I didn't know that



     23     we were a frequent flier.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and for the record, my



     25     comments were made with levity.
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      1          MR. HARLOW:  I know they were.  I appreciate



      2     the levity.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So, Brad, Valerie,



      4     Angie, does your staff have anything further to



      5     offer on this matter?



      6          MR. KING:  Nothing substantive, Mr. Chairman,



      7     but just to say that if the commission is inclined



      8     to impose an amount other than the one in the



      9     pending motion --



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We'll have to amend the



     11     motion?



     12          MR. KING:  -- you will have to amend the



     13     motion and then take a vote on the motion as



     14     amended.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  I thought Angie started to say



     17     something.



     18          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I don't have anything further



     19     unless, Abbey, you have something in the file that



     20     you think is pertinent for the commission to



     21     consider.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  I do not.  The last time they



     23     were before the commission was June of 2012.



     24          MR. HARLOW:  That sounds accurate.  I'm sure



     25     it is accurate.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, taking your testimony



      2     at face value, as I do, it sounds like you've been



      3     on a bit of a rollercoaster ride here.



      4          Do any other commission members have any



      5     thoughts or comments as it relates to the testimony



      6     provided and the motion at hand?



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  And remind me, what was the



      8     proposed penalty in the current motion?



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  $1,000, I believe.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Yeah, the full penalty.



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And 55 cents.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And 55 cents.



     13          MR. HARLOW:  I'll pay the 55 cents.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Which may be increased by



     15     the time we finish this meeting.  It could go up to



     16     57 cents.



     17          MR. HARLOW:  I have a forever stamp.  We'll be



     18     okay.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would say, Mr. Chairman, in



     20     light of the circumstances and that there has been



     21     a period of time since the last violation, that I



     22     would move to amend the motion to reduce the



     23     penalty to the 75 percent level.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to take that as a



     25     motion to amend the previous motion and impose a
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      1     penalty of 75 percent plus mailing costs.



      2          Is there a second?



      3          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I would second that.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



      5          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



      6     "aye."



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      8          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



     11     motion carries.



     12          Thank you Mr. Harlow.



     13          MR. HARLOW:  Thank you very much.  We



     14     appreciate your consideration.  Do I still have to



     15     put my hand up to say that I said it's okay or



     16     verbal is okay?



     17          MS. WARYCHA:  We're good.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's okay now.



     19          MR. HARLOW:  Okay.  I appreciate it.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure thing.  Thank you.



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  So the next person that I



     22     see with their hand raised is Ferdinand Alvarez.



     23     And if you could go ahead and unmute him, Haley.



     24          And, Mr. Alvarez, are you wanting to take the



     25     deal or make -- if you're wanting to take the deal
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      1     as a percentage based on how many violations, we



      2     can do that now, or if you're wanting to hear a



      3     case, we'll wait until after we're done with those



      4     deals.  Mr. Ferdinand, are you wanting to take the



      5     deal?



      6          MR. ALVAREZ:  Can you hear me?  Hello.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Go ahead.



      8          MR. ALVAREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, members of the



      9     commission, for allowing me to speak this



     10     afternoon.  My name is Ferdinand Alvarez, chairman



     11     of the Lake and Porter County Young Democrats.



     12          The reason I did raise my hand is I do request



     13     a waiver of the fees.  The only dilemma is that I'm



     14     a deputy prosecuting attorney, and I'm on my lunch



     15     break, and I am on my way back to court to work for



     16     the State of Indiana.  And so I was just hoping



     17     there was some type of way I can be heard



     18     beforehand.  But I am -- unfortunately, my lunch



     19     break is coming to a close, and I will no longer be



     20     able to be on the meeting due to the fact that I'll



     21     be in criminal court.



     22          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Alvarez needs to



     23     confirm that he took the oath.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Alvarez?



     25          MR. ALVAREZ:  Yes, sir, I did take the oath.
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      1     I do so confirm.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And what I'm hearing you



      3     say, Mr. Alvarez, is that you want to proceed with



      4     sort of a hearing on the matter as opposed to



      5     accepting a reduction in penalty, which is what is



      6     on the table.



      7          MR. ALVAREZ:  Correct.  I am aware that I'm



      8     out of the order as far as the procedure on the



      9     agenda, but due to time constraints, I just wanted



     10     to bring it to this commission's attention



     11     beforehand rather than afterwards.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And you do recognize --



     13          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Mr. Chairman, can he call for



     14     a continuance if there's not time today?



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I suppose he can



     16     request one.  Is that correct, Brad?



     17          MR. KING:  Yes, he can.  Mr. Chairman, you've



     18     actually started consideration here, and if



     19     campaign finance staff can provide information



     20     about violations, we may be able to have the



     21     commission accommodate Mr. Alvarez so it's not



     22     necessary.  But, yes, if it is necessary, the



     23     commission can grant a continuance.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and I just want to



     25     remind Mr. Alvarez that, by entering into this part
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      1     of the procedure, you may be foregoing your



      2     opportunity to accept a reduced penalty and may be



      3     imposed the entire fine.  Are you comfortable with



      4     that?



      5          MR. ALVAREZ:  I am, Your Honor -- or Your



      6     Honor.  I'm sorry.  I am, Mr. Chairman.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No one's ever called me



      8     that, so don't start.



      9          MR. ALVAREZ:  Force of habit, sir.



     10          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is page 28.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So in the PDF, what



     12     page is the letter on?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  No, not the letter.  It's the



     14     spreadsheet.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  So does this count as their



     17     second violation?  Is that how I'm reading this?



     18          MS. THOMPSON:  This is their third.



     19          MR. ALVAREZ:  The reason for that, if I may,



     20     members of the commission, our organization has



     21     undergone three separate restructuring elections in



     22     the last three years.  I have recently been



     23     appointed chairman as of May of this year along



     24     with all new board members.



     25          I can't speak for the three violations in the
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      1     past.  All I can speak of is -- or speak on is that



      2     in the future our board is committed to being



      3     diligent on our paperwork.  Our financial



      4     statements are getting in order.  We are



      5     coordinating our bank accounts with People's Bank



      6     here in Munster, Indiana, and we are taking this



      7     seriously.



      8          Our previous treasurer was a 16-year-old high



      9     school student who perhaps did not grasp the



     10     seriousness of the accountability as far as



     11     paperwork and documentation, but we do throw



     12     ourselves at the mercy of this commission, and we



     13     promise that in the future all accountability and



     14     paperwork will be in order.  We are an organization



     15     of five individuals, and all of us are under the



     16     age of 31, so...



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There was a time when I



     18     wished my age was an excuse for my delinquency.



     19     I'm sorry.  Back up a step.  What's the committee



     20     name again?



     21          MR. ALVAREZ:  Lake and Porter County Young



     22     Democrats, sir.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  And so what's the



     24     proposed penalty?



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  The proposed penalty --
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      1          MR. ALVAREZ:  We -- I'm sorry.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Alvarez, hold on a



      3     second.



      4          MR. ALVAREZ:  My apologies.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.  You're fine.



      6          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is -- the



      7     Lake and Porter County Young Democrats has a



      8     proposed civil penalty of $50.55.  They have been



      9     before the board one time and they've paid the



     10     settlement agreement, so this would be their third



     11     offense.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So the penalty as proposed



     13     is $50.55?



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, after hearing



     16     Mr. Alvarez's testimony, does anyone have a motion?



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we use the



     18     stair-step approach and approve the 75 percent



     19     penalty for the third violation.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  I second that.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I mean, Mr. Alvarez,



     22     I'm kind of there too, and you could have dispensed



     23     with this a little bit quickly to get off your



     24     lunch hour here.



     25          So hearing a motion for a 75 percent -- or a
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      1     reduction of 25 percent on the fine as proposed,



      2     having a second, all those in favor signify by



      3     "aye."



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      5          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      6          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



      8          MR. ALVAREZ:  I thank you, members of the



      9     commission, for your decision.  It definitely beats



     10     a $1,000 fine, which is what I was unfortunately



     11     anticipating.  This fine is a bit more manageable,



     12     and I will ask my members to gather their



     13     babysitting money and we will pay this fine.



     14          So thank you very much.  I thank you for your



     15     time.  I hope you all have a wonderful day.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     17          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, I believe the



     18     spreadsheet shows the fine as being $50.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's right.



     20          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Okay.  So I think he may have



     21     misunderstood what his fine was.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think so too.



     23          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Okay.  Well, he'll get even



     24     better news, I suppose, with a 35 or $40 -- math is



     25     hard -- settlement agreement.  So thank you.  I

�



                                                           56



      1     just wanted to clarify that.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's probably more



      3     like lawn mowing money and not babysitting money.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  So I just want to bring this up.



      5     I can see the hands that are raised, and I think



      6     there is confusion between the deal and making



      7     testimony.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  So I just want to open that up



     10     to you, Mr. Chairman, and see how would you like to



     11     proceed.  Would you like to continue giving people



     12     the opportunity to make their case or go back to



     13     the deals?  I just wanted to put that out there.



     14          And, Brad, feel free to weigh in.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Let me do this:  For all who



     16     are in attendance, if you can please take your hand



     17     down.  Let's start again with those who are



     18     interested in taking the proposed reduction in



     19     penalties without any testimony, now raise your



     20     hand.



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  I see one, Roxanna



     22     Hanford.  And if you could please unmute her.  And



     23     Roxanna if you could say that you have taken the



     24     oath before you make remarks.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  Hi.  I did agree to the oath,
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      1     and apparently my computer is not showing the same.



      2     Mine shows that my hand is lowered.



      3          MR. KING:  We can see you.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  We see you.  You're okay.



      5          MS. HANFORD:  Well, I would prefer to present



      6     my case.



      7          MS. WARYCHA:  Oh, okay.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.  I see what



      9     you're saying.  Okay.  Thank you.



     10          MS. WARYCHA:  I don't see anybody else with a



     11     hand raised, then, Mr. Chairman.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to give one more



     13     minute.



     14          No one?



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  I do not see any hands.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  So presumption,



     17     then, is that everybody else would like to be



     18     heard.  We've already kind of dived in, but for the



     19     sake of the record, I'll go through the finance



     20     hearing procedures.



     21          The remaining committees will be called to



     22     make presentation of evidence in these matters.



     23     Before doing so, I want to note that in the past we



     24     have followed certain procedures, and I move that



     25     the commission use the following procedures today:
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      1          When each campaign finance matter is called,



      2     the hearing will begin by recognizing our staff to



      3     provide information about the documents in this



      4     matter provided to the commission members,



      5     including letters from the committees, and the



      6     notice given to the campaign committee.



      7          Unless there's any objection, the documents



      8     provided to the commission by the Election Division



      9     will be entered into the record of this meeting.



     10          After the campaign finance staff completes



     11     presentation, a representative of the committee



     12     will be recognized and may present their case for



     13     no more than five minutes.



     14          Commission members may ask questions during



     15     the presentation, but the time spent answering



     16     these questions will not be counted against that



     17     presenter's time.  And the Election Division may



     18     signal the chair when the presenter's time is up.



     19          If the presenter offers additional documents



     20     or other physical evidence not previously received



     21     by the commission, then the original must be



     22     provided to the Election Division.



     23          And, Valerie, we'll figure that out for the



     24     preservation of the record.



     25          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  If the commission finds that



      2     a committee has violated the campaign finance



      3     statutes, state law requires the unanimous vote of



      4     all four commissioners to waive or reduce the



      5     amount of penalty set by state law.



      6          If the commission makes a decision at this



      7     meeting to either fine a committee or dismiss the



      8     case against the committee, then the Election



      9     Division will prepare a final order for the



     10     commission to approve at a later meeting.  If a



     11     committee is fined today, the committee will



     12     receive a notice from the Election Division to pay



     13     the fine after the commission adopts the final



     14     order.  So it may be some time after today before a



     15     committee will be required to pay said fine.



     16          Candidates and committee representatives who



     17     would like to present today, please identify by



     18     using the hand motion that we've been using thus



     19     far, and the staff will identify you in the order



     20     that they see you.



     21          The commission will recognize the committees



     22     to present in chronological order of -- I just said



     23     that.  All right.  So please speak clearly and wait



     24     for -- and confirm that you've taken the oath.



     25          With that in mind, is there a second to the

�



                                                           60



      1     motion on these procedures?



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  I will second.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



      5     "aye."



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      7          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      8          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Motion's approved.



     10          Let's proceed.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  The first person I see



     12     is -- I'm going to say who I see and then who would



     13     be on deck.  So the first person I see is



     14     Ungethiem, and then I think -- if you could go



     15     ahead and unmute him, Haley.  And then the next



     16     person will be a Diane -- I'm sorry, I'm not going



     17     to say your last name correctly -- Yenerall.



     18          MR. UNGETHIEM:  Can you hear me?



     19          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, we can.  Can you confirm



     20     you took the oath.



     21          MR. UNGETHIEM:  I'm Bruce Ungethiem.  I'm



     22     representing the Committee to Elect Bruce



     23     Ungethiem.  This is the first time I've done this,



     24     Zoom or otherwise, so bear with me.



     25          I did submit written information on this, and
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      1     I am requesting a waiver of any fines that might be



      2     potentially imposed.  And the reason is that,



      3     according to how I understood the rules, the



      4     committee followed all rules and submitted all the



      5     forms on time.



      6          Oh, by the way, I did say "I do" and I'm under



      7     oath, so --



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      9          MR. UNGETHIEM:  -- we've got that out of the



     10     way.



     11          Basically, my understanding is that there were



     12     two issues around the committee.  One was a late



     13     filing of CFA-11 back in April of 2018 and a late



     14     filing of CFA-4 in 2021.  And in April of 2018, I



     15     filed the forms electronically, including the



     16     CFA-11.  Then at the end -- and I lost the



     17     election, so I did not have to file until the end



     18     of the year.  I filed again on the 15th of January



     19     of the following year, and everything was fine.



     20     There was nothing in the computer queue that



     21     indicated that there was any issue.



     22          In 2019, I didn't collect any money and I



     23     didn't spend any money because I wasn't running for



     24     election.



     25          In January of 2020, I made the decision that I

�



                                                           62



      1     was never going to run for elected office again, so



      2     I filed the CFA-4 report on January 6 of 2020 and



      3     dissolved the committee.  The money that was



      4     remaining in the committee was donated to several



      5     local charities, and I thought I was done with that



      6     situation.



      7          In January of 2021, I got a note from the



      8     Election Division.  I got a letter sent out by the



      9     Election Division indicating the committee was



     10     delinquent in filing its forms.  I immediately



     11     called the office, talked with Michelle Thompson,



     12     asked her what the situation was.  We got onto the



     13     computer, and she did find that the CFA-11 was



     14     sitting in a file -- or in a holding area



     15     somewhere.  It was on the computer but for some



     16     reason now was not considered submitted even though



     17     in the previous two years it didn't indicate that.



     18          So she worked with me.  We got the CFA-11



     19     filed.  In addition, the notation about the CFA-4



     20     not being filed in 2021, since I closed the



     21     committee or thought I closed the committee in



     22     2020, my understanding was there was no reason to



     23     file a 2021 CFA-4.  We worked through that



     24     situation as well, got that situation resolved, and



     25     when I got off the phone with Ms. Thompson, my
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      1     understanding was everything was okay and no other



      2     action was needed.  Then I started to get



      3     information that said that there might be fines and



      4     penalties associated with that.



      5          The reason that I'm confused about this is in



      6     my previous life, when I worked for a Fortune 500



      7     company, I was the director of computer operations



      8     and know quite a bit about computers and



      9     programming and that kind of thing and know that



     10     they have a tendency to sometimes not be as



     11     accurate as we would like them to be.



     12          But in summary, I followed all the information



     13     that I had.  I filed all of the proper forms on



     14     time.  There was no intent to deceive, and there



     15     was no one harmed by any of the actions that



     16     occurred.  So my request is to have the -- any



     17     fines that might be imposed waived, and I will go



     18     on with my life and never run for office again.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Ungethiem.



     20          Staff, Michelle, does this all, this recount



     21     of events, sound accurate?



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  He also sent the letter



     23     explaining that all.  It's on page 2.  Let me tell



     24     you what pages these are on on your spreadsheet,



     25     page 2 and page 84.  And, yes, I did help him walk
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      1     through it and get it closed.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And was this -- this notion



      3     of the application being in some holding area, can



      4     you speak to that for me.



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  He entered the large contribution



      6     into the system on January 10th of 2019.  At that



      7     time it notified him that a large contribution



      8     report needed to be filed and he either had to hit



      9     "Continue" or "Update" to change it.  He did not



     10     file that report.  It was in the "Reports Due"



     11     section until he filed the report on February 2nd



     12     of 2021.



     13          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, campaign finance, for



     14     the record, should identify whether the committee



     15     has any previous violations.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, no, he has not



     18     been before the commission before.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  So do I understand, is the



     20     committee now closed?



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I think -- I don't know if



     23     staff would know this, but I heard Mr. Ungethiem



     24     just say that all the money in the account has been



     25     donated.
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      1          MS. TAYLOR:  He closed the committee, so



      2     there's no money in the account.



      3          MR. UNGETHIEM:  That is correct.  All



      4     remaining funds were disbursed to charitable



      5     organizations.



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I -- well, Mr. Chairman,



      7     consistent with, I think, how we've handled



      8     situations like this in the past, I would actually



      9     move to waive the entire --



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Penalty.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  -- fine and mailing costs due



     12     to the fact that the committee is closed and



     13     there's no money in the account anymore.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So there's a motion



     15     on the Ungethiem matter to waive the penalty.  Is



     16     there a second?



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I would second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



     19          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     20     "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Seeing none opposed, the



     25     motion carries and the penalty is waived.
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      1          Thank you, Mr. Ungethiem.



      2          MR. UNGETHIEM:  Thank you very much.  Have a



      3     good day.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          MS. WARYCHA:  The next person on deck is Diane



      6     Yenerall, and then Roxanna Hanford is next.  And do



      7     not forget to say if you've taken the oath.



      8          MS. YENERALL:  Okay.  Thank you.  My name is



      9     Diane Yenerall.



     10          MS. WARYCHA:  Hold on just a second.  And then



     11     campaign finance, I think, will go first.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you.



     13          Go ahead, Michelle.



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  We're trying to figure out what



     15     page it's on.  Hang on.  Page 63.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Was there any letters or



     17     anything sent on this case?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  No.



     19          MS. THOMPSON:  No letters.  This is Indiana



     20     Speech Language Hearing Association PAC, has a



     21     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.  They have



     22     been before the board twice, and they have paid two



     23     settlement agreements, so this would be their fifth



     24     violation.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  How is it their fifth if

�



                                                           67



      1     they've been before us twice?



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  They've also paid two



      3     settlement agreements.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I see what you're saying.



      5     Okay.  Thank you.  Sorry.



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  I've caught on.  You have to



      7     add both of those columns, I figured out.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  Right.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So I'm scrolling through



     11     here.  What's the proposed fine?



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  $1,000.55.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And, Diane, will you



     14     pronounce your last name for me, please.



     15          MS. YENERALL:  It's Yenerall.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yenerall.  Okay.  Thank you.



     17     Okay.  Ms. Yenerall, would you like to provide any



     18     testimony?



     19          MS. YENERALL:  Yes.  Thank you.  I do



     20     acknowledge that --



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And before you start -- I'm



     22     sorry -- what is it that you're seeking?  What's



     23     your request?



     24          MS. YENERALL:  We're seeking a waiver of the



     25     penalty of $1,000.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Proceed with your



      2     testimony.  I apologize.



      3          MS. YENERALL:  That's okay.  Thank you.  And I



      4     do acknowledge that I took the oath.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      6          MS. YENERALL:  I am representing the Indiana



      7     Speech-Language-Hearing Association PAC.  I am



      8     their new management company.  I entered into a



      9     contract with the association, the state



     10     association, in September after they had unresolved



     11     issues with their previous management company.



     12          I was not aware -- when I was contracted, I



     13     was not contracted to take care of a PAC account



     14     for them.  But when I received the letter in



     15     March 16th that the filing had not taken place,



     16     that a volunteer of the organization was to make,



     17     that is when I started discussing with them that I



     18     would take over the management of the PAC account



     19     for them since I am familiar with PAC accounts.  I



     20     manage associations with PACs in the state of



     21     Pennsylvania, Virginia, and New York, so I



     22     understand the severity of the penalties and



     23     reporting on time.



     24          So considering the fact that they were having



     25     issues that they needed to change management
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      1     companies, they had also at the same time, the



      2     person who was filing the PAC was brand-new, was a



      3     brand-new volunteer, and I don't think she



      4     understood everything that she was supposed to do.



      5          So I do acknowledge that they did have five



      6     previous violations, but I'd just like the



      7     consideration since we are a new management company



      8     and we do have experience managing PACs in other



      9     states.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm not sure that I have any



     11     questions.  Does any member of the commission have



     12     any questions for Ms. Yenerall?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  I don't, Mr. Chairman.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there any proposed



     15     motions on this matter?  I mean, consistent with



     16     sort of your comments on the previous fifth-timer,



     17     I'm inclined to impose 75 percent, unless there's



     18     other discussion or an alternate motion.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  I guess I don't feel -- I feel



     20     like the situation described here was a little



     21     bit -- or described in the other case was a little



     22     bit different, but we might get into splitting



     23     hairs if we do that.  I don't know.  I don't have a



     24     strong feeling one way or the other, so I'll say



     25     that.
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      1          Well, I guess if no one else is making a



      2     motion, I guess I'll move that we proceed with



      3     the -- that we grant a reduction of 25 percent or



      4     impose and move that we impose 75 percent of the



      5     proposed fine.



      6          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Second it.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion and a



      8     second.  Any further discussion?



      9          Hearing none, all those -- go ahead.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Is there a reason -- what would



     11     be your thought on the difference?  Is it because



     12     they hired the new management company?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, my thought, I mean, the



     14     other situation where he was talking about how, I



     15     forget, one of the staff people was hospitalized



     16     with COVID, I mean, they also had kind of a change



     17     in personnel but then also some other



     18     circumstances, so I guess that's what I thought



     19     made it a little different.  But as I acknowledged,



     20     that could get into splitting hairs a bit or being



     21     a little bit overly subjective.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  I'm good to vote on the



     23     75 percent.



     24          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, staff understands the



     25     motion to include mailing costs as well.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Thank you.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes, of course.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We'll stipulate that from



      4     now on.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes.  Sorry.  Yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?  Any



      7     questions?



      8          Hearing none, we have a motion to impose



      9     75 percent and a second.  All those in favor



     10     signify by "aye."



     11          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     12          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing it's unanimous, the



     15     motion carries.  Thank you.



     16          MS. YENERALL:  Thank you for your time.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Who is next?



     18          MS. WARYCHA:  Next is Roxanna Hanford, and



     19     then John Schroeder will be on deck next.  So



     20     please unmute Roxanna, and then, campaign finance



     21     staff, you're on.



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is on



     23     page 26 and page 73 of the spreadsheet, Vote



     24     Roxanna Hanford.  The first one has a proposed



     25     civil penalty of $1,000.55, and the second one has
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      1     a proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.



      2          No.  I'm sorry.  Has not been before the



      3     commission before.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What page is the spreadsheet



      5     on?



      6          MS. THOMPSON:  26 and 73.



      7          MS. BECKLEY:  So there's two accounts here?



      8     There's two violations?



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  There's two.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Okay.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And the second one is $1,000



     12     and the first one is how much?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  1,000.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Each.  Okay.



     15          Ms. Hanford, can you please confirm that you



     16     swore to the oath.



     17          MS. HANFORD:  Yes.  Good afternoon, everyone.



     18     I affirm that, yes, I did agree to the oath, and I



     19     was not aware that there were two penalties.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     21          MS. HANFORD:  So now I'm ten times more



     22     confused than I was before.  The only violation



     23     that I understood that was against me was not



     24     filing a final report as I made my run for U.S.



     25     Senate, District 6, and my paperwork has all been
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      1     sent in.



      2          Now, can you guys see us when we're talking or



      3     just hear us?



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I can see your face on a



      5     screenshot, but you're not live.  I can just hear



      6     you.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  Okay.  So, like I said, I was



      8     only aware of the one violation.  And my



      9     explanation for this is I had already been in



     10     office.  I was county commissioner.  I had opened



     11     my campaign account in 1999, and my campaign



     12     account was entitled "Vote Roxanna Hanford."  That



     13     was it.  It wasn't Vote Roxanna Hanford for



     14     Commissioner or Vote Roxanna Hanford for Senate.



     15     You know, the title of my campaign was Vote Roxanna



     16     Hanford.



     17          So when I decided to run for Senate, I already



     18     had my account.  I was out of office as



     19     commissioner.  I kept the account open.  I filed my



     20     annual reports, you know, and I sent bank



     21     statements with them to verify them, showing that



     22     the ending balances had not changed.  And so I sent



     23     my annual reports, but I never sent a final report



     24     because I knew that I was going to be running for



     25     office in the future yet.
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      1          So then starts my Senate campaign.  I pick up



      2     my campaign finances where I had left them off and



      3     started my fund-raising and my campaigning and



      4     whatnot, and it still is Vote Roxanna Hanford and



      5     that was it.  It was an unsuccessful race.  I



      6     concluded the race with a balance of $244.76.



      7          In filling out my CF-4 -- CF-4s, I marked them



      8     year-end, but I never marked it final because I had



      9     a debt.  When I opened my campaign, I opened my



     10     campaign with $5,000 and put it in as a loan from



     11     myself to a campaign.  It was my understanding that



     12     you cannot close an account if there is a debt owed



     13     or a balance; it has to be zero balance.  When I



     14     was no longer commissioner, I didn't have a zero



     15     balance, so I never marked it final.  When my



     16     unsuccessful race for Senate ended, I did not have



     17     a zero balance, so I didn't mark it as final.



     18          I continued to send in my year-end reports,



     19     and then I was notified that I needed to send in a



     20     final report to the Senate race -- oh, I ran for



     21     council after that, so I continued my campaign.  So



     22     that's why it wasn't closed and finalized at that



     23     time.  Then I was notified after that that I had to



     24     close out my Senate account with a zero balance,



     25     and I didn't know how to do that.  I don't know how
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      1     to close an account without a zero balance.



      2          So after my run for council, I did close out



      3     my account.  I did repay myself the remaining



      4     balance from the $5,000, marked the rest of it off



      5     as a donation, zeroed out the account, closed the



      6     account, and sent that paperwork in as well as my



      7     bank statement showing that this account was zeroed



      8     out and closed.



      9          So I just -- bottom line, I don't know how to



     10     close out an account without a zero balance.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, so could I ask a



     12     question?



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  So, Ms. Hanford, what I think



     15     I'm hearing you say is that your intent -- I mean,



     16     so is it your intent to close your campaign finance



     17     committees?



     18          MS. HANFORD:  Yes, it's closed.  Not out of



     19     bitterness or anything like that, but I'm unable to



     20     run.  I will not be running for any future offices,



     21     and so, yes, the account is closed.  Checks were



     22     shredded and the balance was zeroed.



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I keep hearing you --



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Your account may be closed, but



     25     your campaign committee is still open.
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      1          MS. HANFORD:  Campaign committee?



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.  So you would have



      3     created, when you started this whole process -- and



      4     I appreciate your having been so interested in



      5     running and sorry you ended up not having such



      6     great experiences.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  Well, I was a two-term



      8     commissioner.  I felt good about that.



      9          MS. OVERHOLT:  So you did good.  Okay.



     10     Anyway, so you would have opened -- under state



     11     law, you would have opened the committee's -- the



     12     campaign finance committee that you have to open



     13     under state law, and then there are bank accounts



     14     that you had, I think, that you're talking about



     15     where the money actually was housed.  And the



     16     committee that is created under state law is one



     17     where you -- it's the recordkeeping that kind of



     18     reflects what's going on in that bank account.



     19          It sounds like you have closed your bank



     20     accounts, but the actual committees -- and forgive



     21     me if I'm wrong -- it sounds like you might have



     22     had two campaign finance committees created under



     23     state law.  It sounds like those committees are



     24     still open but the bank accounts are closed.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  Okay.  So we're talking
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      1     committee and cash, committee and finances.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



      3          MS. HANFORD:  Two separate issues.  See, I was



      4     looking at one single issue.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



      6          MS. HANFORD:  If there's money, there's a



      7     committee, a campaign.  If there's no money, if



      8     there's no race, then, you know, you just do your



      9     year-end report and that would be the end of it.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  To cut to the chase on this,



     11     can I just ask the question, is it your intent to



     12     close your -- well, you said you're not planning to



     13     run again, so if staff were to help you with the



     14     process to help you figure out how to actually



     15     close those committees that you've created at the



     16     state and local level, would you be -- are you



     17     intending to do that?



     18          MS. HANFORD:  Absolutely.  I'm not making



     19     excuses.  I'm not looking for sympathy.  But I have



     20     been diagnosed with multiple brain tumors.  This is



     21     very difficult for me to maneuver through.  I have



     22     stacks of papers that, while we're sitting here,



     23     I'm reading them.  I'm making notes to myself so I



     24     don't forget it because it's just too hard for me.



     25     I physically cannot do this anymore.  But I will
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      1     remain Democrat chairman.  I should say chair.  I'm



      2     sorry.



      3          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I might, in



      4     order to close her committee, we do need something



      5     in writing from Ms. Hanford that says that she



      6     forgives the debts owed to her committee, because



      7     once that is received, then staff can help her



      8     online to close out the committee to be reflective



      9     of the fact that she transferred her Senate dollars



     10     maybe not to a different bank account, but from one



     11     committee to the other, to the local committee, and



     12     do the final disbands to address the issues raised



     13     here today.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Ms. Hanford, can you help us



     15     with that?



     16          MS. HANFORD:  Yes.  If I understand this, is



     17     there a form that I'll fill out that says that I am



     18     disbanding my committee?  But then where do I put



     19     that money?  When I'm talking about money in there,



     20     I don't have to put a money amount in there?  I'm



     21     just disbanding that Vote Roxanna Hanford, and then



     22     put Senate seat -- or Senate race in there, that



     23     committee has been disbanded?  So that's it, I



     24     don't have to worry about putting a money amount in



     25     there, and then go through and fill out another

�



                                                           79



      1     form that says Vote Roxanna Hanford not for county



      2     council, but Vote Roxanna Hanford that at the time



      3     was running for county council has disbanded that



      4     committee.  Is that what they're looking to do?



      5     Oh, but you do need a zero dollar in there.



      6          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Right.  So what we need to do



      7     is go back and amend a report that shows that you



      8     transferred the dollars from the Senate campaign to



      9     your local committee.  So we're not actually moving



     10     money; we're just showing the fact that one



     11     committee transferred funds to the other committee,



     12     even though the bank account was the same, which



     13     will result in a zero dollar balance.



     14          But then we also need an email from you that



     15     says that you forgive your loans.  And we can take



     16     this offline, if you like.  I know Abbey and I have



     17     your contact information and we can work through



     18     this with you.



     19          MS. HANFORD:  And my 3-inch pile of trying to



     20     figure this out.  I'm really not trying to be hard



     21     to deal with.  I just don't understand it.  You



     22     know, like I said, I always knew that you could not



     23     close an account without a zero balance, and so I



     24     just really don't know how to do it.



     25          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I can add just
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      1     briefly a couple of points.  It sounds like the



      2     candidate has committees at both the county and the



      3     state level, and so to be clear, what the



      4     commission is hearing today is strictly with regard



      5     to the state Senate committee.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      7          MR. KING:  And the candidate will have to work



      8     with her county clerk, county election board to



      9     close out the local committee.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     11          MR. KING:  But in terms of dealing with the



     12     state Senate committee, what Angie Nussmeyer said



     13     earlier is applicable in that we at the Election



     14     Division need to receive a final report that



     15     indicates that the state Senate committee is being



     16     disbanded.  There's a box, Box No. 12, that the



     17     candidate checks to say this is a final disbands



     18     report that would account for any transactions that



     19     have not been previously reported.  And Election



     20     Division staff is always happy to help a candidate



     21     do that.  So thank you.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Brad.



     23          MS. HANFORD:  I did that with the county in



     24     2020, and it says final disbands committee.  So



     25     with the county I did do that.  I see that as -- on
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      1     my form it's Box 11.  But I never did that with



      2     Senate because at Senate I still had money in the



      3     bank.  So that's why it wasn't done then.  With



      4     council I zeroed the account, so that's why I did



      5     mark it as final.



      6          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I could add one



      7     piece of information about past commission



      8     practice.  In situations similar to this one in the



      9     past, the commission has continued the matter to



     10     give the candidate an opportunity to close out the



     11     committee and, if the candidate does so, then



     12     typically proceeds to dismiss the action.  Again,



     13     I'm just reciting history, not making a



     14     recommendation.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Brad, read my mind.  I was



     16     going to suggest that we do that.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, make a motion.



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.  I would move that we



     19     continue this to the next hearing with the



     20     understanding that, if Ms. Hanford has indeed



     21     closed her account by the next hearing, that we



     22     would consider waiving these fines and mailing



     23     costs.



     24          MS. HANFORD:  And the mailing costs?



     25          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That all make sense to you,



      2     Ms. Hanford?



      3          MS. HANFORD:  Yes, it does.  But I would like



      4     to make a statement.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Give me just a second



      6     procedurally.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  The staff has been great.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Hang on just a



      9     second.



     10          So we have a motion.  Is there a second?



     11          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     13          And, Ms. Hanford, if you'd like to say



     14     anything else, you're welcome to.



     15          MS. HANFORD:  The staff has been great.



     16     They've been wonderful.  Through the years, from



     17     running for Senate forward have been some of my



     18     roughest years, and they have helped me



     19     tremendously.  So I compliment the election board



     20     as well as the staff and whatnot.  They've been



     21     wonderful to work with, and I appreciate your



     22     decision today.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     24          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I might for the



     25     record.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      2          MR. KING:  Just to note that Annette



      3     Craycraft, as she indicated earlier, had to leave



      4     the meeting, and so Mr. Dickey is now filling in as



      5     proxy and therefore will be voting on this



      6     particular motion.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Thank you, Brad.  That was my



      9     next point before we voted.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.



     11     Thanks, Mr. Dickey, for joining us.



     12          So we have a motion and a second.  Any further



     13     discussion?



     14          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     15     "aye."



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     20          Hearing the "ayes" have it, the motion



     21     carries.



     22          MS. HANFORD:  Thank you.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You're welcome.  Have a good



     24     day.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  You too.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do we have another one up?



      2          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.  I see one last hand



      3     raised, and that is John Schroeder.  I'll turn it



      4     over to the campaign finance staff.



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is on



      6     page 93.  This is Builders Association of Dubois



      7     County PAC Fund.  It has a proposed civil penalty



      8     of $900.55, and they've never been before the



      9     commission before.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  And I'm pronouncing



     11     it Mr. Schroe-der.  Is that correct?



     12          MR. SCHROEDER:  Out of town, Schroe-der is



     13     appropriate.  Schrae-der here in Dubois County.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Forgive me.



     15          MR. SCHROEDER:  And I have taken the oath.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Schroeder.



     17     Would you like to provide some testimony and tell



     18     us what you're expecting out of this hearing?



     19          MR. SCHROEDER:  Well, I'm hoping for a total



     20     waiver.  The reporting question CFA-4 I mailed on



     21     January 4 of '21, well before the due date of



     22     January 20th of '21.  I was first notified by



     23     Michelle Thompson on February 11th that I was



     24     delinquent, and I immediately emailed her a copy of



     25     the report that I had mailed in.  As a rule -- you
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      1     can review our records -- we have timely filings.



      2     We've never been delinquent.



      3          So back in April, when I got my notice of the



      4     fine, I immediately called Michelle, and she did



      5     get back to me immediately and said she would put



      6     me on the agenda for this meeting to dispute the



      7     fine and also basically filled me in, in 2021, it's



      8     only an annual filing since there's no election.



      9     So that's my case.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What's the proposed fine?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  $900.55.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  Any questions



     13     for Mr. Schroeder?



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  I have one of the staff.  So



     15     just, Michelle, Abbey, do you have -- I mean, with



     16     what he emailed you, do you have anything that



     17     shows the date the report was actually mailed?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  We never received the mailed



     19     copy.



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  So I don't have the envelope or



     21     anything.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  So the mailed copy never came



     23     in?



     24          MS. THOMPSON:  No.



     25          MS. BECKLEY:  And what did he email to you?
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  The report.  He emailed it to



      2     me, and I stamped it the day I received it, which



      3     was the February 11th date.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Schroeder, do you have



      5     something that shows when you mailed it?



      6          MR. SCHROEDER:  Well, I have my own notes,



      7     what I keep.  And I knew I mailed it on January 4th



      8     because I was going on vacation the next week, and



      9     that's why I knew I mailed it then.  But, again,



     10     I've always been timely on every one I've ever



     11     filed.  I guess if I learned anything is to start



     12     mailing everything certified.



     13          Michelle's always been excellent to work with,



     14     and I do want to applaud her for that and always



     15     responding back timely.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I think at the very least I



     17     would be willing to bring back the stepped approach



     18     of 25 percent.  I would also be open to arguments



     19     below.



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  I was just going to say that,



     21     to the extent we take judicial notice of anything,



     22     the postal service, the slowness and issues with



     23     delivery and mail over the past year and the fact



     24     that Mr. Schroeder is under oath, you know, I find



     25     it quite believable that he mailed something and it
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      1     was that late or never received.  So I'd be willing



      2     to actually entertain a complete waiver, the



      3     25 percent -- reduction down to 25 percent or a



      4     complete waiver.



      5          MR. DICKEY:  I would agree.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So, Stephanie, was yours a



      7     motion and/or, Suzannah, was yours a motion?  Is



      8     there a motion?



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  I guess I will motion for a



     10     25 percent and open to hearing anything else.  But



     11     I'll motion for 25.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     13          I'll second the motion to entertain further



     14     discussion.



     15          MR. SCHROEDER:  Can I interject?  That fine of



     16     25 percent is actually more than we took in last



     17     year in the PAC fund due to COVID, so it really



     18     hurts a little fund like ours.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.



     20          MR. SCHROEDER:  And we filed it.  That's my



     21     argument.  It would have been different if I had



     22     filed it, like, January 19th, a day before, but I



     23     filed it on January 4th, which should have been



     24     ample time.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, I know.  You've given
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      1     us your testimony.  We hear you.  And I want to



      2     remind you that it does take a 4-0 vote to make



      3     this motion carry, so it looks like it may not be



      4     quite headed that way.



      5          MR. SCHROEDER:  Thank you.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So any other questions or



      7     discussion?



      8          And we'll do a roll vote on this one.  So all



      9     those in favor signify by "aye."



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Chairman signifies with an



     11     "aye."



     12          Suzannah?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  No.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Stephanie?



     15          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Dickey?



     17          MR. DICKEY:  No.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion fails.  Would



     19     anyone like to propose an additional motion -- or



     20     an alternate motion?



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we reduce the



     22     fine to zero.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     24          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second that.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?
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      1          All those in favor signify by "aye."



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      3          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      4          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



      6     The motion carries.  The penalty is waived.



      7          Thank you, Mr. Schroeder.



      8          MR. SCHROEDER:  Thank you.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  That concludes the people that



     10     have raised their hand.  Now, Chairman Okeson, just



     11     so you know, we still have the letters that people



     12     sent in, and I might suggest having the campaign



     13     finance staff go through those and tell you what



     14     the campaign's alleged violation is, how many times



     15     they've had a violation, and what they're asking



     16     for as a settlement.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     18          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I could add



     19     to what Valerie has said, it's important to note



     20     for the record that I don't believe any of these



     21     documents were submitted under the penalties of



     22     perjury.  So these are not sworn statements.  They



     23     are letters explaining the facts that the committee



     24     wanted to present to you.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.  I
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      1     appreciate that.



      2          Turn it over to Michelle.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, the first



      4     one is Higgs for State Representative on page 1.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  And it's the first letter in your



      7     letter attachment, and he just basically pleads



      8     ignorance.  He didn't know anything was late.  The



      9     proposed civil penalty of $350.55.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  What page is that on?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 1, the bottom of page 1.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're basically, then, sort



     13     of, in a very circuitous way, coming back to the



     14     stair-stepped proposed reductions; correct?  And



     15     these are people that have responded to the letter



     16     with their own information.  We're presuming that



     17     they are seeking this reduction.  Is that kind of a



     18     fair summary of where we are?



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  A reduction or waiver; right?



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     21          MR. KING:  Yes, I believe that's correct,



     22     Mr. Chairman.



     23          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, I would say that



     24     as a commission, you need to decide if you think



     25     the stair-step approach -- you just need to make a
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      1     motion about what you think is the appropriate



      2     penalty here.  If you think a waiver, a full



      3     waiver, is appropriate, make that motion or if you



      4     think the stair-step, very similar to what you just



      5     did with oral testimony.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so the letter that I



      7     see requests either a waiver or reduction.  "Really



      8     didn't know it was late."



      9          So are we going to go through these one by



     10     one?  This is their first penalty; right?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their first, yes.



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we -- because



     13     it's their first penalty, I would move that we do



     14     the 25 percent of the proposed fine plus mailing



     15     costs.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  We have a motion.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I would second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There's a second.  Any



     19     discussion?



     20          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     21     "aye."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.
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      1     The motion carries.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  The next one is Tallian for



      4     Attorney General.  There are several of these.



      5     They're on page 3, page 4, page 5, and page 52.  In



      6     your PDF, it's letter No. 8.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What do those fines total up



      8     to?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  $6,000 plus mail costs.  There



     10     were six late 11s.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is this the first time?



     12          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.  And this committee is



     13     closed.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So they're being taken all



     15     as one?



     16          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  And you said the committee is



     18     closed?



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  And where did you say the



     21     letter is?  I'm not finding the letter.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 8 in the letter PDF.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's below the CFA-4 forms.



     24          MS. OVERHOLT:  That's right.  I saw it earlier



     25     and just missed it.  Okay.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Says "Prior



      2     treasurer/campaign manager missed deadlines.  He



      3     was not aware that money transferred from Tallian



      4     for Senate to Attorney General campaign were



      5     reportable donations."



      6          And you said this is the first time?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  Correct.



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  And the committee is closed.



      9     Based on that, Mr. Chairman, I would -- due to the



     10     fact the committee is closed, I would move that we



     11     waive the fines.



     12          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm sorry.  Did you second



     14     that, Mr. Dickey?



     15          MR. DICKEY:  I did.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there any discussion?



     17          Hearing none, I have a motion to waive all



     18     penalties for Tallian for Attorney General.  All



     19     those in favor signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.  The



     24     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.  The penalties



     25     are dismissed.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  The next one is Irwin Financial



      3     Corporation.  This was three of them, page 11,



      4     page 104, and page 114.  Mr. Souza was on the line



      5     and had to leave for a meeting or had to get off



      6     the call.  This is Irwin.  He did send a letter.



      7     In your PDF, it's page 10.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  It's 20 pages long.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Whoa.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  It was a whole darn thing.  Irwin



     12     Financial filed for bankruptcy in, I believe, 2009.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  I worked with Mr. Souza, and we



     14     did close this committee.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  So this is closed too?



     16          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     17          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  He says there's been no



     19     action from the PAC since September 18, 2009.  He



     20     says before that --



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  That's probable.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Say that again.



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  That's probable.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Is this their only



     25     violation?
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  No.  They've got three of them



      2     on the spreadsheet.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  And it says they've got 12



      4     priors?



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.  They've never filed



      6     anything, once the company went into bankruptcy,



      7     until I was able to get ahold of this Mr. Souza,



      8     and we worked together and closed it.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I get it.



     10          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And if I might, Mr. Chairman,



     11     his letter also states that he was summarily



     12     dismissed from employment from Irwin Financial in



     13     2009 and therefore had no ownership of the PAC, and



     14     then the bank went into bankruptcy, as I understood



     15     the letter.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  Consistent with our prior



     18     actions in this meeting, I would -- since the



     19     committee has been closed, I would move that we



     20     waive all fines.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I'm inclined to do



     22     the same.  I'll take that as a motion.  Is there a



     23     second?



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?
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      1          Hearing none, all those in favor to waive the



      2     penalties for Irwin Financial PAC signify by "aye."



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      5          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      7     motion carries.



      8          Next.



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  Next is page 18.  Friends of



     10     Doug Eckerty has been before the commission one



     11     other time, has a proposed civil penalty of



     12     $855.55.  He does have a letter.  I just can't find



     13     it right this second.



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  It's in the packet.



     15          MS. THOMPSON:  It's after Irwin, but I don't



     16     know --



     17          MS. NUSSMEYER:  It's page 34 of the PDF.



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Thanks, Angie.



     19          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And, Mr. Chairman, do we need



     20     to read all or part of the letter into the record



     21     or will it suffice just to have it as an exhibit?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We haven't done it for any



     23     others; right?



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Right.



     25          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, there is no legal
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      1     requirement for you to read it into the record.  It



      2     will be part of the minutes that you will



      3     eventually approve.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  So the way I read this, he's



      6     actually -- wait a minute.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  He's given us some x-rays.



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  His wife broke her neck.  I



      9     mean, it sounds more like he's requesting a



     10     continuance.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  And his committee is closed.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  He says "I request my



     13     fine be set aside."



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  I missed that.  Sorry.  That's



     15     what I get for reading too quickly.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  "...I was the sole and



     17     primary caregiver during this time of my filing



     18     violation I am requesting my fine be set aside.



     19     Thank you for your time and consideration."



     20          MR. DICKEY:  You did say the committee is



     21     closed?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Correct.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Consistent with our other votes,



     24     I'll make a motion to waive the fine.



     25          MS. BECKLEY:  And I will second.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      2          It's a good day to be before the commission,



      3     isn't it?



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  For a closed committee, yeah.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing nothing further,



      6     there's a motion and a second.  All those in favor



      7     signify by "aye."



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     12     The motion carries.  The fines are dismissed.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, the next



     14     one, page 38, bottom of 38, top of 39, this is



     15     Citizens for Dave Ring.



     16          MS. TAYLOR:  The letter is on page 39 in that



     17     PDF.



     18          MS. THOMPSON:  They've never been before the



     19     commission before, has a civil penalty of $850.55.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  "...maintained less than $5



     21     balance in our account."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  So is this committee still



     23     open?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes, because he's got a balance



     25     and he needs to file amendments to figure out where
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      1     something went wrong.  We've been trying to figure



      2     that out.  We just haven't gotten there yet.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  When you say "something went



      4     wrong," what do you mean?



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  He has a negative balance on one



      6     report and a $5 balance on the other, so I'm not



      7     sure.  You know, like, the campaign was -- oh, boy.



      8     I don't even know what year he ran.  2018, I mean,



      9     lost the primary.  We've just got to find where the



     10     money is to come up with a zero balance and close



     11     it out.



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move to continue



     13     consideration of this pending the account being



     14     closed.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Motion to continue has been



     18     seconded.  All those in favor -- any discussion?



     19     Any questions?



     20          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     21     "aye."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  Unanimous, the "ayes"
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      1     have it.  Motion is continued.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 42, Friends of Sarah



      4     Stivers has a proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55,



      5     and her letter was received --



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  Letter is on page 40 in that PDF.



      7          MS. THOMPSON:  Has not been before the



      8     commission before.



      9          Is her committee closed?  Let me check and see



     10     if it's closed.



     11          The committee is still open.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  She's had a fairly



     13     unfortunate couple years here.



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.



     15          MR. DICKEY:  What's the proposed fine again?



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  A thousand.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  Yeah.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Michelle, have you guys



     19     spoken with her?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  I have.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is she intending to



     22     close the committee?



     23          MS. THOMPSON:  She never really said whether



     24     she was going to close it or not.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And the fine is for a late
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      1     filing?



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.  It was for her 2019



      3     annual report.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  I have two ideas.  I mean, one



      5     would be to continue and give her the opportunity



      6     to discuss closing the committee with staff, but



      7     that's being kind of presumptuous on our part.  The



      8     other thing would be to reduce it to the



      9     25 percent.  But I'm open to other suggestions.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  I would be open to continuing to



     11     allow her to close the committee given the



     12     circumstances she's outlined here.



     13          MS. BECKLEY:  Yeah.  I think I would be on the



     14     side of continuing until the next meeting, chance



     15     to close the committee, and then she could plead



     16     25 percent if she were to keep it open.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  In your discussions with



     18     her, Michelle, she's not indicated any intention of



     19     closing the committee?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  No, none.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Does somebody want to



     22     make a motion?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Sure.  I would move that we



     24     continue this to the next hearing to see if the



     25     committee is closed by that date.
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      1          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?  We have a



      3     motion and a second to continue to the next hearing



      4     date.  All those in favor signify by "aye."



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      6          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      7          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      9     motion carries.  The matter is continued.



     10          Next.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 51, For Better



     12     Infrastructure Political Action Committee has a



     13     proposed civil penalty of $650, has not been before



     14     the commission.



     15          MS. TAYLOR:  We're on page 41 in the letters



     16     PDF.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So they're seeking a



     18     complete waiver just basically based on inactivity.



     19     Is that what I'm reading?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  This is a first offense?



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes, it is.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anyone have any thoughts?



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  I would move to reduce it to the



     25     25 percent penalty.  Open to hearing anyone else's
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      1     thoughts.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So there's a motion to



      3     reduce to 25 percent.  Is there a second?



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a second.  Is there



      6     further discussion?



      7          Hearing none --



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Mr. Chair, real quick.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Go ahead.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  Just a question to the staff.



     11     Have they said anything, if it's been inactive,



     12     about closing the committee?



     13          MS. TAYLOR:  No.  And they've got way too much



     14     money to think about closing.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.



     16          MR. DICKEY:  Point taken.  I recall the



     17     question.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we've got a motion and a



     19     second to reduce to 25 percent for a first-time



     20     offense.  All those in favor signify by "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous the



     25     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 52, Build Indiana.  This



      3     one was actually a continuance from our meeting



      4     back in February of 2020.  There is a letter.



      5          What page are we on in the PDF?  42.  Has a



      6     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55, has not been



      7     before the commission.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They say the committee was



      9     closed; is that correct?



     10          MS. THOMPSON:  It is.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move, consistent with



     12     our previous motions, that since the committee is



     13     closed, that we waive the fine.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a motion.  Is there a



     15     second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion and a



     18     second to waive fines.  All those in favor -- any



     19     discussion?



     20          All those in favor signify by "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     25     The motion carries.  Penalties are dismissed.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 58, Vending Industries



      3     PAC, has a proposed civil penalty of $500.55, has



      4     been before the commission one other time, also has



      5     a letter, page 43.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  This is their first time?



      7          MS. THOMPSON:  No.  They've been before the



      8     commission one other time.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And they paid a full fine?



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  They paid a settlement agreement.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Sorry.  Yeah.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So this is the second?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Does anyone want to make a



     15     motion?



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  I'd move that we reduce the



     17     fine by 50 percent plus mailing costs.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a motion, a second.



     20     Any discussion?



     21          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     22     "aye."



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     25          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Finch for State Representative,



      4     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.  This



      5     committee is closed and has not been before the



      6     commission before, with a letter on page 45.



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  And what page of the



      8     spreadsheet?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  85.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is this closed?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     12          MS. BECKLEY:  Pursuant to our previous



     13     discussions, I would move to reduce the penalty to



     14     zero, as the committee is closed.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MR. DICKEY:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     18          Hearing none, all those in favor of a motion



     19     to waive penalties signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     24     The motion carries.



     25          Next.
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 92, Citizens for



      2     Responsible Government, they have three, page 92,



      3     page 111, and 122.



      4          MS. TAYLOR:  And the letter is on 46.  This is



      5     the last letter, so it's the last couple of pages.



      6     And the committee is closed.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's a great letter.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Yeah.  I can't, I can't.  It just



      9     is --



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  Oh, my gosh.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Yep.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's entertaining.  It is



     13     closed?



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     15          MR. DICKEY:  Consistent with our other



     16     discussion --



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And since they were duped.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  -- motion to waive and dispense.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     22          All those in favor signify by "aye."



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     25          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



      2     The motion carries.



      3          Is there more?



      4          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  That's the end of our



      5     letters.  Now we're to Abbey's stuff.



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  We've got a few requests for



      7     continuance.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  The Indiana Osteopathic



     10     Association Political Action Committee, Cause



     11     No. 2021-4431-16.  It's on page 9 of the



     12     spreadsheet.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  First time?



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  They're asking for a continuance.



     15     I don't know if this is their first time or not.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  It's the eighth time.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did someone say eight?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  Page 9.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Oh, page 9.



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their ninth delinquency.



     21     That's probably why they've asked for a



     22     continuance.



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  What's the basis for the



     24     continuance?



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  Hold on.  We didn't pull those
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      1     letters.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Just because they can and



      3     want to ask for one.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah, I guess so.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And I heard correctly, was



      6     it Abbey, you said this is their ninth delinquency?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  That's correct.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Over the course of how many



      9     years?



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  They've got a low file number, so



     11     they've been around a while.



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  Yeah, we don't put them all on



     13     here.  The last one we have is 2006, but I bet it's



     14     been longer than that.



     15          MS. BECKLEY:  It says "Current and Former



     16     Delinquencies, 2019 Annual, 2016 PreElect."  Am I



     17     reading this right?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes, but their first one was in



     19     the 1990s.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  Okay.  So 2016 to 2019, so three



     21     years.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is this the first



     23     continuance on this matter?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.
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      1          MS. TAYLOR:  She is at the Grand Canyon today.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.  I move that we grant the



      3     continuance until next hearing.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Second, anyone?



      5          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      7          I think it might be worth, though, for the



      8     record making sure that we're not -- we're reminded



      9     of this and not punting on the next go-round.



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  You bet.



     11          The second one is the Committee to Elect --



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hold on.  We have to vote on



     13     the motion.



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  I'm sorry.  I got so excited.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think we all are.  I'm



     16     with you.



     17          We have a motion to grant the continuance and



     18     a second.  Hearing no further discussion, all those



     19     in favor signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.  The



     24     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries for



     25     continuance.
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      1          Okay.  Go ahead.



      2          MS. TAYLOR:  The next one is the Committee to



      3     Elect Corinne Westerfield.  She's got two causes,



      4     2021-7188-82 and 2021-7188-157.  It's on pages 47



      5     and 90.  She's asking for a continuance.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  First, is this her first?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  This is her first penalty, and



      8     she's asking for a continuance because she's with



      9     her son at his chemotherapy.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Somebody want to make



     11     the motion?



     12          MR. DICKEY:  I'll make that motion.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion to grant



     16     continuance and a second.  Any discussion?



     17          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     18     "aye."



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     21          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     23     Motion carries to continue.  Thank you.



     24          Next.



     25          MS. TAYLOR:  The last one is -- I'm sorry.
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      1     There are two more.  Indiana Industrial Political



      2     Committee, Cause No. 2021-6397-122, Cause



      3     No. 2021-6397-189, and Cause No. 2021-6397-207.



      4     They are asking for a continuance because it's new



      5     people and they didn't know anything about anything



      6     that's happening, so they're trying to dig to



      7     figure out what -- they learned about it a couple



      8     days ago.



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  I actually talked to this



     10     treasurer, but it's a new management company taking



     11     over and they didn't even realize this PAC existed



     12     and that they were in this kind of trouble.  So



     13     they wanted to figure out what the heck was going



     14     on before they presented it before the commission.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  I mean, they're



     16     not asking for a waiver.  They're just asking for



     17     some time to get together, so I'm fine with that.



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Right.



     19          MR. DICKEY:  Agreed.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  I would make a motion to



     21     waiver -- or to continue.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second.  Any further



     24     discussion?



     25          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
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      1     "aye."



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      3          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      4          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion to grant a



      6     continuance is approved.



      7          Next.  You said there was one more?



      8          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  This is a separate



      9     attachment you had called the "2019 Excess



     10     Corporation," Justus Rental Properties.  He is out



     11     of the state today, and he (audio interruption).



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  You cut out.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did we lose you?



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Are you there?



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  You cut out for a



     16     minute.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  The 2019 Excess Corporation



     18     separate attachment, it's Justus Rental Properties,



     19     Cause 2021-229.  He's out of state today, and he



     20     wanted to be able to appear before the commission



     21     to explain what happened with this excess corporate



     22     donation.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Anyone



     24     want to make a motion?



     25          MR. DICKEY:  So moved.
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      1          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  A motion and a second.  Any



      3     discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all those in favor of granting a



      5     continuance signify by "aye."



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      7          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's unanimous.  The motion



     10     carries.



     11          That's it?



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  That's it for our continuances.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So moving on, we go to



     14     administrative dissolution of committees.



     15          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  Mr. Chairman, you have



     16     another attachment there with the dissolved



     17     committees.  These committees can be



     18     administratively dissolved.  They have not filed a



     19     report in three years, they have a balance of less



     20     than 1,000, and both chairman and treasurer have



     21     been notified of this meeting.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I move the commission



     23     do the following:  Make a finding that there's no



     24     evidence that any of these committees continues to



     25     receive contributions, make expenditures, or
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      1     otherwise function as a committee; make a finding



      2     that, according to the best evidence available to



      3     the commission, the dissolution of these committees



      4     will not impair any contract or impede the



      5     collection of any debt or judgment by a person;



      6     make a finding that the prudent use of public



      7     resources makes further efforts to collect any



      8     outstanding civil penalty imposed against these



      9     committees wasteful or unjust, therefore that any



     10     such penalties be waived; and administratively



     11     dissolve each of these committees.



     12          Is there a second to that motion?



     13          MS. BECKLEY:  I will second.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?  Any



     15     questions?



     16          We have a motion and a second.  All those in



     17     favor signify by "aye."



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     20          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  Hearing none opposed,



     22     the motion carries.



     23          Okay.  Before we finish campaign finance



     24     business, I would like to address an issue brought



     25     to my attention by staff.  We have had two
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      1     candidates fail to enter their campaign finance



      2     reports electronically, as required by Indiana



      3     Code 3-9-4-4.  Indiana Code 3-9-4-16(j) allows the



      4     commission to assess penalties for this violation



      5     equal to the cost incurred by the Election Division



      6     for the manual entry of the data contained in the



      7     report or statement, plus any investigative costs



      8     incurred and documented by the Election Division



      9     for this violation.



     10          We will not be hearing these two cases today.



     11     However, since this is the first time this issue



     12     has come before the commission, I would move that



     13     the commission adopt a policy to set a proposed



     14     minimum penalty of $100 to accommodate staff time



     15     and resources used to input the report.  As I said,



     16     we will not hear any of the cases at this meeting,



     17     but I think it is important to have a proposed fine



     18     in place to order prior to the hearing for any



     19     committee to enter into a settlement agreement.



     20          Is there a second for this motion?



     21          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     23          MR. KING:  I'm sorry to interrupt here.  There



     24     was a communication earlier from Vice Chair Long



     25     that I believe you were provided a copy of.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You're correct.  You're



      2     correct.  Thank you for reminding me of that.



      3          MR. KING:  And -- yeah.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Can I just simply withdraw



      5     this motion?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'd like to withdraw that



      8     motion in consideration of Vice Chairman Long's



      9     request.



     10          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I could.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Yeah.



     12          MR. KING:  I think if the commission wishes to



     13     discuss this topic in general, you certainly have



     14     the opportunity to do so.  And before you finish



     15     your campaign finance business, you would



     16     ordinarily move to default those individuals who



     17     did not appear.



     18          MS. WARYCHA:  But before we do that, can we



     19     have just a moment?



     20          Haley, could you open up the line so that if



     21     there's anyone who, for some reason, was not able



     22     to use the hand motion feature, we give them an



     23     opportunity, as we discussed at the beginning.



     24          THE MODERATOR:  Absolutely.  Attendees, I am



     25     going to give you permissions briefly to allow you
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      1     to speak if you did not get an opportunity to do



      2     so, and then after a few seconds we will remove



      3     that if you do not have anything to say.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  Well, everybody just muted



      5     themselves, so I will go ahead and say that I think



      6     that we're good.  Please proceed, Mr. Chairman.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      8          Brad, you brought up defaults.



      9          MR. KING:  Yes, sir.  Ordinarily you would ask



     10     if there's anyone present to testify on remaining



     11     campaign finance hearing scheduled for today.  You



     12     have done that, and we have checked to make certain



     13     that no one wishes to do so.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we're good?



     15          MR. KING:  Well, almost, and that is the next



     16     step would be for you as chair to declare the



     17     hearings on all remaining campaign finance matters



     18     scheduled for today to be closed --



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Closed, yeah.



     20          MR. KING:  -- and then to ask for a motion to



     21     impose the entire amount of the proposed penalty,



     22     including mailing costs, in all remaining campaign



     23     finance enforcement actions.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So is there a motion to



     25     impose -- so basically they're not here so they're
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      1     just going to get the penalty that was imposed?



      2          MR. KING:  They have --



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They've not sought a waiver?



      4     They've not asked to be heard?



      5          MR. KING:  This would be the equivalent of a



      6     default judgment entered in a court proceeding?



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So do we have a motion to



      8     impose the penalty on the remaining cases?



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a second.  Any



     11     discussion?



     12          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     13     "aye."



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     17          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion carries.  The



     19     "ayes" have it.



     20          Brad, back to my motion that I withdrew,



     21     should we have some discussion about that or simply



     22     push the matter to the next meeting?



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, that is your decision



     24     and that of the members of the commission.  Since



     25     we will have members continuing to serve on the
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      1     commission, I would suggest it might be beneficial



      2     to take five minutes to at least get the issue on



      3     members' radar screens so that they can think about



      4     it and discuss with staff or other interested



      5     parties some of the details involved.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So, I mean, I read



      7     through a motion here and withdrew it, but if you



      8     want to take a couple seconds and kind of give a



      9     reintroduction or overview of the issue and why we



     10     might want to consider it.



     11          MR. KING:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Then I'll



     12     be happy to defer to my counterpart, Co-Director



     13     Nussmeyer, for anything she might wish to add.



     14          The campaign finance enforcement statute sets



     15     forth a number of different penalties based on



     16     types of violations that committees commit, most



     17     commonly delinquencies.  There are others for



     18     excess contributions.  But the legislature, a



     19     couple of sessions ago, required all legislative



     20     candidates to file their reports electronically,



     21     and except in two particular cases, which I won't



     22     mention by name, legislative candidates have done



     23     so.



     24          The law provided that the commission can



     25     assess a penalty for a violation, that is, for
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      1     failing to file electronically, "equal to the costs



      2     incurred by the Election Division for the manual



      3     entry of data contained in the report or statement,



      4     plus any investigative costs incurred and



      5     documented by the" commission -- or excuse me --



      6     "and documented by the Election Division for the



      7     violation."



      8          In discussions at the staff level, at least



      9     with the reports that we are currently looking at,



     10     they will require a minimal amount of effort, but



     11     they will require staff time.  And we are concerned



     12     that we don't want to set a policy that would



     13     encourage people to not file electronically and



     14     instead have the commission give clear guidance to



     15     candidates about their potential -- or committees



     16     for their potential liability for failing to comply



     17     with this state statute.



     18          And so we had discussed a minimum penalty of



     19     $100 to accommodate the staff time and resources



     20     because both Abbey and Michelle would do data



     21     entry, but it involves consultation with legal



     22     counsel and the co-directors to a limited degree.



     23     And so we're seeking guidance as to, when we come



     24     before the commission to present a proposed



     25     penalty, what that minimum penalty should be in a
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      1     situation like the one I've described.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  And I think it's fair



      3     to explain for the record that Vice Chairman Long



      4     requested that we not do anything that would be



      5     binding to a future commissioner that would take



      6     his place at today's meeting, and I agreed to that,



      7     which is why I withdrew my motion.



      8          So we've got the matter out there and



      9     explained, and we'll be happy to tackle it at the



     10     next meeting.  I don't think there's any reason you



     11     can't ask questions or have some discussion,



     12     though, even though we don't have a motion on it,



     13     just for the sake of sort of unpacking what Brad



     14     shared with us.  So if anybody has anything, please



     15     feel free.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, I guess, I don't -- the



     17     thing that I would suggest would be that if we want



     18     this -- so if we proceeded with something like



     19     this, it seems that doing it in the form of an



     20     actual commission order as opposed to just, you



     21     know, a motion that gets reflected in the minutes



     22     would be good because, as we know, our orders are



     23     easier to find.  Well, I guess I don't know.  I



     24     don't look for them.  But I would hope that our



     25     orders would be easier to find rather than, you
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      1     know, a motion and a second in the text somewhere



      2     buried in however many pages of minutes there would



      3     be for whatever meeting it's approved in.



      4          So, I mean, conceptually I think it's



      5     something worth discussing.  I don't necessarily --



      6     I mean, I have to think about it some more.  I'm



      7     not sure of any objections overall to the concept



      8     of doing something like this, but I do think that



      9     it should be in the form of a formal order.  So



     10     that would be my suggestion, to the extent that's



     11     helpful, for when we do actually contemplate it.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes, that makes sense to me.



     13          Brad, does that make sense to tackle it that



     14     way at the next meeting?



     15          MR. KING:  Yes.  Once again in this meeting,



     16     Commissioner Wilson Overholt has read my mind in



     17     that, when we publish our campaign finance manual,



     18     we have included as an appendix two or three



     19     ongoing commission orders that deal with matters of



     20     policy like the one we're describing here.  And so



     21     having an order would be especially appropriate,



     22     considering those precedents, and it would be



     23     readily available to anyone who accesses our



     24     campaign finance manual.



     25          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I might add
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      1     on to Brad's comments.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, please.



      3          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And I believe this was sort of



      4     inferred in how he described the issue and the



      5     problem.  I would encourage the commission to



      6     consider a floor, so a not less than $100.  But my



      7     concern would be if there may be some committees



      8     who would walk in with a 500-page handwritten



      9     report and leave it with staff to file and enter



     10     because it's cheaper to pay the $100 penalty than



     11     to hire staff to do the data entry into the system.



     12          So as we craft the order internally to share



     13     with you to consider, I would encourage you to



     14     consider setting $100 as the minimum because, as



     15     the statute says, you may assess a fine if the



     16     individuals fail to file their reports



     17     electronically.  And much like we do for campaign



     18     finance, you can consider each individual instance



     19     of failure to file a report individually on its own



     20     and assess at least a $100 penalty for failure to



     21     file online.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And again, Brad, there were



     23     only two instances of this occurring?



     24          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I mean, I take your

�



                                                          125



      1     comments under advisement, Co-Director Nussmeyer.



      2     I think that makes sense too.  I get what we're



      3     trying to avoid here.



      4          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I would add, Mr. Chairman, the



      5     requirement to file electronically is not going



      6     away, and if you're passing an order to set a



      7     minimum level of a potential fine, then it still



      8     gives you, the commission, the ability to increase



      9     the amount if you think that's warranted.  If we



     10     find that it, in fact, took staff 12 hours to enter



     11     a report instead of zero hours, it gives you the



     12     flexibility to impose a greater fine.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right, and if you have



     14     repeat offenders and the like as well.  Okay.  So



     15     we'll tackle that in that manner at the next



     16     meeting.



     17          Is there anything else?  I think that's it.



     18     Correct, Brad?



     19          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  That is all



     20     that is on the agenda other than the motion to



     21     adjourn.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  And we'll need to



     23     have another meeting; correct?



     24          MR. KING:  Yes.  Mr. Chairman, there will need



     25     to be a subsequent meeting in the reasonably near
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      1     future because we did not bring all the campaign



      2     finance matters before you today to try to keep



      3     this to a manageable length of time and



      4     participants.  And we will --



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  How humane of you.  We



      6     appreciate that.



      7          MR. KING:  We are glad to make this task a



      8     comfortable one.  We also anticipate other matters



      9     coming up in the normal course of the election



     10     cycle, and so, yes, a meeting will probably be



     11     necessary for you to call in the reasonably near



     12     future.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Well, we'll prepare



     14     to do that.



     15          And, Suzannah, normally Vice Chairman Long



     16     would make a motion to adjourn.  Would you like to



     17     do that today?



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Sure, yes.  Mr. Chairman, I



     19     would move that we adjourn today's lovely meeting.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  Is there a



     21     second?



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  Great.  All



     24     those in favor say "aye."



     25          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.
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      1          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      2          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're adjourned.  Enjoy the



      4     rest of your week.



      5          MR. KING:  Thank you.  Likewise.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      7          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      8     Session was adjourned at 3:36 p.m.)
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA
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      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 1:03 p.m. and
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1 APPEARANCES 1 CHAL RVAN CKESC(N Do we have ever ybody?
2 INDIANA ELECTI ON COMM SSI ON: 2 MR KING VYes, we do. W& have actually three
3 Paul Gk - Chai . . .
X Sa”An hesonL a :,"B” . 3 proxies available. Stephanie Beckley, of course,
X thony Long - Vice ai rman .
) 4 is proxy for Zach Klutz. And then Annette
5 Annette Craycraft and Adam Di ckey . . .
Proxies for S. Anthony Long - Vice Chairman 5 Qaycraft is prgxy for Vice Chairman Long, who is
6 6 alsoabletojoinusonthecal. Andthen we have
Suzannah W/l son Overholt - Menber 7 AdamD ckey, who will be substituting for Annette
7 8 since she has a hard stop at 2:45 this afternoon.
St ephani e Beckl ey 9 CHAl RVAN CKESCN Ckay.
8 Proxy for Zachary E. Kiutz - Menber 10 MR KING And the other nenbers are all here.
o 11 CHAl RVAN CKESON Wt h you doi ng the
10 | NDI ANA ELECTI ON DI VI S| ON STAFF: . . ,
) 12 introductions, I'Il forego that and call the
11 Angela M Nussneyer - Co-Director 13 i d
12 J. Bradley King - Co-Director meeting to or _er'
13 Matthew Kochevar - Co- Counsel 14 | would like to note for the record that | see
14 Valerie Warycha - Co-Counsel 15 ny good friend Vice Chairman Long on, and | regret
15 16 to see himin a setting that 1'd rather he not be
16 ALSO PRESENT: Holli Sullivan - Secretary of State 17 in, but | hope he's doing well nonethel ess.
17 18 VICE CHA RVAN LONG | amdoing well, and it's
18 19 good to see you again, Paul. | wanted to sign on
19 .
20 20 totell everybody to have a good day and get things
o1 21 going and let's get this business of the State
22 22 taken care of.
23 23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Absol utely. 1 was hopi ng
24 24 that nmaybe we coul d get together in person, naybe
25 25 soon.
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1 VICE GHALRVAN LONG | hope so. 1 Secretary. | sawyou sitting there and was

2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Wt h that, the neeting is 2 reniniscent of your career, following it, being
3 called to order. The nenbers have been noted. | 3 fromsouthern Indiana and how successful you' ve
4 woul d al so acknow edge Go-Director Brad King and 4 been and been a bright spot for southern Indiana.

5 Co-Drector Nussmeyer. |s she on? 5 And | was so heartened when you were appointed to

6 MR KING Yes. 6 take the position that you're in now | |ook

7 MB. NUSSMEYER Yes, M. Chairman, | am | am| 7 forward to seeing your good service there.

8 at work and | don't have video with ny nonitors at 8 | appreciate very nuch your thanking ne and

9 work. 9 recognizing ne for ny years of service. It's been
10 CHAI RVAN CKESON | under st and. 10 areal treat, and | think the conmssion has, on
11 MB. NUSSMEYER So | haven't figured out 11 the whol e, been very successful over the years. |
12 technology to plug in a picture, so here we are, 12 think that two Denocrats and two Republicans
13 blank screen. 13 working side by side has been generally a
14 CHAIRVAN CKESCN 1'd al so i ke to obviously 14 successful mx for Indiana, naybe sonething they
15 acknow edge our Secretary of State, M. Sullivan. 15 could send sone of the people in Véshington down to
16 Good to see you, ma'am 16  see how we' ve done things.

17 SECRETARY CF STATE SULLIVAN  Thank you. @ood | 17 SECRETARY CF STATE SULLI VAN Amen, yes.

18 to see you. 18 VICE CHAI RVAN LONG  Yeah, we can di sagree,

19 CHA RVAN CKESON And do | under stand, Brad, 19 but we've rarely, rarely ever been disagreeable in

20 that the secretary will have sorme comments? 20 the 24 years that |'ve been there, and it's been a

21 MR KING VYes, M. Chairnan. There is an 21 real pleasure. And thank you for being here today.

22 opportunity for the secretary to make conments. 22 And | appreciate your kind words.

23 SECRETARY CF STATE SULLI VAN  Thank you, both. |23 SECRETARY CF STATE SULLI VAN  Absol utely. And

24 | appreciate that. Thank you for letting me join 24 | hope you're feeling better soon. Thank you.

25 you this afternoon. 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you, NMadam Secretary.
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1 And | especially just wanted to say thank you 1 lronically, Anthony, | just got out of the car from

2 to Mathony Long. | knowyou're not in the setting 2 Bvansville nyself. [I've spent the better part of
3 that you wanted to be for this particul ar neeting, 3 this week down there with sone mutual friends of
4 but | wanted to take a chance today to say thank 4 yours who both work in @bson County, and your nane

5 you for your 24 years of dedication and public 5 was invoked with highest regard a nunber of

6 service. It actually remnds me of ny predecessor, | 6 occasions during those discussions. And | hope

7 Conni e Lawson, 32 years serving this great state. 7 during ny next visit down there | nmight get a

8 But yours is extra special because the conm ssion 8 chance to stop by and see you.

9 actually has only been in place for 26 years and 9 MICE HARVWN LONG | look forward to that.
10 you have served diligently for 24 of those, so | 10 CHA RVAN CKESON And it's been an honor to
11  just wanted to say thank you. 11  serve alongside you and to work very cooperatively
12 | also wanted to share ny appreciation for 12 through a very chall enging year for ne, for all of
13 having anot her voi ce from southwest |ndiana so 13 us really, but inny early tenure as chairman of
14  prevalent in the process. | think that's extremely |14 the conmission. And, quite frankly, | coul dn't
15 inportant and very proud to have you fromour part |15 inagine going through any of that wth anyone el se
16 of the state. | can't even inagine the nunber of 16 on the other side of the aisle other than you, and
17 niles that you ve logged from4l to 70 up to Indy 17 | really appreciate that. And | appreciate your
18 and now, in the nost recent years, along 1-69 that |18 friendship and our mutual respect for one anot her
19 we're all so thankful to have in place. 19 and will certainly mss seeing you at these
20 But | just wanted to say thank you for your 20 neetings moving forward.

21 steadfast work and everything that you' ve poured 21 | know your friends here on the comission

22 into the conmssion. You will be nmissed, but I 22  woul d al so nmaybe like to offer some personal

23 know that you have much to | ook forward to after 23  remarks. I'Il turn the m crophone over to

24 your July 1st retirement. So thank you very much. |24  Conmissioner WIson Overholt, who | know woul d |ike
25 VI CE CHAL RMAN LONG ~ Thank you, NMadam 25 to say sone things as well.
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1 MB. OVERHLT: Thank you, M. Chairman. And, 1 was proud to be a part of that with you. And
2 sorry, | got alittle teary hearing that. | wasn't | 2 you've been a good chairman, a great chairman, and
3 expecting that, so | apologize. |'musually pretty | 3 | wishyou well inthe future and do | ook forward
4 well conposed. 4 to seeing you when you get down here.
5 But, Anthony, it's just been an honor. | 5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. No. | appreciate
6 nmean, serving this comission has been an honor, 6 that and your leadership. And | think it goes for
7 but it's been an honor to serve alongside of you on| 7 the entire conmssion as a whole, we regrettably
8 the conmssion. You' ve been a great teacher, great | 8 watch the news at night and see the coverage of the
9 leader interns of ny indoctrination to the 9 political landscape around us. | find working with
10 commission and the workings of the conm ssion. 10 all of us on this conmssion to be hopeful Iy
11 I've already been on longer -- | guess it's been 11 inspirational to how people ought to conport
12 quite a while, nine years, | guess, already for me, |12 thensel ves.
13  which is kind of surprising. But 1've enjoyed it, |13 And certainly your presence and your
14 and | wish you well, and hopefully we'll be able to |14 |eadership on the comm ssion has been exceptional .
15 live up to your expectations as we proceed into the |15 And | hope, to the extent we get viewers, | know we
16 future. 16 got alittle bit of notoriety spring of |ast year
17 So thanks and | hope you enjoy your 17 that maybe we got sone additional viewers out of
18 commssion-free tinme, the newfound free tine that |18 it, got to see that firsthand and w tness your
19 you'll have. 19 leadership. And | really appreciate having you on
20 VICE CHAL RVAN LONG ~ Suzannah, you have done a |20 the commi ssi on.
21  superb job on the conmission. | have always really |21 VICE CHAL RVAN LONG  Thank you, Paul. By the
22 sort of envied your |evel headed, steadfast 22 way, | just want to say that there may cone a point
23  dedication to research and thinking through the 23 I'Il drop off here at some point, but it's not
24 issues. You're as thorough as anybody that |'ve 24 because of lack of interest. There are limts to
25 ever served with on the conm ssion and on knowi ng 25 ny stanmina as we are sitting here today, and so if
Page 10 Page 12
1 the issues and articulating your position on them 1 | do drop off, don't think anything of it. It's
2 You've done a superb job, and |'ve been real ly 2 just | probably decided | need to take a nap, not
3  honored to serve with you. 3 that you all put ne to sleep.
4 MB. OVERHQLT: Thank you. 4 CHA RVAN CKESON Vel T, | try ny best. But
5 CHAI RVAN CKESON Vi ce Chai rman, woul d you 5 understand. Thank you. It's good to see you.
6 care to make any further remarks or comments? 6 Ckay. W'l get into the business here. |
7 VICE GHARVAN LONG (nly to say that, Paul, 7 didintend to note that -- to recognize the court
8 we've had really -- | agree with what you said 8 reporter fromSewart R chardson, Maria Collier.
9 earlier -- a close working rel ationship, and I've 9 And as we get into the neeting, actually,
10 always believed that we coul d get along and get 10 Valerie, if you wouldn't mnd maybe goi ng over the
11  nore done by tal king and working together, find the | 11  hand-rai se motion on the Zoomfor folks as we get
12 common grounds that we coul d work on, accentuate 12 into this so that we nake sure we're getting the
13 that, and just do the work to be done. 13 record right.
14 | thought maybe one of the nost outstanding 14 MB. WARYCHA:  Yes, sure. M nane is Valerie
15 things we did was during the primary in 2020 when 15 \Wrycha. |'mthe co-general counsel for the
16 we were facing the pandemic and no one, not one of |16 Indiana Hection D vision.
17 us, had faced anything like it in our lives in this |17 And as everyone has just discussed, we had
18 country or anywhere, to ny know edge. And | 18 sone issues |ast year, so we're going to try to
19  thought the acconmodations that we nade, while it 19 control this nmeeting and who can speak and who can
20 took along time and it took lots of discussions 20 show a screen and that sort of thing. And so what
21 and conprom ses and agreenents and tal ks and j ust 21 we are going to dois, as we go through, there's
22 willingness to work together, that we -- | think 22 going to be a utilization of the hand-raise
23 the primary of 2020 was one of the nost outstanding |23 feature. And so when the chairnan gives the option
24 achievenents that | think that as a conm ssion 24 to take a settlenment agreenent or take the deal, so
25 we've done in the years that 1've been there, and | |25 to speak, you will have the opportunity to raise
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Page 15

1 your hand if that is of interest to you. 1 CHAl RVAN CKESON Ckay.  Thank you.

2 And then, after we get through that, there 2 Let's go ahead and nove to the approval of

3 wll be aportion where, if you would like to state | 3 our -- is it February 25th -- is that right? --

4 your case to the commssion and provide testinony, 4 2021 neeting minutes. | recognize the co-directors

5 we wll once again ask you to raise your hand. | 5 to present the mnutes.

6 wll gothrough and identify in both of those 6 MR KING M. Chairman, Brad King. n behal f

7 instances when sonmeone has a hand rai sed so we can 7 of nyself and Co-Director Nussneyer, nenbers have

8 docunent for the record who would like to take the 8 received copies of the mnutes of the February 25,

9 deal and then who would like to make a 9 2021, Hection Conm ssion neeting, and we present

10 presentation. 10 themto you wth our recomwendation for your

11 And in order to kind of give people sone tinme, |11 approval.

12 whenever we raise our hand that you would like to 12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank  you.

13 nmake a presentation, | will say, for exanple, "Joe |13 I's there a motion to approve?

14 Snith will give his presentation now, and then Bob |14 MB. BECKLEY: So noved.

15 Smthis on deck," totry to give everyone a little |15 M. CRAYCRAFT:  So noved.

16 tinme to find the docunents. And | understand that |16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN  Second?

17 this mght be a little clunky, so, comm ssion 17 M. BECKLEY: |'Il second.

18 nmenbers, if you get lost finding docunents, please |18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?

19 let us know The canpaign finance staff is on and |19 Hearing none, all those in favor say "aye."

20 available to help you identify where that docunent |20 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.

21 is you need to see. 21 MB. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.

22 And then for those of you on the line, if for |22 M. BECKLEY: Aye.

23 sone reason you cannot raise your hand and you are |23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN The "ayes" have it and the

24 not recogni zed and you feel that we've mssed you 24 notion is approved.

25 in sone way, at the very, very end, we wll open 25 Can | get consent fromthe comm ssion nenbers
Page 14 Page 16

1 the phone lines. And there is phone call-in 1 for the Hection Dvisionto sign the ninutes with

2 information in the Zoomlink that we've got posted 2 our stanps?

3 online. And so we'll give one last, final call for | 3 M. OVERHOLT: (onsent.

4 youto say that "I wasn't able to raise ny hand to | 4 MB. BECKLEY: (onsent.

5 take the deal" or "I'd like to make ny case.” 5 CHAl RVAN CKESON Thank  you.

6 W& will nake every acconmodation possible to 6 Moving on, we'll go to the admnistration of

7 try to make sure that everyone has a chance to be 7 the oath. Any person who plans to testify during

8 heard. And | will put ny email out there as well. 8 the neeting today on any matter, including

9 Inthe instance that you are really struggling, | 9 candidate chall enges and canpaign finance natters,

10 wll be nonitoring ny emails. Feel free to email 10 please respond with an "I do" upon the reading of

11 e, and | will try to help you al ong as nuch as | 11 the oath. Wien you are unmuted for your

12 can. M enail is vawarycha@ec.in.gov. And | 12 presentation, we will ask that you confirmat that

13 realize ny last name is a nouthful, so |'malso 13 tinme that you have taken the oath.

14 under the Contacts in in.gov/sos, and under 14 And | recogni ze Go- Counsel Kochevar to

15 Hection Division, Contact Us, you can find ny 15 admnister the oath.

16 enail address there and I'Il be happy to help you. |16 MR KOOHEVAR  Thank you, M. Chairnan.

17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you, Val erie. 17 Those who plan to testify today before the

18 Wth that, | recogni zed we needed to confirm |18 Indiana B ection Conm ssion, please say "I do"

19 conpliance with the Qpen Door Law, so I'Il back up |19 after the recitation of the oath. Do you sol ermly

20 real quick and request that Co-Directors King and 20 swear or affirmunder the penalties of perjury that

21 Nussneyer do so confirmthat we have done that. 21 the testinony you are about to give to the Indiana

22 MR KING M. Chairman, Brad King. On behalf |22 Hection Coomission is the truth, the whole truth,

23 of nyself and Co-Drector Nussmeyer, | confirmthat |23 and nothing but the truth. M ease say "I do."

24 this conm ssion neeting has been properly noticed 24 MB. WARYCHA: M. Chairnan, we won't be able

25 as required under the Cpen Door Law 25 to hear themsay "I do." Before everyone woul d
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1 give testinony, we'll have themconfirmthat they 1 proposed fine, plus mailing costs. |If thisis the
2 did say the oath. 2 comittee's second violation, the arrangenent is
3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. Al right. That's 3 for the comittee to agree to pay 50 percent of the
4 good to know 4 proposed fine, plus mailing costs. If thisis the
5 Let's go to the ratification of canpaign 5 comittee's third violation, the comittee woul d
6 finance agreenents. | recognize the staff, 6 agree to pay 75 percent of the proposed viol ation,
7 M. Taylor, Ms. Thonpson, to present the 7 plus mailing costs. For purposes of this
8 information concerning several canpaign finance 8 arrangenent, a previous settlenent agreenent
9 settlenent agreenents entered into on behalf of the | 9 entered into by the coomittee will be counted as
10  conmi ssi on. 10 one violation. Likewse, if nmore than one alleged
11 M5. THOWPSCN M. Chairnan -- Mchell e 11 violation occurred on the sane cal endar day, that
12 Thonpson here -- and nenbers of the commssion, you | 12 group of violations shall be al so counted as one
13 have a sheet of paper that says "Settlenent 13 violation.
14  Agreenents” at the top. It's an attachnent to an 14 I's there a second to this proposed notion?
15 email that you received, and thisis a list of 15 M5. CRAYCRAFT: I'Il second it.
16 conmittees to ratify that have agreed to pay the 16 M. BECKLEY: Second.
17 settlenent agreenent and waive a hearing. 17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?
18 CHA RVAN CKESON |'s there a notion to ratify |18 Hearing none, all those in favor of the notion
19 the canpaign finance settlement agreenents as 19 signify by "aye."
20 presented? 20 M. OVERHOLT: Aye.
21 M5. BECKLEY: So noved. 21 M. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.
22 MB. CRAYCRAFT: |I'll second. 22 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
23 CHAl RVAN CKESON Any  di scussi on? 23 CHAl RVAN CKESON The "ayes" have it.
24 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by 24 Before this nmeeting, canpaign finance staff at
25 Maye." 25 the Hection Division sent a letter to each

Page 18 Page 20
1 M. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye. 1 comittee which would be eligible to accept this
2 MB. BECKLEY: Aye. 2 proposed reduced penalty offering the coomittee the
3 M5, OERHOLT:  Aye. 3 opportunity to indicate the coonmttee's wllingness
4 CHA RVAN CKESON Hear i ng none opposed, the 4 to accept such an agreenent to do so, subject to an
5 "ayes" have it, and the notion to ratify the 5 approval of this procedure by the comission, and
6 agreenents is adopted. 6 return that signed agreement to the Hection
7 Movi ng on, so we do have people present today? | 7 Dvision so that if the commssion did choose to
8 M5, WARYCHA:  Yes. 8 adopt this procedure at today's meeting, the
9 CHA RVAN CKESON So we' Il go over the 9 agreenent could be ratified by the cormission and a
10 opportunity to accept a reduced penalty before 10  reduced penal ty inposed without further
11  proceeding with the enforcenent actions. W have 11 presentation of evidence by the cormittee.
12 customarily given any conmittee present a final 12 Now that the conmi ssion has adopted the
13 opportunity to pay a reduced civil penalty by 13 procedures, | will recognize M. Taylor and
14 waiving the right to present evidence and arguments |14 M. Thonpson of the Eection Division to provide
15 to the conm ssion. 15 the comrmission with a list of conmttees that have
16 Cf course, any committee is welcone to present |16 executed and filed these docunents and enter the
17 any evidence or argunents for the proposed penalty |17 signed docunents subnitted by each conmittee into
18 to be waived or reduced, but this has been an 18 the record.
19 opportunity for those who want to waive any 19 If there are any comittees present that woul d
20 presentation and accept the reduced penalty without |20 Iike to take this deal that have not already
21 naking any argument or presentation. 21 subnitted the paperwork, please wite your name and
22 So therefore, | nove the adoption of the 22 cause nunber in the chat box -- well, | guess we're
23 following arrangenents: |If thisis the coomttee's |23 not doing that, are we, Valerie?
24 first violation, the arrangement is for the 24 MB. WARYCHA:  Yeah. (nhce we got here, we
25 comittee to agree to pay 25 percent of the 25 realized that wasn't going to work.
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1 So if you would like to take this plea deal, 1 CHAl RVAN CKESON — Ckay.
2 please raise your hand now Wile canpaign finance | 2 MB. THOWSCN M. Chairnan, Mchelle
3 staff lists who they have, you' |l have an 3 Thonpson. You al so have a packet of the letters.
4 opportunity to raise your hand, and then I'll 4 Wat was it listed as?
5 recogni ze who | see as raising their hands. 5 MB. TAYLCR It was letters -- it was a PDF
6 So, Abbey, Mchelle, I'lIl turnit over to you 6 labeled "Hearing Letters.”
7 for anyone you've already had accept a deal . 7 CHARVAN CKESCN Did | get that fromJoe or
8 CHA RVAN CKESON So we' || Tet Abbey and 8 Brad? Wo sent it?
9 Mchelle get going, and then people can raise their | 9 M5. TALCR (ne of themshoul d have sent it
10 hands and kind of get in the queue. 10 to you yesterday afternoon. |'mnot sure --
11 MB. WARYCHA:  Yes, pl ease. 11 MB. WARYCHA: | believe it was Brad you woul d
12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. @0 ahead. 12  have received that from M. Chairnman.
13 MB. TAYLCR Ckay. Vell, that was not what 13 M KING Rght. It would have been part of
14 our -- this is Abbey Taylor. Yes, | took the oath. |14 an enmail that contained several attachments from
15 That was not what our letter said at all. V¢ had a |15 canpaign finance staff.
16 different agreenent on what we sent. 16 M5. WARYCHA: 1"l resend it to you nowto get
17 W did receive 13 letters. Do you want us to |17 it at the top of your in-box, if that is helpful.
18 go through those commttees that sent letters 18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | think |'ve got it here.
19 pleading their case? 19 I'musing ny conputer for the Zoom--
20 M5. WARYCHA:  Abbey, are those letters people |20 M5, WARYCHA: | know
21 who want to take the deal ? 21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN -- so |'m 1 ooki ng at these
22 MB. TAYLCR There was no deal offered to 22 on ny phone. PDF |etters?
23 anyone, so |'mnot sure what that -- the letter did |23 M5, THOWPSON  Yes.
24 not offer a deal. 24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN 47 pages.
25 MB. NUSSMEYER Valerie, if you recall, the 25 M. THOWPSON  Yes.

Page 22 Page 24
1 letter was nodified because we, as co-directors, 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. | see it.
2 don't have the authority to offer a plea agreenent 2 (kay. So where do we go from here?
3 tocomittees, and instead we asked conmittees to 3 M5. TAYLCR | was going to say, what's the
4 offer witten testinony to ask for a reduction or 4 best way to handl e these?
5 waiver so that the comm ssion thensel ves could make | 5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Brad or Val, you want to --
6 the deternination about how they wanted to nanage 6 M5. WARYCHA:  Yeah. ['mpulling up the letter
7 those letters. That was ny understanding of the 7 right now
8 letter. 8 MR KOOHEVAR M. Chairman, if | may.
9 CHA RVAN CKESON Brad, | thought we deal t 9 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Sure.
10 wththis via sone enail commnication. Did that 10 MR KOOHEVAR M suggestion would be is that
11 not happen? 11 we treat this as close to as if we were meeting in
12 MR KING M. Chairman, yes, we did discuss 12 person. That woul d be that the canpaign finance
13 thisin a series of enails that Co-Director 13  committee staff bring up the comittee name; go
14 Nussneyer has alluded to as well. A this point, | |14 through the standard information that they give
15 understand that the comm ssion has received 13 15  you, why they' re here before the commi ssion, what
16 responses to a letter that may have a different 16  cause nunbers that we're dealing with today; and
17 content than what we just described. And so | 17  then go through basically the contents of the
18 think it mght be nost efficient if we could get 18 letter, especially indicating if they have
19 canpaign finance staff to indicate what, in fact, 19 requested either a reduced penalty or a waiver.
20 the letter sent to the coomttees did indicate and |20 After that information is presented, | then
21 what the individuals who returned -- signed the 21 think it would be in order for any one of the
22 docunent and returned it did agree to. 22 commssion nenbers to nake a recomendation on if
23 So if either Mchelle or Abbey coul d address 23 they want to provide a reduced penalty or waive
24 what was in the actual letter that was sent and 24 that penalty, whatever notion they want upon the
25 what was received, that mght be hel pful. 25 floor, or suggestion.
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1 That's what | would suggest to all of you. O | 1 2021
2 course, | defer to Co-Drector Nussneyer, the 2 "Due to the virtual nature of this neeting,
3 canpaign finance staff, Brad, and Valerie as well. 3 the commission is giving conmittees a one-tine
4 MB. OERHQLT: If | might, M. Chairman, | 4 opportunity to file witten testinony to request
5 feel that in reading what's been provided to us in 5 for a waiver or reduction of the proposed civil
6 this packet, | feel like it would be hel pful if we 6 penalty instead of attending the Thursday June 24,
7 knew-- |'massuming there was a cover letter that 7 2021, neeting to state your case in person
8 went out with this. I'mlooking at -- |ooks |ike 8 virtually. The Indiana Hection Comm ssion will
9 it was aformthat was sent to these committees. 9 reviewthe witten or oral testimony provided by
10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. 10 the commttee and consider pertinent information to
11 M5, OVERHOLT: And |'massuming there was a 11 determne if a waiver or reduction of the proposed
12 cover letter. Soif we could have a little nore 12 fine is warranted.
13 context to know what was represented to these 13 "The bi partisan comm ssion nust unani mously
14  committees and -- 14 agree to waive or reduce any canpaign finance fine
15 CHAI RVAN CKESCN What they responded to. 15 pursuant to state law The comm ssion nust neet
16 M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah, exactly. 16 again to have heard the final orders generated by
17 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. Can we read that into |17 this hearing. The conmittee may email the canpai gn
18 the record or have it sent to us while we're 18 finance staff to inquire about any proposed wai ver
19 sitting here? Wat nakes the nost sense. 19  or reduction of the fine. The Hection Division
20 M5. WARYCHA:  Mchel | e, Abbey, do either of 20 staff cannot advise you about your particul ar case
21 you have a copy right there in front of you that 21  before the commssion."
22 you coul d read? 22 CHAl RVAN CKESON |I's that the entirety of the
23 MB. TAYLCR Ckay. |'ve got it. 23 letter?
24 “"To (Conmmittee Nane), From The Indiana 24 MB. TAYLCR "If your committee woul d prefer
25 Hection Dvision, Re: Indiana Hection Conmission |25 to file witten testinmony to request a waiver or
Page 26 Page 28
1 Canpai gn Finance Hearing and Request for Véiver or 1 reduction of the proposed penalty rather than
2 Reduction of Proposed Penalty. 2 attend the neeting, please submt the follow ng not
3 "The Indiana B ection Coomission is neeting on | 3 later than noon Mnday, June 21st: The committee
4 Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 1:00 p.m Indianapolis 4 nane, cause nunber, treasurer's nane, request for a
5 tine, to reviewalleged canpaign finance 5 full waiver or reduction, and an expl anation for
6 violations. You are receiving this letter because 6 filing a delinquent report."
7 your committee may have a canpaign finance 7 That's it.
8 violation. 8 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Ckay.
9 "Due to QO D19, the neeting will be virtual 9 MB. WARYCHA: So, Abbey and Mchell e, could
10 using Zoom Infornation to access the Zoomneeting | 10 you kind of handhol d the comm ssion through the
11  wll be published on this web page: 11 letter and what each canpaign is alleged, their
12 W i n. gov/ sos/ el ections/ el ecti on- conmi ssi on t he 12 violation, and what they're asking for to close out
13 day prior to the meeting. The link to attend the 13 the nmatter.
14 nmeeting will not be published until the day prior 14 MB. THOWSON Sure. You want us to do it by
15 due to security concerns. 15 each --
16 “You may virtually attend" -- oh, no, | |ost 16 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. | think Co- Counsel
17 the place. "You may virtually attend the online 17 Kochevar's direction there seens sufficient to ne
18 neeting on Thursday, June 24, 2021. During this 18 and a good idea. The first one | see that's
19 neeting, you will be given the opportunity to 19 listed, what | see is the Unhgethi em canpaign, but I
20 present evidence and argunents to the conm ssion 20 don't -- whatever order you want to start inis
21 regarding your alleged violation. Any coomittee is |21 fine with ne.
22 wel cone to present evidence and argunents for the 22 MB. TAYLCR The first one on the -- well, the
23 proposed penalty to be waived. If you are unable 23 letter should be Hggs for State Representative
24 to attend, you may ask for a continuance in witing |24 Committee.
25 with the Hection Dvision by Mnday, June 21, 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ch, yeah. Sorry. You're
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1 right. | was down a page. 1 requesting a waiver or reduction.”
2 MB. TAYLCR It's on the front of the 2 MB. WARYCHA:  Yeah. He's not on the call. |
3 spreadsheet at the bottom This is Hggs for State | 3 just wanted to give himthe opportunity to chine in
4 Representative Conmttee, Cause No. 2021-7405- 2. 4 if hewas. | don't see him
5 Thisis his first delinquency, and it's a proposed 5 MB. OERHALT: Weéll, M. Chairman, if | could
6 civil penalty of $350 and a mail cost of 55 cents. 6 interject, it seens to ne that so the letter these
7 Hsletter just says he didn't know that there were | 7 folks received -- | guess the process that Brad
8 any filings required. 8 just recited confuses ne a little bit, and Angie
9 CHAIRVAN CKESON So | guess this goes to 9 agreed withit. But this letter that they received
10 co-directors and co-counsel. | guess where I'ma 10 | thought was inviting themto fill out these forns
11 little bit lost or confused, so we've read through |11 and subnit themin lieu of appearing at the
12 the procedures here where you can take a reduced 12 hearing. So | think -- | nean, | guess we can
13 penalty. | nean, are these folks here to provide 13 check to see if any of these people are here, but
14 any comments or responses or are we just makinga |14 if | were them | would be under the belief that,
15 presunption that we're giving thema first-tine 15 if | submtted this form that | don't need to
16 violation reduction in penalty? |'mnot really 16 appear at the hearing; |'ve already said what |'m
17  sure where we're going here. 17 going to say with respect to ny case.
18 MR KING M. Chairman, this is Brad King. | |18 So whether -- | nean, | guess, again, we can
19 think there are several different paths the 19  doubl e check because sone peopl e nmight, out of an
20 commission can take. |f | understand fromstaff, 20 abundance of caution, send in the formand appear
21  there are approxinately 30 to 40 indivi dual 21 at the hearing. But it doesn't seemto ne that it
22 committees that subnitted letters that were 22 shoul d make any difference of -- well, let me put
23 included in the packet that you're referring to 23 it this way: | guess if they're here, then, yes, |
24 that starts with the Hggs commttee. And | think, |24 guess, that would nmake a difference in terns of how
25 under the circunstances, the best way to nove 25 we treat this form but | don't think we sonehow
Page 30 Page 32
1 forward is not as a group, but wal king down the 1 kind of hold it against themthat they're not
2 list, seeing if a representative fromthe coomttee | 2 participating in the hearing today.
3 raises their hand and w shes to speak, and then 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Because they' ve gotten the
4 have the commi ssion consider the argunents nmade and | 4 letter, yeah.
5 then nmake any decision regarding that enforcenent 5 M5. OVERHOLT: R ght, because they sent in the
6 action and proceed down the list of letters in the 6 form
7 order that they are in your packet. 7 MR KING M. Chairnan?
8 And I'll defer to ny counterpart if she has 8 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. o ahead, Brad.
9 additional or other ideas. 9 MR KING If | couldinterject, | think
10 CHAI RVAN CKESON Qo-Director Nussneyer ? 10 canpaign finance staff woul d al so be hel pful if
11 M5. NUSSMEYER | woul d agree with that 11  they woul d identify whether this and the other
12 assessment, M. Chairman. | think that's an 12 commttees have had any previous violations.
13 appropriate path to take here. And it would be up |13 MB. OERHOLT: Right. | nean, yes, | think we
14 to you to decide whether or not you think the plea |14 need to go through that, but | think it's -- |
15 agreenent is warranted, the 25, 50, 75 percent 15 nean, | think we look at the letter. W¢ see that
16 stair-step, or if you want to fully waive the fine |16 Hggs for Sate Representative Coomittee submtted
17 or if you want to reduce it in a manner that's not |17 aform V@ ook themup in the binder -- well, the
18 the 25, 50, 75 stair-step. 18 so-called binder -- see how many viol ations they' ve
19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, so, for exanple -- 19 had. And, you know, in this case he's asking for a
20 and, Suzannah, junp in at any tinme. Wat | read on |20 waiver or a reduction.
21 this Hggs letter at the bottomin handwiting -- 21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Right .
22 MB. WARYCHA: Let ne take a norment. |Is 22 MB. OERHOLT: So | think that's giving us the
23 M. Hggs onthecall? If heis, would you raise 23 latitude to do --
24 your hand. 24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | npose what ever we want to
25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Because it says "I'm 25 inpose, yeah. So we will probably, then, need to
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1 go one by one; correct? 1 And, Dennis, you will be unmuted here in just
2 MB. OVERHOLT: | woul d think so. 2 asecond. You are. @ ahead.
3 MB. WARYCHA:  And just to get people off the 3 MR TEDRON Can you guys hear me?
4 roomwho want to take the deal, would you -- | see 4 M5. WARYCHA:  VYes.
5 Dennis Tedrow for Local |ndiana has al ready raised 5 CHAI RVAN CKESONE Yes.
6 his hand, wants to take the deal. Just with 6 MR TEDRON Yeah. This is Dennis Tedrow from
7 respect to those, as we figure this out, as | said, 7 Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana. | would [ike to
8 it is kind of clunky, but do you want to go ahead 8 plead guilty. This is ny second offense. | am
9 and raise your hand, anyone who i s here who woul d 9 under the inpression that it is a $500 fine, and |
10 like to take the deal, so we can clear you out and |10 amokay with paying that.
11  you don't have to stay. 11 CHAI RVAN CKESON (kay.  So what | hear from
12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. That's a great point. |12 that is we're still in the procedural rules where
13 So we'll give a mnute here or so for people to 13 he can take the second viol ation reduction;
14  make sone sort of digital acknow edgnent. 14  correct? That's what we're |ooking at; right,
15 M5. WARYCHA:  Sure. So the first person | see |15 Brad?
16 is Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana, and | et ne make | 16 M KING Yes, M. Chairnan, that's correct.
17 sure. W've identified your PAC 17 You can do this a couple of different ways, but one
18 Abbey, Mchelle, do you see which one that 18 way is to sinply nake a notion to inpose the $500
19 goes to? 19 fine against the conmittee in this case.
20 M5. THOWPSCN Yes. That's on page -- yes, 20 CHAIRVAN CKESON |'s that what it woul d be
21 page 44. 21 with the reduction?
22 MB. WARYCHA:  The next person | see raising 22 M5. TAYLCR  Yes.
23 their hand is Nki Goves. Haley, could you unmute |23 CHAl RVAN CKESON And what ' s the canpai gn
24  Nki for a noment so we can see who N ki is 24 again? |It's Tedrow?
25 representing. 25 MR TEDRON Dennis Tedrow for Local |ndiana.
Page 34 Page 36
1 N ki -- 1 MB. OVERHOLT: It's on page 44 of the
2 Ms. OVERHOLT: Wait, shouldn't we take these 2 spreadsheet .
3 oneat atinethe same way -- if we werein the 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you.
4 hearing room someone would cone up to the front of | 4 Ckay. Sois there -- | guess we're going to
5 the room we'd say do you want to take the deal, 5 take a notion and vote on this; correct, Brad?
6 the staff would recite the facts, we woul d deci de 6 MR KING Yes, M. Chairman, you certainly
7 what they're eligible for, we'd make the 7 can do that.
8 deternmnation, and nove on to the next person. It 8 CHA RVAN CKESON Are we going to do that for
9 seens |ike we should do that instead of -- having a| 9 each one?
10 laundry list of people who are waiting is going to |10 MR KING | would suggest, for efficiency,
11 slowit down too, so can we just take themin the 11 that it probably is the best way.
12 order that you' re seeing, take themone at a time 12 CHA RVAN CKESON Ckay. So is there a notion
13 inthe order that they're being seen? 13 to accept the penalty for Tedrow?
14 MB. WARYCHA:  Yes, yes. That woul d be fine. 14 M. BECKLEY: So noved.
15 Thank you. This is actually ny first canpaign 15 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So noved.
16  finance hearing, so bear with ne. 16 s there a second?
17 CHA RVAN CKESON Wl |, and to Suzannah's 17 M. OVERHOLT: Second.
18 point, | think you' ve got to back up and start over |18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?
19 because we don't know -- Dennis Tedrow, we don't 19 MR TEDRON | have a question.
20 knowif thisis afirst or a second. | think we 20 CHA RVAN CKESON Sure. (o ahead, M. Tedrow
21 need to go through that and understand what the 21 MR TEDRON After this, so | have to wait
22 reduction is; correct? 22 until the end of the Zoomneeting or can | just go
23 MB. OVERHOLT: Right. 23 ahead and | eave the call?
24 MB. WARYCHA:  Ckay. Haley, can you unmite 24 CHAIRVAN CKESCN No. You' Il be able to
25 Dennis for ne, please. 25 depart after we finish.
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1 MR TEDRON Ckay. Sorry. | have to work is 1 whichwll bein your letter packet, and it was the
2 al. 2 fifth letter in there.
3 CHAL RVAN CKESON No, no. | under st and. 3 CHAL RVAN CKESON Who is the letter fronP
4 | mean, there is nothing else for himto do; 4 MR HARLON M.
5 correct, Valerie? 5 MB. THOWSCN At the top it's Indiana -- or
6 MB. WARYCHA:  I'mnot aware of anything el se. 6 Builders Association of HKkhart Gounty.
7 Canpai gn finance staff, do you need anything 7 MR HARLON And that's ny signature at the
8 else? 8 bottom sir.
9 MB. TAYLCR Nope. As soon as we're done, you | 9 CHA RVAN CKESON I'mnot -- what page is the
10 can hang up. 10 letter on? I'mnot seeingit.
11 MB. WARYCHA:  Perfect. Thank you. 11 MR HARLON | do have a copy | could send
12 CHAIRVAN CKESON Al right.  So we have a 12 you.
13 motion and a second. Hearing no further 13 MB. THOWPSON At the top, would it help, we
14 discussion, all those in favor signify by "aye." 14 have the cause nunber witten at the top,
15 M. OVERHOLT: Aye. 15 2021-5251- 20.
16 MB. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye. 16 MB. O/ERHOLT: Wéll, it's hard to search a
17 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 17 PDF. \¢'ve got a 47-page PDF.
18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Heari ng none opposed, the 18 CHAl RVAN CKESCN Yeah.
19 notion is adopt ed. 19 MB. TAYLCR It shoul d be around page 33.
20 Next ? 20 CHA RVAN CKESON That ' s hel pful .
21 MB. WARYCHA:  The next one we have is N ki 21 MB. TAYLCR Page 33, go after that. [|'m
22 Qoves. Hiley, if you could unmute Nki. 22 sorry.
23 And then N ki, please state your name and what | 23 CHAl RVAN CKESON There we go.  Ckay.
24  comittee you're wth. 24 MB. TAYLCR Next tinme |'ll do separate
25 THE MDERATCR  And, N ki, you'll want to hit |25 attachments. Lesson | earned.
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1 the unmute button on your devi ce. 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN That's okay. Just need to
2 MR HARLON Didit work? 2 know howto get toit. Thank you.
3 M KING Yes. 3 M5, OVERHQLT:  Yeah.
4 MR HARLON od. |'mnot very 4 MB. TALCR Ddwe findit?
5 technol ogically sound, nor aml Nki. [|'mAndy 5 M5, OVERHOLT:  Yes.
6 Harlow the treasurer of the Hkhart Builders 6 CHAl RVAN CKESON— Ckay.
7 Association, and | will be the first one to adnit 7 MB. OVERHOLT: So the other thing is, right
8 that we have had violations in the past. In fact, 8 nowwe're just supposed to be considering fol ks who
9 | have been down in Indianapolis four or five years | 9 want to take the deal; right? And what |'m hearing
10 ago swearing that | woul d never be on one of these |10 is that this canpaign -- this conmttee doesn't
11 calls ever again, and | guess |'ma liar. 11  want to take the deal. They want to try to have
12 W& had the formdated January 21st that we 12 further discussions.
13 sent in, and for whatever reason, it wasn't 13 G RVAN CKESON N
14 processed, which I'mwlling to accept the bl ame 14 MR HARLON The letter really didn't offer us
15 for. I'mjust wondering if we can have some sort 15 adeal, so | don't know exactly what we're asking
16  of dispensation as far as a snaller fine. ¢ are 16 for.
17 al so pleading sone formof guilty. 17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. H s opening sentence
18 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Wi ch - - 18 does say to request a waiver or reduction of
19 MB. TALCR M. Chairnan, nenbers of the 19  proposed penalty. How many violations is this?
20 commission, this is on page 12. This is the 20 MB. TALCR This is their fifth time before
21 Builders Association of Hkhart Gounty, Cause 21  the commi ssi on.
22  No. 2021-5251-20. They have been before the board |22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Fi ve?
23 two other times and paid two settlenment agreenents. |23 MB. TAYLCR Two other tines they were at a
24 The proposed civil penalty is $1,000 with the mail |24 hearing, and they paid two settlenent agreenents,
25 cost of 55 cents. They also submtted a letter, 25 sothisis the fifth, yes.
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1 MR HARLON | believe the last settlenent was | 1 MB. OVERHALT: Wéll, | guess if -- well,

2 the agreenent when | pronmised to M. Long | woul d 2 since -- | guess ny thought woul d be since we're

3 never bein front of you again. V&' ve had issues. 3  now kind of outside the paraneters of the kind of

4 |'mnot going to go into them Qur treasurer did 4 stair-step situation, | would want to make sure

5 spend nost of the year in the hospital in Chicago 5 that -- and I'msorry. Is this M. Harlowwho is

6 on QOD, but that's inmaterial. 6 ontheline?

7 CHAl RVAN CKESON Vel |, so | need sone counsel 7 MR HARLON Yes. Nki is here behind me, but

8 here. Aewe fallinginto agray area? Are we 8 I'mM. Harlow the secretary -- or the treasurer.

9 still into the proposed reduced in penalty or are 9 Andrew Harlow is ny nane.

10  now we noving into hearings? 10 MB. OVERHOLT: | guess | think this is nore

11 MR KING Wll, M. Chairman? 11 akin to a hearing, and | woul d want to nake sure

12 M5, WARYCHA: (o ahead. 12 that he has fully presented what he wants to

13 M KING M. Chairnman, Brad King. Fromthe |13 present in terns of his request that the fine be

14 facts in this particular case, it does not appear 14  reduced. So | guess that's ny cooment. | know

15 that the coomittee qualifies for any of the 15 that's comng after the notion, but we were told we

16  reductions that are part of the standard deal that |16 had to have a notion. So ny conment is that |

17 the comm ssion woul d offer at past hearings, and so |17 would like to hear nore fromM. Harlow before we

18 it becones the deternination of the comm ssion 18 vote.

19 whether or not to grant any waiver or reduction 19 M KING And, M. Chairman, if | nmay, that

20 whatsoever or whether to inpose the full fine. 20 is an opportunity that the comm ssion does

21 CHAI RVAN CKESON What ' s the anount of the 21 routinely afford to conmttees, usually limted to

22 penalty? 22 five mnutes, not counting responses to

23 MB. OVERHCLT: 1,000 plus 55 cents in nmailing |23 conm ssioner questions and di scussion.

24 cost. 24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, without going through

25 MR HARLON "Il pay the stanp. 25 all those procedures for the hearing, can we just
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1 CHAl RVAN CKESON Vel |, can we have some 1 afford M. Harlow a chance to speak with us now?

2 discussion before there's a notion to figure out 2 MR KING VYes. | see no legal reason why you

3 what we're doing or are we just -- 3 cannot.

4 MR KING M. Chairnan, procedurally, you 4 MB. WARYCHA:  But can M. Harlow affirmthat

5 should have a motion before you to discuss. 5 he took the oath first, please.

6 Wether you anend it or adopt it is, of course, up 6 MR HARLON | absolutely affirml| took the

7 tothe wll of the commission -- 7 oath.

8 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah.  Ckay. 8 MB. WARYCHA:  Thank you.

9 MR KING -- but you can start with the 9 MB. NUSSMEYER M. Chairnan, if | may, the

10 notion. 10 conmission nenbers usual ly will ask the cormttee,

11 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. So is there a motion |11 if thisis afull hearing, if they' re asking for a

12 to inpose the penalty as presented on the Builders |12 full waiver or a reduction and what that reduction

13 Association of Hkhart Gounty? 13 to themnight be, and then you use that as part of

14 MB. CRAYCRAFT: So noved. 14 your assessment to make the final nmotion. At |east

15 CHAI RMAN CKESON |'s there a second? 15 that's howit's traditionally occurred.

16 MS. BECKLEY: For clarification, that woul d be | 16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So say that again, the first

17 the full $1,000 fine? 17  part.

18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Correct . 18 MB. NUSSMEYER Sure. Generally a nenber of

19 MB. BECKLEY: And this is their fifth tine 19 the commission will pronpt the comittee to ask if

20 before, not their third? 20 they want a full waiver or a reduction and what

21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Correct . 21 that reduction to themwoul d be.

22 MB. BECKLEY: Then, yes, | woul d second that. 22 CHAIRVAN CKESCN Right. So, M. Harlow in

23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So now that we have a 23 your letter you sinply request a waiver or

24 second, can we have sone di scussion? 24 reduction. Can you articul ate what your actual

25 Suzannah, do you have any thoughts? 25 request is?

Pages 41..44





Page 45 Page 47
1 MR HARLON | woul d appreciate any waiver 1 MR HARLON | know they were. | appreciate
2 whatsoever or reduction that you coul d give, but 2 the levity.
3 let's start with 50 percent, and you're going to 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay.  So, Brad, Valerie,
4 negotiate backwards on ne. 4 Angie, does your staff have anything further to
5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And woul d you like to offer 5 offer onthis matter?
6 some explanation in the formof testinony? 6 MR KING Nothing substantive, M. Chairnan,
7 MR HARLON A couple of things I'd like -- 7 but just to say that if the conmssion is inclined
8 and thisisnot -- again, I'mjust like the first 8 to inpose an amount other than the one in the
9 gentleman. | amgoing to tell you that we are 9 pending notion --
10 guilty, or | think we are. \¢ did conplete the 10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN W' || have to anmend the
11  formon January 21st. VW did mail it. W did 11 notion?
12 receive a letter in March it had never been 12 MR KING -- you will have to anmend the
13 recei ved. 13 notion and then take a vote on the notion as
14 But be that as it may, sone of the things that |14 anended.
15 transpired in this last 12 nonths, we renoved our 15 CHA RVAN CKESON R ght .
16  executive director for cause and had to find a new |16 M5. OVERHOLT: | thought Angie started to say
17 executive director. Qur accountant left the public |17 sonething.
18 field and went to be the private accountant for the |18 MB. NUSSMEYER | don't have anything further
19 Boys and Grls Qubs, so we had to find a new 19  unless, Abbey, you have something in the file that
20 accountant at this sane tinme. As | shared a little |20 you think is pertinent for the conm ssion to
21 bit ago, our treasurer, who had been the treasurer |21 consider.
22 for two or three years, was diagnosed with QO D, 22 MB. TAYLCR | do not. The last time they
23 and if he hadn't gone to the Rush Hospital up in 23 were before the conm ssion was June of 2012.
24 (hicago, he probably woul d have passed away earlier |24 MR HARLON That sounds accurate. |'msure
25 this year. Ve had to reduce our adninistrative 25 it is accurate.
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1 staff because of COMD 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, taking your testinony
2 So we dealt with a fewthings that were out of | 2 at face value, as | do, it sounds |ike you've been
3 theordinary. Ve inplemented a fewthings to nake 3 onahbit of arollercoaster ride here.
4 sure that we're always on tine. V¢ are now 4 Do any other commi ssion nenbers have any
5 presenting the information to our accountant before | 5 thoughts or comments as it relates to the testinony
6 it's due rather than wait for themto send us the 6 provided and the motion at hand?
7 response, because we don't get our accounting 7 M5. OVERHOLT: And renind ne, what was the
8 information, on a nonthly basis, until about the 8 proposed penalty in the current notion?
9 20th, which nakes it alittle difficult to get it 9 CHAl RVAN CKESON  $1, 000, | bel i eve.
10 toyouguysontinme. Soif wegiveit tothema 10 MB. BECKLEY: Yeah, the full penalty.
11  nonth earlier, hopefully we'll have it at the 11 MB. NUSSMEYER  And 55 cents.
12 begi nning of January as opposed to the end of 12 CHA RVAN CKESON And 55 cent s.
13 January. And | can tell you with absol ute 13 MR HARLON |'Il pay the 55 cents.
14 certainty you wll never hear ny name or voice ever |14 CHAl RVAN CKESON Wi ch may be i ncreased by
15 again. | pronise you that. 15 the time we finish this meeting. It could go up to
16 CHAIRVAN CKESCN Didn't you promise that the |16 57 cents.
17 last tine? 17 MR HARLON | have a forever stanp. V¢'Il be
18 MR HARLON | knowand |'ma liar. Sorry. 18  okay.
19 But it was years ago. It was about five years ago |19 M5, OVERHOLT: | would say, M. Chairman, in
20 when | was down there, only to find out | had been |20 light of the circunstances and that there has been
21 there for the third or fourth tine and didn't know |21 a period of time since the last violation, that |
22 it. So | defer the last tine. | didn't knowthat |22 would nove to anend the motion to reduce the
23 we were a frequent flier. 23 penalty to the 75 percent |evel.
24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Wl |, and for the record, ny | 24 CHAIRMAN CKESON 1'mgoing to take that as a
25 comrents were made with levity. 25 nmotion to amend the previous motion and i npose a
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1 penalty of 75 percent plus nailing costs. 1 | dosoconfirm
2 I's there a second? 2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And what |' m hearing you
3 M. CRAYCRAFT: | woul d second that. 3 say, M. Alvarez, is that you want to proceed with
4 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any further di scussi on? 4 sort of a hearing on the natter as opposed to
5 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by 5 accepting a reduction in penalty, which is what is
6 "aye." 6 on the table.
7 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 7 MR ALVAREZ Correct. | amaware that |'m
8 MB. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye. 8 out of the order as far as the procedure on the
9 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 9 agenda, but due to tine constraints, | just wanted
10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Heari ng none opposed, the 10 tobringit to this conmssion's attention
11  nmotion carries. 11  beforehand rather than afterwards.
12 Thank you M. Harlow 12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And you do recogni ze --
13 MR HARLON Thank you very much. ¢ 13 MB. CRAYCRAFT: M. Chairnan, can he call for
14  appreciate your consideration. Do | still have to |14 a continuance if there's not tine today?
15 put ny hand up to say that | saidit's okay or 15 CHA RVAN CKESON - Wl |, | suppose he can
16  verbal is okay? 16  request one. |Is that correct, Brad?
17 MB. WARYCHA:  V¢'re good. 17 M KING Yes, he can. M. Chairman, you' ve
18 CHAl RVAN CKESON Yeah.  It's okay now 18 actually started consideration here, and if
19 MR HARLON (Ckay. | appreciate it. 19  canpaign finance staff can provide information
20 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Sure thing.  Thank you. 20 about violations, we may be able to have the
21 MB. WARYCHA: Ckay. So the next person that | |21  conmission accormodate M. Alvarez so it's not
22 see with their hand raised is Ferdinand A varez. 22 necessary. But, yes, if it is necessary, the
23 And if you could go ahead and unmute him Haley. 23 commission can grant a continuance.
24 And, M. Alvarez, are you wanting to take the |24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel I, and | just want to
25 deal or nmake -- if you're wanting to take the deal |25 remind M. Alvarez that, by entering into this part
Page 50 Page 52
1 as a percentage based on how many viol ations, we 1 of the procedure, you nay be foregoing your
2 can do that now, or if you' re wanting to hear a 2 opportunity to accept a reduced penalty and nay be
3 case, we'll wait until after we're done wth those 3 inposed the entire fine. Are you confortable with
4 deals. M. Ferdinand, are you wanting to take the | 4 that?
5 deal? 5 MR ALVAREZ | am Your Honor -- or Your
6 MR ALVAREZ Can you hear me? Hello. 6 Honor. I'msorry. | am M. Chairnan.
7 CHA RVAN CKESCN  Yes. (o ahead. 7 CHAL RVAN CKESCN  No one' s ever cal | ed me
8 MR ALVAREZ. (kay. Thank you, nenbers of the | 8 that, so don't start.
9 comission, for allowng ne to speak this 9 MR ALVAREZ. Force of habit, sir.
10 afternoon. M name is Ferdinand Alvarez, chairman |10 MB. THOWPSON M. Chairman, this is page 28.
11  of the Lake and Porter County Young Denocrats. 11 CHAI RVAN CKESON Ckay.  So in the PDF, what
12 The reason | did raise ny hand is | do request |12 page is the letter on?
13 a waiver of the fees. The only dilemma is that |'m| 13 MB. THOWPSON No, not the letter. It's the
14 a deputy prosecuting attorney, and I'mon ny lunch |14  spreadsheet.
15 break, and | amon ny way back to court to work for |15 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Al right.
16 the Sate of Indiana. And so | was just hoping 16 MB. OVERHOLT: So does this count as their
17  there was sone type of way | can be heard 17 second violation? |Is that how I'mreading this?
18 beforehand. But | am-- unfortunately, ny lunch 18 MB. THOWSCN This is their third.
19 break is conming to a close, and | will no longer be | 19 MR ALVAREZ:. The reason for that, if | nay,
20 able to be on the neeting due to the fact that I'Il |20 nenbers of the comm ssion, our organization has
21 beincrimnal court. 21 undergone three separate restructuring el ections in
22 MR KING M. Chairman, M. Alvarez needs to |22 the last three years. | have recently been
23 confirmthat he took the oath. 23 appointed chairman as of May of this year al ong
24 CA RVAN CKESON M. Alvarez? 24 with all new board menbers.
25 MR ALVAREZ: Yes, sir, | did take the oath. 25 | can't speak for the three violations in the
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1 past. Al | can speak of is -- or speak onis that | 1 reduction of 25 percent on the fine as proposed,

2 inthe future our board is conmtted to being 2 having a second, all those in favor signify by
3 diligent on our paperwork. Qur financial 3 aye."

4 statenments are getting in order. V¢ are 4 MB. OERHOLT:  Aye.

5 coordinating our bank accounts with People's Bank 5 MB. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.

6 herein Minster, Indiana, and we are taking this 6 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.

7 seriously. 7 CHAI RVAN CKESON  Aye.

8 Qur previous treasurer was a 16-year-ol d high 8 MR ALVAREZ | thank you, nmenbers of the
9 school student who perhaps did not grasp the 9 comission, for your decision. It definitely beats
10 seriousness of the accountability as far as 10 a $1,000 fine, which is what | was unfortunately
11 paperwork and docunentation, but we do throw 11 anticipating. This fineis a bit nore manageabl e,
12 ourselves at the nercy of this conmssion, and we 12 and | will ask ny nenbers to gather their
13 promse that in the future all accountability and 13 babysitting money and we will pay this fine.

14  paperwork will be in order. \¢ are an organization | 14 So thank you very much. | thank you for your

15 of fiveindividuals, and all of us are under the 15 tine. | hope you all have a wonderful day.

16 age of 31, so... 16 CHAl RVAN CKESON Thank  youl.

17 CHAl RVAN CKESON There was a tine when | 17 MB. NUSSMEYER M. Chairnan, | believe the

18 wished ny age was an excuse for ny delinquency. 18 spreadsheet shows the fine as bei ng $50.

19 I'msorry. Back up a step. Wat's the committee 19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN That ' s ri ght.

20 nane agai n? 20 M5. NUSSMEYER Ckay. So | think he may have

21 MR ALVAREZ: Lake and Porter County Young 21 msunderstood what his fine waes.

22 Denocrats, sir. 22 CHAl RVAN CKESON | think so too.

23 CHAl RVAN CKESON Ckay.  And so what's the 23 MB. NUSSMEYER Ckay. Wéll, he'll get even

24 proposed penal ty? 24 better news, | suppose, with a 35 or $40 -- math is

25 M5. THOWSCN  The proposed penalty -- 25 hard -- settlement agreenent. So thank you. |
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1 MR ALVAREZZ V¢ -- |'msorry. 1 just wanted to clarify that.

2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN M. Alvarez, hold on a 2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. It's probably nore
3 second. 3 like lawn nmowi ng noney and not babysitting noney.

4 MR ALVAREZ. M apol ogi es. 4 MB. WARYCHA:  So | just want to bring this up.

5 CHAN RVAN CKESON No. You're fine. 5 | can see the hands that are raised, and | think

6 MB. THOWPSON M. Chairman, this is -- the 6 there is confusion between the deal and naking

7 Lake and Porter Gounty Young Denocrats has a 7  testinony.

8 proposed civil penalty of $50.55. They have been 8 CHAI RVAN CKESON Right .

9 before the board one tine and they' ve paid the 9 MB. WARYCHA:  So | just want to open that up
10 settlenent agreenent, so this would be their third |10 to you, M. Chairnman, and see how woul d you like to
11 offense. 11  proceed. Wuld you like to continue giving peopl e
12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So the penal ty as proposed 12 the opportunity to nake their case or go back to
13 is $50.55? 13 the deals? | just wanted to put that out there.

14 M5. THOWSCN  Correct. 14 And, Brad, feel free to weighin.

15 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, after hearing 15 CHA RVAN CKESON  Let e do this: For all who
16 M. Avarez's testinony, does anyone have a notion? |16 are in attendance, if you can please take your hand
17 MB. OVERHOLT: | woul d nove that we use the 17 down. Let's start again with those who are

18 stair-step approach and approve the 75 percent 18 interested in taking the proposed reduction in

19 penalty for the third violation. 19 penalties wthout any testinony, now raise your

20 M. BECKLEY: | second that. 20 hand.

21 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. | nean, M. A varez, 21 MB. WARYCHA:  Ckay. | see one, Roxanna

22 I'mkind of there too, and you coul d have dispensed | 22 Hanford. And if you coul d pl ease unmite her. And
23 withthisalittle bit quickly to get off your 23 Roxanna if you coul d say that you have taken the
24 lunch hour here. 24 oath before you nake renarks.

25 So hearing a notion for a 75 percent -- or a 25 M. HINFCRDO H. | did agree to the oath,
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1 and apparently ny conputer is not showing the same. | 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | f the comnmission finds that

2 Mne shows that ny hand is | owered. 2 acomittee has violated the canpaign finance

3 MR KING V¢ can see you. 3 statutes, state law requires the unani mous vote of

4 MB. WARYCHA: V¢ see you. You're okay. 4 all four conmissioners to waive or reduce the

5 MB. HANFCRD: Vel |, | would prefer to present 5 anmount of penalty set by state |aw

6 ny case. 6 If the conm ssion nakes a decision at this

7 M5, WARYCHA:  Ch, okay. 7 neeting to either fine a coomttee or disniss the

8 CHA RVAN CKESON | understand. | see what 8 case against the conmttee, then the Hection

9 you're saying. Ckay. Thank you. 9 Dvisionwll prepare a final order for the

10 MB. WARYCHA: | don't see anybody else with a |10 conmission to approve at a later neeting. If a

11 hand raised, then, M. Chairman. 11 committee is fined today, the comittee will

12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN 1" mgoing to gi ve one nore 12 receive a notice fromthe Hection Division to pay

13 mnute. 13 the fine after the conm ssion adopts the final

14 No one? 14 order. So it nmay be sone tine after today before a

15 M5. WARYCHA: | do not see any hands. 15 committee will be required to pay said fine.

16 CHA RVAN CKESON Al right. So presunption, |16 Candi dates and conmittee representatives who

17 then, is that everybody el se would like to be 17 would like to present today, please identify by

18 heard. \¢'ve already kind of dived in, but for the | 18 wusing the hand notion that we've been using thus

19 sake of the record, I'Il go through the finance 19 far, and the staff will identify you in the order

20 hearing procedures. 20 that they see you.

21 The renaining coomttees will be called to 21 The commission will recognize the commttees

22 nake presentation of evidence in these natters. 22 to present in chronol ogical order of -- | just said

23  Before doing so, | want to note that in the past we |23 that. Al right. So please speak clearly and wait

24 have fol lowed certain procedures, and | nove that 24 for -- and confirmthat you've taken the oath.

25 the commission use the follow ng procedures today: |25 Wth that innmnd, is there a second to the
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1 Wen each canpai gn finance matter is called, 1 motion on these procedures?

2 the hearing will begin by recognizing our staff to 2 MB. BECKLEY: | will second.

3 provide information about the docurents in this 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?

4 matter provided to the comm ssion nenbers, 4 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by

5 including letters fromthe conmttees, and the 5 raye."

6 notice given to the canpai gn cormitt ee. 6 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.

7 Lhl ess there's any objection, the docunents 7 M. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.

8 provided to the conmission by the Hection Division| 8 M. BECKLEY: Aye.

9 will be entered into the record of this neeting. 9 CHAI RMAN CKESON Motion''s appr oved.

10 After the canpaign finance staff conpletes 10 Let's proceed.

11 presentation, a representative of the commttee 11 MB. WARYCHA:  Ckay. The first person | see

12 will be recogni zed and may present their case for 12 is -- I'mgoing to say who | see and then who woul d

13 no nore than five mnutes. 13  be on deck. So the first person | see is

14 Commi ssi on nenbers nmay ask questions during 14 Ungethiem and then | think -- if you could go

15 the presentation, but the time spent answering 15 ahead and unnmute him Haley. And then the next

16 these questions will not be counted agai nst that 16 person will be a Dane -- I'msorry, |"'mnot going

17 presenter's time. And the Hection D vision nay 17 to say your last nane correctly -- Yenerall.

18 signal the chair when the presenter's time is up. 18 MR UINETHEM Can you hear ne?

19 If the presenter offers additional docunents 19 MB. WARYCHA:  Yes, we can. Can you confirm

20 or other physical evidence not previously received |20 you took the oath.

21 by the commission, then the original nust be 21 MR UINETHEM |'mBruce Ungethiem ['m

22 provided to the Hection D vision. 22 representing the Coomittee to Hect Bruce

23 And, Valerie, we'll figure that out for the 23 lUhgethiem This is the first time I've done this,

24  preservation of the record. 24  Zoomor otherw se, so bear with ne.

25 M5. WARYCHA:  VYes. 25 | did submt witten information on this, and
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1 | amrequesting a waiver of any fines that might be | 1 understanding was everything was okay and no ot her

2 potentially inposed. And the reason is that, 2 action was needed. Then | started to get

3 according to how | understood the rules, the 3 information that said that there mght be fines and

4 comittee followed all rules and submtted all the 4 penalties associated with that.

5 forns on tine. 5 The reason that |'mconfused about thisis in

6 (h, by the way, | did say "I do" and I'munder | 6 ny previous life, when | worked for a Fortune 500

7 oath, so -- 7 conpany, | was the director of conputer operations

8 CHA RVAN CKESON - Ckay.  Thank you. 8 and know quite a bit about conputers and

9 MR UNETHEM -- we've got that out of the 9 programming and that kind of thing and know t hat

10 way. 10 they have a tendency to sonetines not be as

11 Basical |y, ny understanding is that there were | 11 accurate as we would |ike themto be.

12  two issues around the coomttee. (ne was a late 12 But in summary, | followed all the infornation

13 filing of CFA-11 back in April of 2018 and a late 13 that | had. | filed all of the proper forns on

14 filing of CFA4in 2021. And in April of 2018, | 14 time. There was no intent to deceive, and there

15 filed the forns electronically, including the 15 was no one harned by any of the actions that

16 CFA-11. Then at the end -- and | lost the 16 occurred. So ny request is to have the -- any

17 election, so | did not have to file until the end 17 fines that nmight be inposed waived, and | will go

18 of the year. | filed again on the 15th of January |18 on with ny life and never run for office again.

19 of the followi ng year, and everything was fine. 19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you, M. Unget hi em

20 There was nothing in the conputer queue that 20 Staff, Mchelle, does this all, this recount

21 indicated that there was any issue. 21 of events, sound accurate?

22 In 2019, | didn't collect any noney and | 22 MB. THOWSON Yes. He also sent the letter

23 didn't spend any noney because | wasn't running for |23 explaining that all. It's on page 2. Let ne tell

24 election. 24 you what pages these are on on your spreadsheet,

25 I'n January of 2020, | made the decision that | |25 page 2 and page 84. And, yes, | did hel p hi mwal k
Page 62 Page 64

1 was never going to run for elected office again, so| 1 through it and get it closed.

2 | filed the CFA-4 report on January 6 of 2020 and 2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And was this -- this notion

3 dissolved the conmttee. The noney that was 3 of the application being in sone holding area, can

4 renmaining in the conmttee was donated to several 4 you speak to that for me.

5 local charities, and | thought | was done with that | 5 MB. TAYLCR He entered the large contribution

6 situation. 6 into the systemon January 10th of 2019. At that

7 I'n January of 2021, | got a note fromthe 7 timeit notified himthat a large contribution

8 HectionDvision. | got aletter sent out by the 8 report needed to be filed and he either had to hit

9 Hection Dvisionindicating the comttee was 9 "Qontinue" or "lpdate" to change it. He did not

10 delinquent in filing its forns. | imediately 10 file that report. It was in the "Reports Due"

11 called the office, talked with Mchelle Thonpson, 11 section until he filed the report on February 2nd

12 asked her what the situation was. \¢ got onto the |12 of 2021.

13 conputer, and she did find that the CGFA-11 was 13 MR KING M. Chairnman, canpaign finance, for

14 sittinginafile-- or in a holding area 14 the record, should identify whether the cormittee

15 sonewhere. It was on the conputer but for sone 15 has any previous violations.

16  reason now was not considered subnitted even though | 16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.

17 inthe previous two years it didn't indicate that. 17 MS. THOWPSCN M. Chairman, no, he has not

18 So she worked with me. W& got the CGFA-11 18 been before the commi ssion before.

19 filed. In addition, the notation about the CFA-4 19 Ms. OVERHOLT: So do | understand, is the

20 not being filed in 2021, since | closed the 20 commttee now cl osed?

21 comittee or thought | closed the comittee in 21 MB. TAYLCR  Yes.

22 2020, ny understanding was there was no reason to 22 MB. OVERHOLT: And | think -- | don't knowif

23 file a 2021 CFA-4. % worked through that 23 staff would know this, but | heard M. Ungethiem

24 situation as well, got that situation resolved, and |24 just say that all the noney in the account has been

25 when | got off the phone with M. Thonpson, ny 25 donat ed.
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1 MB. TAYLCR He closed the conmittee, so 1 they' ve been before us tw ce?
2 there's no noney in the account. 2 MB. THOWSCN  They' ve al so paid two
3 MR UNETHEM That is correct. Al 3 settlenent agreenents.
4 remaining funds were disbursed to charitable 4 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | see what you' re sayi ng.
5 organi zations. 5 Gkay. Thank you. Sorry.
6 Ms. OVERHOLT: And | -- well, M. Chairnman, 6 M5, OVERHOLT: |'ve caught on. You have to
7 consistent with, | think, how we've handl ed 7 add both of those colums, | figured out.
8 situations like this in the past, | would actually 8 CHA RVAN CKESON— Ckay.
9 nove to waive the entire -- 9 MB. TAYLOR Rght.
10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Penal ty. 10 CHAI RMAN CKESCON So I'miscrol 1ing through
11 MB. OVERHQLT: -- fine and mailing costs due 11  here. Wat's the proposed fine?
12 tothe fact that the comttee is closed and 12 MB. THOWSON  $1, 000. 55.
13 there's no nmoney in the account anynore. 13 CHA RVAN CKESON And, Diane, will you
14 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. So there's a notion 14 pronounce your |ast nane for ne, please.
15 on the Ungethiemnatter to waive the penalty. Is 15 M5. YENERALL: It's Yenerall.
16 there a second? 16 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeneral | Ckay. Thank you.
17 M5. BECKLEY: | woul d second. 17 Ckay. M. Yenerall, would you like to provide any
18 CHAl RVAN CKESON Any further di scussi on? 18 testinony?
19 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by 19 MB. YENERALL: Yes. Thank you. | do
20 "aye." 20 acknow edge that --
21 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And before you start -- |'m
22 M. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye. 22 sorry -- what is it that you' re seeking? Wat's
23 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 23 your request?
24 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Seei ng none opposed, the 24 MB. YENERALL: \¢'re seeking a waiver of the
25 notion carries and the penalty is waived. 25 penalty of $1,000.

Page 66 Page 68
1 Thank you, M. Ungethiem 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay.  Proceed with your
2 MR UNGETHEM Thank you very much. Have a 2 testinony. | apol ogize.
3 good day. 3 M5, YENERALL: That's okay. Thank you. And |
4 CHA RVAN CKESON Thank you. 4 do acknow edge that | took the oath.
5 MB. WARYCHA:  The next person on deck is Dane | 5 CHAl RVAN CKESON Thank  you.
6 Yenerall, and then Roxanna Hanford is next. And do | 6 MB. YENERALL: | amrepresenting the |ndiana
7 not forget to say if you' ve taken the oath. 7  Speech- Language- Hearing Association PAC | am
8 MB. YENERALL: (kay. Thank you. M name is 8 their new managenent conpany. | entered into a
9 Dane Yenerall. 9 contract with the association, the state
10 M5. WARYCHA:  Hold on just a second. And then |10 association, in Septenber after they had unresol ved
11  canpaign finance, | think, will go first. 11 issues with their previous nanagenent conpany.
12 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah.  Thank you. 12 | was not aware -- when | was contracted, |
13 Go ahead, Mchelle. 13 was not contracted to take care of a PAC account
14 MB. THOWPSCN W're trying to figure out what |14 for them But when | received the letter in
15 page it's on. Hang on. Page 63. 15  MNarch 16th that the filing had not taken place,
16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vs there any letters or 16 that a volunteer of the organization was to nake,
17 anything sent on this case? 17 that is when | started discussing with themthat |
18 MB. TALAR No. 18 would take over the nanagement of the PAC account
19 MB. THOWPSON No letters. This is Indiana 19 for themsince | amfamliar wth PAC accounts. |
20  Speech Language Hearing Association PAC has a 20 nmanage associations with PACs in the state of
21 proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55. They have 21 Pennsylvania, Virginia, and New York, so |
22  been before the board twce, and they have paid two |22 understand the severity of the penalties and
23 settlenent agreenents, so this would be their fifth |23 reporting on tine.
24 violation. 24 So considering the fact that they were having
25 CHARVAN CKESCN How is it their fifth if 25 issues that they needed to change managenent
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1 conpanies, they had also at the sane tinge, the 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yes.  Thank you.
2 person who was filing the PAC was brand-new, was a 2 MS. OVERHOLT: Yes, of course.
3 brand-new volunteer, and | don't think she 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vé' I | stipul ate that from
4 understood everything that she was supposed to do. 4 now on.
5 So | do acknow edge that they did have five 5 MB. OERHOLT: Yes. Sorry. Yes.
6 previous violations, but I'd just like the 6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any further discussion?  Any
7 consideration since we are a new managenent conpany | 7  questions?
8 and we do have experience managi ng PACs in ot her 8 Hearing none, we have a notion to inpose
9 states. 9 75 percent and a second. Al those in favor
10 CHAIRVAN CKESCN I'mnnot sure that | have any |10 signify by "aye."”
11 questions. Does any nenber of the comnm ssion have |11 M. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.
12 any questions for M. Yenerall? 12 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
13 MB. OVERHCLT: | don't, M. Chairman. 13 MB. OVERHOLT: Aye.
14 CHA RVAN CKESON |'s there any proposed 14 CHA RVAN CKESON Hearing it's unani mous, the
15 nmotions on this matter? | nean, consistent with 15 nmotion carries. Thank you.
16  sort of your comments on the previous fifth-timer, |16 M. YENERALL: Thank you for your tine.
17 I'minclined to inpose 75 percent, unless there's 17 CHAl RVAN CKESON Who is next ?
18 other discussion or an alternate notion. 18 Ms. WARYCHA: Next is Roxanna Hanford, and
19 MB. OERHOLT: | guess | don't feel -- | feel |19 then John Schroeder will be on deck next. So
20 like the situation described here was a little 20 please unmite Roxanna, and then, canpaign finance
21 bit -- or described in the other case was a little |21 staff, you're on.
22 bt different, but we mght get into splitting 22 MB. THOWPSON M. Chairman, this is on
23 hairs if we do that. | don't know | don't have a |23 page 26 and page 73 of the spreadsheet, \ote
24  strong feeling one way or the other, so |'ll say 24  Roxanna Hanford. The first one has a proposed
25 that. 25 civil penalty of $1,000.55, and the second one has
Page 70 Page 72
1 Wl l, | guess if no one else is nmaking a 1 a proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.
2 motion, | guess I'Il nmove that we proceed with 2 No. |'msorry. Has not been before the
3 the -- that we grant a reduction of 25 percent or 3 commission before.
4 inpose and nove that we inpose 75 percent of the 4 CHA RVAN CKESON What page is the spreadsheet
5 proposed fine. 5 on?
6 MB. CRAYCRAFT: Second it. 6 MB. THOWPSON 26 and 73.
7 CHA RVAN CKESCN V¢ have a notion and a 7 MB. BECKLEY: So there's two accounts here?
8 second. Any further discussion? 8 There's two violations?
9 Hearing none, all those -- go ahead. 9 MB. THOMPSON  There's two.
10 M5. BECKLEY: Is there a reason -- what would |10 M. BECKLEY: (Ckay.
11 be your thought on the difference? Is it because 11 CHA RVAN CKESON And the second one is $1, 000
12 they hired the new nanagenent conpany? 12 and the first one is how mich?
13 MB. O/ERHCLT: VeI, ny thought, | mean, the 13 MB. THOWPSON 1, 000.
14 other situation where he was tal king about how, | 14 CHAl RVAN CKESON Each.  Ckay.
15 forget, one of the staff people was hospitalized 15 Ms. Hanford, can you pl ease confirmthat you
16 wth GQOAD, | nean, they also had kind of a change |16 swore to the oath.
17 in personnel but then al so sone ot her 17 MB. HAINFCRD:  Yes. ood afternoon, everyone.
18 circunstances, so | guess that's what | thought 18 | affirmthat, yes, | did agree to the oath, and I
19 nmade it alittle different. But as | acknow edged, |19 was not aware that there were two penal ties.
20 that could get into splitting hairs a bit or being |20 CHAl RVAN CKESCN Ckay.
21 alittle bit overly subjective. 21 MB. HINFCRD: So now |'mten times nore
22 MB. BECKLEY: 1'mgood to vote on the 22 confused than | was before. The only violation
23 75 percent. 23 that | understood that was against me was not
24 MR KING M. Chairman, staff understands the |24 filing a final report as | made ny run for US.
25 motion to include mailing costs as well. 25 Senate, District 6, and ny paperwork has all been
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1 sent in. 1 to close an account wthout a zero bal ance.
2 Now, can you guys see us when we're talking or | 2 So after ny run for council, | did close out
3 just hear us? 3 ny account. | did repay nyself the remaining
4 CHAI RMAN CKESON | can see your face on a 4  balance fromthe $5,000, marked the rest of it off
5 screenshot, but you're not live. | can just hear 5 as a donation, zeroed out the account, closed the
6 you. 6 account, and sent that paperwork in as well as ny
7 MB. HINFCRD: Ckay. So, like | said, | was 7 bank statenent showing that this account was zeroed
8 only aware of the one violation. And ny 8 out and cl osed.
9 explanation for thisis | had already been in 9 So | just -- bottomline, | don't know howto
10 office. | was county conmssioner. | had opened 10 close out an account without a zero bal ance.
11 ny canpaign account in 1999, and ny canpaign 11 MB. OVERHOLT: Wéll, so could | ask a
12 account was entitled "Vote Roxanna Hanford." That |12 question?
13 was it. It wasn't Vote Roxanna Hanford for 13 CHAl RVAN CKESON Yes.
14 Conmi ssioner or Vote Roxanna Hanford for Senate. 14 MB. OVERHOLT: So, Ms. Hanford, what | think
15  You know, the title of ny canpaign was Vote Roxanna |15 |'mhearing you say is that your intent -- | nean,
16 Hanford. 16 sois it your intent to close your canpaign finance
17 So when | decided to run for Senate, | already | 17 comittees?
18 had ny account. | was out of office as 18 MB. HAINFCRD:  Yes, it's closed. MNot out of
19 commissioner. | kept the account open. | filed ny |19 bitterness or anything like that, but |'munable to
20 annual reports, you know, and | sent bank 20 run. | will not be running for any future offices,
21 statenents with themto verify them show ng that 21 and so, yes, the account is closed. Checks were
22 the ending bal ances had not changed. And so | sent |22 shredded and the bal ance was zeroed.
23 ny annual reports, but | never sent a final report |23 MB. OVERHOLT: And | keep hearing you --
24 because | knew that | was going to be running for 24 MB. TAYLCR Your account nay be cl osed, but
25 officeinthe future yet. 25 your canpaign conmittee is still open.

Page 74 Page 76
1 So then starts ny Senate canpaign. | pick up 1 MB. HANFCRD:  Canpai gn committee?
2 ny canpaign finances where | had |eft themoff and 2 MB. OERHOLT: Rght. So you woul d have
3 started ny fund-raising and ny canpaigning and 3 created, when you started this whol e process -- and
4 whatnot, and it still is Vote Roxanna Hanford and 4 | appreciate your having been so interested in
5 that was it. It was an unsuccessful race. | 5 running and sorry you ended up not having such
6 concluded the race with a bal ance of $244.76. 6 great experiences.
7 Infilling out ny G4 -- CF4s, | narked them| 7 MB. HANFCRD:  VéII, | was a two-term
8 year-end, but | never marked it final because | had | 8 commissioner. | felt good about that.
9 adebt. Wen | opened ny canpaign, | opened ny 9 MB. OVERHOLT: So you did good. Ckay.
10 canpaign with $5,000 and put it inas aloan from |10 Anyway, so you woul d have opened -- under state
11 nyself to a canpaign. It was ny understanding that |11 law you woul d have opened the commttee's -- the
12 you cannot close an account if there is a debt owed | 12 canpai gn finance conmittee that you have to open
13 or a balance; it has to be zero balance. Wen | 13 under state law, and then there are bank accounts
14 was no |longer comnmissioner, | didn't have a zero 14 that you had, | think, that you' re talking about
15 balance, so | never narked it final. Wen ny 15 where the money actual |y was housed. And the
16 unsuccessful race for Senate ended, | did not have |16 commttee that is created under state lawis one
17 a zero balance, so | didn't mark it as final. 17 where you -- it's the recordkeeping that kind of
18 | continued to send in ny year-end reports, 18 reflects what's going on in that bank account.
19 and then | was notified that | needed to send ina |19 I't sounds |ike you have closed your bank
20 final report to the Senate race -- oh, | ran for 20 accounts, but the actual conmittees -- and forgive
21 council after that, so | continued ny canpaign. So |21 neif I'mwong -- it sounds |ike you mght have
22 that's why it wasn't closed and finalized at that 22 had two canpaign finance commttees created under
23 time. Then | was notified after that that | had to |23 state law It sounds |ike those conmittees are
24 close out ny Senate account with a zero bal ance, 24 still open but the bank accounts are cl osed.
25 and | didn't know howto do that. | don't know how |25 M5, HINFCRD:  Ckay. So we're talking
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1 comittee and cash, commttee and finances. 1 formthat says Vote Roxanna Hanford not for county
2 MB. OERHOLT: Right. 2 council, but Vote Roxanna Hanford that at the tine
3 MB. HAINFCRD:  Two separate issues. See, | was | 3 was running for county council has di sbanded t hat
4 looking at one single issue. 4 comittee. |Is that what they're |ooking to do?
5 MB. OVERHOLT: Right. 5 (Oh, but you do need a zero dollar in there.
6 MB. HINFCRD:  If there's noney, there's a 6 MB. NUSSMEYER R ght. So what we need to do
7 comittee, a canpaign. |If there's no noney, if 7 is go back and amend a report that shows that you
8 there's no race, then, you know, you just do your 8 transferred the dollars fromthe Senate canpaign to
9 year-end report and that would be the end of it. 9 your local commttee. So we're not actually noving
10 MB. OVERHOLT: To cut to the chase on this, 10 noney; we're just show ng the fact that one
11 can | just ask the question, is it your intent to 11 committee transferred funds to the other comittee,
12 close your -- well, you said you're not planning to | 12 even though the bank account was the sane, which
13 run again, soif staff were to help you with the 13 will result in a zero dollar bal ance.
14 process to help you figure out howto actually 14 But then we al so need an enmail fromyou that
15 close those conmittees that you' ve created at the 15 says that you forgive your loans. And we can take
16 state and local |evel, would you be -- are you 16 this offline, if you like. | know Abbey and | have
17 intending to do that? 17  your contact information and we can work through
18 MB. HANFCRD:  Absol utely. 1'mnot making 18 this with you.
19 excuses. |'mnot |ooking for synpathy. But | have | 19 MB. HINFCRD:  And ny 3-inch pile of trying to
20  been diagnosed with multiple brain tunors. This is |20 figure this out. I|'mreally not trying to be hard
21 very difficult for me to maneuver through. | have |21 to deal with. | just don't understand it. You
22 stacks of papers that, while we're sitting here, 22 know like | said, | always knew that you coul d not
23 I'mreading them |'mmnaking notes to nyself so | |23 close an account without a zero bal ance, and so |
24 don't forget it because it's just too hard for me. |24 just really don't know howto doit.
25 | physically cannot do this anymore. But | will 25 MR KING M. Chairman, if | can add just
Page 78 Page 80
1 remain Denocrat chairman. | should say chair. I'm| 1  briefly a couple of points. It sounds |ike the
2 sorry. 2 candidate has cormittees at both the county and the
3 M5. NUSSMEYER M. Chairman, if | nmight, in 3 state level, and so to be clear, what the
4 order to close her comttee, we do need sonethi ng 4 commssion is hearing today is strictly with regard
5 inwiting fromM. Hanford that says that she 5 tothe state Senate commttee.
6 forgives the debts owed to her cormttee, because 6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.
7 once that is received, then staff can hel p her 7 MR KING And the candidate will have to work
8 online to close out the commttee to be reflective 8 with her county clerk, county election board to
9 of the fact that she transferred her Senate dollars | 9 close out the local committee.
10 maybe not to a different bank account, but fromone | 10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.
11 commttee to the other, to the local commttee, and |11 MR KING But interns of dealing with the
12 do the final disbands to address the issues raised |12 state Senate commttee, what Angi e Nussneyer said
13 here today. 13 earlier is applicable in that we at the Hection
14 CHAl RVAN CKESON Ms. Hanford, can you help us |14 Division need to receive a final report that
15 wththat? 15 indicates that the state Senate conmittee is being
16 M5. HANFCRD: Yes. If | understand this, is 16 disbanded. There's a box, Box No. 12, that the
17 there a formthat I'Il fill out that says that | am|17 candidate checks to say this is a final disbands
18 disbanding ny comittee? But then where do | put 18 report that woul d account for any transactions that
19 that noney? Wen |'mtal king about noney in there, |19 have not been previously reported. And Hection
20 | don't have to put a noney amount in there? I'm |20 Division staff is always happy to hel p a candidate
21 just disbanding that Vote Roxanna Hanford, and then |21 do that. So thank you.
22 put Senate seat -- or Senate race in there, that 22 CHAI RVMAN CKESCN Thank you, Brad.
23 commttee has been disbanded? So that's it, | 23 MB. HINFCRD: | did that with the county in
24 don't have to worry about putting a noney amount in |24 2020, and it says final disbands conmttee. So
25 there, and then go through and fill out another 25 with the county | did do that. | see that as -- on
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1 nyformit's Box 11. But | never did that with 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Sure.
2 Senate because at Senate | still had noney in the 2 MR KING Just to note that Annette
3 bank. So that's why it wasn't done then. Wth 3 Qaycraft, as she indicated earlier, had to | eave
4 council | zeroed the account, so that's why | did 4 the nmeeting, and so M. Dckey is nowfilling in as
5 nmarkit as final. 5 proxy and therefore will be voting on this
6 M KING M. Chairman, if | could add one 6 particular notion.
7 piece of information about past comm ssion 7 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay.  Thank you.
8 practice. Insituations simlar tothis oneinthe| 8 MR D OKEY: Thank you, Brad. That was ny
9 past, the commssion has continued the natter to 9 next point before we voted.
10 give the candidate an opportunity to close out the |10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.
11 commttee and, if the candi date does so, then 11 Thanks, M. D ckey, for joining us.
12 typically proceeds to dismss the action. Again, 12 So we have a notion and a second. Any further
13 I'mjust reciting history, not naking a 13  discussion?
14 recommendati on. 14 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
15 M5. OVERHOLT: Brad, read ny mind. | was 15 "aye."
16 going to suggest that we do that. 16 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.
17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, make a notion. 17 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
18 MB. O/ERHOLT: Yeah. | woul d nove that we 18 MR D CKEY: Aye.
19 continue this to the next hearing with the 19 CHAI RVAN CKESON Aye.
20 understanding that, if M. Hanford has i ndeed 20 Hearing the "ayes" have it, the notion
21  closed her account by the next hearing, that we 21 carries.
22 woul d consider waiving these fines and nailing 22 MB. HANFCRD:  Thank you.
23 costs. 23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN You' re wel cone.  Have a good
24 M5. HAINFCRD:  And the mailing costs? 24 day.
25 MB. O/ERHQLT:  Yeah. 25 M5. HANFCRD:  You too.

Page 82 Page 84
1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN That al | nake sense to you, 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Do we have anot her one up?
2 M. Hanford? 2 M5. WARYCHA:  Yes. | see one |ast hand
3 M5. HANFCRD:  VYes, it does. But | would Iike 3 raised, and that is John Schroeder. |'Il turnit
4 to nake a statement. 4 over to the canpaign finance staff.
5 CHAI RVAN CKESON dve ne just a second 5 M5. THOWPSCN M. Chairnan, this is on
6 procedural ly. 6 page 93. This is Builders Association of Dubois
7 M5. HINFCRD:  The staff has been great. 7 County PAC Fund. It has a proposed civil penalty
8 CHAl RVAN CKESON Yeah. Hang on just a 8 of $900.55, and they've never been before the
9 second. 9 conmission before.
10 So we have a notion. |Is there a second? 10 CHA RVAN CKESON Ckay.  And 1" m pronounci ng
11 M. BECKLEY: |'Il second. 11 it M. Schroe-der. |Is that correct?
12 CHAl RVAN CKESON Any  di scussi on? 12 MR SOHRCEDER (Qut of town, Schroe-der is
13 And, Ms. Hanford, if you'd like to say 13  appropriate. Schrae-der here in Dubois County.
14 anything el se, you're wel cone to. 14 CHA RVAN CKESON  For gi ve ne.
15 MB. HAINFCRD:  The staff has been great. 15 MR SCHRCEDER  And | have taken the oath.
16  They' ve been wonderful . Through the years, from 16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you, M. Schroeder.
17 running for Senate forward have been sone of ny 17  Wuld you like to provide some testinony and tell
18 roughest years, and they have hel ped ne 18 us what you're expecting out of this hearing?
19 trenendously. So | conpliment the election board 19 MR SCHRCEDER  Wéll, I'mhoping for a total
20 as well as the staff and whatnot. They' ve been 20 waiver. The reporting question CFA-4 | nailed on
21 wonderful to work with, and | appreciate your 21 January 4 of '21, well before the due date of
22  decision today. 22 January 20th of '21. | was first notified by
23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you. 23 Mchell e Thonpson on February 11th that | was
24 M KING M. Chairman, if | mght for the 24 delinquent, and | imediately emailed her a copy of
25 record. 25 the report that | had nailed in. As arule -- you
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1 can reviewour records -- we have tinely filings. 1 was that late or never received. So |'d be willing

2 \¢'ve never been delinguent. 2 toactually entertain a conplete waiver, the

3 So back in April, when | got ny notice of the 3 25 percent -- reduction down to 25 percent or a

4 fine, | imediately called Mchelle, and she did 4 conpl ete waiver.

5 get back to nme immediately and said she woul d put 5 MR D CKEY: | woul d agree.

6 e on the agenda for this neeting to dispute the 6 CHAI RVAN CKESON So, Stephani e, was yours a

7 fine and also basically filled me in, in 2021, it's| 7 notion and/or, Suzannah, was yours a nmotion? |s

8 only an annual filing since there's no el ection. 8 there a motion?

9 Sothat's ny case. 9 MB. BECKLEY: | guess | wll notion for a

10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN What ' s the proposed fine? 10 25 percent and open to hearing anything el se. But

11 M. TAYLOR  $900. 55. 11 1'Il motion for 25.

12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you.  Any questi ons 12 CHAI RMAN CKESON |'s there a second?

13 for M. Schroeder? 13 "Il second the notion to entertain further

14 MB. OVERHLT: | have one of the staff. So 14 discussion.

15 just, Mchelle, Abbey, do you have -- | nean, with |15 MR SOHRCEDER Can | interject? That fine of

16 what he emailed you, do you have anything that 16 25 percent is actually nore than we took in |ast

17  shows the date the report was actual |y nailed? 17 year in the PACfund due to QOVID so it really

18 MB. TAYLCR V% never received the mailed 18  hurts a little fund |ike ours.

19  copy. 19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | under st and.

20 M5. THOWPSCN So | don't have the envel ope or | 20 MR SCHROEDER And we filed it. That's ny

21 anything. 21 argunent. It would have been different if | had

22 M. BECKLEY: So the nailed copy never cane 22 filedit, like, January 19th, a day before, but |

23 in? 23 filed it on January 4th, which should have been

24 MB. THOWSCN  No. 24 anple tine.

25 MB. BECKLEY: And what did he email to you? 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah, | know  You' ve given
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1 MB. THOWSCN The report. He emailed it to 1 us your testinony. V@ hear you. And | want to

2 nme, and | stanped it the day | received it, which 2 renind you that it does take a 4-0 vote to make

3 was the February 11th date. 3 this motion carry, so it looks like it may not be

4 MB. OVERHQLT: M. Schroeder, do you have 4 quite headed that way.

5 sonething that shows when you mailed it? 5 MR SCHRCEDER  Thank you.

6 MR SCHRCEDER Wl |, | have ny own notes, 6 CHAI RVAN CKESON So any ot her questions or

7 what | keep. And | knew ! mailed it on January 4th | 7 discussion?

8 because | was going on vacation the next week, and 8 And we'll do aroll vote on this one. So all

9 that's why | knew | mailed it then. But, again, 9 those in favor signify by "aye."

10 I've always been tinely on every one |'ve ever 10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Chairman signifies with an

11 filed. | guess if | learned anything is to start 11  "aye."

12 mailing everything certified. 12 Suzannah?

13 Mchel | €' s al ways been excellent to work with, |13 MB. O/ERHOLT: No.

14 and | do went to applaud her for that and al ways 14 CHAl RVAN CKESON St ephani e?

15 respondi ng back tinely. 15 M. BECKLEY: Aye.

16 MB. BECKLEY: | think at the very least | 16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN M. Di ckey?

17 would be willing to bring back the stepped approach | 17 MR D CKEY: No.

18 of 25 percent. | would also be open to arguments 18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN The notion fails. Wuld

19  bel ow 19 anyone like to propose an additional notion -- or

20 MB. OVERHOLT: | was just going to say that, 20 an alternate notion?

21 to the extent we take judicial notice of anything, |21 MB. OVERHOLT: | woul d nove that we reduce the

22 the postal service, the slowness and issues with 22 fine to zero.

23 delivery and mail over the past year and the fact 23 CHAI RMAN CKESON  |'s there a second?

24 that M. Schroeder is under oath, you know, | find |24 MR DCKEY: 1'll second that.

25 it quite believable that he nailed sonething and it |25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?
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1 Al those in favor signify by "aye." 1 notion about what you think is the appropriate

2 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye. 2 penalty here. If you think a waiver, a full

3 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 3 waiver, is appropriate, make that motion or if you

4 MR D CKEY: Aye. 4 think the stair-step, very simlar to what you just

5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it. 5 didwth oral testinony.

6 The nmotion carries. The penalty is waived. 6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Vel |, so the letter that |

7 Thank you, M. Schroeder. 7 see requests either a waiver or reduction. "Really

8 MR SCHRCEDER  Thank you. 8 didn't knowit was |late."

9 M5. WARYCHA:  That concl udes the peopl e t hat 9 So are we going to go through these one by

10 have raised their hand. Now Chairman Ckeson, just |10 one? This is their first penalty; right?

11 so you know, we still have the letters that people |11 MB. TAYLCR This is their first, yes.

12 sent in, and | might suggest having the canpaign 12 M5, OVERHQLT: | woul d nove that we -- because

13 finance staff go through those and tell you what 13 it's their first penalty, | would nove that we do

14  the canpaign's alleged violation is, howmany times | 14 the 25 percent of the proposed fine plus nailing

15 they've had a violation, and what they're asking 15  costs.

16 for as a settlenent. 16 CHA RVAN CKESON Ckay.  \& have a noti on.

17 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Ckay. 17 M. BECKLEY: | woul d second.

18 M KING And, M. Chairman, if | could add 18 CHAl RVAN CKESON There's a second.  Any

19 to what Valerie has said, it's inportant to note 19  discussion?

20 for the record that | don't believe any of these 20 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by

21  docunents were submitted under the penalties of 21 "aye."

22 perjury. So these are not sworn statenments. They |22 MB. OVERHQLT: Aye.

23 are letters explaining the facts that the comittee | 23 M. BECKLEY: Aye.

24  wanted to present to you. 24 MR D CKEY: Aye.

25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay.  Thank you. | 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it.
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1 appreciate that. 1 The notion carries.

2 Turn it over to Mchelle. 2 Next .

3 M5, THOWSCN Ckay. M. Chairnan, the first 3 M5. THOWPSON The next one is Tallian for

4 oneis Hggs for State Representative on page 1. 4 Atorney General. There are several of these.

5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. 5 They're on page 3, page 4, page 5 and page 52. In

6 MB. TALCR And it's the first letter inyour | 6 your PDF, it's letter No. 8.

7 letter attachment, and he just basically pleads 7 CHAI RVAN CKESON What do those fines total up

8 ignorance. He didn't know anything was late. The 8 to?

9 proposed civil penalty of $350.55. 9 M. TAYLCR $6,000 plus mail costs. There

10 M5. OVERHOLT: What page is that on? 10 were six late 11s.

11 MB. TAYLCR Page 1, the bottomof page 1. 11 CHA RVAN CKESON And is this the first tine?

12 CHA RVAN CKESON W' re basically, then, sort |12 MB. TAYLCR Yes. And this committee is

13 of, ina very circuitous way, comng back to the 13 cl osed.

14 stair-stepped proposed reductions; correct? And 14 CHAl RVAN CKESON So they' re being taken all

15 these are peopl e that have responded to the letter |15 as one?

16 wth their own information. \&'re presumng that 16 MB. TAYLCR  Yes.

17 they are seeking this reduction. |Is that kind of a |17 MB. OVERHOLT: And you said the cormittee is

18 fair summary of where we are? 18  cl osed?

19 MB. BECKLEY: A reduction or waiver; right? 19 MS. TAYLOR  Yes.

20 MB. TAYLCR  Yes. 20 M5. OVERHOLT: And where did you say the

21 MR KING VYes, | believe that's correct, 21 letter is? I'mnot finding the letter.

22 M. (hairnan. 22 MB. TAYLCR Page 8 in the letter PDR

23 MB. NUSSMEYER M. Chairnan, | woul d say that |23 CHA RVAN CKESON |t' s bel ow the CFA-4 forns.

24 as a commission, you need to decide if you think 24 M5, OERHOLT: That's right. | sawit earlier

25 the stair-step approach -- you just need to make a |25 and just missed it. Ckay.

Pages 89..92





Page 93 Page 95
1 CHAl RVAN CKESON Says "Prior 1 MB. THOWSON No.  They've got three of them
2 treasurer/canpai gn manager mssed deadlines. He 2 on the spreadsheet.
3 was not aware that noney transferred fromTallian 3 MB. OVERHOLT: And it says they've got 12
4 for Senate to Attorney General canpaign were 4 priors?
5 reportabl e donations." 5 MB. THOWSCN  Correct. They' ve never filed
6 And you said this is the first tine? 6 anything, once the conpany went into bankruptcy,
7 MS. TAYLOR Correct. 7 until | was able to get ahold of this M. Souza,
8 MB. OVERHOLT: And the committee is cl osed. 8 and we worked together and closed it.
9 Based on that, M. Chairman, | would -- due to the 9 CHA RVAN CKESON | get it.
10 fact the cormttee is closed, | would move that we |10 MB. NUSSMEYER And if | might, M. Chairnan,
11 waive the fines. 11 his letter also states that he was summarily
12 MR DCKEY: 1'Il second. 12 dismssed fromenpl oynent fromlrwin Financial in
13 CHA RVAN CKESON I'msorry.  Did you second 13 2009 and therefore had no ownership of the PAC and
14 that, M. Dickey? 14 then the bank went into bankruptcy, as | understood
15 MR DCKEY: | did. 15 the letter.
16 CHAI RVMAN CKESON |'s there any di scussion? 16 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.
17 Hearing none, | have a notion to waive all 17 MB. O/ERHOLT: Consistent with our prior
18 penalties for Tallian for Attorney General. Al 18 actions in this neeting, | would -- since the
19 those in favor signify by "aye." 19 committee has been closed, | woul d nove that we
20 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 20 waive all fines.
21 MR D CKEY: Aye. 21 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah. I'minclined to do
22 MB. BECKLEY: Aye. 22 the sane. |'Il take that as a notion. |s there a
23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  It's unanimous.  The 23 second?
24 "ayes" have it. The notion carries. The penalties |24 MB. BECKLEY: 1'Il second.
25 are disnissed. 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?
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1 Next . 1 Hearing none, all those in favor to waive the
2 MB. THOWSCN The next one is Irwin Financial | 2 penalties for Irwin Financial PACsignify by "aye."
3 CQorporation. This was three of them page 11, 3 M5, OERHOLT:  Aye.
4 page 104, and page 114. M. Souza was on the line | 4 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
5 and had to |eave for a neeting or had to get of f 5 MR D CKEY: Aye.
6 thecall. Thisislrwin He didsendaletter. 6 CHA RVAN CKESON The "ayes" have it. The
7 Inyour PDF, it's page 10. 7 notion carries.
8 CHA RVAN CKESCN  Yeah. 8 Next .
9 MB. TAYLCR It's 20 pages |ong. 9 MB. THOMPSON  Next is page 18. Friends of
10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Whoa. 10 Doug Eckerty has been before the conmi ssion one
11 M5. TALCR It was a whole darn thing. lrwin |11 other tine, has a proposed civil penalty of
12 Financial filed for bankruptcy in, | believe, 2009. |12 $855.55. He does have a letter. | just can't find
13 MB. THOWSCN | worked with M. Souza, and we |13 it right this second.
14 did close this committee. 14 MB. TAYLCR It's in the packet.
15 Ms. OVERHOLT: So this is closed too? 15 Ms. THOWPSON It's after Irwin, but | don't
16 MB. THOWSON  Correct. 16 know --
17 MB. TAYLCR  Yes. 17 MB. NUSSMEYER It's page 34 of the PDF.
18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN He says there's been no 18 MB. TAYLCR Thanks, Angie.
19 action fromthe PAC since Septenber 18, 2009. He 19 M5. NUSSMEYER And, M. Chairnman, do we need
20 says before that -- 20 toread all or part of the letter into the record
21 MB. TAYLCR That's probabl e. 21 or will it suffice just to have it as an exhibit?
22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Say that agai n. 22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN V¢ haven't done it for any
23 MB. TAYLCR That's probabl e. 23 others; right?
24 CHAI RVAN CKESON Yeah. Is this their only 24 MB. NUSSMEYER Right.
25 violation? 25 MR KING M. Chairman, there is no |egal
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1 requirement for you to read it into the record. It | 1 sonmething went wong. V&' ve been trying to figure

2 wll be part of the mnutes that you wll 2 that out. W& just haven't gotten there yet.

3 eventual |y approve. 3 MB. OVERHOLT: Wien you say "somet hi ng went

4 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Yeah.  Thank you. 4 wong," what do you nmean?

5 MB. OVERHOLT: So the way | read this, he's 5 MB. TAYLCR He has a negative bal ance on one

6 actually -- wait a mnute. 6 report and a $5 bal ance on the other, so I'mnot

7 CHAI RVAN CKESCN He's given us some Xx-rays. 7 sure. You know, like, the canpaign was -- oh, boy.

8 MB. OVERHOLT: H's wife broke her neck. | 8 | don't even know what year he ran. 2018, | nean,

9 nean, it sounds nore |ike he's requesting a 9 lost the prinmary. VWé've just got to find where the

10  conti nuance. 10 noney is to come up with a zero bal ance and cl ose

11 M5. TAYLCR And his committee is closed. 11 it out.

12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.  He says "I request ny | 12 M5, OVERHQLT: | woul d nove to continue

13  fine be set aside." 13 consideration of this pending the account being

14 M5. OVBERHOLT: | nmissed that. Sorry. That's |14 cl osed.

15 what | get for reading too quickly. 15 CHA RVAN CKESON |'s there a second?

16 CHALRVAN CKESCN - "... 1 was the sol e and 16 MB. BECKLEY: |'Il second.

17 prinary caregiver during this tine of ny filing 17 CHAl RVAN CKESON Motion to continue has been

18 violation | amrequesting ny fine be set aside. 18 seconded. Al those in favor -- any discussion?

19  Thank you for your tinme and consideration."” 19  Any questions?

20 MR D CKEY: You did say the conmttee is 20 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by

21 closed? 21 "aye."

22 M5. TAYLCR Correct. 22 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.

23 MR D CKEY: Qonsistent with our other votes, |23 M. BECKLEY: Aye.

24 1'll make a notion to waive the fine. 24 MR D CKEY: Aye.

25 MB. BECKLEY: And | will second. 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  Unani nous, the "ayes"
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1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on? 1 have it. Mtion is continued.

2 It's a good day to be before the comission, 2 Next .

3 isn't it? 3 MB. THOWSCN  Page 42, Friends of Sarah

4 MB. OVERHOLT: For a closed conmittee, yeah. 4  Sivers has a proposed civil penalty of $1,000. 55,

5 CHAI RVAN CKESON Hearing not hing further, 5 and her letter was received --

6 there's anotion and a second. Al those in favor 6 MB. TAYLCR Letter is on page 40 in that PDF.

7 signify by "aye." 7 MB. THOWSON Has not been before the

8 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 8 commission before.

9 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 9 I's her coomttee closed? Let me check and see

10 MR D CKEY: Aye. 10 if it's closed.

11 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it. 11 The commttee is still open.

12 The notion carries. The fines are disnissed. 12 CHAI RVAN CKESON She's had a fairly

13 M5. THOWPSCN Ckay. M. Chairman, the next 13 unfortunate coupl e years here.

14 one, page 38, bottomof 38, top of 39, thisis 14 M5. OVERHOLT: Yeah.

15 dtizens for Dave R ng. 15 MR D CKEY: Wat's the proposed fine agai n?

16 MB. TAYLCR The letter is on page 39 in that |16 MB. OVERHOLT: A thousand.

17 PDR 17 MB. THOMPSON  Yeah.

18 MB. THOWSCN  They' ve never been before the 18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN M chel | e, have you guys

19 commission before, has a civil penalty of $850.55. |19 spoken with her?

20 CHAL RVAN CKESCN ... maintained I ess than $5 |20 M5. THOWSON | have.

21 balance in our account." 21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And is she intending to

22 MB. OERHOLT: Sois this cormittee still 22 close the committee?

23 open? 23 MB. THOWSCN  She never real |y sai d whet her

24 MB. TAYLCR Yes, because he's got a bal ance 24 she was going to close it or not.

25 and he needs to file anendnents to figure out where | 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And the fine is for a late
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1 filing? 1 thoughts.
2 MB. THOWSON Correct. It was for her 2019 2 CHA RVAN CKESON So there's a notion to
3 annual report. 3 reduce to 25 percent. Is there a second?
4 Ms. OVERHOLT: | have two ideas. | mean, one 4 MS. OVERHOLT: Second.
5 would be to continue and give her the opportunity 5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN | have a second. Is there
6 to discuss closing the coomttee with staff, but 6 further discussion?
7 that's being kind of presunptuous on our part. The | 7 Hearing none --
8 other thing would be to reduce it to the 8 MR DCKEY: M. Chair, real quick.
9 25 percent. But I'mopen to other suggestions. 9 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah. @ ahead.
10 MR D CKEY: | would be open to continuing to |10 MR D CKEY: Just a question to the staff.
11 allowher to close the conmttee given the 11 Have they said anything, if it's been inactive,
12 circunstances she's outlined here. 12 about closing the committee?
13 MB. BECKLEY: Yeah. | think | would be on the |13 MB. TAYLAR No. And they've got way too much
14 side of continuing until the next nmeeting, chance 14 noney to think about closing.
15 to close the conmttee, and then she coul d plead 15 MB. OVERHOLT:  (kay.
16 25 percent if she were to keep it open. 16 MR D CKEY: Point taken. | recall the
17 CHA RVAN CKESON I'n your di scussions with 17 question.
18 her, Mchelle, she's not indicated any intention of |18 CHAI RVAN CKESON So we' ve got a notion and a
19 closing the comittee? 19 second to reduce to 25 percent for a first-tine
20 MB. THOWSON  No, none. 20 offense. Al those in favor signify by "aye."
21 CHAI RVAN CKESON Ckay.  Does sonebody want to | 21 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.
22 nake a notion? 22 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
23 MB. OERHOLT:  Sure. | woul d nove that we 23 MR D CKEY: Aye.
24 continue this to the next hearing to see if the 24 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Aye.  It's unani nous the
25 comittee is closed by that date. 25 "ayes" have it. The notion carries.
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1 M DKEY: I'Il second. 1 Next .
2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any di scussi on? W& have a 2 MB. THOWSCN  Page 52, Build Indiana. This
3 notion and a second to continue to the next hearing | 3 one was actual ly a continuance fromour neeting
4 date. Al those in favor signify by "aye." 4 back in February of 2020. There is a letter.
5 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 5 Wiat page are we on in the PDF? 42. Has a
6 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 6 proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55, has not been
7 MR D CKEY: Aye. 7 before the commission.
8 CHAI RMAN CKESON The "ayes" have it. The 8 CHAI RMAN CKESON They say the committee was
9 notion carries. The matter is continued. 9 closed; is that correct?
10 Next . 10 MB. THOWSON It is.
11 MB. THOWSON Page 51, For Better 11 MB. OVERHOLT: | woul d nove, consistent with
12 Infrastructure Political Action Conmittee has a 12 our previous notions, that since the comnmttee is
13 proposed civil penalty of $650, has not been before | 13 closed, that we waive the fine.
14 the commissi on. 14 CHA RVAN CKESON | have a notion. |s there a
15 MB. TAYLCR Wé're on page 41 in the letters 15 second?
16 PDR. 16 M. BECKLEY: |'Il second.
17 CHAI RMAN CKESON So they' re seeking a 17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN V¢ have a notion and a
18 conpl ete waiver just basically based on inactivity. |18 second to waive fines. Al those in favor -- any
19 Is that what |'mreadi ng? 19  discussion?
20 MB. THOWSON  Yes. 20 Al those in favor signify by "aye."
21 CHAIRMAN CKESCN This is a first of fense? 21 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye.
22 M5. THOWPSCN  Yes, it is. 22 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Anyone have any t hought s? 23 MR D CKEY: Aye.
24 MB. BECKLEY: | would nove to reduce it to the |24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it.
25 25 percent penalty. Qpen to hearing anyone else's |25 The notion carries. Penalties are dismssed.
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1 Next . 1 MB. THOWSCN  Page 92, Qtizens for
2 MB. THOWSCN  Page 58, Vending Industries 2 Responsi bl e Governnent, they have three, page 92,
3 PAC has a proposed civil penalty of $500.55, has 3  page 111, and 122.
4  been before the conmssion one other tine, also has | 4 M5. TAYLCR And the letter is on 46. Thisis
5 aletter, page 43. 5 the last letter, soit's the last couple of pages.
6 CHAIRVAN CKESCN This is their first tine? 6 And the conmttee is closed.
7 MB. THOWSCN No.  They' ve been before the 7 CHAIRVAN CKESCN It's a great letter.
8 commission one other tine. 8 MR DOKEY: Yeah. | can't, | can't. It just
9 CHAI RVAN CKESON And they paid a full fine? 9 is--
10 MB. TAYLCR They paid a settlenment agreenent. | 10 MB. OERHALT: Ch, ny gosh.
11 MB. THOWSCN  Sorry.  Yeah. 11 M5, TAYLCR  Yep.
12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So this is the second? 12 CHAIRVAN CKESCN It's entertaining. It is
13 MB. THOWSON  Correct. 13 cl osed?
14 CHAI RVAN CKESON Does anyone want to nake a 14 M5, TAYLCR  Yes.
15  motion? 15 MR DI OKEY: Consistent with our other
16 MB. OVERHOLT: |'d nove that we reduce the 16  discussion --
17 fine by 50 percent plus mailing costs. 17 CHAl RVAN CKESON And si nce they were duped.
18 MR D OKEY: Second. 18 MR D CKEY: -- motion to waive and di spense.
19 CHAL RVAN CKESON | have a notion, a second. 19 CHA RVAN CKESON  |'s there a second?
20  Any discussion? 20 MB. OVERHQLT:  Second.
21 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by 21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on?
22 “aye." 22 Al those in favor signify by "aye."
23 M. OVERHOLT: Aye. 23 M. OVERHOLT: Aye.
24 MB. BECKLEY: Aye. 24 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
25 MR D CKEY: Aye. 25 MR D CKEY: Aye.
Page 106 Page 108
1 CHAl RVAN CKESON Aye.  It's unani nous. 1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it.
2 Next . 2 The notion carries.
3 MB. THOWSCN  Finch for State Representative, 3 |'s there nore?
4 proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55. This 4 M. THOWSON Ckay. That's the end of our
5 comittee is closed and has not been before the 5 letters. Nowwe're to Abbey's stuff.
6 commission before, with a letter on page 45. 6 MB. TAYLCR \¢'ve got a few requests for
7 M5. OVERHOLT: And what page of the 7  conti nuance.
8 spreadsheet? 8 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Ckay.
9 M5. TAYLCR  85. 9 MB. TAYLCR The I ndiana Gsteopat hic
10 CHA RVAN CKESON I's this cl osed? 10 Association Political Action Conmttee, Cause
11 M5. TAYLCR  Yes. 11 No. 2021-4431-16. It's on page 9 of the
12 M. BECKLEY: Pursuant to our previous 12 spreadsheet.
13 discussions, | would nove to reduce the penalty to |13 CHAI RVAN CKESCN First tine?
14 zero, as the committee is closed. 14 MB. TAYLCR They're asking for a continuance.
15 CHAI RMAN CKESON |'s there a second? 15 | don't knowif this is their first tine or not.
16 MR D CKEY: Second. 16 MB. BECKLEY: It's the eighth tinme.
17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on? 17 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Di d someone say ei ght ?
18 Hearing none, all those in favor of a notion 18 M. BECKLEY: Page 9.
19 to waive penalties signify by "aye.” 19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ch,  page 9.
20 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye. 20 MB. TAYLCR This is their ninth delinguency.
21 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 21 That's probably why they' ve asked for a
22 MR D CKEY: Aye. 22  continuance.
23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it. 23 MB. OERHOLT: What's the basis for the
24 The notion carries. 24 continuance?
25 Next . 25 M5, THOWSCN Hold on. Ve didn't pull those
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1 letters. 1 Ckay. @ ahead.
2 CHAI RMAN CKESON Just  because they can and 2 MB. TAYLCR The next one is the Coomittee to
3 want to ask for one. 3 Hect Gorinne Vesterfield. She's got two causes,
4 MB. OVERHOLT: Yeah, | guess so. 4 2021-7188-82 and 2021-7188-157. It's on pages 47
5 CHAI RMAN CKESON And | heard correctly, was 5 and 90. She's asking for a continuance.
6 it Abbey, you said this is their ninth delinquency? | 6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN First, is this her first?
7 MB. TAYLCR That's correct. 7 MB. TAYLCR This is her first penalty, and
8 CHA RVAN CKESON Qver the course of how many 8 she's asking for a continuance because she's with
9 vyears? 9 her son at his chenot herapy.
10 MB. TAYLCR They've got a low file nunber, so |10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah.  Sonebody want to make
11 they' ve been around a while. 11 the notion?
12 MB. THOWSCN  Yeah, we don't put themall on |12 MR DCKEY: 1'll make that notion.
13 here. The last one we have is 2006, but | bet it's |13 CHAI RVAN CKESCN  Second?
14 been | onger than that. 14 MB. BECKLEY: |'Il second.
15 M. BECKLEY: It says "Qurrent and Forner 15 CHAl RVAN CKESON V¢ have a notion to grant
16  Delinquencies, 2019 Annual, 2016 PreBect." Aml 16  continuance and a second. Any di scussi on?
17 reading this right? 17 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
18 MB. TAYLCR Yes, but their first one was in 18 “aye."
19  the 1990s. 19 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye.
20 M. BEOKLEY: Ckay. So 2016 to 2019, so three |20 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
21  years. 21 MR D CKEY: Aye.
22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And is this the first 22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  The "ayes" have it.
23 continuance on this matter? 23 Mtion carries to continue. Thank you.
24 M. TAYLOR  Yes. 24 Next .
25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. 25 MB. TAYLCR The last one is -- I'msorry.
Page 110 Page 112
1 MB. TALCR She is at the Gand Canyon today. | 1 There are two nore. |Indiana Industrial Political
2 MB. OVERHOLT: Ckay. | nove that we grant the | 2 Committee, Cause No. 2021-6397-122, Cause
3 continuance until next hearing. 3 No. 2021-6397-189, and Cause No. 2021-6397-207.
4 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah.  Second, anyone? 4 They are asking for a continuance because it's new
5 MR DOKEY: [I'll second. 5 people and they didn't know anything about anythi ng
6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any  di scussi on? 6 that's happening, so they're trying to dig to
7 | think it mght be worth, though, for the 7 figure out what -- they learned about it a couple
8 record making sure that we're not -- we're reninded | 8 days ago.
9 of this and not punting on the next go-round. 9 MB. THOWSON Yes. | actually talked to this
10 MB. TAYLCR  You bet. 10 treasurer, but it's a new nanagenent conpany taking
11 The second one is the Conmttee to Eect -- 11 over and they didn't even realize this PAC existed
12 CHAI RVAN CKESON Hol d on. V@ have to vote on |12 and that they were in this kind of trouble. So
13 the notion. 13 they wanted to figure out what the heck was going
14 MB. TAYLCR |'msorry. | got so excited. 14 on before they presented it before the comission.
15 CHAIRVAN CKESCN | think we all are. I'm 15 CHAIRVAN CKESCN Al right. | nean, they're
16 wth you. 16 not asking for a waiver. They' re just asking for
17 & have a notion to grant the continuance and |17 sone time to get together, so I'mfine with that.
18 a second. Hearing no further discussion, all those |18 MB. TALCR Right.
19 in favor signify by "aye." 19 MR D CKEY: Agreed.
20 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye. 20 MB. BECKLEY: | woul d make a motion to
21 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 21  waiver -- or to continue.
22 MR D CKEY: Aye. 22 MB. OVERHOLT:  Second.
23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  It's unanimous.  The 23 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Second.  Any furt her
24 "ayes" have it. The notion carries for 24 discussion?
25 conti nuance. 25 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
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1 Taye." 1 otherwise function as a conmittee; make a finding
2 MB. OVERHOLT:  Aye. 2 that, according to the best evidence available to
3 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 3 the conmission, the dissolution of these commttees
4 MR D CKEY: Aye. 4 wll not inpair any contract or inpede the
5 CHAI RVAN CKESCN The notion to grant a 5 collection of any debt or judgment by a person;
6 continuance i s approved. 6 nmake a finding that the prudent use of public
7 Next. You said there was one nore? 7 resources nakes further efforts to collect any
8 MB. THOWPSON Yes. This is a separate 8 outstanding civil penalty inposed against these
9 attachnent you had called the "2019 Excess 9 committees wasteful or unjust, therefore that any
10 Corporation,” Justus Rental Properties. Heis out |10 such penalties be waived; and admnistratively
11  of the state today, and he (audio interruption). 11  dissol ve each of these conmittees.
12 M5. OVERHCLT:  You cut out. 12 I's there a second to that notion?
13 CHA RVAN CKESON Did we | ose you? 13 MB. BECKLEY: | will second.
14 M5. THOWPSCN Are you there? 14 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Any di scussi on?  Any
15 CHAI RVAN CKESON Yeah.  You cut out for a 15  questions?
16 mnute. 16 V¢ have a notion and a second. Al those in
17 MB. THOWSON  The 2019 Excess Corporation 17 favor signify by "aye."
18 separate attachnent, it's Justus Rental Properties, |18 M5, OERHOLT:  Aye.
19 Cause 2021-229. H's out of state today, and he 19 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
20 wanted to be able to appear before the comm ssion 20 MR D CKEY: Aye.
21 to explain what happened with this excess corporate |21 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Aye.  Hearing none opposed,
22 donation. 22 the notion carries.
23 CHAl RVAN CKESON Ckay.  Thank you.  Anyone 23 Ckay. Before we finish canpaign finance
24  want to nake a notion? 24 business, | would like to address an issue brought
25 MR D CKEY: So noved. 25 tony attention by staff. W have had two

Page 114 Page 116
1 MB. BECKLEY: 1'Il second. 1 candidates fail to enter their canpaign finance
2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN A notion and a second.  Any 2 reports electronically, as required by Indiana
3 discussion? 3 (ode 3-9-4-4. Indiana Code 3-9-4-16(j) allows the
4 Hearing none, all those in favor of granting a| 4 conmssion to assess penalties for this violation
5 continuance signify by "aye." 5 equal to the cost incurred by the Hection D vision
6 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye. 6 for the manual entry of the data contained in the
7 M. BECKLEY: Aye. 7 report or statement, plus any investigative costs
8 MR D CKEY: Aye. 8 incurred and docunented by the Hection D vision
9 CHAl RVAN CKESON It''s unani mous.  The notion 9 for this violation.
10 carries. 10 V& will not be hearing these two cases today.
11 That's it? 11 However, since this is the first time this issue
12 M. THOWPSON That's it for our continuances. |12 has cone before the commission, | woul d nove that
13 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So noving on, we go to 13 the conmi ssion adopt a policy to set a proposed
14 adninistrative dissolution of conmttees. 14 mninumpenalty of $100 to accommodate staff tine
15 MB. THOWPSCN  Yes. M. Chairnan, you have 15 and resources used to input the report. As | said,
16  another attachnment there with the dissol ved 16 we will not hear any of the cases at this meeting,
17 committees. These conmttees can be 17 but | think it is inportant to have a proposed fine
18 adnministratively dissolved. They have not filed a |18 in place to order prior to the hearing for any
19 report in three years, they have a balance of less |19 comittee to enter into a settlement agreenent.
20 than 1,000, and both chairnman and treasurer have 20 Is there a second for this notion?
21  been notified of this neeting. 21 MR KING M. Chairnan?
22 CHAI RVAN CKESON kay. | nove the commission | 22 CHAI RVAN CKESON Yes.
23 do the following: Make a finding that there's no 23 MR KING |'msorry to interrupt here. There
24 evidence that any of these commttees continues to |24 was a comunication earlier fromVice Chair Long
25 receive contributions, nake expenditures, or 25 that | believe you were provided a copy of.
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1 CHAI RVAN CKESCN You're correct.  You're 1 just going to get the penalty that was inposed?
2 correct. Thank you for remnding me of that. 2 MR KING They have --
3 MR KING And -- yeah. 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN They' ve not sought a wai ver ?
4 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Can | just sinply withdraw 4  They've not asked to be heard?
5 this notion? 5 MR KING This would be the equival ent of a
6 MR KING Yes. 6 default judgment entered in a court proceedi ng?
7 CHAIRVAN CKESCN 1'd like to withdraw t hat 7 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So do we have a notion to
8 notion in consideration of Vice Chairman Long's 8 inpose the penalty on the remaining cases?
9 request. 9 M5. BECKLEY: So noved.
10 M KING And, M. Chairman, if | coul d. 10 CHAI RVAN CKESCN V¢ have a second.  Any
11 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yes.  Yeah. 11  discussion?
12 MR KING | think if the comm ssion w shes to |12 Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
13 discuss this topic in general, you certainly have 13 "aye."
14 the opportunity to do so. And before you finish 14 M5, OVERHOLT:  Aye.
15 your canpaign finance business, you woul d 15 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Aye.
16 ordinarily move to default those individuals who 16 MB. BECKLEY: Aye.
17 did not appear. 17 MR D CKEY: Aye.
18 MB. WARYCHA: But before we do that, can we 18 CHAI RVAN CKESON The notion carries. The
19  have just a nonent? 19 "ayes" have it.
20 Hal ey, could you open up the line so that if 20 Brad, back to ny notion that | withdrew,
21 there's anyone who, for sone reason, was not able 21 shoul d we have sone di scussion about that or sinply
22 to use the hand notion feature, we give theman 22 push the matter to the next neeting?
23 opportunity, as we discussed at the beginning. 23 M KING M. Chairman, that is your decision
24 THE MDERATCR  Absol utely. Attendees, | am |24 and that of the menbers of the commssion. Since
25 going to give you pernissions briefly to allowyou |25 we wll have nenbers continuing to serve on the
Page 118 Page 120
1 tospeak if you did not get an opportunity to do 1 commission, | would suggest it night be beneficial
2 so, and then after a few seconds we wll renove 2 totake five mnutes to at least get the issue on
3 that if you do not have anything to say. 3 nenbers' radar screens so that they can think about
4 MB. WARYCHA: Vel |, everybody just muted 4 it and discuss with staff or other interested
5 thenselves, so | will go ahead and say that | think | 5 parties sone of the details invol ved.
6 that we're good. Please proceed, M. Chairman. 6 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah.  So, | nean, | read
7 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you. 7 through a notion here and withdrewit, but if you
8 Brad, you brought up defaults. 8 want to take a coupl e seconds and kind of give a
9 M KING Yes, sir. Odinarily you would ask | 9 reintroduction or overview of the issue and why we
10 if there's anyone present to testify on remaining 10 mght want to consider it.
11 canpaign finance hearing schedul ed for today. You |11 MR KING Thank you, M. Chairman. Then |'I]|
12 have done that, and we have checked to make certain |12 be happy to defer to ny counterpart, Co-Drector
13 that no one wishes to do so. 13 Nussneyer, for anything she night wsh to add.
14 CHAl RVAN CKESON So we' re good? 14 The canpai gn finance enforcenent statute sets
15 MR KING Well, alnost, and that is the next |15 forth a nunber of different penalties based on
16 step would be for you as chair to declare the 16 types of violations that cormittees commt, nost
17 hearings on all remnaining canpai gn finance matters |17 comonly delinquencies. There are others for
18 schedul ed for today to be closed -- 18 excess contributions. But the legislature, a
19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN d osed, yeah. 19  coupl e of sessions ago, required all |egislative
20 MR KING -- and then to ask for a motionto |20 candidates to file their reports electronically,
21 inpose the entire amount of the proposed penalty, 21 and except in two particular cases, which | won't
22 including mailing costs, in all remaining canpaign |22 nention by nane, |egislative candi dates have done
23 finance enforcenent actions. 23 so.
24 CHAIRVAN CKESCN So is there a notion to 24 The |aw provi ded that the commission can
25 inpose -- so basically they're not here so they're |25 assess a penalty for a violation, that is, for
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1 failing to file electronically, "equal to the costs | 1 know a notion and a second in the text somewhere

2 incurred by the Hection Dvision for the nanual 2 buried in however nmany pages of mnutes there woul d

3 entry of data contained in the report or statenent, | 3 be for whatever neeting it's approved in.

4 plus any investigative costs incurred and 4 So, | nean, conceptually | think it's

5 docunented by the" commission -- or excuse ne -- 5 sonething worth discussing. | don't necessarily --

6 "and docunented by the Hection Division for the 6 | nean, | have to think about it some more. |'m

7 violation." 7 not sure of any objections overall to the concept

8 In discussions at the staff level, at |east 8 of doing sonething like this, but I do think that

9 with the reports that we are currently |ooking at, 9 it should be inthe formof a formal order. So

10 they will require a mninmal amount of effort, but 10 that would be ny suggestion, to the extent that's

11 they will require staff time. And we are concerned | 11  hel pful, for when we do actually contenplate it.

12 that we don't want to set a policy that woul d 12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yes, that nakes sense to ne.

13 encourage people to not file electronically and 13 Brad, does that make sense to tackle it that

14 instead have the conmi ssion give clear guidance to |14 way at the next meeting?

15 candidates about their potential -- or committees 15 MR KING Yes. Once again in this neeting,

16 for their potential liability for failing to conply | 16  Cormissi oner Wl son Qverholt has read ny nind in

17 withthis state statute. 17  that, when we publish our canpai gn finance manual ,

18 And so we had discussed a m ni numpenalty of 18 we have included as an appendi x two or three

19 $100 to accormodate the staff tine and resources 19  ongoi ng comission orders that deal with matters of

20 because both Abbey and Mchelle woul d do data 20 policy like the one we're descrihing here. And so

21 entry, but it involves consultation wth |egal 21 having an order woul d be especial |y appropriate,

22 counsel and the co-directors to a linted degree. 22 considering those precedents, and it would be

23 And so we're seeking gui dance as to, when we come 23  readily available to anyone who accesses our

24 before the commission to present a proposed 24 canpai gn finance manual .

25 penalty, what that mninumpenalty should be in a 25 MB. NUSSMEYER M. Chairnan, if | night add
Page 122 Page 124

1 situation like the one |'ve described. 1 onto Brad s coments.

2 CHARVAN CKESON Yeah. And | think it's fair | 2 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Yeah, pl ease.

3 toexplain for the record that Vice Chairman Long 3 MB. NUSSMEYER And | believe this was sort of

4 requested that we not do anything that woul d be 4 inferred in how he described the issue and the

5 binding to a future conm ssioner that woul d take 5 problem | would encourage the commission to

6 his place at today's neeting, and | agreed to that, | 6 consider a floor, so a not |less than $100. But ny

7 which is why | wthdrew ny notion. 7 concern would be if there may be sone conmttees

8 So we've got the matter out there and 8 who would walk in with a 500-page handwitten

9 explained, and we'll be happy to tackle it at the 9 report and leave it with staff to file and enter

10 next neeting. | don't think there's any reason you | 10 because it's cheaper to pay the $100 penalty than

11 can't ask questions or have sone di scussion, 11 to hire staff to do the data entry into the system

12 though, even though we don't have a notion on it, 12 So as we craft the order internally to share

13  just for the sake of sort of unpacking what Brad 13 with you to consider, | woul d encourage you to

14 shared with us. So if anybody has anything, please | 14 consider setting $100 as the m ni num because, as

15 feel free. 15 the statute says, you nay assess a fine if the

16 MB. OVERHOLT: Wéll, | guess, | don't -- the 16 individuals fail to file their reports

17 thing that | woul d suggest would be that if we want |17 electronically. And much |ike we do for canpai gn

18 this -- so if we proceeded with sonething |ike 18 finance, you can consider each individual instance

19 this, it seens that doing it in the formof an 19 of failureto file areport individually onits own

20 actual conm ssion order as opposed to just, you 20 and assess at least a $100 penalty for failure to

21  know, a notion that gets reflected in the mnutes 21 file online.

22 woul d be good because, as we know, our orders are 22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And agai n, Brad, there were

23 easier tofind. \eéll, | guess | don't know | 23 only two instances of this occurring?

24 don't look for them But | would hope that our 24 MR KING Yes, M. Chairman, that's correct.

25 orders would be easier to find rather than, you 25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. | nean, | take your
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1 coments under advisenent, Co-Director Nussneyer. 1 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
2 | think that makes sense too. | get what we're 2 MR D CKEY: Aye.
3 trying to avoid here. 3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN W' re adj ourned.  Enjoy the
4 MB. NUSSMEYER | would add, M. Chairman, the | 4 rest of your week.
5 requirenent to file electronically is not going 5 MR KING Thank you. Likew se.
6 away, and if you're passing an order to set a 6 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Thank you.
7 mnimnumlevel of a potential fine, then it still 7 (The I'ndiana H ection GComm ssion Public
8 gives you, the commssion, the ability to increase 8 Session was adjourned at 3:36 p.m)
9 the anount if you think that's warranted. |f we 9
10 find that it, in fact, took staff 12 hours to enter |10
11 areport instead of zero hours, it gives you the 11
12 flexibility to inpose a greater fine. 12
13 CHA RVAN CKESON Right, and if you have 13
14  repeat offenders and the like as well. Gkay. So 14
15 we'll tackle that in that manner at the next 15
16  neeting. 16
17 I's there anything else? | think that's it. 17
18 Correct, Brad? 18
19 M KING Yes, M. Chairnan. That is all 19
20 that is on the agenda other than the notion to 20
21 adjourn. 21
22 CHAl RVAN CKESON Yeah.  And we' |l need to 22
23 have another meeting; correct? 23
24 M KING Yes. M. Chairman, there will need | 24
25 to be a subsequent neeting in the reasonably near 25
Page 126 Page 128
1 future because we did not bring all the canpaign 1 STATE CF | NDI ANA
2 finance matters before you today to try to keep 2 CONTY CF HAMLTON
3 this to a manageabl e length of time and 3 I, Mria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
4 partici pants. And we will -- 4 for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
5 OHA RVBN CKESON How hunane of you Ve 5 foregoing public session was taken at the tinme and
6 appreci ate that. 6 place heretofore nmentioned between 1: 03 p.m and
. 7 3:36 p.m;
7 M KING W are glad to nake this task a
8 confortable one. ¢ al go anticipate other matters 8 That said public session vas taken down in
. . ' . 9 stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting

9 coming upin the normal course of the election 10 under ny direction; and that the typewitfen
10 cycle, and so, yes, a n’ee” ng will probably be 11 transcript is a true record of the public session.
11  necessary for you to call in the reasonably near 12 |N WTNESS VHERECF, | have hereunto set ny
12 future. 13 hand and affixed my notarial seal this 12th day of
13 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Ckay. Wl l, we'll prepare 14 July, 2021
14 to do that. '

15 - .
15 And, Suzannah, normally Mice Chairnan Long 16 LW\U&U N Cﬂ”‘"
16 would nake a motion to adjourn. Vwuld you like to |45 SMaria i Collier
17 do that today? 18 Wil
18 MB. OVERHQLT: Sure, yes. M. Chairman, | 19 My Comsmizsion Expires Dec. 5, 2024
19 woul d nove that we adjourn today's |ovely neeting. |20
20 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Thank you. |s there a 21 M Conmission expires:
21 second? Decenber 5, 2024
22 MB. BECKLEY: 1'Il second. 22
23 CHANRVAN CKESON Al right. Geat. Al 23 Job No. 162010
24 those in favor say "aye." 24
25 MB. OVERHCLT:  Aye. 25
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do we have everybody?



      2          MR. KING:  Yes, we do.  We have actually three



      3     proxies available.  Stephanie Beckley, of course,



      4     is proxy for Zach Klutz.  And then Annette



      5     Craycraft is proxy for Vice Chairman Long, who is



      6     also able to join us on the call.  And then we have



      7     Adam Dickey, who will be substituting for Annette



      8     since she has a hard stop at 2:45 this afternoon.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     10          MR. KING:  And the other members are all here.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With you doing the



     12     introductions, I'll forego that and call the



     13     meeting to order.



     14          I would like to note for the record that I see



     15     my good friend Vice Chairman Long on, and I regret



     16     to see him in a setting that I'd rather he not be



     17     in, but I hope he's doing well nonetheless.



     18          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I am doing well, and it's



     19     good to see you again, Paul.  I wanted to sign on



     20     to tell everybody to have a good day and get things



     21     going and let's get this business of the State



     22     taken care of.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Absolutely.  I was hoping



     24     that maybe we could get together in person, maybe



     25     soon.
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      1          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I hope so.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With that, the meeting is



      3     called to order.  The members have been noted.  I



      4     would also acknowledge Co-Director Brad King and



      5     Co-Director Nussmeyer.  Is she on?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes.



      7          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am.  I am



      8     at work and I don't have video with my monitors at



      9     work.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So I haven't figured out



     12     technology to plug in a picture, so here we are,



     13     blank screen.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'd also like to obviously



     15     acknowledge our Secretary of State, Ms. Sullivan.



     16     Good to see you, ma'am.



     17          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Thank you.  Good



     18     to see you.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And do I understand, Brad,



     20     that the secretary will have some comments?



     21          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  There is an



     22     opportunity for the secretary to make comments.



     23          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Thank you, both.



     24     I appreciate that.  Thank you for letting me join



     25     you this afternoon.
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      1          And I especially just wanted to say thank you



      2     to Anthony Long.  I know you're not in the setting



      3     that you wanted to be for this particular meeting,



      4     but I wanted to take a chance today to say thank



      5     you for your 24 years of dedication and public



      6     service.  It actually reminds me of my predecessor,



      7     Connie Lawson, 32 years serving this great state.



      8     But yours is extra special because the commission



      9     actually has only been in place for 26 years and



     10     you have served diligently for 24 of those, so I



     11     just wanted to say thank you.



     12          I also wanted to share my appreciation for



     13     having another voice from southwest Indiana so



     14     prevalent in the process.  I think that's extremely



     15     important and very proud to have you from our part



     16     of the state.  I can't even imagine the number of



     17     miles that you've logged from 41 to 70 up to Indy



     18     and now, in the most recent years, along I-69 that



     19     we're all so thankful to have in place.



     20          But I just wanted to say thank you for your



     21     steadfast work and everything that you've poured



     22     into the commission.  You will be missed, but I



     23     know that you have much to look forward to after



     24     your July 1st retirement.  So thank you very much.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Thank you, Madam

�



                                                            7



      1     Secretary.  I saw you sitting there and was



      2     reminiscent of your career, following it, being



      3     from southern Indiana and how successful you've



      4     been and been a bright spot for southern Indiana.



      5     And I was so heartened when you were appointed to



      6     take the position that you're in now.  I look



      7     forward to seeing your good service there.



      8          I appreciate very much your thanking me and



      9     recognizing me for my years of service.  It's been



     10     a real treat, and I think the commission has, on



     11     the whole, been very successful over the years.  I



     12     think that two Democrats and two Republicans



     13     working side by side has been generally a



     14     successful mix for Indiana, maybe something they



     15     could send some of the people in Washington down to



     16     see how we've done things.



     17          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Amen, yes.



     18          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Yeah, we can disagree,



     19     but we've rarely, rarely ever been disagreeable in



     20     the 24 years that I've been there, and it's been a



     21     real pleasure.  And thank you for being here today.



     22     And I appreciate your kind words.



     23          SECRETARY OF STATE SULLIVAN:  Absolutely.  And



     24     I hope you're feeling better soon.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Madam Secretary.
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      1     Ironically, Anthony, I just got out of the car from



      2     Evansville myself.  I've spent the better part of



      3     this week down there with some mutual friends of



      4     yours who both work in Gibson County, and your name



      5     was invoked with highest regard a number of



      6     occasions during those discussions.  And I hope



      7     during my next visit down there I might get a



      8     chance to stop by and see you.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  I look forward to that.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And it's been an honor to



     11     serve alongside you and to work very cooperatively



     12     through a very challenging year for me, for all of



     13     us really, but in my early tenure as chairman of



     14     the commission.  And, quite frankly, I couldn't



     15     imagine going through any of that with anyone else



     16     on the other side of the aisle other than you, and



     17     I really appreciate that.  And I appreciate your



     18     friendship and our mutual respect for one another



     19     and will certainly miss seeing you at these



     20     meetings moving forward.



     21          I know your friends here on the commission



     22     would also maybe like to offer some personal



     23     remarks.  I'll turn the microphone over to



     24     Commissioner Wilson Overholt, who I know would like



     25     to say some things as well.
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And,



      2     sorry, I got a little teary hearing that.  I wasn't



      3     expecting that, so I apologize.  I'm usually pretty



      4     well composed.



      5          But, Anthony, it's just been an honor.  I



      6     mean, serving this commission has been an honor,



      7     but it's been an honor to serve alongside of you on



      8     the commission.  You've been a great teacher, great



      9     leader in terms of my indoctrination to the



     10     commission and the workings of the commission.



     11     I've already been on longer -- I guess it's been



     12     quite a while, nine years, I guess, already for me,



     13     which is kind of surprising.  But I've enjoyed it,



     14     and I wish you well, and hopefully we'll be able to



     15     live up to your expectations as we proceed into the



     16     future.



     17          So thanks and I hope you enjoy your



     18     commission-free time, the new-found free time that



     19     you'll have.



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Suzannah, you have done a



     21     superb job on the commission.  I have always really



     22     sort of envied your levelheaded, steadfast



     23     dedication to research and thinking through the



     24     issues.  You're as thorough as anybody that I've



     25     ever served with on the commission and on knowing
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      1     the issues and articulating your position on them.



      2     You've done a superb job, and I've been really



      3     honored to serve with you.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Thank you.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Vice Chairman, would you



      6     care to make any further remarks or comments?



      7          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Only to say that, Paul,



      8     we've had really -- I agree with what you said



      9     earlier -- a close working relationship, and I've



     10     always believed that we could get along and get



     11     more done by talking and working together, find the



     12     common grounds that we could work on, accentuate



     13     that, and just do the work to be done.



     14          I thought maybe one of the most outstanding



     15     things we did was during the primary in 2020 when



     16     we were facing the pandemic and no one, not one of



     17     us, had faced anything like it in our lives in this



     18     country or anywhere, to my knowledge.  And I



     19     thought the accommodations that we made, while it



     20     took a long time and it took lots of discussions



     21     and compromises and agreements and talks and just



     22     willingness to work together, that we -- I think



     23     the primary of 2020 was one of the most outstanding



     24     achievements that I think that as a commission



     25     we've done in the years that I've been there, and I
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      1     was proud to be a part of that with you.  And



      2     you've been a good chairman, a great chairman, and



      3     I wish you well in the future and do look forward



      4     to seeing you when you get down here.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  No.  I appreciate



      6     that and your leadership.  And I think it goes for



      7     the entire commission as a whole, we regrettably



      8     watch the news at night and see the coverage of the



      9     political landscape around us.  I find working with



     10     all of us on this commission to be hopefully



     11     inspirational to how people ought to comport



     12     themselves.



     13          And certainly your presence and your



     14     leadership on the commission has been exceptional.



     15     And I hope, to the extent we get viewers, I know we



     16     got a little bit of notoriety spring of last year



     17     that maybe we got some additional viewers out of



     18     it, got to see that firsthand and witness your



     19     leadership.  And I really appreciate having you on



     20     the commission.



     21          VICE CHAIRMAN LONG:  Thank you, Paul.  By the



     22     way, I just want to say that there may come a point



     23     I'll drop off here at some point, but it's not



     24     because of lack of interest.  There are limits to



     25     my stamina as we are sitting here today, and so if
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      1     I do drop off, don't think anything of it.  It's



      2     just I probably decided I need to take a nap, not



      3     that you all put me to sleep.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I try my best.  But



      5     understand.  Thank you.  It's good to see you.



      6          Okay.  We'll get into the business here.  I



      7     did intend to note that -- to recognize the court



      8     reporter from Stewart Richardson, Maria Collier.



      9          And as we get into the meeting, actually,



     10     Valerie, if you wouldn't mind maybe going over the



     11     hand-raise motion on the Zoom for folks as we get



     12     into this so that we make sure we're getting the



     13     record right.



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, sure.  My name is Valerie



     15     Warycha.  I'm the co-general counsel for the



     16     Indiana Election Division.



     17          And as everyone has just discussed, we had



     18     some issues last year, so we're going to try to



     19     control this meeting and who can speak and who can



     20     show a screen and that sort of thing.  And so what



     21     we are going to do is, as we go through, there's



     22     going to be a utilization of the hand-raise



     23     feature.  And so when the chairman gives the option



     24     to take a settlement agreement or take the deal, so



     25     to speak, you will have the opportunity to raise
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      1     your hand if that is of interest to you.



      2          And then, after we get through that, there



      3     will be a portion where, if you would like to state



      4     your case to the commission and provide testimony,



      5     we will once again ask you to raise your hand.  I



      6     will go through and identify in both of those



      7     instances when someone has a hand raised so we can



      8     document for the record who would like to take the



      9     deal and then who would like to make a



     10     presentation.



     11          And in order to kind of give people some time,



     12     whenever we raise our hand that you would like to



     13     make a presentation, I will say, for example, "Joe



     14     Smith will give his presentation now, and then Bob



     15     Smith is on deck," to try to give everyone a little



     16     time to find the documents.  And I understand that



     17     this might be a little clunky, so, commission



     18     members, if you get lost finding documents, please



     19     let us know.  The campaign finance staff is on and



     20     available to help you identify where that document



     21     is you need to see.



     22          And then for those of you on the line, if for



     23     some reason you cannot raise your hand and you are



     24     not recognized and you feel that we've missed you



     25     in some way, at the very, very end, we will open
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      1     the phone lines.  And there is phone call-in



      2     information in the Zoom link that we've got posted



      3     online.  And so we'll give one last, final call for



      4     you to say that "I wasn't able to raise my hand to



      5     take the deal" or "I'd like to make my case."



      6          We will make every accommodation possible to



      7     try to make sure that everyone has a chance to be



      8     heard.  And I will put my email out there as well.



      9     In the instance that you are really struggling, I



     10     will be monitoring my emails.  Feel free to email



     11     me, and I will try to help you along as much as I



     12     can.  My email is vawarycha@iec.in.gov.  And I



     13     realize my last name is a mouthful, so I'm also



     14     under the Contacts in in.gov/sos, and under



     15     Election Division, Contact Us, you can find my



     16     email address there and I'll be happy to help you.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Valerie.



     18          With that, I recognized we needed to confirm



     19     compliance with the Open Door Law, so I'll back up



     20     real quick and request that Co-Directors King and



     21     Nussmeyer do so confirm that we have done that.



     22          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  On behalf



     23     of myself and Co-Director Nussmeyer, I confirm that



     24     this commission meeting has been properly noticed



     25     as required under the Open Door Law.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      2          Let's go ahead and move to the approval of



      3     our -- is it February 25th -- is that right? --



      4     2021 meeting minutes.  I recognize the co-directors



      5     to present the minutes.



      6          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  On behalf



      7     of myself and Co-Director Nussmeyer, members have



      8     received copies of the minutes of the February 25,



      9     2021, Election Commission meeting, and we present



     10     them to you with our recommendation for your



     11     approval.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     13          Is there a motion to approve?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     15          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  So moved.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     19          Hearing none, all those in favor say "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it and the



     24     motion is approved.



     25          Can I get consent from the commission members
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      1     for the Election Division to sign the minutes with



      2     our stamps?



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Consent.



      4          MS. BECKLEY:  Consent.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      6          Moving on, we'll go to the administration of



      7     the oath.  Any person who plans to testify during



      8     the meeting today on any matter, including



      9     candidate challenges and campaign finance matters,



     10     please respond with an "I do" upon the reading of



     11     the oath.  When you are unmuted for your



     12     presentation, we will ask that you confirm at that



     13     time that you have taken the oath.



     14          And I recognize Co-Counsel Kochevar to



     15     administer the oath.



     16          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     17          Those who plan to testify today before the



     18     Indiana Election Commission, please say "I do"



     19     after the recitation of the oath.  Do you solemnly



     20     swear or affirm under the penalties of perjury that



     21     the testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



     22     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



     23     and nothing but the truth.  Please say "I do."



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Mr. Chairman, we won't be able



     25     to hear them say "I do."  Before everyone would
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      1     give testimony, we'll have them confirm that they



      2     did say the oath.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  All right.  That's



      4     good to know.



      5          Let's go to the ratification of campaign



      6     finance agreements.  I recognize the staff,



      7     Ms. Taylor, Ms. Thompson, to present the



      8     information concerning several campaign finance



      9     settlement agreements entered into on behalf of the



     10     commission.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman -- Michelle



     12     Thompson here -- and members of the commission, you



     13     have a sheet of paper that says "Settlement



     14     Agreements" at the top.  It's an attachment to an



     15     email that you received, and this is a list of



     16     committees to ratify that have agreed to pay the



     17     settlement agreement and waive a hearing.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a motion to ratify



     19     the campaign finance settlement agreements as



     20     presented?



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     22          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I'll second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     24          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     25     "aye."
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      1          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



      5     "ayes" have it, and the motion to ratify the



      6     agreements is adopted.



      7          Moving on, so we do have people present today?



      8          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we'll go over the



     10     opportunity to accept a reduced penalty before



     11     proceeding with the enforcement actions.  We have



     12     customarily given any committee present a final



     13     opportunity to pay a reduced civil penalty by



     14     waiving the right to present evidence and arguments



     15     to the commission.



     16          Of course, any committee is welcome to present



     17     any evidence or arguments for the proposed penalty



     18     to be waived or reduced, but this has been an



     19     opportunity for those who want to waive any



     20     presentation and accept the reduced penalty without



     21     making any argument or presentation.



     22          So therefore, I move the adoption of the



     23     following arrangements:  If this is the committee's



     24     first violation, the arrangement is for the



     25     committee to agree to pay 25 percent of the
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      1     proposed fine, plus mailing costs.  If this is the



      2     committee's second violation, the arrangement is



      3     for the committee to agree to pay 50 percent of the



      4     proposed fine, plus mailing costs.  If this is the



      5     committee's third violation, the committee would



      6     agree to pay 75 percent of the proposed violation,



      7     plus mailing costs.  For purposes of this



      8     arrangement, a previous settlement agreement



      9     entered into by the committee will be counted as



     10     one violation.  Likewise, if more than one alleged



     11     violation occurred on the same calendar day, that



     12     group of violations shall be also counted as one



     13     violation.



     14          Is there a second to this proposed motion?



     15          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I'll second it.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     18          Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion



     19     signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.



     24          Before this meeting, campaign finance staff at



     25     the Election Division sent a letter to each
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      1     committee which would be eligible to accept this



      2     proposed reduced penalty offering the committee the



      3     opportunity to indicate the committee's willingness



      4     to accept such an agreement to do so, subject to an



      5     approval of this procedure by the commission, and



      6     return that signed agreement to the Election



      7     Division so that if the commission did choose to



      8     adopt this procedure at today's meeting, the



      9     agreement could be ratified by the commission and a



     10     reduced penalty imposed without further



     11     presentation of evidence by the committee.



     12          Now that the commission has adopted the



     13     procedures, I will recognize Ms. Taylor and



     14     Ms. Thompson of the Election Division to provide



     15     the commission with a list of committees that have



     16     executed and filed these documents and enter the



     17     signed documents submitted by each committee into



     18     the record.



     19          If there are any committees present that would



     20     like to take this deal that have not already



     21     submitted the paperwork, please write your name and



     22     cause number in the chat box -- well, I guess we're



     23     not doing that, are we, Valerie?



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  Once we got here, we



     25     realized that wasn't going to work.
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      1          So if you would like to take this plea deal,



      2     please raise your hand now.  While campaign finance



      3     staff lists who they have, you'll have an



      4     opportunity to raise your hand, and then I'll



      5     recognize who I see as raising their hands.



      6          So, Abbey, Michelle, I'll turn it over to you



      7     for anyone you've already had accept a deal.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we'll let Abbey and



      9     Michelle get going, and then people can raise their



     10     hands and kind of get in the queue.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, please.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Go ahead.



     13          MS. TAYLOR:  Okay.  Well, that was not what



     14     our -- this is Abbey Taylor.  Yes, I took the oath.



     15     That was not what our letter said at all.  We had a



     16     different agreement on what we sent.



     17          We did receive 13 letters.  Do you want us to



     18     go through those committees that sent letters



     19     pleading their case?



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  Abbey, are those letters people



     21     who want to take the deal?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  There was no deal offered to



     23     anyone, so I'm not sure what that -- the letter did



     24     not offer a deal.



     25          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Valerie, if you recall, the
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      1     letter was modified because we, as co-directors,



      2     don't have the authority to offer a plea agreement



      3     to committees, and instead we asked committees to



      4     offer written testimony to ask for a reduction or



      5     waiver so that the commission themselves could make



      6     the determination about how they wanted to manage



      7     those letters.  That was my understanding of the



      8     letter.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Brad, I thought we dealt



     10     with this via some email communication.  Did that



     11     not happen?



     12          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, yes, we did discuss



     13     this in a series of emails that Co-Director



     14     Nussmeyer has alluded to as well.  At this point, I



     15     understand that the commission has received 13



     16     responses to a letter that may have a different



     17     content than what we just described.  And so I



     18     think it might be most efficient if we could get



     19     campaign finance staff to indicate what, in fact,



     20     the letter sent to the committees did indicate and



     21     what the individuals who returned -- signed the



     22     document and returned it did agree to.



     23          So if either Michelle or Abbey could address



     24     what was in the actual letter that was sent and



     25     what was received, that might be helpful.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, Michelle



      3     Thompson.  You also have a packet of the letters.



      4          What was it listed as?



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  It was letters -- it was a PDF



      6     labeled "Hearing Letters."



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did I get that from Joe or



      8     Brad?  Who sent it?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  One of them should have sent it



     10     to you yesterday afternoon.  I'm not sure --



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  I believe it was Brad you would



     12     have received that from, Mr. Chairman.



     13          MR. KING:  Right.  It would have been part of



     14     an email that contained several attachments from



     15     campaign finance staff.



     16          MS. WARYCHA:  I'll resend it to you now to get



     17     it at the top of your in-box, if that is helpful.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think I've got it here.



     19     I'm using my computer for the Zoom --



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  I know.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  -- so I'm looking at these



     22     on my phone.  PDF letters?



     23          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  47 pages.



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I see it.



      2          Okay.  So where do we go from here?



      3          MS. TAYLOR:  I was going to say, what's the



      4     best way to handle these?



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Brad or Val, you want to --



      6          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  I'm pulling up the letter



      7     right now.



      8          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Mr. Chairman, if I may.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



     10          MR. KOCHEVAR:  My suggestion would be is that



     11     we treat this as close to as if we were meeting in



     12     person.  That would be that the campaign finance



     13     committee staff bring up the committee name; go



     14     through the standard information that they give



     15     you, why they're here before the commission, what



     16     cause numbers that we're dealing with today; and



     17     then go through basically the contents of the



     18     letter, especially indicating if they have



     19     requested either a reduced penalty or a waiver.



     20          After that information is presented, I then



     21     think it would be in order for any one of the



     22     commission members to make a recommendation on if



     23     they want to provide a reduced penalty or waive



     24     that penalty, whatever motion they want upon the



     25     floor, or suggestion.
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      1          That's what I would suggest to all of you.  Of



      2     course, I defer to Co-Director Nussmeyer, the



      3     campaign finance staff, Brad, and Valerie as well.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  If I might, Mr. Chairman, I



      5     feel that in reading what's been provided to us in



      6     this packet, I feel like it would be helpful if we



      7     knew -- I'm assuming there was a cover letter that



      8     went out with this.  I'm looking at -- looks like



      9     it was a form that was sent to these committees.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I'm assuming there was a



     12     cover letter.  So if we could have a little more



     13     context to know what was represented to these



     14     committees and --



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What they responded to.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah, exactly.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Can we read that into



     18     the record or have it sent to us while we're



     19     sitting here?  What makes the most sense.



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  Michelle, Abbey, do either of



     21     you have a copy right there in front of you that



     22     you could read?



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  Okay.  I've got it.



     24          "To (Committee Name), From:  The Indiana



     25     Election Division, Re:  Indiana Election Commission
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      1     Campaign Finance Hearing and Request for Waiver or



      2     Reduction of Proposed Penalty.



      3          "The Indiana Election Commission is meeting on



      4     Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Indianapolis



      5     time, to review alleged campaign finance



      6     violations.  You are receiving this letter because



      7     your committee may have a campaign finance



      8     violation.



      9          "Due to COVID-19, the meeting will be virtual



     10     using Zoom.  Information to access the Zoom meeting



     11     will be published on this web page:



     12     Www.in.gov/sos/elections/election-commission the



     13     day prior to the meeting.  The link to attend the



     14     meeting will not be published until the day prior



     15     due to security concerns.



     16          "You may virtually attend" -- oh, no, I lost



     17     the place.  "You may virtually attend the online



     18     meeting on Thursday, June 24, 2021.  During this



     19     meeting, you will be given the opportunity to



     20     present evidence and arguments to the commission



     21     regarding your alleged violation.  Any committee is



     22     welcome to present evidence and arguments for the



     23     proposed penalty to be waived.  If you are unable



     24     to attend, you may ask for a continuance in writing



     25     with the Election Division by Monday, June 21,
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      1     2021.



      2          "Due to the virtual nature of this meeting,



      3     the commission is giving committees a one-time



      4     opportunity to file written testimony to request



      5     for a waiver or reduction of the proposed civil



      6     penalty instead of attending the Thursday June 24,



      7     2021, meeting to state your case in person



      8     virtually.  The Indiana Election Commission will



      9     review the written or oral testimony provided by



     10     the committee and consider pertinent information to



     11     determine if a waiver or reduction of the proposed



     12     fine is warranted.



     13          "The bipartisan commission must unanimously



     14     agree to waive or reduce any campaign finance fine



     15     pursuant to state law.  The commission must meet



     16     again to have heard the final orders generated by



     17     this hearing.  The committee may email the campaign



     18     finance staff to inquire about any proposed waiver



     19     or reduction of the fine.  The Election Division



     20     staff cannot advise you about your particular case



     21     before the commission."



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that the entirety of the



     23     letter?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  "If your committee would prefer



     25     to file written testimony to request a waiver or
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      1     reduction of the proposed penalty rather than



      2     attend the meeting, please submit the following not



      3     later than noon Monday, June 21st:  The committee



      4     name, cause number, treasurer's name, request for a



      5     full waiver or reduction, and an explanation for



      6     filing a delinquent report."



      7          That's it.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  So, Abbey and Michelle, could



     10     you kind of handhold the commission through the



     11     letter and what each campaign is alleged, their



     12     violation, and what they're asking for to close out



     13     the matter.



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Sure.  You want us to do it by



     15     each --



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I think Co-Counsel



     17     Kochevar's direction there seems sufficient to me



     18     and a good idea.  The first one I see that's



     19     listed, what I see is the Ungethiem campaign, but I



     20     don't -- whatever order you want to start in is



     21     fine with me.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  The first one on the -- well, the



     23     letter should be Higgs for State Representative



     24     Committee.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Oh, yeah.  Sorry.  You're
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      1     right.  I was down a page.



      2          MS. TAYLOR:  It's on the front of the



      3     spreadsheet at the bottom.  This is Higgs for State



      4     Representative Committee, Cause No. 2021-7405-2.



      5     This is his first delinquency, and it's a proposed



      6     civil penalty of $350 and a mail cost of 55 cents.



      7     His letter just says he didn't know that there were



      8     any filings required.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So I guess this goes to



     10     co-directors and co-counsel.  I guess where I'm a



     11     little bit lost or confused, so we've read through



     12     the procedures here where you can take a reduced



     13     penalty.  I mean, are these folks here to provide



     14     any comments or responses or are we just making a



     15     presumption that we're giving them a first-time



     16     violation reduction in penalty?  I'm not really



     17     sure where we're going here.



     18          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, this is Brad King.  I



     19     think there are several different paths the



     20     commission can take.  If I understand from staff,



     21     there are approximately 30 to 40 individual



     22     committees that submitted letters that were



     23     included in the packet that you're referring to



     24     that starts with the Higgs committee.  And I think,



     25     under the circumstances, the best way to move
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      1     forward is not as a group, but walking down the



      2     list, seeing if a representative from the committee



      3     raises their hand and wishes to speak, and then



      4     have the commission consider the arguments made and



      5     then make any decision regarding that enforcement



      6     action and proceed down the list of letters in the



      7     order that they are in your packet.



      8          And I'll defer to my counterpart if she has



      9     additional or other ideas.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Co-Director Nussmeyer?



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I would agree with that



     12     assessment, Mr. Chairman.  I think that's an



     13     appropriate path to take here.  And it would be up



     14     to you to decide whether or not you think the plea



     15     agreement is warranted, the 25, 50, 75 percent



     16     stair-step, or if you want to fully waive the fine



     17     or if you want to reduce it in a manner that's not



     18     the 25, 50, 75 stair-step.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so, for example --



     20     and, Suzannah, jump in at any time.  What I read on



     21     this Higgs letter at the bottom in handwriting --



     22          MS. WARYCHA:  Let me take a moment.  Is



     23     Mr. Higgs on the call?  If he is, would you raise



     24     your hand.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Because it says "I'm
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      1     requesting a waiver or reduction."



      2          MS. WARYCHA:  Yeah.  He's not on the call.  I



      3     just wanted to give him the opportunity to chime in



      4     if he was.  I don't see him.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, Mr. Chairman, if I could



      6     interject, it seems to me that so the letter these



      7     folks received -- I guess the process that Brad



      8     just recited confuses me a little bit, and Angie



      9     agreed with it.  But this letter that they received



     10     I thought was inviting them to fill out these forms



     11     and submit them in lieu of appearing at the



     12     hearing.  So I think -- I mean, I guess we can



     13     check to see if any of these people are here, but



     14     if I were them, I would be under the belief that,



     15     if I submitted this form, that I don't need to



     16     appear at the hearing; I've already said what I'm



     17     going to say with respect to my case.



     18          So whether -- I mean, I guess, again, we can



     19     double check because some people might, out of an



     20     abundance of caution, send in the form and appear



     21     at the hearing.  But it doesn't seem to me that it



     22     should make any difference of -- well, let me put



     23     it this way:  I guess if they're here, then, yes, I



     24     guess, that would make a difference in terms of how



     25     we treat this form, but I don't think we somehow
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      1     kind of hold it against them that they're not



      2     participating in the hearing today.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Because they've gotten the



      4     letter, yeah.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right, because they sent in the



      6     form.



      7          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman?



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Go ahead, Brad.



      9          MR. KING:  If I could interject, I think



     10     campaign finance staff would also be helpful if



     11     they would identify whether this and the other



     12     committees have had any previous violations.



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.  I mean, yes, I think we



     14     need to go through that, but I think it's -- I



     15     mean, I think we look at the letter.  We see that



     16     Higgs for State Representative Committee submitted



     17     a form.  We look them up in the binder -- well, the



     18     so-called binder -- see how many violations they've



     19     had.  And, you know, in this case he's asking for a



     20     waiver or a reduction.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  So I think that's giving us the



     23     latitude to do --



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Impose whatever we want to



     25     impose, yeah.  So we will probably, then, need to
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      1     go one by one; correct?



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would think so.



      3          MS. WARYCHA:  And just to get people off the



      4     room who want to take the deal, would you -- I see



      5     Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana has already raised



      6     his hand, wants to take the deal.  Just with



      7     respect to those, as we figure this out, as I said,



      8     it is kind of clunky, but do you want to go ahead



      9     and raise your hand, anyone who is here who would



     10     like to take the deal, so we can clear you out and



     11     you don't have to stay.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  That's a great point.



     13     So we'll give a minute here or so for people to



     14     make some sort of digital acknowledgment.



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  Sure.  So the first person I see



     16     is Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana, and let me make



     17     sure.  We've identified your PAC.



     18          Abbey, Michelle, do you see which one that



     19     goes to?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  That's on page -- yes,



     21     page 44.



     22          MS. WARYCHA:  The next person I see raising



     23     their hand is Niki Groves.  Haley, could you unmute



     24     Niki for a moment so we can see who Niki is



     25     representing.
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      1          Niki --



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Wait, shouldn't we take these



      3     one at a time the same way -- if we were in the



      4     hearing room, someone would come up to the front of



      5     the room, we'd say do you want to take the deal,



      6     the staff would recite the facts, we would decide



      7     what they're eligible for, we'd make the



      8     determination, and move on to the next person.  It



      9     seems like we should do that instead of -- having a



     10     laundry list of people who are waiting is going to



     11     slow it down too, so can we just take them in the



     12     order that you're seeing, take them one at a time



     13     in the order that they're being seen?



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, yes.  That would be fine.



     15     Thank you.  This is actually my first campaign



     16     finance hearing, so bear with me.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and to Suzannah's



     18     point, I think you've got to back up and start over



     19     because we don't know -- Dennis Tedrow, we don't



     20     know if this is a first or a second.  I think we



     21     need to go through that and understand what the



     22     reduction is; correct?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



     24          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  Haley, can you unmute



     25     Dennis for me, please.
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      1          And, Dennis, you will be unmuted here in just



      2     a second.  You are.  Go ahead.



      3          MR. TEDROW:  Can you guys hear me?



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



      6          MR. TEDROW:  Yeah.  This is Dennis Tedrow from



      7     Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana.  I would like to



      8     plead guilty.  This is my second offense.  I am



      9     under the impression that it is a $500 fine, and I



     10     am okay with paying that.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So what I hear from



     12     that is we're still in the procedural rules where



     13     he can take the second violation reduction;



     14     correct?  That's what we're looking at; right,



     15     Brad?



     16          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.



     17     You can do this a couple of different ways, but one



     18     way is to simply make a motion to impose the $500



     19     fine against the committee in this case.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that what it would be



     21     with the reduction?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And what's the campaign



     24     again?  It's Tedrow?



     25          MR. TEDROW:  Dennis Tedrow for Local Indiana.
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  It's on page 44 of the



      2     spreadsheet.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      4          Okay.  So is there -- I guess we're going to



      5     take a motion and vote on this; correct, Brad?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, you certainly



      7     can do that.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Are we going to do that for



      9     each one?



     10          MR. KING:  I would suggest, for efficiency,



     11     that it probably is the best way.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So is there a motion



     13     to accept the penalty for Tedrow?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So moved.



     16          Is there a second?



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     19          MR. TEDROW:  I have a question.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead, Mr. Tedrow.



     21          MR. TEDROW:  After this, so I have to wait



     22     until the end of the Zoom meeting or can I just go



     23     ahead and leave the call?



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.  You'll be able to



     25     depart after we finish.

�



                                                           37



      1          MR. TEDROW:  Okay.  Sorry.  I have to work is



      2     all.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No, no.  I understand.



      4          I mean, there is nothing else for him to do;



      5     correct, Valerie?



      6          MS. WARYCHA:  I'm not aware of anything else.



      7          Campaign finance staff, do you need anything



      8     else?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  Nope.  As soon as we're done, you



     10     can hang up.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Perfect.  Thank you.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  So we have a



     13     motion and a second.  Hearing no further



     14     discussion, all those in favor signify by "aye."



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     16          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



     19     motion is adopted.



     20          Next?



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  The next one we have is Niki



     22     Groves.  Haley, if you could unmute Niki.



     23          And then Niki, please state your name and what



     24     committee you're with.



     25          THE MODERATOR:  And, Niki, you'll want to hit
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      1     the unmute button on your device.



      2          MR. HARLOW:  Did it work?



      3          MR. KING:  Yes.



      4          MR. HARLOW:  Good.  I'm not very



      5     technologically sound, nor am I Niki.  I'm Andy



      6     Harlow, the treasurer of the Elkhart Builders



      7     Association, and I will be the first one to admit



      8     that we have had violations in the past.  In fact,



      9     I have been down in Indianapolis four or five years



     10     ago swearing that I would never be on one of these



     11     calls ever again, and I guess I'm a liar.



     12          We had the form dated January 21st that we



     13     sent in, and for whatever reason, it wasn't



     14     processed, which I'm willing to accept the blame



     15     for.  I'm just wondering if we can have some sort



     16     of dispensation as far as a smaller fine.  We are



     17     also pleading some form of guilty.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Which --



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     20     commission, this is on page 12.  This is the



     21     Builders Association of Elkhart County, Cause



     22     No. 2021-5251-20.  They have been before the board



     23     two other times and paid two settlement agreements.



     24     The proposed civil penalty is $1,000 with the mail



     25     cost of 55 cents.  They also submitted a letter,
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      1     which will be in your letter packet, and it was the



      2     fifth letter in there.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Who is the letter from?



      4          MR. HARLOW:  Me.



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  At the top it's Indiana -- or



      6     Builders Association of Elkhart County.



      7          MR. HARLOW:  And that's my signature at the



      8     bottom, sir.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm not -- what page is the



     10     letter on?  I'm not seeing it.



     11          MR. HARLOW:  I do have a copy I could send



     12     you.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  At the top, would it help, we



     14     have the cause number written at the top,



     15     2021-5251-20.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, it's hard to search a



     17     PDF.  We've got a 47-page PDF.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  It should be around page 33.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's helpful.



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 33, go after that.  I'm



     22     sorry.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There we go.  Okay.



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Next time I'll do separate



     25     attachments.  Lesson learned.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's okay.  Just need to



      2     know how to get to it.  Thank you.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.



      4          MS. TAYLOR:  Did we find it?



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  So the other thing is, right



      8     now we're just supposed to be considering folks who



      9     want to take the deal; right?  And what I'm hearing



     10     is that this campaign -- this committee doesn't



     11     want to take the deal.  They want to try to have



     12     further discussions.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.



     14          MR. HARLOW:  The letter really didn't offer us



     15     a deal, so I don't know exactly what we're asking



     16     for.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  His opening sentence



     18     does say to request a waiver or reduction of



     19     proposed penalty.  How many violations is this?



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their fifth time before



     21     the commission.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Five?



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  Two other times they were at a



     24     hearing, and they paid two settlement agreements,



     25     so this is the fifth, yes.
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      1          MR. HARLOW:  I believe the last settlement was



      2     the agreement when I promised to Mr. Long I would



      3     never be in front of you again.  We've had issues.



      4     I'm not going to go into them.  Our treasurer did



      5     spend most of the year in the hospital in Chicago



      6     on COVID, but that's immaterial.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so I need some counsel



      8     here.  Are we falling into a gray area?  Are we



      9     still into the proposed reduced in penalty or are



     10     now we moving into hearings?



     11          MR. KING:  Well, Mr. Chairman?



     12          MS. WARYCHA:  Go ahead.



     13          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Brad King.  From the



     14     facts in this particular case, it does not appear



     15     that the committee qualifies for any of the



     16     reductions that are part of the standard deal that



     17     the commission would offer at past hearings, and so



     18     it becomes the determination of the commission



     19     whether or not to grant any waiver or reduction



     20     whatsoever or whether to impose the full fine.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What's the amount of the



     22     penalty?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  1,000 plus 55 cents in mailing



     24     cost.



     25          MR. HARLOW:  I'll pay the stamp.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, can we have some



      2     discussion before there's a motion to figure out



      3     what we're doing or are we just --



      4          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, procedurally, you



      5     should have a motion before you to discuss.



      6     Whether you amend it or adopt it is, of course, up



      7     to the will of the commission --



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Okay.



      9          MR. KING:  -- but you can start with the



     10     motion.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So is there a motion



     12     to impose the penalty as presented on the Builders



     13     Association of Elkhart County?



     14          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  So moved.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  For clarification, that would be



     17     the full $1,000 fine?



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Correct.



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  And this is their fifth time



     20     before, not their third?



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Correct.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Then, yes, I would second that.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So now that we have a



     24     second, can we have some discussion?



     25          Suzannah, do you have any thoughts?
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      1          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, I guess if -- well,



      2     since -- I guess my thought would be since we're



      3     now kind of outside the parameters of the kind of



      4     stair-step situation, I would want to make sure



      5     that -- and I'm sorry.  Is this Mr. Harlow who is



      6     on the line?



      7          MR. HARLOW:  Yes.  Niki is here behind me, but



      8     I'm Mr. Harlow, the secretary -- or the treasurer.



      9     Andrew Harlow is my name.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  I guess I think this is more



     11     akin to a hearing, and I would want to make sure



     12     that he has fully presented what he wants to



     13     present in terms of his request that the fine be



     14     reduced.  So I guess that's my comment.  I know



     15     that's coming after the motion, but we were told we



     16     had to have a motion.  So my comment is that I



     17     would like to hear more from Mr. Harlow before we



     18     vote.



     19          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I may, that



     20     is an opportunity that the commission does



     21     routinely afford to committees, usually limited to



     22     five minutes, not counting responses to



     23     commissioner questions and discussion.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, without going through



     25     all those procedures for the hearing, can we just
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      1     afford Mr. Harlow a chance to speak with us now?



      2          MR. KING:  Yes.  I see no legal reason why you



      3     cannot.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  But can Mr. Harlow affirm that



      5     he took the oath first, please.



      6          MR. HARLOW:  I absolutely affirm I took the



      7     oath.



      8          MS. WARYCHA:  Thank you.



      9          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I may, the



     10     commission members usually will ask the committee,



     11     if this is a full hearing, if they're asking for a



     12     full waiver or a reduction and what that reduction



     13     to them might be, and then you use that as part of



     14     your assessment to make the final motion.  At least



     15     that's how it's traditionally occurred.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So say that again, the first



     17     part.



     18          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Sure.  Generally a member of



     19     the commission will prompt the committee to ask if



     20     they want a full waiver or a reduction and what



     21     that reduction to them would be.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.  So, Mr. Harlow, in



     23     your letter you simply request a waiver or



     24     reduction.  Can you articulate what your actual



     25     request is?
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      1          MR. HARLOW:  I would appreciate any waiver



      2     whatsoever or reduction that you could give, but



      3     let's start with 50 percent, and you're going to



      4     negotiate backwards on me.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And would you like to offer



      6     some explanation in the form of testimony?



      7          MR. HARLOW:  A couple of things I'd like --



      8     and this is not -- again, I'm just like the first



      9     gentleman.  I am going to tell you that we are



     10     guilty, or I think we are.  We did complete the



     11     form on January 21st.  We did mail it.  We did



     12     receive a letter in March it had never been



     13     received.



     14          But be that as it may, some of the things that



     15     transpired in this last 12 months, we removed our



     16     executive director for cause and had to find a new



     17     executive director.  Our accountant left the public



     18     field and went to be the private accountant for the



     19     Boys and Girls Clubs, so we had to find a new



     20     accountant at this same time.  As I shared a little



     21     bit ago, our treasurer, who had been the treasurer



     22     for two or three years, was diagnosed with COVID,



     23     and if he hadn't gone to the Rush Hospital up in



     24     Chicago, he probably would have passed away earlier



     25     this year.  We had to reduce our administrative
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      1     staff because of COVID.



      2          So we dealt with a few things that were out of



      3     the ordinary.  We implemented a few things to make



      4     sure that we're always on time.  We are now



      5     presenting the information to our accountant before



      6     it's due rather than wait for them to send us the



      7     response, because we don't get our accounting



      8     information, on a monthly basis, until about the



      9     20th, which makes it a little difficult to get it



     10     to you guys on time.  So if we give it to them a



     11     month earlier, hopefully we'll have it at the



     12     beginning of January as opposed to the end of



     13     January.  And I can tell you with absolute



     14     certainty you will never hear my name or voice ever



     15     again.  I promise you that.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Didn't you promise that the



     17     last time?



     18          MR. HARLOW:  I know and I'm a liar.  Sorry.



     19     But it was years ago.  It was about five years ago



     20     when I was down there, only to find out I had been



     21     there for the third or fourth time and didn't know



     22     it.  So I defer the last time.  I didn't know that



     23     we were a frequent flier.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and for the record, my



     25     comments were made with levity.

�



                                                           47



      1          MR. HARLOW:  I know they were.  I appreciate



      2     the levity.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So, Brad, Valerie,



      4     Angie, does your staff have anything further to



      5     offer on this matter?



      6          MR. KING:  Nothing substantive, Mr. Chairman,



      7     but just to say that if the commission is inclined



      8     to impose an amount other than the one in the



      9     pending motion --



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We'll have to amend the



     11     motion?



     12          MR. KING:  -- you will have to amend the



     13     motion and then take a vote on the motion as



     14     amended.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  I thought Angie started to say



     17     something.



     18          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I don't have anything further



     19     unless, Abbey, you have something in the file that



     20     you think is pertinent for the commission to



     21     consider.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  I do not.  The last time they



     23     were before the commission was June of 2012.



     24          MR. HARLOW:  That sounds accurate.  I'm sure



     25     it is accurate.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, taking your testimony



      2     at face value, as I do, it sounds like you've been



      3     on a bit of a rollercoaster ride here.



      4          Do any other commission members have any



      5     thoughts or comments as it relates to the testimony



      6     provided and the motion at hand?



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  And remind me, what was the



      8     proposed penalty in the current motion?



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  $1,000, I believe.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Yeah, the full penalty.



     11          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And 55 cents.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And 55 cents.



     13          MR. HARLOW:  I'll pay the 55 cents.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Which may be increased by



     15     the time we finish this meeting.  It could go up to



     16     57 cents.



     17          MR. HARLOW:  I have a forever stamp.  We'll be



     18     okay.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would say, Mr. Chairman, in



     20     light of the circumstances and that there has been



     21     a period of time since the last violation, that I



     22     would move to amend the motion to reduce the



     23     penalty to the 75 percent level.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to take that as a



     25     motion to amend the previous motion and impose a
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      1     penalty of 75 percent plus mailing costs.



      2          Is there a second?



      3          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  I would second that.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



      5          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



      6     "aye."



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      8          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none opposed, the



     11     motion carries.



     12          Thank you Mr. Harlow.



     13          MR. HARLOW:  Thank you very much.  We



     14     appreciate your consideration.  Do I still have to



     15     put my hand up to say that I said it's okay or



     16     verbal is okay?



     17          MS. WARYCHA:  We're good.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's okay now.



     19          MR. HARLOW:  Okay.  I appreciate it.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure thing.  Thank you.



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  So the next person that I



     22     see with their hand raised is Ferdinand Alvarez.



     23     And if you could go ahead and unmute him, Haley.



     24          And, Mr. Alvarez, are you wanting to take the



     25     deal or make -- if you're wanting to take the deal
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      1     as a percentage based on how many violations, we



      2     can do that now, or if you're wanting to hear a



      3     case, we'll wait until after we're done with those



      4     deals.  Mr. Ferdinand, are you wanting to take the



      5     deal?



      6          MR. ALVAREZ:  Can you hear me?  Hello.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Go ahead.



      8          MR. ALVAREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, members of the



      9     commission, for allowing me to speak this



     10     afternoon.  My name is Ferdinand Alvarez, chairman



     11     of the Lake and Porter County Young Democrats.



     12          The reason I did raise my hand is I do request



     13     a waiver of the fees.  The only dilemma is that I'm



     14     a deputy prosecuting attorney, and I'm on my lunch



     15     break, and I am on my way back to court to work for



     16     the State of Indiana.  And so I was just hoping



     17     there was some type of way I can be heard



     18     beforehand.  But I am -- unfortunately, my lunch



     19     break is coming to a close, and I will no longer be



     20     able to be on the meeting due to the fact that I'll



     21     be in criminal court.



     22          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Alvarez needs to



     23     confirm that he took the oath.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Alvarez?



     25          MR. ALVAREZ:  Yes, sir, I did take the oath.
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      1     I do so confirm.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And what I'm hearing you



      3     say, Mr. Alvarez, is that you want to proceed with



      4     sort of a hearing on the matter as opposed to



      5     accepting a reduction in penalty, which is what is



      6     on the table.



      7          MR. ALVAREZ:  Correct.  I am aware that I'm



      8     out of the order as far as the procedure on the



      9     agenda, but due to time constraints, I just wanted



     10     to bring it to this commission's attention



     11     beforehand rather than afterwards.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And you do recognize --



     13          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Mr. Chairman, can he call for



     14     a continuance if there's not time today?



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I suppose he can



     16     request one.  Is that correct, Brad?



     17          MR. KING:  Yes, he can.  Mr. Chairman, you've



     18     actually started consideration here, and if



     19     campaign finance staff can provide information



     20     about violations, we may be able to have the



     21     commission accommodate Mr. Alvarez so it's not



     22     necessary.  But, yes, if it is necessary, the



     23     commission can grant a continuance.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, and I just want to



     25     remind Mr. Alvarez that, by entering into this part
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      1     of the procedure, you may be foregoing your



      2     opportunity to accept a reduced penalty and may be



      3     imposed the entire fine.  Are you comfortable with



      4     that?



      5          MR. ALVAREZ:  I am, Your Honor -- or Your



      6     Honor.  I'm sorry.  I am, Mr. Chairman.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No one's ever called me



      8     that, so don't start.



      9          MR. ALVAREZ:  Force of habit, sir.



     10          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is page 28.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  So in the PDF, what



     12     page is the letter on?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  No, not the letter.  It's the



     14     spreadsheet.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  So does this count as their



     17     second violation?  Is that how I'm reading this?



     18          MS. THOMPSON:  This is their third.



     19          MR. ALVAREZ:  The reason for that, if I may,



     20     members of the commission, our organization has



     21     undergone three separate restructuring elections in



     22     the last three years.  I have recently been



     23     appointed chairman as of May of this year along



     24     with all new board members.



     25          I can't speak for the three violations in the
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      1     past.  All I can speak of is -- or speak on is that



      2     in the future our board is committed to being



      3     diligent on our paperwork.  Our financial



      4     statements are getting in order.  We are



      5     coordinating our bank accounts with People's Bank



      6     here in Munster, Indiana, and we are taking this



      7     seriously.



      8          Our previous treasurer was a 16-year-old high



      9     school student who perhaps did not grasp the



     10     seriousness of the accountability as far as



     11     paperwork and documentation, but we do throw



     12     ourselves at the mercy of this commission, and we



     13     promise that in the future all accountability and



     14     paperwork will be in order.  We are an organization



     15     of five individuals, and all of us are under the



     16     age of 31, so...



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There was a time when I



     18     wished my age was an excuse for my delinquency.



     19     I'm sorry.  Back up a step.  What's the committee



     20     name again?



     21          MR. ALVAREZ:  Lake and Porter County Young



     22     Democrats, sir.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  And so what's the



     24     proposed penalty?



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  The proposed penalty --
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      1          MR. ALVAREZ:  We -- I'm sorry.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Alvarez, hold on a



      3     second.



      4          MR. ALVAREZ:  My apologies.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  No.  You're fine.



      6          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is -- the



      7     Lake and Porter County Young Democrats has a



      8     proposed civil penalty of $50.55.  They have been



      9     before the board one time and they've paid the



     10     settlement agreement, so this would be their third



     11     offense.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So the penalty as proposed



     13     is $50.55?



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, after hearing



     16     Mr. Alvarez's testimony, does anyone have a motion?



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we use the



     18     stair-step approach and approve the 75 percent



     19     penalty for the third violation.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  I second that.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I mean, Mr. Alvarez,



     22     I'm kind of there too, and you could have dispensed



     23     with this a little bit quickly to get off your



     24     lunch hour here.



     25          So hearing a motion for a 75 percent -- or a
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      1     reduction of 25 percent on the fine as proposed,



      2     having a second, all those in favor signify by



      3     "aye."



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      5          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      6          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



      8          MR. ALVAREZ:  I thank you, members of the



      9     commission, for your decision.  It definitely beats



     10     a $1,000 fine, which is what I was unfortunately



     11     anticipating.  This fine is a bit more manageable,



     12     and I will ask my members to gather their



     13     babysitting money and we will pay this fine.



     14          So thank you very much.  I thank you for your



     15     time.  I hope you all have a wonderful day.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     17          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, I believe the



     18     spreadsheet shows the fine as being $50.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's right.



     20          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Okay.  So I think he may have



     21     misunderstood what his fine was.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think so too.



     23          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Okay.  Well, he'll get even



     24     better news, I suppose, with a 35 or $40 -- math is



     25     hard -- settlement agreement.  So thank you.  I
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      1     just wanted to clarify that.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  It's probably more



      3     like lawn mowing money and not babysitting money.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  So I just want to bring this up.



      5     I can see the hands that are raised, and I think



      6     there is confusion between the deal and making



      7     testimony.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  So I just want to open that up



     10     to you, Mr. Chairman, and see how would you like to



     11     proceed.  Would you like to continue giving people



     12     the opportunity to make their case or go back to



     13     the deals?  I just wanted to put that out there.



     14          And, Brad, feel free to weigh in.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Let me do this:  For all who



     16     are in attendance, if you can please take your hand



     17     down.  Let's start again with those who are



     18     interested in taking the proposed reduction in



     19     penalties without any testimony, now raise your



     20     hand.



     21          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  I see one, Roxanna



     22     Hanford.  And if you could please unmute her.  And



     23     Roxanna if you could say that you have taken the



     24     oath before you make remarks.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  Hi.  I did agree to the oath,
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      1     and apparently my computer is not showing the same.



      2     Mine shows that my hand is lowered.



      3          MR. KING:  We can see you.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  We see you.  You're okay.



      5          MS. HANFORD:  Well, I would prefer to present



      6     my case.



      7          MS. WARYCHA:  Oh, okay.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.  I see what



      9     you're saying.  Okay.  Thank you.



     10          MS. WARYCHA:  I don't see anybody else with a



     11     hand raised, then, Mr. Chairman.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to give one more



     13     minute.



     14          No one?



     15          MS. WARYCHA:  I do not see any hands.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  So presumption,



     17     then, is that everybody else would like to be



     18     heard.  We've already kind of dived in, but for the



     19     sake of the record, I'll go through the finance



     20     hearing procedures.



     21          The remaining committees will be called to



     22     make presentation of evidence in these matters.



     23     Before doing so, I want to note that in the past we



     24     have followed certain procedures, and I move that



     25     the commission use the following procedures today:
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      1          When each campaign finance matter is called,



      2     the hearing will begin by recognizing our staff to



      3     provide information about the documents in this



      4     matter provided to the commission members,



      5     including letters from the committees, and the



      6     notice given to the campaign committee.



      7          Unless there's any objection, the documents



      8     provided to the commission by the Election Division



      9     will be entered into the record of this meeting.



     10          After the campaign finance staff completes



     11     presentation, a representative of the committee



     12     will be recognized and may present their case for



     13     no more than five minutes.



     14          Commission members may ask questions during



     15     the presentation, but the time spent answering



     16     these questions will not be counted against that



     17     presenter's time.  And the Election Division may



     18     signal the chair when the presenter's time is up.



     19          If the presenter offers additional documents



     20     or other physical evidence not previously received



     21     by the commission, then the original must be



     22     provided to the Election Division.



     23          And, Valerie, we'll figure that out for the



     24     preservation of the record.



     25          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  If the commission finds that



      2     a committee has violated the campaign finance



      3     statutes, state law requires the unanimous vote of



      4     all four commissioners to waive or reduce the



      5     amount of penalty set by state law.



      6          If the commission makes a decision at this



      7     meeting to either fine a committee or dismiss the



      8     case against the committee, then the Election



      9     Division will prepare a final order for the



     10     commission to approve at a later meeting.  If a



     11     committee is fined today, the committee will



     12     receive a notice from the Election Division to pay



     13     the fine after the commission adopts the final



     14     order.  So it may be some time after today before a



     15     committee will be required to pay said fine.



     16          Candidates and committee representatives who



     17     would like to present today, please identify by



     18     using the hand motion that we've been using thus



     19     far, and the staff will identify you in the order



     20     that they see you.



     21          The commission will recognize the committees



     22     to present in chronological order of -- I just said



     23     that.  All right.  So please speak clearly and wait



     24     for -- and confirm that you've taken the oath.



     25          With that in mind, is there a second to the
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      1     motion on these procedures?



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  I will second.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



      5     "aye."



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      7          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



      8          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Motion's approved.



     10          Let's proceed.



     11          MS. WARYCHA:  Okay.  The first person I see



     12     is -- I'm going to say who I see and then who would



     13     be on deck.  So the first person I see is



     14     Ungethiem, and then I think -- if you could go



     15     ahead and unmute him, Haley.  And then the next



     16     person will be a Diane -- I'm sorry, I'm not going



     17     to say your last name correctly -- Yenerall.



     18          MR. UNGETHIEM:  Can you hear me?



     19          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, we can.  Can you confirm



     20     you took the oath.



     21          MR. UNGETHIEM:  I'm Bruce Ungethiem.  I'm



     22     representing the Committee to Elect Bruce



     23     Ungethiem.  This is the first time I've done this,



     24     Zoom or otherwise, so bear with me.



     25          I did submit written information on this, and
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      1     I am requesting a waiver of any fines that might be



      2     potentially imposed.  And the reason is that,



      3     according to how I understood the rules, the



      4     committee followed all rules and submitted all the



      5     forms on time.



      6          Oh, by the way, I did say "I do" and I'm under



      7     oath, so --



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      9          MR. UNGETHIEM:  -- we've got that out of the



     10     way.



     11          Basically, my understanding is that there were



     12     two issues around the committee.  One was a late



     13     filing of CFA-11 back in April of 2018 and a late



     14     filing of CFA-4 in 2021.  And in April of 2018, I



     15     filed the forms electronically, including the



     16     CFA-11.  Then at the end -- and I lost the



     17     election, so I did not have to file until the end



     18     of the year.  I filed again on the 15th of January



     19     of the following year, and everything was fine.



     20     There was nothing in the computer queue that



     21     indicated that there was any issue.



     22          In 2019, I didn't collect any money and I



     23     didn't spend any money because I wasn't running for



     24     election.



     25          In January of 2020, I made the decision that I
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      1     was never going to run for elected office again, so



      2     I filed the CFA-4 report on January 6 of 2020 and



      3     dissolved the committee.  The money that was



      4     remaining in the committee was donated to several



      5     local charities, and I thought I was done with that



      6     situation.



      7          In January of 2021, I got a note from the



      8     Election Division.  I got a letter sent out by the



      9     Election Division indicating the committee was



     10     delinquent in filing its forms.  I immediately



     11     called the office, talked with Michelle Thompson,



     12     asked her what the situation was.  We got onto the



     13     computer, and she did find that the CFA-11 was



     14     sitting in a file -- or in a holding area



     15     somewhere.  It was on the computer but for some



     16     reason now was not considered submitted even though



     17     in the previous two years it didn't indicate that.



     18          So she worked with me.  We got the CFA-11



     19     filed.  In addition, the notation about the CFA-4



     20     not being filed in 2021, since I closed the



     21     committee or thought I closed the committee in



     22     2020, my understanding was there was no reason to



     23     file a 2021 CFA-4.  We worked through that



     24     situation as well, got that situation resolved, and



     25     when I got off the phone with Ms. Thompson, my
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      1     understanding was everything was okay and no other



      2     action was needed.  Then I started to get



      3     information that said that there might be fines and



      4     penalties associated with that.



      5          The reason that I'm confused about this is in



      6     my previous life, when I worked for a Fortune 500



      7     company, I was the director of computer operations



      8     and know quite a bit about computers and



      9     programming and that kind of thing and know that



     10     they have a tendency to sometimes not be as



     11     accurate as we would like them to be.



     12          But in summary, I followed all the information



     13     that I had.  I filed all of the proper forms on



     14     time.  There was no intent to deceive, and there



     15     was no one harmed by any of the actions that



     16     occurred.  So my request is to have the -- any



     17     fines that might be imposed waived, and I will go



     18     on with my life and never run for office again.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Ungethiem.



     20          Staff, Michelle, does this all, this recount



     21     of events, sound accurate?



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  He also sent the letter



     23     explaining that all.  It's on page 2.  Let me tell



     24     you what pages these are on on your spreadsheet,



     25     page 2 and page 84.  And, yes, I did help him walk
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      1     through it and get it closed.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And was this -- this notion



      3     of the application being in some holding area, can



      4     you speak to that for me.



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  He entered the large contribution



      6     into the system on January 10th of 2019.  At that



      7     time it notified him that a large contribution



      8     report needed to be filed and he either had to hit



      9     "Continue" or "Update" to change it.  He did not



     10     file that report.  It was in the "Reports Due"



     11     section until he filed the report on February 2nd



     12     of 2021.



     13          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, campaign finance, for



     14     the record, should identify whether the committee



     15     has any previous violations.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, no, he has not



     18     been before the commission before.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  So do I understand, is the



     20     committee now closed?



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I think -- I don't know if



     23     staff would know this, but I heard Mr. Ungethiem



     24     just say that all the money in the account has been



     25     donated.

�



                                                           65



      1          MS. TAYLOR:  He closed the committee, so



      2     there's no money in the account.



      3          MR. UNGETHIEM:  That is correct.  All



      4     remaining funds were disbursed to charitable



      5     organizations.



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I -- well, Mr. Chairman,



      7     consistent with, I think, how we've handled



      8     situations like this in the past, I would actually



      9     move to waive the entire --



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Penalty.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  -- fine and mailing costs due



     12     to the fact that the committee is closed and



     13     there's no money in the account anymore.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So there's a motion



     15     on the Ungethiem matter to waive the penalty.  Is



     16     there a second?



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I would second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



     19          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     20     "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Seeing none opposed, the



     25     motion carries and the penalty is waived.
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      1          Thank you, Mr. Ungethiem.



      2          MR. UNGETHIEM:  Thank you very much.  Have a



      3     good day.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          MS. WARYCHA:  The next person on deck is Diane



      6     Yenerall, and then Roxanna Hanford is next.  And do



      7     not forget to say if you've taken the oath.



      8          MS. YENERALL:  Okay.  Thank you.  My name is



      9     Diane Yenerall.



     10          MS. WARYCHA:  Hold on just a second.  And then



     11     campaign finance, I think, will go first.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you.



     13          Go ahead, Michelle.



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  We're trying to figure out what



     15     page it's on.  Hang on.  Page 63.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Was there any letters or



     17     anything sent on this case?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  No.



     19          MS. THOMPSON:  No letters.  This is Indiana



     20     Speech Language Hearing Association PAC, has a



     21     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.  They have



     22     been before the board twice, and they have paid two



     23     settlement agreements, so this would be their fifth



     24     violation.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  How is it their fifth if
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      1     they've been before us twice?



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  They've also paid two



      3     settlement agreements.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I see what you're saying.



      5     Okay.  Thank you.  Sorry.



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  I've caught on.  You have to



      7     add both of those columns, I figured out.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  Right.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So I'm scrolling through



     11     here.  What's the proposed fine?



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  $1,000.55.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And, Diane, will you



     14     pronounce your last name for me, please.



     15          MS. YENERALL:  It's Yenerall.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yenerall.  Okay.  Thank you.



     17     Okay.  Ms. Yenerall, would you like to provide any



     18     testimony?



     19          MS. YENERALL:  Yes.  Thank you.  I do



     20     acknowledge that --



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And before you start -- I'm



     22     sorry -- what is it that you're seeking?  What's



     23     your request?



     24          MS. YENERALL:  We're seeking a waiver of the



     25     penalty of $1,000.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Proceed with your



      2     testimony.  I apologize.



      3          MS. YENERALL:  That's okay.  Thank you.  And I



      4     do acknowledge that I took the oath.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      6          MS. YENERALL:  I am representing the Indiana



      7     Speech-Language-Hearing Association PAC.  I am



      8     their new management company.  I entered into a



      9     contract with the association, the state



     10     association, in September after they had unresolved



     11     issues with their previous management company.



     12          I was not aware -- when I was contracted, I



     13     was not contracted to take care of a PAC account



     14     for them.  But when I received the letter in



     15     March 16th that the filing had not taken place,



     16     that a volunteer of the organization was to make,



     17     that is when I started discussing with them that I



     18     would take over the management of the PAC account



     19     for them since I am familiar with PAC accounts.  I



     20     manage associations with PACs in the state of



     21     Pennsylvania, Virginia, and New York, so I



     22     understand the severity of the penalties and



     23     reporting on time.



     24          So considering the fact that they were having



     25     issues that they needed to change management
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      1     companies, they had also at the same time, the



      2     person who was filing the PAC was brand-new, was a



      3     brand-new volunteer, and I don't think she



      4     understood everything that she was supposed to do.



      5          So I do acknowledge that they did have five



      6     previous violations, but I'd just like the



      7     consideration since we are a new management company



      8     and we do have experience managing PACs in other



      9     states.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm not sure that I have any



     11     questions.  Does any member of the commission have



     12     any questions for Ms. Yenerall?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  I don't, Mr. Chairman.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there any proposed



     15     motions on this matter?  I mean, consistent with



     16     sort of your comments on the previous fifth-timer,



     17     I'm inclined to impose 75 percent, unless there's



     18     other discussion or an alternate motion.



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  I guess I don't feel -- I feel



     20     like the situation described here was a little



     21     bit -- or described in the other case was a little



     22     bit different, but we might get into splitting



     23     hairs if we do that.  I don't know.  I don't have a



     24     strong feeling one way or the other, so I'll say



     25     that.
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      1          Well, I guess if no one else is making a



      2     motion, I guess I'll move that we proceed with



      3     the -- that we grant a reduction of 25 percent or



      4     impose and move that we impose 75 percent of the



      5     proposed fine.



      6          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Second it.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion and a



      8     second.  Any further discussion?



      9          Hearing none, all those -- go ahead.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Is there a reason -- what would



     11     be your thought on the difference?  Is it because



     12     they hired the new management company?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, my thought, I mean, the



     14     other situation where he was talking about how, I



     15     forget, one of the staff people was hospitalized



     16     with COVID, I mean, they also had kind of a change



     17     in personnel but then also some other



     18     circumstances, so I guess that's what I thought



     19     made it a little different.  But as I acknowledged,



     20     that could get into splitting hairs a bit or being



     21     a little bit overly subjective.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  I'm good to vote on the



     23     75 percent.



     24          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, staff understands the



     25     motion to include mailing costs as well.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Thank you.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes, of course.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We'll stipulate that from



      4     now on.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yes.  Sorry.  Yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?  Any



      7     questions?



      8          Hearing none, we have a motion to impose



      9     75 percent and a second.  All those in favor



     10     signify by "aye."



     11          MS. CRAYCRAFT:  Aye.



     12          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing it's unanimous, the



     15     motion carries.  Thank you.



     16          MS. YENERALL:  Thank you for your time.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Who is next?



     18          MS. WARYCHA:  Next is Roxanna Hanford, and



     19     then John Schroeder will be on deck next.  So



     20     please unmute Roxanna, and then, campaign finance



     21     staff, you're on.



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is on



     23     page 26 and page 73 of the spreadsheet, Vote



     24     Roxanna Hanford.  The first one has a proposed



     25     civil penalty of $1,000.55, and the second one has
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      1     a proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.



      2          No.  I'm sorry.  Has not been before the



      3     commission before.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What page is the spreadsheet



      5     on?



      6          MS. THOMPSON:  26 and 73.



      7          MS. BECKLEY:  So there's two accounts here?



      8     There's two violations?



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  There's two.



     10          MS. BECKLEY:  Okay.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And the second one is $1,000



     12     and the first one is how much?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  1,000.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Each.  Okay.



     15          Ms. Hanford, can you please confirm that you



     16     swore to the oath.



     17          MS. HANFORD:  Yes.  Good afternoon, everyone.



     18     I affirm that, yes, I did agree to the oath, and I



     19     was not aware that there were two penalties.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     21          MS. HANFORD:  So now I'm ten times more



     22     confused than I was before.  The only violation



     23     that I understood that was against me was not



     24     filing a final report as I made my run for U.S.



     25     Senate, District 6, and my paperwork has all been
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      1     sent in.



      2          Now, can you guys see us when we're talking or



      3     just hear us?



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I can see your face on a



      5     screenshot, but you're not live.  I can just hear



      6     you.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  Okay.  So, like I said, I was



      8     only aware of the one violation.  And my



      9     explanation for this is I had already been in



     10     office.  I was county commissioner.  I had opened



     11     my campaign account in 1999, and my campaign



     12     account was entitled "Vote Roxanna Hanford."  That



     13     was it.  It wasn't Vote Roxanna Hanford for



     14     Commissioner or Vote Roxanna Hanford for Senate.



     15     You know, the title of my campaign was Vote Roxanna



     16     Hanford.



     17          So when I decided to run for Senate, I already



     18     had my account.  I was out of office as



     19     commissioner.  I kept the account open.  I filed my



     20     annual reports, you know, and I sent bank



     21     statements with them to verify them, showing that



     22     the ending balances had not changed.  And so I sent



     23     my annual reports, but I never sent a final report



     24     because I knew that I was going to be running for



     25     office in the future yet.
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      1          So then starts my Senate campaign.  I pick up



      2     my campaign finances where I had left them off and



      3     started my fund-raising and my campaigning and



      4     whatnot, and it still is Vote Roxanna Hanford and



      5     that was it.  It was an unsuccessful race.  I



      6     concluded the race with a balance of $244.76.



      7          In filling out my CF-4 -- CF-4s, I marked them



      8     year-end, but I never marked it final because I had



      9     a debt.  When I opened my campaign, I opened my



     10     campaign with $5,000 and put it in as a loan from



     11     myself to a campaign.  It was my understanding that



     12     you cannot close an account if there is a debt owed



     13     or a balance; it has to be zero balance.  When I



     14     was no longer commissioner, I didn't have a zero



     15     balance, so I never marked it final.  When my



     16     unsuccessful race for Senate ended, I did not have



     17     a zero balance, so I didn't mark it as final.



     18          I continued to send in my year-end reports,



     19     and then I was notified that I needed to send in a



     20     final report to the Senate race -- oh, I ran for



     21     council after that, so I continued my campaign.  So



     22     that's why it wasn't closed and finalized at that



     23     time.  Then I was notified after that that I had to



     24     close out my Senate account with a zero balance,



     25     and I didn't know how to do that.  I don't know how
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      1     to close an account without a zero balance.



      2          So after my run for council, I did close out



      3     my account.  I did repay myself the remaining



      4     balance from the $5,000, marked the rest of it off



      5     as a donation, zeroed out the account, closed the



      6     account, and sent that paperwork in as well as my



      7     bank statement showing that this account was zeroed



      8     out and closed.



      9          So I just -- bottom line, I don't know how to



     10     close out an account without a zero balance.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, so could I ask a



     12     question?



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  So, Ms. Hanford, what I think



     15     I'm hearing you say is that your intent -- I mean,



     16     so is it your intent to close your campaign finance



     17     committees?



     18          MS. HANFORD:  Yes, it's closed.  Not out of



     19     bitterness or anything like that, but I'm unable to



     20     run.  I will not be running for any future offices,



     21     and so, yes, the account is closed.  Checks were



     22     shredded and the balance was zeroed.



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  And I keep hearing you --



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Your account may be closed, but



     25     your campaign committee is still open.
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      1          MS. HANFORD:  Campaign committee?



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.  So you would have



      3     created, when you started this whole process -- and



      4     I appreciate your having been so interested in



      5     running and sorry you ended up not having such



      6     great experiences.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  Well, I was a two-term



      8     commissioner.  I felt good about that.



      9          MS. OVERHOLT:  So you did good.  Okay.



     10     Anyway, so you would have opened -- under state



     11     law, you would have opened the committee's -- the



     12     campaign finance committee that you have to open



     13     under state law, and then there are bank accounts



     14     that you had, I think, that you're talking about



     15     where the money actually was housed.  And the



     16     committee that is created under state law is one



     17     where you -- it's the recordkeeping that kind of



     18     reflects what's going on in that bank account.



     19          It sounds like you have closed your bank



     20     accounts, but the actual committees -- and forgive



     21     me if I'm wrong -- it sounds like you might have



     22     had two campaign finance committees created under



     23     state law.  It sounds like those committees are



     24     still open but the bank accounts are closed.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  Okay.  So we're talking
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      1     committee and cash, committee and finances.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



      3          MS. HANFORD:  Two separate issues.  See, I was



      4     looking at one single issue.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Right.



      6          MS. HANFORD:  If there's money, there's a



      7     committee, a campaign.  If there's no money, if



      8     there's no race, then, you know, you just do your



      9     year-end report and that would be the end of it.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  To cut to the chase on this,



     11     can I just ask the question, is it your intent to



     12     close your -- well, you said you're not planning to



     13     run again, so if staff were to help you with the



     14     process to help you figure out how to actually



     15     close those committees that you've created at the



     16     state and local level, would you be -- are you



     17     intending to do that?



     18          MS. HANFORD:  Absolutely.  I'm not making



     19     excuses.  I'm not looking for sympathy.  But I have



     20     been diagnosed with multiple brain tumors.  This is



     21     very difficult for me to maneuver through.  I have



     22     stacks of papers that, while we're sitting here,



     23     I'm reading them.  I'm making notes to myself so I



     24     don't forget it because it's just too hard for me.



     25     I physically cannot do this anymore.  But I will
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      1     remain Democrat chairman.  I should say chair.  I'm



      2     sorry.



      3          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I might, in



      4     order to close her committee, we do need something



      5     in writing from Ms. Hanford that says that she



      6     forgives the debts owed to her committee, because



      7     once that is received, then staff can help her



      8     online to close out the committee to be reflective



      9     of the fact that she transferred her Senate dollars



     10     maybe not to a different bank account, but from one



     11     committee to the other, to the local committee, and



     12     do the final disbands to address the issues raised



     13     here today.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Ms. Hanford, can you help us



     15     with that?



     16          MS. HANFORD:  Yes.  If I understand this, is



     17     there a form that I'll fill out that says that I am



     18     disbanding my committee?  But then where do I put



     19     that money?  When I'm talking about money in there,



     20     I don't have to put a money amount in there?  I'm



     21     just disbanding that Vote Roxanna Hanford, and then



     22     put Senate seat -- or Senate race in there, that



     23     committee has been disbanded?  So that's it, I



     24     don't have to worry about putting a money amount in



     25     there, and then go through and fill out another
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      1     form that says Vote Roxanna Hanford not for county



      2     council, but Vote Roxanna Hanford that at the time



      3     was running for county council has disbanded that



      4     committee.  Is that what they're looking to do?



      5     Oh, but you do need a zero dollar in there.



      6          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Right.  So what we need to do



      7     is go back and amend a report that shows that you



      8     transferred the dollars from the Senate campaign to



      9     your local committee.  So we're not actually moving



     10     money; we're just showing the fact that one



     11     committee transferred funds to the other committee,



     12     even though the bank account was the same, which



     13     will result in a zero dollar balance.



     14          But then we also need an email from you that



     15     says that you forgive your loans.  And we can take



     16     this offline, if you like.  I know Abbey and I have



     17     your contact information and we can work through



     18     this with you.



     19          MS. HANFORD:  And my 3-inch pile of trying to



     20     figure this out.  I'm really not trying to be hard



     21     to deal with.  I just don't understand it.  You



     22     know, like I said, I always knew that you could not



     23     close an account without a zero balance, and so I



     24     just really don't know how to do it.



     25          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I can add just
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      1     briefly a couple of points.  It sounds like the



      2     candidate has committees at both the county and the



      3     state level, and so to be clear, what the



      4     commission is hearing today is strictly with regard



      5     to the state Senate committee.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      7          MR. KING:  And the candidate will have to work



      8     with her county clerk, county election board to



      9     close out the local committee.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     11          MR. KING:  But in terms of dealing with the



     12     state Senate committee, what Angie Nussmeyer said



     13     earlier is applicable in that we at the Election



     14     Division need to receive a final report that



     15     indicates that the state Senate committee is being



     16     disbanded.  There's a box, Box No. 12, that the



     17     candidate checks to say this is a final disbands



     18     report that would account for any transactions that



     19     have not been previously reported.  And Election



     20     Division staff is always happy to help a candidate



     21     do that.  So thank you.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Brad.



     23          MS. HANFORD:  I did that with the county in



     24     2020, and it says final disbands committee.  So



     25     with the county I did do that.  I see that as -- on
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      1     my form it's Box 11.  But I never did that with



      2     Senate because at Senate I still had money in the



      3     bank.  So that's why it wasn't done then.  With



      4     council I zeroed the account, so that's why I did



      5     mark it as final.



      6          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I could add one



      7     piece of information about past commission



      8     practice.  In situations similar to this one in the



      9     past, the commission has continued the matter to



     10     give the candidate an opportunity to close out the



     11     committee and, if the candidate does so, then



     12     typically proceeds to dismiss the action.  Again,



     13     I'm just reciting history, not making a



     14     recommendation.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Brad, read my mind.  I was



     16     going to suggest that we do that.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, make a motion.



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.  I would move that we



     19     continue this to the next hearing with the



     20     understanding that, if Ms. Hanford has indeed



     21     closed her account by the next hearing, that we



     22     would consider waiving these fines and mailing



     23     costs.



     24          MS. HANFORD:  And the mailing costs?



     25          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That all make sense to you,



      2     Ms. Hanford?



      3          MS. HANFORD:  Yes, it does.  But I would like



      4     to make a statement.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Give me just a second



      6     procedurally.



      7          MS. HANFORD:  The staff has been great.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Hang on just a



      9     second.



     10          So we have a motion.  Is there a second?



     11          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     13          And, Ms. Hanford, if you'd like to say



     14     anything else, you're welcome to.



     15          MS. HANFORD:  The staff has been great.



     16     They've been wonderful.  Through the years, from



     17     running for Senate forward have been some of my



     18     roughest years, and they have helped me



     19     tremendously.  So I compliment the election board



     20     as well as the staff and whatnot.  They've been



     21     wonderful to work with, and I appreciate your



     22     decision today.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     24          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, if I might for the



     25     record.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      2          MR. KING:  Just to note that Annette



      3     Craycraft, as she indicated earlier, had to leave



      4     the meeting, and so Mr. Dickey is now filling in as



      5     proxy and therefore will be voting on this



      6     particular motion.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Thank you, Brad.  That was my



      9     next point before we voted.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you, Brad.



     11     Thanks, Mr. Dickey, for joining us.



     12          So we have a motion and a second.  Any further



     13     discussion?



     14          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     15     "aye."



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     20          Hearing the "ayes" have it, the motion



     21     carries.



     22          MS. HANFORD:  Thank you.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You're welcome.  Have a good



     24     day.



     25          MS. HANFORD:  You too.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Do we have another one up?



      2          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes.  I see one last hand



      3     raised, and that is John Schroeder.  I'll turn it



      4     over to the campaign finance staff.



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, this is on



      6     page 93.  This is Builders Association of Dubois



      7     County PAC Fund.  It has a proposed civil penalty



      8     of $900.55, and they've never been before the



      9     commission before.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  And I'm pronouncing



     11     it Mr. Schroe-der.  Is that correct?



     12          MR. SCHROEDER:  Out of town, Schroe-der is



     13     appropriate.  Schrae-der here in Dubois County.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Forgive me.



     15          MR. SCHROEDER:  And I have taken the oath.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you, Mr. Schroeder.



     17     Would you like to provide some testimony and tell



     18     us what you're expecting out of this hearing?



     19          MR. SCHROEDER:  Well, I'm hoping for a total



     20     waiver.  The reporting question CFA-4 I mailed on



     21     January 4 of '21, well before the due date of



     22     January 20th of '21.  I was first notified by



     23     Michelle Thompson on February 11th that I was



     24     delinquent, and I immediately emailed her a copy of



     25     the report that I had mailed in.  As a rule -- you
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      1     can review our records -- we have timely filings.



      2     We've never been delinquent.



      3          So back in April, when I got my notice of the



      4     fine, I immediately called Michelle, and she did



      5     get back to me immediately and said she would put



      6     me on the agenda for this meeting to dispute the



      7     fine and also basically filled me in, in 2021, it's



      8     only an annual filing since there's no election.



      9     So that's my case.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What's the proposed fine?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  $900.55.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  Any questions



     13     for Mr. Schroeder?



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  I have one of the staff.  So



     15     just, Michelle, Abbey, do you have -- I mean, with



     16     what he emailed you, do you have anything that



     17     shows the date the report was actually mailed?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  We never received the mailed



     19     copy.



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  So I don't have the envelope or



     21     anything.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  So the mailed copy never came



     23     in?



     24          MS. THOMPSON:  No.



     25          MS. BECKLEY:  And what did he email to you?
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  The report.  He emailed it to



      2     me, and I stamped it the day I received it, which



      3     was the February 11th date.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Mr. Schroeder, do you have



      5     something that shows when you mailed it?



      6          MR. SCHROEDER:  Well, I have my own notes,



      7     what I keep.  And I knew I mailed it on January 4th



      8     because I was going on vacation the next week, and



      9     that's why I knew I mailed it then.  But, again,



     10     I've always been timely on every one I've ever



     11     filed.  I guess if I learned anything is to start



     12     mailing everything certified.



     13          Michelle's always been excellent to work with,



     14     and I do want to applaud her for that and always



     15     responding back timely.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I think at the very least I



     17     would be willing to bring back the stepped approach



     18     of 25 percent.  I would also be open to arguments



     19     below.



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  I was just going to say that,



     21     to the extent we take judicial notice of anything,



     22     the postal service, the slowness and issues with



     23     delivery and mail over the past year and the fact



     24     that Mr. Schroeder is under oath, you know, I find



     25     it quite believable that he mailed something and it
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      1     was that late or never received.  So I'd be willing



      2     to actually entertain a complete waiver, the



      3     25 percent -- reduction down to 25 percent or a



      4     complete waiver.



      5          MR. DICKEY:  I would agree.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So, Stephanie, was yours a



      7     motion and/or, Suzannah, was yours a motion?  Is



      8     there a motion?



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  I guess I will motion for a



     10     25 percent and open to hearing anything else.  But



     11     I'll motion for 25.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     13          I'll second the motion to entertain further



     14     discussion.



     15          MR. SCHROEDER:  Can I interject?  That fine of



     16     25 percent is actually more than we took in last



     17     year in the PAC fund due to COVID, so it really



     18     hurts a little fund like ours.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I understand.



     20          MR. SCHROEDER:  And we filed it.  That's my



     21     argument.  It would have been different if I had



     22     filed it, like, January 19th, a day before, but I



     23     filed it on January 4th, which should have been



     24     ample time.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, I know.  You've given
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      1     us your testimony.  We hear you.  And I want to



      2     remind you that it does take a 4-0 vote to make



      3     this motion carry, so it looks like it may not be



      4     quite headed that way.



      5          MR. SCHROEDER:  Thank you.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So any other questions or



      7     discussion?



      8          And we'll do a roll vote on this one.  So all



      9     those in favor signify by "aye."



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Chairman signifies with an



     11     "aye."



     12          Suzannah?



     13          MS. OVERHOLT:  No.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Stephanie?



     15          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Mr. Dickey?



     17          MR. DICKEY:  No.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion fails.  Would



     19     anyone like to propose an additional motion -- or



     20     an alternate motion?



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we reduce the



     22     fine to zero.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     24          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second that.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?
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      1          All those in favor signify by "aye."



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      3          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      4          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



      6     The motion carries.  The penalty is waived.



      7          Thank you, Mr. Schroeder.



      8          MR. SCHROEDER:  Thank you.



      9          MS. WARYCHA:  That concludes the people that



     10     have raised their hand.  Now, Chairman Okeson, just



     11     so you know, we still have the letters that people



     12     sent in, and I might suggest having the campaign



     13     finance staff go through those and tell you what



     14     the campaign's alleged violation is, how many times



     15     they've had a violation, and what they're asking



     16     for as a settlement.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



     18          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I could add



     19     to what Valerie has said, it's important to note



     20     for the record that I don't believe any of these



     21     documents were submitted under the penalties of



     22     perjury.  So these are not sworn statements.  They



     23     are letters explaining the facts that the committee



     24     wanted to present to you.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.  I
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      1     appreciate that.



      2          Turn it over to Michelle.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, the first



      4     one is Higgs for State Representative on page 1.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  And it's the first letter in your



      7     letter attachment, and he just basically pleads



      8     ignorance.  He didn't know anything was late.  The



      9     proposed civil penalty of $350.55.



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  What page is that on?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 1, the bottom of page 1.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're basically, then, sort



     13     of, in a very circuitous way, coming back to the



     14     stair-stepped proposed reductions; correct?  And



     15     these are people that have responded to the letter



     16     with their own information.  We're presuming that



     17     they are seeking this reduction.  Is that kind of a



     18     fair summary of where we are?



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  A reduction or waiver; right?



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     21          MR. KING:  Yes, I believe that's correct,



     22     Mr. Chairman.



     23          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, I would say that



     24     as a commission, you need to decide if you think



     25     the stair-step approach -- you just need to make a
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      1     motion about what you think is the appropriate



      2     penalty here.  If you think a waiver, a full



      3     waiver, is appropriate, make that motion or if you



      4     think the stair-step, very similar to what you just



      5     did with oral testimony.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, so the letter that I



      7     see requests either a waiver or reduction.  "Really



      8     didn't know it was late."



      9          So are we going to go through these one by



     10     one?  This is their first penalty; right?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their first, yes.



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move that we -- because



     13     it's their first penalty, I would move that we do



     14     the 25 percent of the proposed fine plus mailing



     15     costs.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  We have a motion.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  I would second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There's a second.  Any



     19     discussion?



     20          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     21     "aye."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.

�



                                                           92



      1     The motion carries.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  The next one is Tallian for



      4     Attorney General.  There are several of these.



      5     They're on page 3, page 4, page 5, and page 52.  In



      6     your PDF, it's letter No. 8.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  What do those fines total up



      8     to?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  $6,000 plus mail costs.  There



     10     were six late 11s.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is this the first time?



     12          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.  And this committee is



     13     closed.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So they're being taken all



     15     as one?



     16          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  And you said the committee is



     18     closed?



     19          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  And where did you say the



     21     letter is?  I'm not finding the letter.



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Page 8 in the letter PDF.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's below the CFA-4 forms.



     24          MS. OVERHOLT:  That's right.  I saw it earlier



     25     and just missed it.  Okay.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Says "Prior



      2     treasurer/campaign manager missed deadlines.  He



      3     was not aware that money transferred from Tallian



      4     for Senate to Attorney General campaign were



      5     reportable donations."



      6          And you said this is the first time?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  Correct.



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  And the committee is closed.



      9     Based on that, Mr. Chairman, I would -- due to the



     10     fact the committee is closed, I would move that we



     11     waive the fines.



     12          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm sorry.  Did you second



     14     that, Mr. Dickey?



     15          MR. DICKEY:  I did.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there any discussion?



     17          Hearing none, I have a motion to waive all



     18     penalties for Tallian for Attorney General.  All



     19     those in favor signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.  The



     24     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.  The penalties



     25     are dismissed.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  The next one is Irwin Financial



      3     Corporation.  This was three of them, page 11,



      4     page 104, and page 114.  Mr. Souza was on the line



      5     and had to leave for a meeting or had to get off



      6     the call.  This is Irwin.  He did send a letter.



      7     In your PDF, it's page 10.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  It's 20 pages long.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Whoa.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  It was a whole darn thing.  Irwin



     12     Financial filed for bankruptcy in, I believe, 2009.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  I worked with Mr. Souza, and we



     14     did close this committee.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  So this is closed too?



     16          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     17          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  He says there's been no



     19     action from the PAC since September 18, 2009.  He



     20     says before that --



     21          MS. TAYLOR:  That's probable.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Say that again.



     23          MS. TAYLOR:  That's probable.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Is this their only



     25     violation?
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  No.  They've got three of them



      2     on the spreadsheet.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  And it says they've got 12



      4     priors?



      5          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.  They've never filed



      6     anything, once the company went into bankruptcy,



      7     until I was able to get ahold of this Mr. Souza,



      8     and we worked together and closed it.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I get it.



     10          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And if I might, Mr. Chairman,



     11     his letter also states that he was summarily



     12     dismissed from employment from Irwin Financial in



     13     2009 and therefore had no ownership of the PAC, and



     14     then the bank went into bankruptcy, as I understood



     15     the letter.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



     17          MS. OVERHOLT:  Consistent with our prior



     18     actions in this meeting, I would -- since the



     19     committee has been closed, I would move that we



     20     waive all fines.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I'm inclined to do



     22     the same.  I'll take that as a motion.  Is there a



     23     second?



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?
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      1          Hearing none, all those in favor to waive the



      2     penalties for Irwin Financial PAC signify by "aye."



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      5          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      7     motion carries.



      8          Next.



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  Next is page 18.  Friends of



     10     Doug Eckerty has been before the commission one



     11     other time, has a proposed civil penalty of



     12     $855.55.  He does have a letter.  I just can't find



     13     it right this second.



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  It's in the packet.



     15          MS. THOMPSON:  It's after Irwin, but I don't



     16     know --



     17          MS. NUSSMEYER:  It's page 34 of the PDF.



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Thanks, Angie.



     19          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And, Mr. Chairman, do we need



     20     to read all or part of the letter into the record



     21     or will it suffice just to have it as an exhibit?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We haven't done it for any



     23     others; right?



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Right.



     25          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, there is no legal

�



                                                           97



      1     requirement for you to read it into the record.  It



      2     will be part of the minutes that you will



      3     eventually approve.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Thank you.



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  So the way I read this, he's



      6     actually -- wait a minute.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  He's given us some x-rays.



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  His wife broke her neck.  I



      9     mean, it sounds more like he's requesting a



     10     continuance.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  And his committee is closed.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  He says "I request my



     13     fine be set aside."



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  I missed that.  Sorry.  That's



     15     what I get for reading too quickly.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  "...I was the sole and



     17     primary caregiver during this time of my filing



     18     violation I am requesting my fine be set aside.



     19     Thank you for your time and consideration."



     20          MR. DICKEY:  You did say the committee is



     21     closed?



     22          MS. TAYLOR:  Correct.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Consistent with our other votes,



     24     I'll make a motion to waive the fine.



     25          MS. BECKLEY:  And I will second.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      2          It's a good day to be before the commission,



      3     isn't it?



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  For a closed committee, yeah.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing nothing further,



      6     there's a motion and a second.  All those in favor



      7     signify by "aye."



      8          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     12     The motion carries.  The fines are dismissed.



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, the next



     14     one, page 38, bottom of 38, top of 39, this is



     15     Citizens for Dave Ring.



     16          MS. TAYLOR:  The letter is on page 39 in that



     17     PDF.



     18          MS. THOMPSON:  They've never been before the



     19     commission before, has a civil penalty of $850.55.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  "...maintained less than $5



     21     balance in our account."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  So is this committee still



     23     open?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes, because he's got a balance



     25     and he needs to file amendments to figure out where
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      1     something went wrong.  We've been trying to figure



      2     that out.  We just haven't gotten there yet.



      3          MS. OVERHOLT:  When you say "something went



      4     wrong," what do you mean?



      5          MS. TAYLOR:  He has a negative balance on one



      6     report and a $5 balance on the other, so I'm not



      7     sure.  You know, like, the campaign was -- oh, boy.



      8     I don't even know what year he ran.  2018, I mean,



      9     lost the primary.  We've just got to find where the



     10     money is to come up with a zero balance and close



     11     it out.



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move to continue



     13     consideration of this pending the account being



     14     closed.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Motion to continue has been



     18     seconded.  All those in favor -- any discussion?



     19     Any questions?



     20          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     21     "aye."



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     23          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     24          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  Unanimous, the "ayes"
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      1     have it.  Motion is continued.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 42, Friends of Sarah



      4     Stivers has a proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55,



      5     and her letter was received --



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  Letter is on page 40 in that PDF.



      7          MS. THOMPSON:  Has not been before the



      8     commission before.



      9          Is her committee closed?  Let me check and see



     10     if it's closed.



     11          The committee is still open.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  She's had a fairly



     13     unfortunate couple years here.



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah.



     15          MR. DICKEY:  What's the proposed fine again?



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  A thousand.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  Yeah.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Michelle, have you guys



     19     spoken with her?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  I have.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is she intending to



     22     close the committee?



     23          MS. THOMPSON:  She never really said whether



     24     she was going to close it or not.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And the fine is for a late
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      1     filing?



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.  It was for her 2019



      3     annual report.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  I have two ideas.  I mean, one



      5     would be to continue and give her the opportunity



      6     to discuss closing the committee with staff, but



      7     that's being kind of presumptuous on our part.  The



      8     other thing would be to reduce it to the



      9     25 percent.  But I'm open to other suggestions.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  I would be open to continuing to



     11     allow her to close the committee given the



     12     circumstances she's outlined here.



     13          MS. BECKLEY:  Yeah.  I think I would be on the



     14     side of continuing until the next meeting, chance



     15     to close the committee, and then she could plead



     16     25 percent if she were to keep it open.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  In your discussions with



     18     her, Michelle, she's not indicated any intention of



     19     closing the committee?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  No, none.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Does somebody want to



     22     make a motion?



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Sure.  I would move that we



     24     continue this to the next hearing to see if the



     25     committee is closed by that date.
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      1          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?  We have a



      3     motion and a second to continue to the next hearing



      4     date.  All those in favor signify by "aye."



      5          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      6          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      7          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      9     motion carries.  The matter is continued.



     10          Next.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 51, For Better



     12     Infrastructure Political Action Committee has a



     13     proposed civil penalty of $650, has not been before



     14     the commission.



     15          MS. TAYLOR:  We're on page 41 in the letters



     16     PDF.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So they're seeking a



     18     complete waiver just basically based on inactivity.



     19     Is that what I'm reading?



     20          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  This is a first offense?



     22          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes, it is.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anyone have any thoughts?



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  I would move to reduce it to the



     25     25 percent penalty.  Open to hearing anyone else's
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      1     thoughts.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So there's a motion to



      3     reduce to 25 percent.  Is there a second?



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a second.  Is there



      6     further discussion?



      7          Hearing none --



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Mr. Chair, real quick.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Go ahead.



     10          MR. DICKEY:  Just a question to the staff.



     11     Have they said anything, if it's been inactive,



     12     about closing the committee?



     13          MS. TAYLOR:  No.  And they've got way too much



     14     money to think about closing.



     15          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.



     16          MR. DICKEY:  Point taken.  I recall the



     17     question.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we've got a motion and a



     19     second to reduce to 25 percent for a first-time



     20     offense.  All those in favor signify by "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous the



     25     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 52, Build Indiana.  This



      3     one was actually a continuance from our meeting



      4     back in February of 2020.  There is a letter.



      5          What page are we on in the PDF?  42.  Has a



      6     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55, has not been



      7     before the commission.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They say the committee was



      9     closed; is that correct?



     10          MS. THOMPSON:  It is.



     11          MS. OVERHOLT:  I would move, consistent with



     12     our previous motions, that since the committee is



     13     closed, that we waive the fine.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a motion.  Is there a



     15     second?



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion and a



     18     second to waive fines.  All those in favor -- any



     19     discussion?



     20          All those in favor signify by "aye."



     21          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     23          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     25     The motion carries.  Penalties are dismissed.
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      1          Next.



      2          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 58, Vending Industries



      3     PAC, has a proposed civil penalty of $500.55, has



      4     been before the commission one other time, also has



      5     a letter, page 43.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  This is their first time?



      7          MS. THOMPSON:  No.  They've been before the



      8     commission one other time.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And they paid a full fine?



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  They paid a settlement agreement.



     11          MS. THOMPSON:  Sorry.  Yeah.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So this is the second?



     13          MS. THOMPSON:  Correct.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Does anyone want to make a



     15     motion?



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  I'd move that we reduce the



     17     fine by 50 percent plus mailing costs.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I have a motion, a second.



     20     Any discussion?



     21          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     22     "aye."



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     25          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.



      2          Next.



      3          MS. THOMPSON:  Finch for State Representative,



      4     proposed civil penalty of $1,000.55.  This



      5     committee is closed and has not been before the



      6     commission before, with a letter on page 45.



      7          MS. OVERHOLT:  And what page of the



      8     spreadsheet?



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  85.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is this closed?



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     12          MS. BECKLEY:  Pursuant to our previous



     13     discussions, I would move to reduce the penalty to



     14     zero, as the committee is closed.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     16          MR. DICKEY:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     18          Hearing none, all those in favor of a motion



     19     to waive penalties signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     24     The motion carries.



     25          Next.
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      1          MS. THOMPSON:  Page 92, Citizens for



      2     Responsible Government, they have three, page 92,



      3     page 111, and 122.



      4          MS. TAYLOR:  And the letter is on 46.  This is



      5     the last letter, so it's the last couple of pages.



      6     And the committee is closed.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's a great letter.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Yeah.  I can't, I can't.  It just



      9     is --



     10          MS. OVERHOLT:  Oh, my gosh.



     11          MS. TAYLOR:  Yep.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's entertaining.  It is



     13     closed?



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     15          MR. DICKEY:  Consistent with our other



     16     discussion --



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And since they were duped.



     18          MR. DICKEY:  -- motion to waive and dispense.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



     22          All those in favor signify by "aye."



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     24          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     25          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



      2     The motion carries.



      3          Is there more?



      4          MS. THOMPSON:  Okay.  That's the end of our



      5     letters.  Now we're to Abbey's stuff.



      6          MS. TAYLOR:  We've got a few requests for



      7     continuance.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.



      9          MS. TAYLOR:  The Indiana Osteopathic



     10     Association Political Action Committee, Cause



     11     No. 2021-4431-16.  It's on page 9 of the



     12     spreadsheet.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  First time?



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  They're asking for a continuance.



     15     I don't know if this is their first time or not.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  It's the eighth time.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did someone say eight?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  Page 9.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Oh, page 9.



     20          MS. TAYLOR:  This is their ninth delinquency.



     21     That's probably why they've asked for a



     22     continuance.



     23          MS. OVERHOLT:  What's the basis for the



     24     continuance?



     25          MS. THOMPSON:  Hold on.  We didn't pull those
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      1     letters.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Just because they can and



      3     want to ask for one.



      4          MS. OVERHOLT:  Yeah, I guess so.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And I heard correctly, was



      6     it Abbey, you said this is their ninth delinquency?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  That's correct.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Over the course of how many



      9     years?



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  They've got a low file number, so



     11     they've been around a while.



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  Yeah, we don't put them all on



     13     here.  The last one we have is 2006, but I bet it's



     14     been longer than that.



     15          MS. BECKLEY:  It says "Current and Former



     16     Delinquencies, 2019 Annual, 2016 PreElect."  Am I



     17     reading this right?



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes, but their first one was in



     19     the 1990s.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  Okay.  So 2016 to 2019, so three



     21     years.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And is this the first



     23     continuance on this matter?



     24          MS. TAYLOR:  Yes.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.
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      1          MS. TAYLOR:  She is at the Grand Canyon today.



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Okay.  I move that we grant the



      3     continuance until next hearing.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Second, anyone?



      5          MR. DICKEY:  I'll second.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?



      7          I think it might be worth, though, for the



      8     record making sure that we're not -- we're reminded



      9     of this and not punting on the next go-round.



     10          MS. TAYLOR:  You bet.



     11          The second one is the Committee to Elect --



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hold on.  We have to vote on



     13     the motion.



     14          MS. TAYLOR:  I'm sorry.  I got so excited.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I think we all are.  I'm



     16     with you.



     17          We have a motion to grant the continuance and



     18     a second.  Hearing no further discussion, all those



     19     in favor signify by "aye."



     20          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  It's unanimous.  The



     24     "ayes" have it.  The motion carries for



     25     continuance.

�



                                                          111



      1          Okay.  Go ahead.



      2          MS. TAYLOR:  The next one is the Committee to



      3     Elect Corinne Westerfield.  She's got two causes,



      4     2021-7188-82 and 2021-7188-157.  It's on pages 47



      5     and 90.  She's asking for a continuance.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  First, is this her first?



      7          MS. TAYLOR:  This is her first penalty, and



      8     she's asking for a continuance because she's with



      9     her son at his chemotherapy.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  Somebody want to make



     11     the motion?



     12          MR. DICKEY:  I'll make that motion.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     14          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a motion to grant



     16     continuance and a second.  Any discussion?



     17          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     18     "aye."



     19          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     21          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  The "ayes" have it.



     23     Motion carries to continue.  Thank you.



     24          Next.



     25          MS. TAYLOR:  The last one is -- I'm sorry.
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      1     There are two more.  Indiana Industrial Political



      2     Committee, Cause No. 2021-6397-122, Cause



      3     No. 2021-6397-189, and Cause No. 2021-6397-207.



      4     They are asking for a continuance because it's new



      5     people and they didn't know anything about anything



      6     that's happening, so they're trying to dig to



      7     figure out what -- they learned about it a couple



      8     days ago.



      9          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  I actually talked to this



     10     treasurer, but it's a new management company taking



     11     over and they didn't even realize this PAC existed



     12     and that they were in this kind of trouble.  So



     13     they wanted to figure out what the heck was going



     14     on before they presented it before the commission.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  I mean, they're



     16     not asking for a waiver.  They're just asking for



     17     some time to get together, so I'm fine with that.



     18          MS. TAYLOR:  Right.



     19          MR. DICKEY:  Agreed.



     20          MS. BECKLEY:  I would make a motion to



     21     waiver -- or to continue.



     22          MS. OVERHOLT:  Second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second.  Any further



     24     discussion?



     25          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by
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      1     "aye."



      2          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      3          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      4          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion to grant a



      6     continuance is approved.



      7          Next.  You said there was one more?



      8          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  This is a separate



      9     attachment you had called the "2019 Excess



     10     Corporation," Justus Rental Properties.  He is out



     11     of the state today, and he (audio interruption).



     12          MS. OVERHOLT:  You cut out.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did we lose you?



     14          MS. THOMPSON:  Are you there?



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  You cut out for a



     16     minute.



     17          MS. THOMPSON:  The 2019 Excess Corporation



     18     separate attachment, it's Justus Rental Properties,



     19     Cause 2021-229.  He's out of state today, and he



     20     wanted to be able to appear before the commission



     21     to explain what happened with this excess corporate



     22     donation.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Anyone



     24     want to make a motion?



     25          MR. DICKEY:  So moved.
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      1          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  A motion and a second.  Any



      3     discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all those in favor of granting a



      5     continuance signify by "aye."



      6          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      7          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      8          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  It's unanimous.  The motion



     10     carries.



     11          That's it?



     12          MS. THOMPSON:  That's it for our continuances.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So moving on, we go to



     14     administrative dissolution of committees.



     15          MS. THOMPSON:  Yes.  Mr. Chairman, you have



     16     another attachment there with the dissolved



     17     committees.  These committees can be



     18     administratively dissolved.  They have not filed a



     19     report in three years, they have a balance of less



     20     than 1,000, and both chairman and treasurer have



     21     been notified of this meeting.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I move the commission



     23     do the following:  Make a finding that there's no



     24     evidence that any of these committees continues to



     25     receive contributions, make expenditures, or
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      1     otherwise function as a committee; make a finding



      2     that, according to the best evidence available to



      3     the commission, the dissolution of these committees



      4     will not impair any contract or impede the



      5     collection of any debt or judgment by a person;



      6     make a finding that the prudent use of public



      7     resources makes further efforts to collect any



      8     outstanding civil penalty imposed against these



      9     committees wasteful or unjust, therefore that any



     10     such penalties be waived; and administratively



     11     dissolve each of these committees.



     12          Is there a second to that motion?



     13          MS. BECKLEY:  I will second.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any discussion?  Any



     15     questions?



     16          We have a motion and a second.  All those in



     17     favor signify by "aye."



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     19          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     20          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.  Hearing none opposed,



     22     the motion carries.



     23          Okay.  Before we finish campaign finance



     24     business, I would like to address an issue brought



     25     to my attention by staff.  We have had two
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      1     candidates fail to enter their campaign finance



      2     reports electronically, as required by Indiana



      3     Code 3-9-4-4.  Indiana Code 3-9-4-16(j) allows the



      4     commission to assess penalties for this violation



      5     equal to the cost incurred by the Election Division



      6     for the manual entry of the data contained in the



      7     report or statement, plus any investigative costs



      8     incurred and documented by the Election Division



      9     for this violation.



     10          We will not be hearing these two cases today.



     11     However, since this is the first time this issue



     12     has come before the commission, I would move that



     13     the commission adopt a policy to set a proposed



     14     minimum penalty of $100 to accommodate staff time



     15     and resources used to input the report.  As I said,



     16     we will not hear any of the cases at this meeting,



     17     but I think it is important to have a proposed fine



     18     in place to order prior to the hearing for any



     19     committee to enter into a settlement agreement.



     20          Is there a second for this motion?



     21          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.



     23          MR. KING:  I'm sorry to interrupt here.  There



     24     was a communication earlier from Vice Chair Long



     25     that I believe you were provided a copy of.
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You're correct.  You're



      2     correct.  Thank you for reminding me of that.



      3          MR. KING:  And -- yeah.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Can I just simply withdraw



      5     this motion?



      6          MR. KING:  Yes.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'd like to withdraw that



      8     motion in consideration of Vice Chairman Long's



      9     request.



     10          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, if I could.



     11          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes.  Yeah.



     12          MR. KING:  I think if the commission wishes to



     13     discuss this topic in general, you certainly have



     14     the opportunity to do so.  And before you finish



     15     your campaign finance business, you would



     16     ordinarily move to default those individuals who



     17     did not appear.



     18          MS. WARYCHA:  But before we do that, can we



     19     have just a moment?



     20          Haley, could you open up the line so that if



     21     there's anyone who, for some reason, was not able



     22     to use the hand motion feature, we give them an



     23     opportunity, as we discussed at the beginning.



     24          THE MODERATOR:  Absolutely.  Attendees, I am



     25     going to give you permissions briefly to allow you
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      1     to speak if you did not get an opportunity to do



      2     so, and then after a few seconds we will remove



      3     that if you do not have anything to say.



      4          MS. WARYCHA:  Well, everybody just muted



      5     themselves, so I will go ahead and say that I think



      6     that we're good.  Please proceed, Mr. Chairman.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      8          Brad, you brought up defaults.



      9          MR. KING:  Yes, sir.  Ordinarily you would ask



     10     if there's anyone present to testify on remaining



     11     campaign finance hearing scheduled for today.  You



     12     have done that, and we have checked to make certain



     13     that no one wishes to do so.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So we're good?



     15          MR. KING:  Well, almost, and that is the next



     16     step would be for you as chair to declare the



     17     hearings on all remaining campaign finance matters



     18     scheduled for today to be closed --



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Closed, yeah.



     20          MR. KING:  -- and then to ask for a motion to



     21     impose the entire amount of the proposed penalty,



     22     including mailing costs, in all remaining campaign



     23     finance enforcement actions.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So is there a motion to



     25     impose -- so basically they're not here so they're
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      1     just going to get the penalty that was imposed?



      2          MR. KING:  They have --



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  They've not sought a waiver?



      4     They've not asked to be heard?



      5          MR. KING:  This would be the equivalent of a



      6     default judgment entered in a court proceeding?



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So do we have a motion to



      8     impose the penalty on the remaining cases?



      9          MS. BECKLEY:  So moved.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We have a second.  Any



     11     discussion?



     12          Hearing none, all those in favor signify by



     13     "aye."



     14          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     16          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     17          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The motion carries.  The



     19     "ayes" have it.



     20          Brad, back to my motion that I withdrew,



     21     should we have some discussion about that or simply



     22     push the matter to the next meeting?



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, that is your decision



     24     and that of the members of the commission.  Since



     25     we will have members continuing to serve on the
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      1     commission, I would suggest it might be beneficial



      2     to take five minutes to at least get the issue on



      3     members' radar screens so that they can think about



      4     it and discuss with staff or other interested



      5     parties some of the details involved.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  So, I mean, I read



      7     through a motion here and withdrew it, but if you



      8     want to take a couple seconds and kind of give a



      9     reintroduction or overview of the issue and why we



     10     might want to consider it.



     11          MR. KING:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Then I'll



     12     be happy to defer to my counterpart, Co-Director



     13     Nussmeyer, for anything she might wish to add.



     14          The campaign finance enforcement statute sets



     15     forth a number of different penalties based on



     16     types of violations that committees commit, most



     17     commonly delinquencies.  There are others for



     18     excess contributions.  But the legislature, a



     19     couple of sessions ago, required all legislative



     20     candidates to file their reports electronically,



     21     and except in two particular cases, which I won't



     22     mention by name, legislative candidates have done



     23     so.



     24          The law provided that the commission can



     25     assess a penalty for a violation, that is, for

�



                                                          121



      1     failing to file electronically, "equal to the costs



      2     incurred by the Election Division for the manual



      3     entry of data contained in the report or statement,



      4     plus any investigative costs incurred and



      5     documented by the" commission -- or excuse me --



      6     "and documented by the Election Division for the



      7     violation."



      8          In discussions at the staff level, at least



      9     with the reports that we are currently looking at,



     10     they will require a minimal amount of effort, but



     11     they will require staff time.  And we are concerned



     12     that we don't want to set a policy that would



     13     encourage people to not file electronically and



     14     instead have the commission give clear guidance to



     15     candidates about their potential -- or committees



     16     for their potential liability for failing to comply



     17     with this state statute.



     18          And so we had discussed a minimum penalty of



     19     $100 to accommodate the staff time and resources



     20     because both Abbey and Michelle would do data



     21     entry, but it involves consultation with legal



     22     counsel and the co-directors to a limited degree.



     23     And so we're seeking guidance as to, when we come



     24     before the commission to present a proposed



     25     penalty, what that minimum penalty should be in a
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      1     situation like the one I've described.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  And I think it's fair



      3     to explain for the record that Vice Chairman Long



      4     requested that we not do anything that would be



      5     binding to a future commissioner that would take



      6     his place at today's meeting, and I agreed to that,



      7     which is why I withdrew my motion.



      8          So we've got the matter out there and



      9     explained, and we'll be happy to tackle it at the



     10     next meeting.  I don't think there's any reason you



     11     can't ask questions or have some discussion,



     12     though, even though we don't have a motion on it,



     13     just for the sake of sort of unpacking what Brad



     14     shared with us.  So if anybody has anything, please



     15     feel free.



     16          MS. OVERHOLT:  Well, I guess, I don't -- the



     17     thing that I would suggest would be that if we want



     18     this -- so if we proceeded with something like



     19     this, it seems that doing it in the form of an



     20     actual commission order as opposed to just, you



     21     know, a motion that gets reflected in the minutes



     22     would be good because, as we know, our orders are



     23     easier to find.  Well, I guess I don't know.  I



     24     don't look for them.  But I would hope that our



     25     orders would be easier to find rather than, you
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      1     know, a motion and a second in the text somewhere



      2     buried in however many pages of minutes there would



      3     be for whatever meeting it's approved in.



      4          So, I mean, conceptually I think it's



      5     something worth discussing.  I don't necessarily --



      6     I mean, I have to think about it some more.  I'm



      7     not sure of any objections overall to the concept



      8     of doing something like this, but I do think that



      9     it should be in the form of a formal order.  So



     10     that would be my suggestion, to the extent that's



     11     helpful, for when we do actually contemplate it.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yes, that makes sense to me.



     13          Brad, does that make sense to tackle it that



     14     way at the next meeting?



     15          MR. KING:  Yes.  Once again in this meeting,



     16     Commissioner Wilson Overholt has read my mind in



     17     that, when we publish our campaign finance manual,



     18     we have included as an appendix two or three



     19     ongoing commission orders that deal with matters of



     20     policy like the one we're describing here.  And so



     21     having an order would be especially appropriate,



     22     considering those precedents, and it would be



     23     readily available to anyone who accesses our



     24     campaign finance manual.



     25          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I might add

�



                                                          124



      1     on to Brad's comments.



      2          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, please.



      3          MS. NUSSMEYER:  And I believe this was sort of



      4     inferred in how he described the issue and the



      5     problem.  I would encourage the commission to



      6     consider a floor, so a not less than $100.  But my



      7     concern would be if there may be some committees



      8     who would walk in with a 500-page handwritten



      9     report and leave it with staff to file and enter



     10     because it's cheaper to pay the $100 penalty than



     11     to hire staff to do the data entry into the system.



     12          So as we craft the order internally to share



     13     with you to consider, I would encourage you to



     14     consider setting $100 as the minimum because, as



     15     the statute says, you may assess a fine if the



     16     individuals fail to file their reports



     17     electronically.  And much like we do for campaign



     18     finance, you can consider each individual instance



     19     of failure to file a report individually on its own



     20     and assess at least a $100 penalty for failure to



     21     file online.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And again, Brad, there were



     23     only two instances of this occurring?



     24          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's correct.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  I mean, I take your
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      1     comments under advisement, Co-Director Nussmeyer.



      2     I think that makes sense too.  I get what we're



      3     trying to avoid here.



      4          MS. NUSSMEYER:  I would add, Mr. Chairman, the



      5     requirement to file electronically is not going



      6     away, and if you're passing an order to set a



      7     minimum level of a potential fine, then it still



      8     gives you, the commission, the ability to increase



      9     the amount if you think that's warranted.  If we



     10     find that it, in fact, took staff 12 hours to enter



     11     a report instead of zero hours, it gives you the



     12     flexibility to impose a greater fine.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Right, and if you have



     14     repeat offenders and the like as well.  Okay.  So



     15     we'll tackle that in that manner at the next



     16     meeting.



     17          Is there anything else?  I think that's it.



     18     Correct, Brad?



     19          MR. KING:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  That is all



     20     that is on the agenda other than the motion to



     21     adjourn.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  And we'll need to



     23     have another meeting; correct?



     24          MR. KING:  Yes.  Mr. Chairman, there will need



     25     to be a subsequent meeting in the reasonably near
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      1     future because we did not bring all the campaign



      2     finance matters before you today to try to keep



      3     this to a manageable length of time and



      4     participants.  And we will --



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  How humane of you.  We



      6     appreciate that.



      7          MR. KING:  We are glad to make this task a



      8     comfortable one.  We also anticipate other matters



      9     coming up in the normal course of the election



     10     cycle, and so, yes, a meeting will probably be



     11     necessary for you to call in the reasonably near



     12     future.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Well, we'll prepare



     14     to do that.



     15          And, Suzannah, normally Vice Chairman Long



     16     would make a motion to adjourn.  Would you like to



     17     do that today?



     18          MS. OVERHOLT:  Sure, yes.  Mr. Chairman, I



     19     would move that we adjourn today's lovely meeting.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.  Is there a



     21     second?



     22          MS. BECKLEY:  I'll second.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  Great.  All



     24     those in favor say "aye."



     25          MS. OVERHOLT:  Aye.
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      1          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      2          MR. DICKEY:  Aye.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're adjourned.  Enjoy the



      4     rest of your week.



      5          MR. KING:  Thank you.  Likewise.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      7          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      8     Session was adjourned at 3:36 p.m.)



      9



     10



     11



     12



     13



     14



     15



     16



     17



     18



     19



     20



     21



     22



     23



     24



     25

�



                                                          128



      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF HAMILTON



      3          I, Maria W. Collier, a Notary Public in and



      4  for said county and state, do hereby certify that the



      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 1:03 p.m. and



      7  3:36 p.m.;



      8          That said public session was taken down in



      9  stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewriting



     10  under my direction; and that the typewritten



     11  transcript is a true record of the public session.



     12          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     13  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 12th day of



     14  July, 2021.



     15



     16



     17



     18



     19                   

                           

     20



     21  My Commission expires:

         December 5, 2024

     22



     23  Job No. 162010



     24



     25

�


